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Hunting is a key supplier to the upstream oil and gas industry.

Our strategy is to manufacture products and deliver services to
our customers wherever in the world they are operating.

Hunting’s product offering extends across the life cycle of an oil
and gas well, and this focus allows us to create, distribute and
sustain value for our shareholders.

Hunting is quoted on the London Stock Exchange and is
a constituent of the FTSE 250 index.

Highlights

Market highlights

Financial highlights

Average WTI crude o)t
price

$65 per barrel

{2017 - $50 per barre)

Yaar-arnd WT] crude oll
spot price

$45 per barrel

(2017 — S60 per barreh

Revenue

$911.4m

{2017 - $724.8m)

Net cash

$61 3m

{2017 ~ $30.4m)

Global average
onsheore rig count

1 ,990 units

(2017 - 1,810 units)

Global drilling and
production expenditure

$231.2bn

{2017 - $201.2bry

Global average
offshaore rig count

200 units

(2017 — 198 units)

Underlying profit
from operations*

$104.7m

(2017 — $14.3m)

Reported praofit
from operations

$7 D.4m

2017 - $(24.8)m loss)

US onshore drilling and
production expenditure

$133.5bn

{2017 — $106.1bn)

Underlying diluted
earnings per share

49.6 cents

{2017 - B,O cents)

Reported diluted
earnings per share

52 . 3 cents

2017 — (16.0) cents foss)

Sourca: Bloomberg/Spears 8 Assccrates

* Non-GAAP measure {"NGM™) sea pages 161 1o 185
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Summary of the year

Operational and
corporate highlights

Record performance delivered by Hunting Titan, supported

by strong US onshore completion activity.

~ Increase in volume of H-1 Perforating Systems sold, as customers
continue tc adopt more efficient and safer perforating technology.

- Capacity expansion initiatives commenced at Milford and Pampa
facilities to address demand.

— Rationalisation of distribution centres across North America to
increase alignment with customer activity and general market
outlook,

US segment records increased volumes as US onshore

market accelerated. \

- (Good customer acceptance of IEC-LOCK™ semi-premium
connection, for use in onshore driliing cpsrations,

~ Modest increasss in demand for MWD/LWD tools as key
customers' replacernent programmes recomrnenced.

- Increased volumes reported at Subsea as domestic and
internaticnal deep water projects recommenced,

~ Production of Hunting Titan producis now occurring within
Hunting Electrenics, Hunting Specialty and US Manufacturing
facilities, increasing utilisation and inter-segment sales.

Sales volume improvement racorded within other

international operating segments.

- Canada operalions report increased CCTG volumes following
new clLSIOMer wing,

— European well intervention business recorded Increased demand
far pressure control and well testing equipment.

- Asia Pacific operations report modest increase in OCTG sales
in domestic China.

~ Middle Cast activity Improved in the year as well intervention and
OCTG sales into Northern frag recommenced,

Capital investment mainly addressing production capacity

canstraints,

- $30.tm spent in the year, including investmant to support future
demand for Hunting Titan products, targeted to reduce costs
and increase efficiency.

Group rationalisation continued in the year.
— Closure of one manufacturing facility in Kenya and three
distribution centres in North America,

Board changes.

— Carol Chesney appointed Director and Ghair of the Audit
Commitlee in April 2018.

— Keilh Lough appointed Diroctor in April 2018 and Senior
Independent Director in August 2018,

— John Nicholas retired from the Board in April 2018 and
John Hefmeister retired in August 2018, both completing
ning years' service,

Financial
highlights

Revenue increased 26% to $911.4m (2017 - $724.9m)
supported by US onshare drilling market.
—~ Hunting Titan segment revenue Increased 34% to $418.2m
(2017 - $312,8m).
— US segment revenue increased 49% to $327.1m (2017 - $218.9m).

EBITDA.

~  Underlying EBITDA of $142.3m (2017 — $58.0m} and margin of 16%
(27 - 8%).

- Reported EBITDA of $141.3m (2017 — $53.6m) and margin of 16%
{2017 - T%).

Profit from operations.

- Underlying profit from oparations increased to $104.7m
{2017 — $14.3m).

— Reported profit from operations increased to $75.4m
{2017 — B(24.8)m ioss).

Earnings Per Share.

- Underlying diluted £EPS of 49.6 cents (2017 — 8.0 cenls),

— Reported difuted EPS of 52,3 cents per share (2017 — (16.0} cents
loss per sharg),

ROGE,
- Underlying ROGE in the vear improved to 9% {2017 — 19),

Net cash of $61.3m at year-enct (2017 - $30.4m}.
- Net cash generation of $30.9m 2017 - $32,3m).

Amend and extend exercise completed In December 2018 in

respect of the Group’s muiti-currency revolving cradit facility.

- Quantumn of facility now $180 Om with a maturity date of 2022,
— Facllity can be increased to $235.0m, with the maturity date
exlending to 2023, subject to agresment with lending group.

Dividend distributions recommeniced in the year, with an
interim dividend of 4.0 cents per share paid in O¢tober 2018.
— Final dividend declared of 5.0 cents per share, o be paid on
10 May 2019 1o sharebolders on the ragister on 23 April 2019,
subject to sharehalder approval.
- Tatal dividends daclarsd of 9.0 cants par share for the vaar
(2017 - nily absorbing $14.8m of cash (2017 - $nil}.
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Hunting at a glance

Our operations

Qur cperating facilities heed to be close to
our customers and are therefore based in or
near the main oil and gas praducing regions.

Group overview

Segmental revenue

Operating sites

34 po7-38)

Countries of operation

1 1 {2017 = 12)

Distribution centres

1 8 {2017 - 21)

Patents granted and pending

690 (2017 -~ 5B8)

Employees (year-end)

2, 772 {2017 - 2,810}

Internal manufacturing
reject rate

O. 2% {2017 - 0.3%)

02 Hunting PLC [ 2018 Annual Repart and Acceunts

Split of external revenue by segment

1 Hunting Titan 45%
2U8 31%
3 Asia Paciic 9%
A Europe 8%
5 Canada, 4%

& Middle East, Afnca and Other 3%
T Exploratlon and Produclion  <1%




Our products and services

<

¥

wijh

55

Oil Country Tubular Goods

The Group owns propristary connection
technotogy including the SEAL-LOCKTM and
WEDGE-LOCKTM premium connectiens and
the TEC-LOCKTM semi-premium connection.
The Group manufactures couplings and
accessories and applies premium threads

te pipe for its customers throughout its

global facilities.

Perforating Systems

Hurting manufactures perforating guns,
energetics charges and instrumentation usad
In well completion activides. Praducts are
manufacturad across our global network and
sok threugh distribution points in Canada,
Chinha, Indenesia, UAE, UK and US.

Advanced Manufacturing

Advanced Manufactaring includss precision
machining and electrorics manufacturing,
both utilised in MWD/LWD taols A range of
non-oil and gas products are also engineered
for the power generation, aviation, military
and space sectors.

Drilling Tools

Hunting's Drilling Tools business provides
mud mator rental services for operaters in
ihe onshore oll and gas basins of the US,

Intervention Toals

The Group manufactures a range of 100lg
including Thru-Tubing, Slickline and Wireline
tools and Prassure Control Equipment used
for intervention actwvities.

Subsea

Hunting's Subisea business manufactures
hydraulic couplings, valves and accessories
for application to deep water driling activities.

Our business relationships

Hunting generates value through the manufacture of
praducts, provision of ralated services and supply of
rertal equipment 1o the upstream energy seclor used

in the extraction of oll and gas.

Our strategic focus Is on the manufaciure of products
usad in the wellbars or forming part of the wellbare's

infrastructure,

Of and gas extraction requires a diverse range of products
and setvices. The nature of the sector results in relationships
with business partners who can ba cuslomers, suppliers
and campetitors at different points in the value chain.

N

Wang gas extraction

Investment highlights

— Robust fundamentals for the oil and gas industry

- Strategic - focus on the welloore
- Proprietary technolegies and diverse product range

— World-class manufacturing facilities located close to our customers

— Proven track recerd of manufacturing excellence and reliebility

— Experienced management team

— Focused on efficiency, cost control and cash generation

— Strong rgp[;tation with our customer base for delvering qua-lity-

Hunting PLG | 2018 Annual Report and Accounts
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Chairman’s statement

Hunting had a positive year on many fronts
and the Board remains focused on delivering
a sustained performance, with a number of
initiatives underway to continue to improve
efficiency and increase shareholder value.

John {Jay) F. Glick
Chairman

04 Hunting PLC | 2018 Annual Report and Accounts




Introduction

| am delighted to introduce our 2018 Annual Heport and
Accounts to shareholdars. In the year, Hunting has seen
very strong US onshore wetl completlon activity in the first
three quarters, as the averags W1 of price encouraged
operatars to commit significant capital to the development
af new prediction from US shale basins. This has resulted
in Hunting reporting imbroved levels of revenue and
profitability compared to 2017. While the US affshore and
interationai drilling markets have remained subdued, your
Company has focused on in-sourcing more production

in the year, which has improved facility utiisation and
strengthened margins. In the final quarter, momentum
within onshore US basing slowed marginally, impacting

on the Group’s onshors businesses; however, this was
mitigated, in part, by the increase in demand for other
product lines.

Financial Performance

Revenue jor the Group increased 26% in the year to
$911.4m, compared to $724.9m in 2017, leading to an
underlying profit before tax of $104.0m {201/ — $11.5m).
Reported profit before tax was $74.7m (2017 — ${27.6)m loss).

J e Y .o . Pt i
heachatd ooza-on i caen LW B30T 0L

{P017 — $30.4m), which was another excellent result, This
leaves Hunting with a strong and flexible balance sheet io
meet the demands of the current market environment,

Dividends

At the Group's half-year resulls in August 2018, the Board
declared an interim dividend of 4.0 cents per share, which
was paid in Cctober 2018,

Given the sustained petformance of the Cempany
throughaout the year, compared to the pricr vear, the Board
1s recommending & final dividend of 5.0 cents per share
absorbing $8.2m of cash, for approval by shareholders at
the Company’s Annual General Meeting on 17 April 2019.
If approved, the final dvdend will be paid on 10 May 2019,
to shareholders on 1he register on 23 April 2018,

This distribution will bring the total dividends paid in
respect of 2018 to 9.0 cents per share or a districution
of $14.8m.

The Board remains committed to delivering sustainable
dvidends, but will continue to assess each dividend
proposal on a case-by-case base.

Board Changes

Changes to the Board took place during the year, with
John Nicholas and John Hofmeister retiring after nine
yoars' service, We thank thermn both for their wise counsel
and cammitment to the Group through the challenging
times the Company hag faced,

i Results for the year, as reported under IFRS, adiusted for
amorlisation of intangible asse!s recognised as part of a
business comb’nation and exceplional items,

Carol Chasnay and Kelth Lough wera both appointed

to the Board in April 2618, following a thorough search
process. Garol Chesney was appeintad Chalr of the Audit
Comrmitiee following John Nicholas's retirement in April,
Keith Lough was appeinted Senlor Independent Director
following Jahn Hofmeister's retirerment in August and
Annell Bay was appointed Chair of the Remuneration
Committee.

Govarnance

The Company has enhanced its governance framework in
the year, with the creation of an Executive Committee, The
Committee comp-ises the execulive Directors and regional
managing directors of each of the Group's operating
segments.

In tha year, the Board also completed its third externafly
facilitated effectiveness evaluation. More information an
this process can be found in the Govemance section of
this report.

The Board has noted the publication of the hew UK
Cerperate Governance Code inJuly 2018, Compliance
initiatives are underway, which will inciude new employee

Crgasomia s D alues Ut oatndur o an man e
Company that will be reperied 1o the Board throughout
the year. | am pleased ta announce that Annell Bay has
agreed to ba the Company's designaled non-executive
Director for employee engagement matters, as
encouraged by the pew Coda. Annell is located in the
US where the majority of our workforce resides, Annell
will be working with management to ensure suitable
arrangements are put in place during 2019, ahaead of
Hunting reporting its new compliance in next year's
Annual Report.

Conclusion

Huriting had & positive year on many fronts and the Board
remains focused on defivering a sustained performance,
with a number of initiatives underway to conlinue to
improve efficiency and increase shareholder value,

On behalf of the Board, | would like o thank all our
stakehclders, including employees, shareholders,
customers and supplers, for their support during the
past year.

-

John {Jay)} F. Glick
Chairman

28 February 2019

Hunting PLC | 2018 Annual Report and Accounts 0§

aoueuwsascd sjeiedicy  podas aiSageayg

SIUSLIAIE]S [BloueU ]y

UOREW: 16U JBYI0

—

JRTTE—




Chief Executive’s statement and Outlook

With a strong balance sheet, tightly managed
cost base and a strong presence in our chosen
upstream equipment and service markets,
Hunting remains well positioned to capture
opportunities in the current market.

Jim Johnson
Chief Executive

08  Hunting PLC | 2618 Annual Regort and Accounts




Introduction

2018 has seen the Group report monthly profitability
throughout the year, as market stability within US onshore
completions led to a strong year-on-year increase in
performance, Whike the Group is still some way from
reporting profitability across all of its International reglons,
Hunting's historic focus on the US market has allowed the
Company to return 1o bath underltying and reporied
profitability in the year. On the back of this improved
Irading environment, we have recommenced dividend
distributions.

The performance of Hunting Titan 1N the year has clearly
been the highlight for the Group, as demand far
perforating systems, energetics and instruments have all
exceeded management’s expactations. Markst
momentum in the first half of the year was exceptionally
strong, as oparators increased drilling operations on the
back of higher average oll prices and lower operating
costg, A key to the success of Hunting Titan has been its
strong and varied technology offering, which customers
continue to embrace as the market seeks more cost-
sfficient and safe ways to extract oil and gas.

Actningin the 1S nnehpra hacine b afen bad » peatpne
impact on the Group's US operating segment, as demand
for OCT@G, accessonies, downhole 1ools and other
equipment has led to the US returning to profitability.,
During the year, some indications of a recovery in the US
offshore market were noted, as the oil majors announced
new investmen! in deep waler projects; however, at this
polnt, new activity remains patchy and is unlikely to gain
any firm traction until the WTI oil price stabllises ata
modest pramium to the current oi price.

A kay achievement in the year Is the use of the Group's
global manufacturing facilities to assist in meeting
customer demand for Hunting Titan'’s progucts. Ten
facHitles across the Group have manufactured Tilan
products and compoenents in the ysar, which enabled
Hunting to retain margin within the Group and Increase
utilisation at a number of facllities, which were historically
focused on offshore markets.

Eisewnere across the Group, alf infernational businesses,
excapt Europe, reporiad increased revenue and the
narrowng of iosses as broad-based market stability,
caupled with angoing cost-containment intlatives,
positively impacted porformance.

Group Results Summary

The following table sets out a summary of the Group's
results for the year, Hunting reports a 26% increase in
revenue compared to the prior year. Underlying' EBITDA
improved considerably as operations across Hunting's
US markets increased with activity levels, to record an
incraase in the year 1o $142.3m (2017 — $56.0m). Reported
EBITDA increased to $141.3m (2017 - $53.6mj,

_ Undayng'  Reported
2018 2017 2018 017
$m $m $m $m
Revenue 9114 7249 9114 7249
EBITDA? 1423 560 141.3 53.6
Profit loss) from
operations 1047 143 754 (24.8)

Frofit (loss) beforetax 1040 115 747 (27.68)
Profit {loss) for theyear 820  10.5 85.7 (28.8)

Diiuted EPS - cents 49.6 8.0 523 (160

i, Results for the year, as reportad under IFRS, adjusled for
amarhisation of intangible assats recognised as partof a
businass corrbination and exceptional iterns.

k. Non-GAAF measurs ([see pages 161 1o 165).

Underlying' profit from cperations increased in the yaar 1o
$104.7m (2017 - $14.3m). Reported profit from operations
was $75.4m (2017 — $(24.8)m loss). This has led to
underlying' diluted EPS improving from 8.0 cents per share
in 2017 1o 49.6 cents per share in 2018. Reported diluted
EPS was 52,3 cents {2017 — (18.0) cants loss).

Outlook

The Group's improved performance in 2018 and into
aarky 201G has been driven by 1S nnshore-centric driting
activity and investment, whiie the results of Hunting’s
international businesses remain dependent on further
market improvernent. Given the ongoing comrmeodity price
and geopolitical volatility, the Board remains focused on
the agility and flexibility of the business to respond to
market conditions, Initiatives to further Improve profitability
and margins, and reduce losses, including in-sourcing of
production, facilty rationafisation and inter-segment
manufactunng, will also continue in the year ahead.

The Company has a number of new products and
techrologies scheduled to launch in 2019, which will
continue to broaden our market reach, Further, with the
commissioning of new, higher-efticiency manufacturing,
the patential for margin improvernant in our key product
ines is anticipated; however, it is also condilional an activity
levels improving. The Board continues o reviaw bolt-on
acquisition apportunities, which, if concluded, will increase
aur presencs in the wellbere and enhance our current
product portfolia, Any potential acquisitions would need to
complement our portfolio of onshare lechnologies as wall
as subsea completions within the oif and gas industry.

With a strong balance sheet, tightly managed cost base
and a strong prasance in aur chosen upstream equipment
and service markets, Hunting remains well positionad to
capture oppoertunities in the current market, should the
recovery across the industry continue.

T —
e
p
Jim Johnsan
Chief Executive

28 February 2019
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Market review

Global market
indicators

Intreduction

Hunting's perforrnance is ckosely finked to the macre-
economic drivers of the ol and gas industry, including the
WTI crude oit and natural gas price, as well as regional
drivers such as drilling spend and average rig counts.

Commodity Prices

The WT! crude oil price stanted 2018 at $60.4 per barrel
and ended the year at $45.4 per barrel, following the
concerns of ovarsupply In the global market, which
adversely Impacted the sector during (34 of the year.

The average WTl price was ¢.$65 per barrel in the year,
which represents a 30% increase over 2017, and
supported the continued increase in drilling and
production sperd, particularly across North America.

WTI Grude Oil Prices ($/barrel)

a1l o2AE N8 o9y 0SN8 08B G7/B 08718 CDMEB 10M1B 1118 12718

The Henry Hub natural gas price has averaged $2.05 per
mmBtu in 2018 compared to $3.04 per mmBtu in the prior
year. This meant that gas driiing was maintained in the year.

Henry Hub Natural Gas Prics ($/mmBiu}

=3
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Industry Spend

On the back of an improving oif price towards the end of
2017 and the average oil prica through 2018, the oil and
gas induslry increased global drilling and production
spend by 15% to $231.2bn {2017 - $201.2bn). Of this
increase, $27.4bn was allocated to new US onshore
drilling and production expenditurs, underpinning the
aclivity levels reported across the US market, with ¢,45%
of US rig activity being located in the Permian hasin.

Global Drilling and Production Expenditure {$bn)

130
25
190
?5_“
50
25
o
2016 7016 zom 2018 20187
e Us @ Rest of World f = forecast

This Increase In spend had a positive impact on the
Hunting Titan and US operating segments, which both
reported double-digil increases in revenue and were both
profitable al the underlying and reported levels.

Cutlook

At the time cf publication, industry commentatars ara
projecting 2019 to be similar to 2018 in terms of global
dnll ng and production spend, with offshore activity
offsetting the marginal deciine in onshore spend.

Aig Count

Driven by the increasing average cll price and drilfing
spend, glebal rig courts averaged 9% higher in the year
at 2,180 units compared to 2,008 units in 2017. This
contributed to a generally higher level of industry stability
in the vear, albeit remaining focused on the US, where
the additional spend was mostly allocated.

Global Average Rig Count

2500

2000

1506

000

500
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2048 2018 2017 2018 2019

@ Offshare @ Onshore { = foragast
QOutlook

The global average rig count 1s projected {o marginally
decline in 2019 to 2,152 units given the projected slowing
in the US anshore market,
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Regional market
indicators

US - Onshore Spend ($bn)/Average Rig Count
As noted previously, Hunting's performance in 2018 has -
been pasitively impacted by the continued increase in .
activity within the US onshore shale basing and, in % =
particutay, the Permian basin where naarly 45% of US
domestic rig activity 1s focused. = 100o
The average anshore rig count increased 18% to 1,013 10 o
active Uhits, with the average drilling spend increasing -
26% from $106.1bn In 2017 to $133.5bn in 2018, B .

S0
This data supports the continued Increase in revenua W
and profits within the Group’s Hunting Titan and US 00
operating segments. @ -
Qutlook 20 200

Given the lower olf price in late 2018, which extended inte

early 2019, the average rig count and projected production
and driling spend are both forecast ta decline by 7% and L 2016 2017 2018 2019
4% respectively, based on lowsr complstion activity teing

]

projected and oil off-take constrainls in the Permian basin, ~ ® Seend T Averags rd count
Onshore industry spend 15 stifl forecast to be ¢.$128.7bn, = forecas
in the year ahead.

US - Offshore Spend ($bn)/Average Rig Count
In contrast to the US onshore markst, the US offshore - ..

market remained subdued during the year, aside from

those companies with remaining drilling commitments 2
in tne region

la

|ﬂ
ls

The average rig count was 18 in the year compared to
20 in the prior year, with drilsng andg production spend

['H
g

|a

declining 7% to $4.1bn, 5
L

This data jed to the Group’s businessas, which are more Y

focused an the offshore market, remaining generally quiet 4

in the yaar. ] L3

Outlock 2 e

Market commenlators are forecasting an improving

U3 offshore market in 2018, with the average rig count L

axpected to reach 22 and d-illing spend increasing

17% to $4.8bn. = 2018 2016 2007 2018 2019f

la

® Spend — Average rg count
f = forecast
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Market review conunued

Regional market
indicators continued

Canada

The Canhadian market remains a highly competitive and
challenging market environment, with the realised price for
domestic western Ganada crude ol selling at a material
discount to the WTI crude oil price, which generally
deterred clients from major new drilling programmes.

In the year, drilling and production spend increased 9% to
$18.1bn, which supported an increase in revenue for the
Group's Canada segment and a narrowing of operating
losses. In 2018, however, the average rig count declined
8% o 194 gctive unita.

Outlook

The markst environment in Canada Is not anticipated
to improve during 2019, with commentators forecasting
a deciine in the average rig count by 8% to 178 units
and driling spend declining at a simitar rate to $16.6bn,
which reflacts a similar level to 2017,

Europe

The European oil and gas market in 2018 was, for the
most part, unchanged from 2017, The average rig count
dechined by 3% to 67 active UNits across the year, while
drilling spend was flat at $13.2bn. In the UK region of the
North Bea, the average rig count declined by 11% from
27 to 24 unlts in the year, as operalors continued to divest
assets, which slowed activity on key development projects.
This deteriorating market has led io lower revenues and
larger ragional losses for the Group in the vear.

Outlook

The average rig count across Eurcpe 1s projected fo
increase ta 72 units, or 7%, compared te 2018, of which
three units are due to return to the North Sea. Average
drilling spend is forecast 1o increase by 8% to $14.3bn,

10 Hunting PLC | 2018 Annual Report and Accounts

Spend [($bn)/Average Rig Gount

|G

&

la

2015 2018 ap17 2018 2019t
& Spend — Average rig count
f = {orecast
" Spend ($or/Average Rig Count
= L
_bu
2 g0
70
15 60
50
lo, )
a9
5 20
10
o _o
2015 2018 2017 2018 20151
® Spend — Average ng count

f = forecast

-~ —vmmmem -




Asia Pacific {inc. China)

The Asla Pacific region reported an overall increase in
the reglonal ng count of 7% In the year to 902 units and
a 2% ncrease in spend to $49.8bn. Tre Far East region,
i.e. excluding China, reported an increase in the average
rig count of 8% in the year to 216 units, as dnlling across
the region embraced the higher average ol price in tha
year, However, drilling spend actually declined by 10% to
$17.8bn. In China, rig counts Increased 6% and drilling
spend increased 9%.

Qutlock

2019 is projected to show low, single-digit growth for rig
counts and spend tc 927 units and $52.8bn respactively.
This will remain predicated on the average ol price
remalning at levels saen in 2018

Middle East and North Africa

I 2018, activity acrose the region increased marginally
compared to 2017, although activity levels have notably
increased in fraq following the improving security situation
in the country. The average ng count across the Middle
East increased 1% to 367 units and drilling spend
increased 4% tc $22.5bn. In Iraq the average rig count
increased 20% from 43 to 53 units, which supported the
Group's increased revenues from operators in the country.
Saudi Arabia's average rig count was 117 in the year, a
decline of 1%. For the Middie East and North Africa
regions as a whole, the average rig count increased

49 to 491 active units, with a total spand of $30,0bn

in the year.

Outlock

Galng into 2019, for the Middle East and North Africa
region, both the average rig count and driling sperid Is
forecast to increase in the year ahead, with the rig count
averaging bt1 (+4%) and industry sperd approaching
$32.2bn (+7%).

Spend (Sbn)/Average Rig Count

[ 1,208
.
1,000
@
809
%0
0 a0
.
400
20
200
10
o L)
2015 H1E 2017 Pyl ) fLidiig
@ Spend — Average rig coumt
f = forecast
Spend ($bn)/Average Rig Count
. 808
]
o
509
300
W —
400
2. a0
28
10
108
2
2015 2018 2017 2018 20191
® Spend Average rig count

f = forecast

Sotrces — commodity pricos have been collected from
Bloombarg. Average rig count and diilling and production
expenditure data are based on Spears & Assoclates
Drilling and Production Outlook Report — Dacember 2018,
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Key performance indicators

A number of key performance indicators are
used to compare the business performance
and position of the Group. These are reguiarly
reviewed to ensure they remain appropriate.
For details on the movements of these metrics
please refer to the Group Review on pages

14 10 18.

Financial performance is measured on an
underlying basis from operations and, other
than revenue, are non-GAAP measures
(further information on financial Non-GAAP
Measures (“NGM”} can be found

on pages 161 to 165).

IFRS 15 — Contracts with Customers, has been applied te financial
data for 2017 and 2018,

12 Hunting PLC | 2018 Annual Report and Accounts

Revenue ($m)

201 9114
2017 7248
2018 4558

Revenue Is earned from products ard services sold to
customers from the Group's principal activities (see notes
2 and 3).

Undetlying EBITDA* {Loss) (Bm)

2018 1424
2017 . . 56,0
2018 (48,8

Underlying results before share of associates’ post-tax
results, interest, 1ax, depreciation, mpairment and
amortisation [see NGM A

Underlying Profit {Loss) from Operations* ($m)

2008 1047
2012 44

2018 (o2.2)

Undertlylng profit (loss) from operations befors net
finance cosls and tax (see censolidated income
statement and note 2},

Undetlying Operating Margin® (%)

2018 11

2018 o . 120

Underlying peofit {loss) from eperations as a percentage
of revenue

Underlying Diluted Earnings (Loss} Per Share* (cents)

2018 49.8
2017 8.9
2016 [45.3)

Underlying earnings (foss) attributable to Ordinary
shareholders, divided by the weighted average number
of Ordinary shares in issue during the year adjusted for
all potentially dilutive Ordinary shares (see note 11).

Non-GAAP measure ("NGM™} (see pages 161 1o 185},

s e e e—




Capital Investment* ($m)

2018 301
2017 114
2016 1.2

Cash spend on tanglble non-current assets (ses NGM J).

Inventory Days*

Countries with active
operations

11 O17 - 12)

Operaling footprint
(Millien sq )

2 .9 (2047 = 3.0}

Countries in which Hunting
has an active operating site of
dlgtribution centre. This does
not include couniries that only
hava a sales presence.

QOparation and distribution site
aquare footage at year-end.
This closely corresponds 1o
“roofine” and ncludes
administrative space within
operating units.

2018 185
2017 187
016 521

Inventary at the year-end divided by undertying cost of
sales for the last three months of the year multiplied by
92 days (zec NGM D),

Return on Average Capital Employed* (%)

2019 ]

2011

i

2mh @l

Underlying profit {loss) betore interest and tax, adjusted for
the share of associates’ post-tax results, as a percentage
of average gross capital employed (see NGM Q).

Free Cash Flow* ($m)

2018 807
2oty 493
2018 §52.9

All cash flows before ransactions with sharehelders and
tangible and intangible capital investment see NGM L).

Net Cash {Debt)* ($rm)

2013 B13
2017 30.4
2015 15

MNet cash {debt) comprises cash at bank and in hand,
short-term deposits and Money Market Funds less
bank overdrafts, current and non-current borrowings
{see note 23).

Y Non-GAAP measure (‘NGM") (see pages 161 ta 165).

Year«end employees

2, 772 {2C17 - 2,810)

150 8001 {Quality}
accredited operating
sites

71 % (2017 - 64%)

Tha December headcaunt for
Hunting employees, including
part-time staff {see note 8]

Percantage of oparating sites
with ISO 8001 accreditation.

No. of recordable
incidents

46 (2017 — 24)

Incident rate
{OSHA method)

1 049 (2017 —0.89)

Aningident is recordable if it
rasufls in death, days away
ifom work or transfer to
another job, medical treatment
beyond first aid or loss of
consciousness, or if significant
injurias or ilinesses are
diagnosed by relevant medical
authorties.

Tha US Occupational Safety
and Health Administration
("OSHA" Incident rale is
calculated by mullplying the
number of recordable incidents
by 200,600 and then dividing
that number by the number of
labour hawrs worked.

CO; intensity factor
{kg/$k of revenue)

38.6 {2017 - 43.6)

Internal manufacturing
reject rate

0. 2°/o {2017 - 0.3%)

Scope 1 and Z carbon
dioxide equivalent metric,
reported as kilogrammes
per §k of revenue.

Percentage of parts refected
during manufacturing
procasses

Hunting PLC | 2018 Annual Repart and Accounts
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Group review

The focus of the Group during the year has
been to meet the demand for US onshore
products and services, while retaining a solid

financial footing.

Jim Johnson Peter Rose
Chief Executive Finance Director

Group Results Summary

Lindeitying Reporied

2018 2017 2018 2017

Sm sm im S

Revenue 9114 724.9 911.4 7249
Gross Profil 2751 1754 2754 165.4
EBIMTDA 1423 56.0 1413 53.6
Profit (jogs) from operations 104.7 14.3 754 24.8)
Praofit (loss) before tax 104.0 1.5 747 27.6)
Prafit (loss) for 1he year 82.0 10.5 85.7 {28.5)
Diluted EPS - cents 49,6 8.0 52.3 [16.0)

L Non-GAAP measure.
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Intraduction

2018 has been a year of record performance for the
Hunting Titan operating segment, together with an
impraving performance by the Group's US operating
segment, both driven by US onshare completion activity
levels. Both segrnents contributed to the profitabllity of
the Group for the year as a whole, as the US market
environment remained stable and buoyary, particularly for
operators within the major shale basins, Funting's other
intematicnal operating segments, with the exception of
Europe, reported improving revenues and narrowing
fosses in the year, as the higher ol price reported in the
first half of the year led to new achily,

Market Summary

The average WTI crude oll price was ¢ 30% higher In the
year at $65 per barrel, compared to an average pnce of
$50 per barrel in 2017, This encouraged operators to
increase driling and production expenditure within the
lower-cost shale basins, with this additional investment
focused almost entirely on the US onshare market

Market commaentators have estimated that global drifling
and production expenditure increased by ¢.15% in the
vaar to €27 Ohe 2017 2001 Pkl nfsuhich €07 Ahn
of this increase was from US onshore drlling activity

This result has led to the strong performance of the
Group's US orlentated businesses.

Operational Inltiatives

The focus of the Group during the year has been to meet
the demand for US onshere products and services, as
shale basing such as the Permian, Marcellus and Utica
accslerated activity in the first half of the year, while
retaining & solid financial footing

Hunting Titan has reported record restlts in the year, due
to strong demand for its perforating guns, energetics and
nstruments. Higher utilisation of its manufacturing facilities
has been reported and, as a consequence of this, the
Group began two major capital investrent programmes
ai its Pampa and Milfard facilities 1o expand production

Group Segment Summary

capacity and, at the same time, reduce manufacturing
costs and increase efficlency through the implementation
of autornated production for certain product lines. These
projects are expectad to complete by Q2 2019 and will
significantly enhance capacity for the production of
perforating guns and energetics charges.

Praduction of perforating guns has also Increased at

the Group's other facilities in Canada, China and the US,
with these facilities contributing to ¢.44% of the totai gun
production reported in the year. Other Hunting Titan
products have been manufactured by the Group's business
unlts in the year, including Hunting Electrenles, Hunting
Specialty and US Manufaciuring.

The Group has continued ta launch new products and
technology to customers during the year, as the industry
continues Its dnve for better efficiencies and increased
safety. Hunting Titan launched new retease toals and new
charges 0 customers in the year, which has supporied its
atrong performance across the poriod. Honting has also
continued to Jaunch new prermum ard semi-premium
connections in the year, The Group has expanded its
WEDGE-LOCK™ product family with the introduction of
rewvt fizae In the vaar Hiynting hae alen epen aned market
accaptance of its TEC-LOCK™ semi-premium connect.on,
as onshore-focused customers increased therr dnfiing
plans in the shale basins across the US, Efforts to
mtroduce the TEC-LOCK™ gonnestion o Hunting's
International customer base have begun in the yeaar,

with interest being shown in Canada and Asia Pacific

for onshore projects.

At the end of the year, the Group reported 34 operating
sites compared te 35 In 2017, following the closure of
Hunting’s facility in Mombasa, Kenya. Hunting's distribution
centres numbered 18 at the end of 2018 (2017 - 21 centres)
following the closure of two centres in Canada and one

in tha US.
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2018 _ 2017

Underlying* Reportad Underiying® Heportad

Segment result from rasuft from Segment restlt from result from

revenue operations operations revenus oparations operations

Business Unit am $m $m $m &m Fro
Hunting Tian 4182 106.9 80.8 3128 654 40.5
us 3271 15.6 124 2189 (22.9) (26.1)
Canada 44.8 (1.8} (1.8) 36.5 3.3) 3.3
Europe 86.2 {10.9) {10.9) 89.2 {13.7) {13.7)
Asia Pacific 107.0 (0.8} {0.8} 881 (4.4 4.4)
Middle East, Africa and Other 24.2 (2.9) {2.9) 8.8 8.7 {18.7)
Exploration and Production 26 1.9 (t.4) 33 (1.1} .1

Inter-segment eliminat:on (98.7) - - {42.5) - -
Group segment total a11.4 104.7 754 724.9 14.3 24.8)

. Rosults for the year, as reported under IFRS, adjusted for amort sation of ntangqible assels recognisad as part of a business combmation
and except onal items.

Hunting PLC } 2018 Annua! Report and Accounts 15




Group review continued

Resulis from Operations

The Croup has adopted JFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers and JFRS 9 Financial Instruments as of

1 January 2018. The 2017 financial statements have bsen
restated for the adoption of IFRS 15 and IFRS 8 has been
adopied without restating comparative information (see
note 38).

The Group reporis an increase in revenue of 26% to
$911.4m (2017 - $724.9m). Performance In the year was
equally balanced between the first and second half, with
revenue in Hi 2018 of $442.8m (H1 2017 ~ $318.1m).
Revenue in the gecond half of the year was $468.6m
{H2 2017 — $408.8m). Hunting Titan's segment ravenus
increased by 34% in the year to $418.2m (2017 — $312.8m)
and the Graup's US segment increased revenue by 49%
1o $327.1m {2017 — $218.9m) due 1o the strong activity
within the LS onshore market. All other segments, with
the exception of Furope, also improved revenues and
reduced operating losses in the year. Further details can
be found in the Segmenta! Review on pages 20 ta 27,

With the increase in sales volumes and some price
increases being |mp|emented underlying gross profit
Wit g v:-g'r' e ey Ty rfnnr.' ¢47r A \ Ll
underlying gross margin unprowng to 30% (2017 - 24%).

Reported gross margins impraved in line with the

underlying measures,

Given the performance of the Hunting Titan and LS
segments, ihe Group overall has reporied a slrong
Incease in underlying profit from operations to $104.7/m
(2017 —~ $14.3mi), with the underlying operating margin
also increasing from 2% i 2017 to 11%.

Tha charge In the yaar for the amortisation of intangible
assels recogrused as part of a business combination
totalled $29.3m, compared 1o $29.1m in 2077, The net
impact from exceptional iterns recarded in the year was
$nit. A $2.0m reversal to impairment, relating to the
Group's disposal of its facility in South Africz, was credited
i the first half of the year. At the same tme, $2.0m of
closure costs were charged in respect of tha Group's
Kenyan joint venture, [n 2017, exceptional ilems totalied
$10.0m in refation to the closure of the Cape Town
operation 10 South Africa.

The uhderlying net finance expense during the year was
$0.7m {2017 - $1.5m), predominantly related 1o fower debt
levels and bank fees,

The underlying profit before tax was $104.0m

(2017 ~ $11.5m). After charges for intangible assst
amortisation acquired as part of a business combination
ard exceptional items, the reported prafit before tax
was $74.7m (2017 ~ ${27.8)m loss),

The underlying tax rale was 21% (2017 — 9%), Deforred tax
assets of $26.6m In respect of US operations have bean
recognised in the year. This includes $24.9m in respaect of
previously unrecogrised US tax losses.
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Of the total deferred tax asset recognised, $25.3m has
been shown as a credit against amortisation and
excoptional itams consistent with our freatment of tax on
amortisation In prior years, In addition, a further $1,3m has
been recognised and credited to underlying operations.
Management befieve that the strong US performance In
the year and the projections over the nexl two fo three
yaars support this recognition of deferred tax in full. The
reported tax credit Is $14.0m (2017 — §1.0m charge). The
Group's underlying effective tax rate "ETR") for 2013 is
expected to be in the range of 24% to 26% depending on
the reglonal mix of resuts. The ETR for 2019 Is expected
to increase over 2018 hecause the 2018 ETR benefited
from the recognition of US tax losses from prio” pariods.

Underlying profit after tax was $82.0rm (2017 — $10,5m) and
reperted profit after tax was $85.7m (2617 — $(28.6}m
foss), Underlying diluted earnings per share was

49.6 cents in the year (2017 - 8.0 cents). Reported diluted
earnings per share was 52,3 cents (2017 — (16,0) cents
foss}.

Cash Flow
2018 2017

Summary Group Cash Flow Sm 3m
Unaeriying £B1TDA (NG A) 142,3 oo
Share-based payments 13.2 11.9

155.5 67.9
Working capital movernents (NGM §) (86.6) 39.9)
Interest paid and bank fees (2.0) 24
Net tax (paid) received (2.8) 6.5
Proceeds from disposal of PPE 164 6.2
Pension scheme refund 10.6 97
Disposal of business - 18
Other operating cash and
non-cash movements (NGM K} {0.6) 0.5)
Free cash flow (NGM L} a0.7 493
Capital nvestment (NGM Jy (30.1) {11.4)
Intangible assets investment 6.6) 5.5)
Dividends paid to equity
shareholders (6.6} -
Purchase of treasury shares (5.7} -
Other (0.8) {01)
Movement in net cash 30.9 323

The strang parformance of Hunting Titan and improved
pearformance of the Group's US operating segment has

led to EBYTDA increasing in the year to $142,.3m compared

1o $56.0m In 20i7. The underlying EBITDA margin for the
year was 16% compared to 8% in the prior year. Whean
adjusted for non-cash share-based payment charges of
$13 2m (2017 — $11.9mj, operating inflow of $155.5m was
recorded in the year compared to $67.9m in 2017.

The increase in demand for the Group's products,
coupled with some forward purchasing of materials 1o
mitigate the impact of international trade tariffs, has led
to working capital outflow of $96.6m (2017 — $39.9m).
At 31 December 2018, inventory days ware 185
compared to 167 in 2017, Receivable days were 78

in 2018 compared to 72 In the pricr penod.
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Net interest paid was $2.0m in 2018 reducing from $2.4m
in 2017, due to the lower levels of net borrowing in the
yaar. Nat tax paid in the year was $2.6m, and mainly arose
in the UK and Asia, as no US federal tax was paid due to
tax losses from previous years. In 2017, a US tax refund

of £7.9m was recelved, reflecting the carny-back of prior
period losses.

Proceeds from the disposal of proparty, plant and
equipment were $16.4m {2017 - $6.2m), and include
$8.0m receved on the sale of the Cape Town facility.
During the year, the Group receivad a further $10.6m
refund of pensicn surplus (2017 — $8.7m) from the
Company's UK pension scheme. This receipt fully realises
the surplus that had ansen in the $cheme and no further
refunds will oceur as the scheme has now been wouna
up. Fres cash flow in the year was $80.7m compared to
$49.3m in the prior period, which inchudes other tems
totalling $G 6m cash outfiow (2017 - $1.3m net inflow).

Capital investment increased to $30.1m in 2018

(2017 — $11.4m) rmainly relaling to the capacity expansion
programmas underway at the Group's Milford and Pampa
facllittes. Invesiment In intangible assets increasad ta

Q8 By freom A Spa oy 2T mainky in rolstion o inerasesd
levels of technological development in the Group.

Following the recommencement of dividend distributions
during the year, a $6.6rm cutfiow was recorded following
the payment of the 2018 interim dividend in October 2018,
which equates 1o 4.0 cents per share, No dividends were
paid in 2017. Further, the Group purchased 750,000
Ordinary Hunting PLC shares, for a total consideration of
$5.7m, through its employee share trust, These shares
will be used to partially satisfy future awards under the
Group's long-term Incentive plan. Other items in the year
totalled $0.8m {2017 — $0.1m).

As a consequence of the above cash flows, the Group
generated a net inflaw of $30.9m in the year, which
resulted in a net cash position of $61.3m as a*

31 December 2018,

Balance Sheet

2018 2017
Summary Group Balance Sheet $m S
Property, plant and equipment 360.2 3833
Goodwill 229.9 230.3
Othor intangfole assels 99,8 125.4
Working capital {NGM C) 4365 8440
Taxation (current and deferrecd 13.7 (6.0)
Provisions (14.2) (18.0)
Other net assets (NGM F) 3.8 227
Capilal employed (NGM G) 1,i20.8 10817
Net cash 813 30.4
Net assets 1981 11121
Non-confroffing interests (14.0} (18.8
Equity attributable to owners : e
of the parent 11774 1,003.3

Property, plant and equipment has decreased by $23.1m.
Additions of $30,0m and the reversal of impairment of
$2.0m In relation to the closure of the South Africa {acility
were offset by disposals of $16.2m, depreciation of
$35.0m, an impairment charge of $1.0m following the
decision to close the Kenya joint venture and foreign
exchange movemeants of $2.8m. Gocdwilt was materially
unchanged at $229.9m. Other intangible assets have
decreased by $25.6m, with the amortisation charge for
the year of $31.9m and foreign exchange movements of
$0.3m being partly ofisel by lhe capitalisation of
technology and scitware development costs of $6.6m.

Working capital has increased by $32.5m, mainiy driven
by increased inventorias wiihin Hunting Titan and other US
businesses focused on onshare driling in North America,
Foreign exchange had a $4.6m adverse impact on waorking
capital, but this was offset by $0.5m of adjustments.

Deferred tax assets have increased due to the recognition
af assets i the US during 2018, as a result of the improved
trading environment, Tax balances show net assets of
$13.7m (2017 - $(6.0)m net liabilities). This is made up of
net currant tax liabilities of ${11.1)m and net deferred tax
ageete nf 24 Am

Other net assets have reduced by $18.8m during the vear,
mainly due fo the cash refund of the Group’s UK pension
scheme surplus,

As aresult of the above ¢hanges, capital employed in the
Group has increased by $48.1m to $1,129.8m. Net assets
at 31 Decamber 2018 were $1,1911m, which, after
non-controlling interests of $14.0m, result In equity
shareholders’ funds of $1,177.1m {2017 - $1,063.3m}. This
is an increase over 31 December 2017 and reflects the
reported profils for the year attributable to equity
shareholders of $88.3m, a net $12.3m credit in relation to
share awards and other credits of $1.7m being offset by
foreign exchange losses of $7.2m, dividends paid of
$6.6m and he purchase of ireasury shares of $5.7m.

with the Group's greater level of profitability in the year,
the underlying return on average capital employed
improved to 9% in 2018 comparcd 10 1% In 2017.

Financial Capital Management

Hunting ended 2018 with a robust balance sheet and net
cash of $61.3m {31 Decemnber 2017 — $30 4m net cash)
I January 2018, the Group exited its revised bank
covenants and terms, which were put in place on 20 July
2016, and reverted to its original facility covenants and
terms, which include:

— The ratio of net debt o conscldated EBITDA permitted
under the revolving cradit facility must not exceed a
multiple of three times.

— Consolidated EBITDA musl also cover relevant (inance
charges by a minimum of four times.
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Group review continued

For covenant testing purposes, the Group’s definition of
ERITDA Is adjusted to exclude exceptional items, include
the share of associates’ post-tax results and exclude the
falr value charge for share awards. Similarly, net cash/debt
and finance expensas are adusted to accord with the
definition within the facility agreement. EBITDA, far
covenant 1est purposas, is based on the previous
12-month period, measured twice yearly at 30 June and
31 December. At 31 December 2018, beth these
covenants were met,

In December 2018, the Group concluded an exercise 1o
‘amend and axtend” its committed revalving credit facility.
The quantum of the facility reduced to $160.0m from
$200,0m, and the maturity date has been extended te
2022, The amended facility arrangements include an
accordion feature that allows for the facility 1o be increased
to $235.0m, sublect to the approval of its bank landing
group, with the facility maturity date extending to 2023.
As part of the exercise, the bank lending group reduced
to four banks, The Group's funding position rernains
robust, wilh total borrowing facilites of $164.8m in place
(2017 — $205.0m), of which $159.5m (2017 - $200.0m) is
commilied. Further details of the facility, Including the
terma and condifions are in rote 97

2018 2017
Total equity 1,191.1 11121
Nat cash (61.3) [30.4)
Capital smployed 1,128.8 10817

Capital employed is rmanaged in order to ensure &n
appropriate level of financing is avarlable for the Group's
day-1o-day operations. The balance of dett and equity is
managad having due regard 1o the respectve cost of
funds and their availability. The Group operates a
centralised treasury function, with policies and procedures
approved by the Board. These cover funding, banking
relationships, forelgn currency and interest rate expasures
and cash management, together with the investment of
surplus cash,

The Group operates in a number of geographic terdtories
and results are generaled In a number of different
currencies. The US dollar is lhe most significant functional
currency; however, where this is not the case, the Group is
subject to the effects of foreign exchange rata fluctuations
with respect to currency conversions. Indiviciual entities
are generally required to borrow from the central treasury
function in their functional currency. The treasury functon's
strategy Is to manage fts own currency exposure by using
currency swaps ta corvert US dollars into Lhe different
currencies recuired by the entities, Spot and forward
faralgn exchange contracts are also used 1o cover the
exposura of purcnases and sales in non-domestic
currencies. Tha Group's liquidity is monitored by the
central treasury function on a datly basis and a variely of
cash forecasts, looking at different time herizons, are
preparad an a perlodic basls.
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Management's judgement is that the level of headrcom
aveilable under the Group's total credit faciities provides
ongoing fiexibility and continues to support the business
as outlined in this Strategic Report. Further detail on
financial risks is provided within note 27.

Dividends

Each dividend proposal considered by the Board is
determined on its own merits aking into account the
considerations outlined betow This Hlexibie approach is
infliencad by the cyclical nature of the oil and gas sector
which, as recent history demonstrates, can produce
signif:.cant swings in achivity levels and cash generation.
Dividends will, tnerefore, reflect business performance
over time and will not necessarily be progressive.

In assessing the level of divdend that is approprniate, the
Board considers not only the results and pesition of the
busmness for the financial year in question, but reviews
mid-term projections and downside sensitivitles for a
three-year period as used in the Viability Assossment.

A company’s dividend capacity is typically constrained
either by distributable reservas or by liquidity. Hunting PLC
has in pyveeas of $2N0mM of distiripable regervag and
Hunt:ing Energy Holdings Limited, a direct UK subsidiary
of Hunting PLC, which direclly or indirectly controls the
operaling businesses of the Group, has distributable
reserves in excess of $600m.

The Board considers thal these distribuiable reserves are
capable of servicing dividends for the foreseeable future
and that any dividend constraints will be driven by liquidity.

On behalf of the Board

Jim Johnson
Chief Executive

Peter Rose
Financa Director

28 February 2018
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Hunting's Subsea business completes
stringent quality assurance pracedures on all
hydraulic valves and couplings. This hyperbaric
test chamber replicates the high pressure
envirochment of doop water drifling.
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Segmental review

Hunting Titan

2018 2017
Market indicatars*
US onshore -- averagarigcount # 3,013 856
(anada — average rig count # 184 206
Drilled-but-uncompleted wells # 8,584 6578
Revenue
Perlorating guns and hardware  $m 123.2 102.0
Energetics $m 140.6 111.8
Inshuments $m 134.6 a7.5
Parfarating Systems $m 398.4 301.3
Other product lines $m 12.9 7.4
External revenue Bm 411.3 308.7
Inter-segment revenue $m 6.9 41
Segment revenue $m 418.2 312.8
Profitability
Reported operating profit $m 80.8 40,5
Acquisition amorlisaticn
and exceptional lems 3m 26.1 25.9
Underlving cperating profit 3m 106.9 £6.4
Underlying operating margin % 26 21
Other financial measures
Capital investment $m i2.6 2.6
Property, plant and equipment  $m 52.4 45.8
i s 0Ly il 140.0 Y-
Operational
Headcount (year-end} i 659 &87
Headcount (average) # 646 461
Operating sites # 5 5
Service and distrbution centres  # 16 19
Operating foctage Kft? 660 655

*  Source —Spears and Associates.

Introduction

Hunting Titan's business focuses predominanily on the US
and Canadian onshore driling and completion markets.
The segment has five aperating sites, with four in the US
and one in Mexico, The business has a network of
distribution cerdres throughout the US and Canada, from
which the majority of the business' sales are derived.
Hunting Titan wtikses the global manufacturing footprint of
the Hunting group 1o assist in meeting customer demard.
in the year, perfarating guns were manufactured in
Canada, China and in the US, while other compenents
were manufactured by the Group's Hunting Eleclronics,
Hunbng Specialty and the US Manufacturing facilty In
Houma, Louisiana.

A key feature of the onshore shale industry has been the
drive for “plug and play” technology, to Increase efficiency
and reduce completion time. Hunting Titan has addressed
this demand by the introduction of technology, including
the H-1 perforating system and other tools, which have
sontributed to the success of the business in the year.

Market Qverview

2018 has seen a further year of market expansion In the
US and Canada, interms of average 1ig counts and driling
spend. As noted in the Market Review, average LJS
onshore rig counts increased 18% to 1,013 units, while US
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anshore drifing spend kcreased 26% to $133.5bn This
increase in key market indicators has led to the strong
improvement in performance of the segment during the
year. [n Canada, while the average rig count feil in the
year by 6%, industry spend increased by 9%.

Further to these market KPls, the induslry continued to
evolve throughout the year, with hydraulic fracturing
processes increasing the number of completion stages
per wall drilled, which jed to a commensurate increase

In the number of perforating guns used per completion
stage, This developrnent alse contributed to the increase
In demand for Hunting Tilan’s perforating guns, energetics
and instruments.

Segment Performance and Development

2018 has bean a record year for the segment in terms

of revenue and gross profit generated by the business,
driven by strong anshore US drilling and completion
markets, Segment revenue increased 34% to $418,2m
(2017 — $312.8m) with underlylng operating profit
increasing 61% from $66.4m in 2017 to $106.9m i 2018.
As demand for ¢erlain product groups increased in the
year, selactive price Increases were also implemented,

ek stnparterd the fresedh renarted in the vnar

While the segment’s revenue is predominantly generated
in the US and Canada, international growth in South
Arrerica and Asla Pacific has been recorded in the year,
with sales outside of Norlh America growing by 26%
compared 1o the prior year,

Hunling Titan's revenue streams are divided into four
sub-groups: ()} perforating guns and hardware,
iy energetics; {iil) instruments; and (v) other.

Perforating Guns and Hardware

During the year, the number of perforating guns
manufactured increased compared o 2017, leading io
revenue improving 21% from $102.0m o $123.2m. Gun
volumes Incorporate Hunting Titan's conventional
perforating gquns and the H-1 perforating system. In the
year, the number of conventional guns manufactured
increased by 58%, while the number of H-1 systems
manufactured ncreased by 400% as customers further
cmbraced the safety and rebability features of the IH-1
perforaling system.

Hunting Titan manufactures H-1 perforating guns and
conventional guns across a number of its facilities in the

US and Mexico. Hunting's Canada and China facilities also

manufacture conventional perforating guns on behalf of
Hunting Tritan as well as the Group's facility in Hourna,

| auisiana, US. As nctad earller, the business Is investing
in new manufacturing capacity at its Pampa facility, with
automated manufacturing cells being commissioned.

Energetics

fn 2018, Hunting Titan manufactured a similar number of
enargetics charges compared to 2017; however, revenue
increased to $140.6m (2017 - $111.8m), as new products
were introduced to custormners in the year.
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Sales volumes of the EQUAfrac™ charge increased
by 300%, as customers demanded more consistertt
perforating within completion operations.

To meet demand, automated manufacturing lines for
charge production have been installed at the business’
Milford facility, which wilt provide 48% of additional
capacity.

Instruments

The segment’s instruments business inco-porates Hunting
Titan's ContralFire™ panels, EBFza™ and ControlFire™
addressabla switches and other tools used in the
completion of onshora shale wells. Revenue in the year
increased 54% from $87.5m in 2017 to $134.6m in 2018,
reflecting the strong demand for the segment’s hardware,
as customers migrated 1o the Group's higher performance
addressable switch product lines. The business also
reporied renewed orders for cased hole logging tools as
older lieets were retired In the year.

Other Revenue
Hunting Titan also manufactures other tools and
eqmpment for use in enshore basins, In the year, demand

.-,-I»» ..-, "1\ - .l 1‘{ [ Yoo e R Eateta
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in revenue of 74% to 812 9m compared to $7.4m in 2017,

New Technology

Hunting Titan has a strong pipeline of new technclogies,
which will support ils position in the market in the
medium term.,

The H 2 Perforating System™ was developed throughout
2018 and was launched tc the market in February 2019 to
address a broader segment of the perforating gun market,
while complemanting the addressable market of the H-1
Perforating System™ . The new system ig the shortest
“phag and play” system available and allows for a higher
number of guns per stage within hydraulic fracturing
operations.

in 2018, Hunting Titan progressed 1ts autonomous tool
project with its partner ExxonMobi, In August 2018 a
prototype tool was tested in the field. The project has
heen extended into 2019, with plans to launch a seif-
locating cutling tool. New charges and releass tools are
also 1o be introduced 1o customers in 2018,

Manufacturing and Distribution

The segment’s manufacturing footprint has remalnec
materially unchanged during the year, with five cperating
sites In the US and Mexico, supported by perforating gun
manufacturing across the wider Group. The manufacture
of electronics compenents continued at the segment’s
Wichita Falls facility, with further production outsourced
1o the Group's Electronics btsiness,

The segment had 16 distribution centres at the year-end
(2017 — 19), as three centres were closed across North
America, to batter align with market demand.

Depending on the implementation of trade tarifs between
the US and China, a proportion of the manufacturing of
perforating guns may be relocated fo the US in the year
ahead.

Other Financial Information

During the year, Hunting Titan recorded capita! investment
of $12.6m (2017 — $2,6m} mainly relating to the capaaity
expansion programmes at tha sagment's Pampa and
Milford facilities.

Inventory Increased by $52.2m ta 5140.0m in tha year,
reflecting demand for certain product groups.

With the increase in production at aff the segment’s facilities,
headcount increased by 12% to 859 at the year-end.

The new H-2
Perforating
System™,

The H-2 Perforating System™ was launched in February 2019
to address a broader segment of the market.

Hunting PLC | 2018 Annual Report and Accounts
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Segmental review continued

UsS

2018 2017
Market indicators*
US onshore — average rigcount # 1,013 856
US offshore — average rig count  # 139 20
US E&P spend $bn 137.8 1105
Revenue
OCTG & Premium Connections  $m 104.2 78.5
Advanced Manufacluring $m 1.9 58.1
Subsea $m 30.0 20.8
Drifthng Tools $m 276 257
Intervention Tools $m 14.2 8.1
Other product lines $m 16.2 13.8
External revenie $m 284.1 204.8
Inter-segment revenue &m 43.0 id1
Segment ravenue $m 3274 218.9
Profitability

Heported operafing profit foss)  $m 12.4 26 1)
Acquisition amortisation

and exceptional items &m 3.2 3.2
Underlying operating profit logs) $m 15.6 22.9)
Underlying operating margin % 5 (10)
Other financial measures

Gapita! investment Fm 15.2 5.9
iy, piticeed sgefelienl Do 2471 DLn
Inventory $m 110.4 80.3

Operational

Headcount {year-endl) # 1,227 1,071
Headcount {average) # 1,145 957
Operaling siles # 15 15
Sarvice and distnbution centres # 1 1
Operaling footage Kit? 4,334 1,368

*  Source — Spears and Associates,

Introduction

Hunting's US operations are the most dverse in the
Group, generabng revenues from OCT& and Premium
Connections, Advanced Manufacturing, Subsea, Drifing
Tools and intervention Tools product lines. In addition, the
sagment includes the Trenchlass business, which mainly
sarvices the telecommunications seclors.

Ihe main area of focus for mast businesses in the
segrment is the domestic US market, which accounts for
c.85% of external revenues, with Subsea and Advanced
Manufactunng more internationally orlentated. in additon,
the US segment manufaciures perforaling guns and
switches for sale to Hunting Titan,

Market Overview

The activity and porformance of the segment remains
linked to average onshore and offshore rig counts and
industry spend

Dunng 2018, the US onshore average rig count

Increased by 18% to 1,013 units, which positively
impacted the perfermance of the segment's OCIG,
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Advanced Manufacturing, Drilling Tools and Intervention
Tools product finas. Onshore spend also increased by
26% during the peried to $133.5bn, as well completion
activities further increased demand,

Offshore activity, however, remained subdued durlng the
period with average rig counts declining by 5% 1o 18
active units and industry spend reducing 7% to $4.1bn,

Segment Performance and Development

Segment revenue increased 45% from $218.9m in 2017
to $327.1m in 2018, as the onshore market increased
demand across most product groups. The average WTI ol
price In the year also generated more stability across the
Group's US husinasses, keading to all units reparting
monthly operating profits by the year-end. Underlying
operaling profit for the segment was $15.6m compared
to an operating loss of ${22.9)m in 2017.

A success in the year has been the continued insourcing
of producticn, in particular the increase in the manufacture
of Hunting Titan perforating guns at the Group's Hourma
{acility in Louisiana and also addressable switches at the
Hunting Electronics business. This has led 1o inter-
~anment rayanon incroasing fram 14 1m 40 43 0m in

the year.

OCTG and Premium Gonnections

This business incorporates the manufacturing and sale of
OCTG including proprietary connections, casing, tubing
and eccessories. A success in 2018 has been the further
commercialisation of Hunling's semi-premium TEG-
LOCK™ connection, The connection has three variants, all
of which are wtilised in the anshore driling market, Buring
the year, approximately 48,000 TEC-LOCK™ connect.ons
were sold compared to approximately 1,000 in 2017,

Hunting's premium connection product portfalio includes
the SEAL-LOCK™ and WEDGE-LOCK™ families. During
the year, WEDGE-LOCK™ product lines were increased
with the developmen? and certification of four new sizes
including 10, 14 and 18 inch variants for use in deep water
applications. Key clients in the year included Walter Cil
and Gas, Anadarko, Chevron and LLOG. While the
offshore US rig count has declined in the year, thess
clients completed drilling activilies in the region, which

led to increased facility utilisation within the segment.

The Group's pipe sales and trading business has seen a
marked increase in activity during the year, with 0.7 million
feet of two-step tuping sold to customers compared 1o
0.4 million fest in 2017, The business has also increased
sales of pipe thread protectors in the year, as the
commercialisation of the TEC-LOCK™ connection
increased.

In the year, revenue increased 33% from $78.5m in 2017
to $104.2m in 2018,
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Advanced Manufacturing

Advanced Manufacturing producis are manufactured by
tha Hunting Electronics, Hunting Dearborn and Hunting
Specialty businesses, together with some parts of our US
Manufacturing operations. In the year there was a notable
increase in demand for new MWD/LWD measurement
tools, as clients increased iheir replacement programmes
following the recent market downturn,

Hurting Electronics reported a strong increase in the
demand for MWDYLWD printed circuit boards in the year,
as major international service groups placed new orders,
The business continued 1o receive orders from Asia Pacific
for new components and reported renewed interest in the
supply of integrated MWD/EWD todls, utillsing the Group's
electronics expertise and precision machining capabilities
n Hunting Dearborn and US Manufacturing.

Hunting Dearborn has also reported increased demand
in the year as both oil and gas, naval and military ckents
increased orders, Of note has haen the increase in orders
for rotor shaits for aercspace applications, in acdition to
a strong increase in new orders for MWD/LWD
maasuremeint tacls.

Hunting Specialty has also benefiled from the continued
increase in the demand for anshore drilling components.

Hoth Hunting Electronics and Hunting Specialty have
supported the strong increase In demand for Hunting
Titan's product Ines, Hunting Electronics assisted with
the manufacture of firing switches during the year, while
Hunting Speclalty manufactured components for Titan's
perferating gun products.

In the year, rovenue increased 58% from $58.1m in 2017
to $91.9m In 2018,

Subsea

Hunting Subsea has benefited from the increase in the
average WTI ol price during the year, which encouraged
client spending. Subsea complsted oraers for hydraulic
couplings and valves and chemlcal injection systems for
a number of US and international clients in the periad.

Of note has been the increase in sales into the Internationat
energy markets, including West Africa and Asia Pacific.

In the year, revenua increased 46% from $20.6m in 2017
1o $30.0m i 2018.

Drilling Tools

Hunting's Drilling Tools business reported growth in the
year, driven by the increasing US onshore rig count, which
has led to higher demand for its mud motor fleet. in the
year, revenue increased 7% from $25.7m in 2017 to
$27.6m in 2018 as the oll price stabilised, allowing for
some rental rate Increases to be implemented within the
husier cnshore basins.

A key initiative in the year has been the further roil out of
mud fube motors and higher torque moters which have
reduced refurbishment costs and improved reliability,
leading to a higher leval of profitability in the year, By
year-end, B0% of the Group’s mud motor flest utilised tha
new mud lube configuration and the higher terque motors
are increasingly being employed by customers in the
major land basins.

Intervention Toale

Woell intervention tools sales improved in the year mainly
due to the market momentum in the US onshore arena.
As demand acceleraled, some price increases were
implemented, contributing to revanue increasing 75%
from $8.1m i 2017 to $14.2m in 2018,

Other Financial Information

During the year, the US hed capital investment of $15 2m
(2017 — $5,8m), pnmarnly due to the purchase of new mud
lube motors and new machinery at Hunting Dearborn and
US Manutasturing, Inventery increased by $20.1m to
$110.4m mainly due to higher levels of intervention and
MWD tools at LS Manufacturing and raw maternials at
Hunting Electronics.

The year-end headcount increased to 1,227 (2017 - 1,071),
as onshore drilling activity increased demand for products
and services.

“l Quality
assurance
checks are
completed on
all downhale
tools,

Demand for high pressure/high temperature
circuit boards has increased in the year as
clients replaced their downhale tool fleets,

2 Hunting
Subsea’s

products are
deployed

to US and
international
markets.

increase,
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During the year, demand for Subsea's deep
water valves and couplings also started to
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Segmental review continues

Canada

2018 2017
Market indicators*
Canada - average rig count # 184 206
Canada E&P spend $kn 184 16.68
Revenue
OCTE & Premium Connections $m 352 278
External revenus $m 35.2 27.8
Inter-segment revenue Sm 9.6 8.9
Segment revenus $m 44.8 36.5
Profitability
Reported operating loss Em (1.8) 3.3)
Acqulsition amortisation
and exceplional terms Bm - -
Underlying cperating loss 5m (1.8) 3.3)
Underlying operating margin % {4) ]
Other financial measures
Capital investmeant &m 09 Q7
Property, plant and squipment  $m 2.7 3.4
Irventary $m 228 23.2
Operational
Headcount (year-end) # 123 140
Headcount (average) # 133 118
Operating sites # 1 1
Service and distribution centres # 1 1
Operating foctage ki 113 113

Source — Spears and Asscciales.
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Introduction

The Greup's Canadian business comprises an OCTG
threading and accessories manufacturing facillty in
Calgary, Alberta and a service facility in Nisku, Alberta.
Canada's external sales are almost exclusively to its
domestic market, however, as noted in the Hunting Titan
segment raview, the Calgary facility has been modified
to suppori the manufaciure of perforating guns for
distribution across Canadza and into the US.

Market Overview

During 2018, the average rig count declined to 194 active
units, or 6%, compared to 206 units in 2917, Despite this,
driling spend increased 9% in the year 1o $18.1bn as the
ofl price stabilised in the early part of the year, which
supporied the Improving revenue within the segment.

As reported in 2617, a key market constraint in Western
Canada is that oll production outstripped export pipsline
capacity. This limitation has led to an average discount for
Western Canada Select to the WT| oil price across the ysar
of .27 per barrel, which has curtailed actnty in Canada.

Segment Performance and Development

Povmnie from DH0TE and Prowinm Connection produet
lines improved 28% from $27.6m in 2017 to $35.2m, as
new cuslomer wins throughsout the year enabled the
business to outperform the ragional market. Further, the
Group's domesiic business also Increased OCTG sales as
new distribution channels were implemented, leading to
new revenue sireams for the segment. Infer-segment
revenue alsa increased in the year from $8.9m n 2017 to
$9.6m in 2018, as Increased manufacluring capacity for
perforating guns was brought online.

Segment revenue therefore increased 23% in the year to
£44,8m (2017 — $36.5m). This increase in revenue has
enablad the segment to narrow its losses from $3.3min
2017 to $1.8m in 2018.

inthe year, the segment introduced the semi-premium
TEG-LOCK™ connection o customers, which has ssen
good acceptancs,

Other Financial Information

Equipment purchases of $0.9m were made in the year,
predominantly to support the mereased manufacturing
capability of perforating guns and to renew threading
machinery.

Further, tha year-cnd headcount declined In the year to
123 from 140 in 2017, as cost-containment initiatives
continued.
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Europe

2018 2017
Market indicators*
North Sea— average rig count # 24 27
North Sea — spend r 10.8 11.1
Total Europe — well count # 636 649
Revenue
QOCTG & Pramium Cennections  $m 46.3 59.7
Intervention Tools &m 16.0 15.1
Perforating Systems $m 30 2.9
Other product Enes £m 8.2 586
External revenue $m 74.5 833
Inter-segment revenue 3m 11.7 59
Segment revenue $m 86.2 80.2
Profitability
Reported cperating loss $m {10.6} (13.7}
Acquisition amartisation
and exceplional tems Bm - -
Underlying cperating loss $m (10.9) (13.79)
Underlying cperatng margin % {13} {18}
Other financial measures
Capital Investment $m 0.4 1.0
Propetty, plant and equipment  $m 104 13.5
Inventory $m 30.3 49.0
Oporational
Headcount (year-end) # 247 268
Headeount (average) # 254 276
Operating sites # 7 7
Operating footage Kit? 200 229

Source — Spears and Associates.

Introduction

Hunting's Europsan operations comprise operaling
businesses in the UK, Netherlands and Norway. Thase
husinesses provide QCTG (including threading, pipe
starage and accessories manufacturing) and well
intervention products in the UK; OCTG and well testing
equipment manufacture in the Netherlands; and wei!
intervention services and distribution In Norway, The
region also has a perforating systems storage facilty
in Aberdean, LK.

Market Overview

The average rig count in the North Sea declined frem 27
10 24 active units, despite the rising average Brent Crude
oil prica In the year. Industry investment was genetally flat
compared to the prior year, as was the total number of
welle drilled, With this markat erwvironment backdrop,
including stagnant irvestment, the segment continued to
report [ossas In the year,

Segment Performance and Develepment

Revanue from OCTS and Premium Connections reduced
in the LK and the Netherlands as the general market
continued to be subdued. In 2017, the business group
mopaketad tmber of laras aoseracs grins ardnre for
customers in the US and Egypt, and which contributed to
the reported year-on-year decline in revenue, In the year,
segment revenug declined 3% frorn $89.2m to $86.2m

Despite this, Hunting's well intervention and weli testing
business lines reported tep-line growth in the year, as the
global market environment stabilised, with the rising
average price for crude oil leading to increased sales of
Hunting's light weight pressure confrol equipment. The
wall intervention group Increased sales by 6% to $16 0m
in the year, while the well testing group increased sales by
70% to $9.1m,

in the year, a notable inprovement in sentiment has been
reported in the Norwegian oil and gas markat, with new
tenders heing issued. Hunting has focused its efforts on
well intervention sajes in Norway, with scme success
being reported. A new leased facilty s plannad to be
commussioned in early 2019 to meet the anticipated
increase in business. The UK business group has also
launched a new venture in Aberdeen 1o assist with the
commercialisation of third-parly technelogy into the
European market, The Group's "TEK-HUB™ has
progressed new enhanced ol recovery technology and
other high-potential projects during the year, generating
cuslomer interest.

Inter-segment sales, primarily attributed to the Group's
well Intervention product lines, also increased in the year
from $5.9m to $11.7m.

Other Financial Information

During the year, there was imited investment in property,
plant and equipment as activity levels remained subdued.
Efforts to reduce inventory were successful, leading to a
net reduction of $9 7m in the year to $33.3m.

To further reduce costs, the headcount was reduced by
8% {0 247 by the year-snd.

Hunting PLG | 2018 Annual Report and Accounts
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Segmental review contrved

Asia Pacific

2018 2017
Market indicators*
Far East — average tig count # 216 200
Far East - spend $bn 17.8 19.7
Centeal Agla — spend $bn 20 1.8
Revenue
QCTG & Premiurn Connections  $m 80.6 785
Other product lines $m 0.2 c3
External revenue $m 80.8 79.8
Inter-segment revenue $m 26,2 83
Segment revenue Em 107.0 88.1
Protitability
Reported operating loss $m (0.8) 4.4
Acquisition amortlsation
and exceptional items $m - :
Urderlying operating loss gm (0.8) 4.4)
Jrderlying cperating margin % M &)
Other financial measures
Capital Investment $rm 0.2 0.5
Property, plant and equipment  $m 123 171.2
Inventory $m 34.7 28.7
Oparational
Headeount (year-and) # 420 424
Headcount (average) # 415 339
Opsrating sites # 4 4
Ogperating foctage K 533 533

Source ~ Spaars and Asscciates.

Introduction

Hunting's Asia Pacific business covers four operating
facliities across China, Indonesia and Singapore. In China,
the Group operates from a facifity in Wuxt, which has OCTG
threading and perforating gun manufacturing capabilitles.
in Indenesia and Singapare, Hunting manufactures CCTG
aremium connections and accessories

Market Overview

Due to the increase in the average W oil price n the year,
aclivity levels have stabilised, but these increases have
lended to be on a country-by-country basis rather than

an increase throughout the whole region, Operators and
major service groups remain focused on compelitive
pricing from suppliers

In additicn, Hunting's Asia Paciflc businesses are also
drivan by average rig counts and driliing spend in the Far
East and Central Asia, given the spread of I3 customer
bage and the general location of drilling activity.

In the Far East, key market indicators were mixed, with
average rig counts increasing 8% year-un-year to 216
active units, while driling spend actually declined 10% to
$17.8bn. Centrat Asia spend increased to $2.0bn In the
vaar, as lhe oil price increased in the early part of the year.
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In China, both average rig counts and drilling spand
increased in the year, 6% and 9% respectively, as
operalors centinued to accelerate gas drilling in-country
as part of the environmentally focused drive to move
power generation plants from coal to gas-fired facllities.

Sagment Performance and Development

The segment reported an increase in revenue for its OCTG
preduct lines as drilling in China, Vietnarn and Thailand
showed modest improvement, leading to year-on-year an
increase of 21% to $107.0m (2017 — $88.1m).

Of note has been the highor sales of OCTG into the
domaestic Chinese market as activity increased; however,
thase sales ware genorally at a lower average gross
margin.

Enquiries and drilling activity in Australia and New Zealand
have increased in the year, with arders being securad for
a nurmber of cliants in these countnes. In the second haif
of the year, a major tender was won in Australia for a well
programme led by Santos that will Isad to orders being
completed in the year ahead.

Docpitn thn fmpre omysnf i ralor the bisinpre manbmninA
to report losses as volumes remained below the levels
required to cover the fixed cost base.

Of note was the increase in the Group's perforating gun
manufacturing in the year, leading to a 216% increase n
inter-segment sales to $26.2m. [n 2019, depanding on the
internatioral trade tarifis being discussed by the US and
China, regional production of perforating guns may be
relocated to North America.

Other Financial Information

Inventory increased during the year to 534.7m

(2017 - $28.7m), primanly related to contracts in China
and Middle East. Additions te PPE In the year were
nagligibls.

The headcount was braadly unchanged compared to
the pricr year,
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Middle East, Africa and Other

2018 2M7
Market indicaiors*
Middie East ~ spend $bn 22.5 21.6
Sub-Sahara Africa - spend $bn 46 33
Central Asia — spend $on 2.0 1.8
Revenue
intervention Tools $m 13.4 8.4
QCTG & Premium Connections  $m 7.4 B7
Perforating Systems $m 20 1.2
Cther revenue $m 0.1 01
External revenue $m 229 17.4
Inter-segment revenue Em 1.3 1.2
Segment revenue $m 24,2 18.6
Profitability
Reported operating loss $m (2.9) {18.7)
Acquisition amortisation
and exceptional items $m - 10.0
Undertying operaling loss $m (2.9} &7

Undarlying oparating margin % {2) {36}

Other financial measures

Capital investment $m 0.1 03
Property, plant and equipment  $m 3.2 126
Inverttary B 5.1 3.6
Operational

Headcount (year-end) # 60 79
Headcount faverags) # 72 B3
Cperating sites # 2 3
Operating footage Kit? a7 69

* Source - Spears and Associates.

Introduction

Hurting's Middle East and Africa manufasturing operations
are located in Dubal, UAE and Dammam, Saud! Arabia.
The Group also ratains a sales office In Cape Town, South
Africa. The Group’s operations in Saudi Arabia are through
a BO% joint venture arrangement with Saja Energy.

Market Overview

Drilling spend in the Middle East has risen 4% in the year
to $22.5bn as general cperating stabilty improved. The
average rig count also increased marginally 1o 367 or 1%,
as drilling plans were maintained throughout the reglon

Segment Performance and Development

Hunting’s Middle East revenues have benefited from the
recommencement of drilling and work-over operations in
Northern Irag, which created renewed demand for

Hunting’s products and services and added to momonium

within the Group's joint venture operation in Saudi Arabia.

In 2018, segment revenue totatled $24.2m (2017 - $18.6m),
of which 119 (2017 — 3%) was generated from the Sauch
jeint venture,

As the political situation mproved In Kurdistan, DNOC
recommenced new drilling activity, with Hunting supplying
QCTG and Thru-Tubing welt intervention services.

Further, OCTG sales into Oman also increased as new
orders were won and completed in the year.

In-country product sourcing In Saudi Arahia has led to the
Increase inrevenue as clients, including Halllburion, won
new tenders for work, which includas servicing and
re-certification of pressure control equipment. The faciity
has seen good Impravernent In its order-bock as the year
has progressed and anticipates this wiil continue in the
year ahead.

The region has seen a good increase in custorner nterest
in the Group's perforating systems products, which
generated new sales for Hunting Titan.

In the vear, the Group completed the sale of its
manufacturing faciity in Cape Town, South Africa, but
has maintained a sales office 1o support the sub-Sahara
reglon. Further, Hunting closed its Kenyan joint venture
in the year, as clients pushed out drilling and capital
expenditures, due to generally subdued international

Arillir o ermfrment

Other Financial Information

Capital expenditure was kept to a minimum in the year,
as the segment remained loss-making, In 2018, $0.1m
was spent cn new Thru-Tubing rental tools, which were
deployed throughout the region during the year. Inventory
increased from $3.8m to $5.1m, as some sales were
completed in January 2018,

The year-end headcount aiso reduced from 79 to 60,
as cost control measures were also implermeanted. This
incorporates the facifity closures In Africa,

During 2018, the Middle East and Africa segment will be
merged into the Group's Furope segment, following 2
planned restructuring 10 be completed In the first half of
the year.
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Our business modej

How we create, distribute
and sustain value

Oil and gas extraction cycle

Resources
we use

Financial

Rllectual Property

Operational

Employees

—St—akeholde?
Relationships

Our operating Our products
segments and services

Health, safety and
environment (“HSE") Qil Country Tubular
Goods ("OCTG")

v
Hunting Titan @
United States
Canada Perforating Systems
Europe | ’ ‘ I

Asia Pacific

Middle East, Africa and Other Advanced Manufacturing

Exploration and Production
v |
A ' '
Quality and operational
excellence

» See pages 30 to 34

P See pages 35 to 37 » See pag-e; 38 ta 39
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Qur customers
and channels

to market
Drilling Tools Operators
Intervention Tools Service Companies
m
Subsea Steel Mills and Other

AVAVAY
AVAVAN
\AVA ﬂ

» See page 40

Sustainable

value creation

for our stakeholders
Employees

Atyear-end Headcount mcreased
Q7T ey as tenana

’ See page 32

Shareholders

Dividends declared | 2018, the Group

recommenced dividend
9.0(38"1:5 distributions.

Seapage§

Customers and Suppliers

Forthe lullyear Oll service groups
remain our primary

800& route lo market al
©.80% of sales.
Seapage 40

Communities and Enwironment
Intensity factor Our intensity factor

decreased in the year
38.6 due to more efficient

facihity utdisation.

kg CO/$k
Seapage 37
Governments
Tax paid With profits generated
in the year, corporation
$2 .6m taxes pald increased.
Seepaga 17
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Our business model continued

Resources
we use

Financial
Net cash Annualised 3-year TSR
at 311218 snding 31.12.18
$61 .3m 1 6.700
Market capitalisation Net bank fees & interest
at31.12.18 paid year 10 31.12.18
£008bn $2 .Om

Intellectual Property

No. of patents granted No. of new patenlé
granted in year

485 63

No. of patents pending No, of new patre;rrxts
pending in the year

205 53

Operational

Operating sites Distribution centres
Operating fcotprint Machines

{million sq ft)

2.9 1,188

Net book value of PPE % of 150 9001
accredited facilities

$360.2m 71

30 Hunting PLC | 2018 Annual Report and Accounts

Finanecial

Hunting PLC I a Premium Listed public company qucted
on the London Stock Exchange and, as such, adheres to
the UK’s highest standards of regulation and corporate
govemancs, as published by the Financial Conduct
Authority and Financial Reporting Councll. Equity
shareholders receive returns in the form of dividends and
through capital appreciation, which can be measured as
total sharehokder return.

Financial capital is provided to the Group threugh equity
invested by sharehclders, cash reserves and debt facifities,
provided by the Group's relationship banks The balance
af cash, debt and equity Is managed with due regard tc
the respactive cost of funds and their availability.

The Group has provided guidance on its approach to
dividend distributions, which is detalled on page 18, Each
dividend proposal will ba assessed hy the Board, based
on the merits of actual and projacted financial
performance of the Company for the relevant pariad,
Given the cyclical nature of the cil and gas industty, the
Board remains commitied to maintaining a low level

of gearing and committing sufficient resource to working

Fapifal i meabatain tha Qranip's Anarannnal flayibilibg

The Group has a $160.0m committed multi-currency
barrowing facty provided by four banks. The facility is
available untll Decermber 2022, with an option to increase
the facility size to $235.0m and lengthen the maturity date
io December 2023, The committed facililies have
profit-based covenants linked to EBITDA/met interest and
net debt/EBITOA ratios. The facility also includes security
arrangements provided over certain trade recsivables,
inventorias and specific properties, pfant and equipment
Dunng the year, the Group was fully comphant with all of
its facility covenants.

Intellectual Property

Following the market dewntumn between 2014 and 2017,
there is now a strong focus in the Industry on technological
improvement and process innavation, which can help
deliver cost efficiencies for customers while maintaining
or improving margins for suppliers. The use of technology
i our business illustrates the different ways we partner
with participants in the suppiy chain:

Hunting Proprietary Technology

Devefoping our own proprietary tectinclogies has been
a strategic focus for the Group. Through developing our
technologies and proprietary know-how, we are well
positioned to secure market share by prolecting our
intellectual property (“IP*). Our substantlal |P portfolio
provides us with a competitive advantage and allows us
to enjoy better marging and more operational Hexibility.
In 2018 we filed 53 new patent appilcations, with 63 new
patents granted in the year, bringing the total number of
fully-registered patents cwned by the Group to 485,
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Jointly Developed Technology

Some innovations invalve collaborating with other partners
within the Industry. Hunting continues to work with
ExxonMobil to develop an autcnomous perforating taol
with on-hoard navigation. This project has progressed
well In 2018, with a new cutling taol targelsd for launch to
customers in 2019 based on this techinology.

Third-Party Technology

In some cases, we make use of third-party proprietary
technclagies in cur operations, For eertain product ines
wo are engaged as a speclalist manufacturer using our
customers’ IP. In other areas we license lechnclogies from
third parties, such as non-Hunting thread forms for OCTG

Operational

Wa have an established giobal netwark of operating sites
and distribution centres located clase to cur customers
and within the main global oil and gas producing regions
(see page 2).

Over the years, we have continued to refine our operating
and manufacturing processes, established a highly
specialised workiorce and buiit considerable know-how
el v Ludicos ln ol sy et ob g

customer needs.

Our operating sttes are used for the manufacture, rental,
trading and distribution of products, The manufacture of
goods and the provision of related manufacturing services
is, by far, the main source of income for the Group.

The bulk of our manufacturing occurs in high-end
specialist facilities utitsing sophisticated CNC machines.

in Hunling's rertal businesses, 1t 1s critical that an
appropnate range of squipment 1s stored and malntained.
Generelly this must be configured to meet specific
customer requirements.

In certaln product lines, particularly OCTG, Hunting holds
inveritory to support our customars® specific requirements
and to take advantage of particutar market opportunities.

Cur distribution centres are primanly used in the Hunting
Titan, Intervention Tools and Drilling Tools business groups,
where close proximity to drilling operations ls impartant.

Management principles

Our approach to managing the Group’s operations
is based on four core principles:

Develop Our People

People are ai the heart of our business. Qur broad
product portfolio demands experienced machining
and production engineers across our many
manufacturing disciplines and facilities.

Empower Our Business Units

The oil and gas industry is a fast-paced sector where
product requirements and customer demands can
operats on short lead-times. Our business leaders
are empowared to react quickly to local market
conditions as and when opportunities arise.

Apply Unified Operating Standards

and Procedures

Demanding health, safety and quality policies
are developed centrally and then applied locally,
We continually monitor and raise our operating
standards.

Maintain a Strong Govemance Framework

The Group's senior managers and their teams operate
within a tight framework of controls, monitored and
directed at both a regional and central level but
vitimately under the direction of the Board.
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Our business model continued

Resources
we use

Employees
Employees {year-end) Total remuneratlion
2,772 $254.50m
{2017 —2,610) 2017 - $245.3m)

Employess receive regular HSE training
with programmes in place at all the
Group’s facilities,

32 Hunting PLC | 2018 Annual Report and Accounts

Employees
Hunting's employees are key in fulfilling the Group's
strategic objectives.

Hunting's reputation, which has been built over many
years, is underpinned by our highly skilled workforce.

At 51 December 2018, the Group had 2,772 employees.
(2017 — 2,610) across its global operations. As US onshore
activity levels continued to improve during the year, those
businesses addressing this market continued to hire new
siaff to meet demand. Elsewhere within the Group,
controls cver recruitment remain In place.

Responsibility for our emnployees lies with local
management, to enable local cultural differences to be
taken into accouny, with all businesses complying with the
Group's ethical employment and human rights policies as
published in the Hurting PLC Cede of Conduct (located at
www.huntingple.com).

Tha Group is committed to training and develeping all
employees, which includes health and safely training,
professional development and general career
4c\rm|9ir\mgn’ Inttinthuesg |In Fehrmry 20187 Himbney rolled
out a Group-wide Code of Conduct e-learning training
programme for employees, to ensure awareness of our
published ethics-focused policies. The programme
Incorparates anti-bribery and corrupiion, modern slavery,
fraud and tax modules to ensure our employees
understand their responsibilities on joining the Group.

Hunting targets full compliance with all relevant regional
laws covering employment and minimum wage legislation.
As a responsible employer, full and fair consideration is
given to applications for positions from disabled persons.
The Group's ethics policies suppart equal employment
oppeortunities across al! of Hunting's oparations. The
Group's gender diversity profile for 2018 is detailed on
page 64,

Employses are offered benefits on joining the Group,
including healthcare cover, post-retirement benefits and,
in certain instances, when Group outperformance in terms
cf operational or financial targets has heen delivered,
partcipation in bonus arrangements,

Employees are encouraged to further their development
and netwark of contacts within the global energy industry
by membership of industry groups In 2018, the following
organisations were supported by Hunting's employees.
American Petroleum Institute, Society of Petraleum
Engineers and the Interventlon and Coiled Tubing
Associaticn.

The Board of Hunting has established procedures in place
whareby employses can raise concemns in confidence, by
contacting the Chalrman or Senilor indapandent Oirector,
The Group also uses an indspendent whistleblowing
service operated by SafeGall. Contact information for boih
these fines of reporting are published on staff
noticeboards across the Group's facilities and within the
Group's magazine published twice yearly -- the Hunting
Review — and available to all employees,




Stakeholder Rélationships

Number of shareholders

1,516

(2017 -- 1,618)

Stakeholder Relationships

While the consideration of stakeholders, including
employees, customers, suppliers, governments and the
envirorment is a statitory duty of the Direclors, the
Hunhing Board believe it 1s good business practice ta
nurture strong relationships with all participants, as it
prometes the Group's standing in the industry, leads to
better growth opportunlties and develops benefits for all.
Hunting constantly evaluates ways to streng‘hen links with
investors, employses, customears, supphars, governments
and tha communities in which its businesses operate,

Board Oversight

The Hunling Board receives regular feedback from the
Chief Executive on relationships with key customers and
suppliers al sach Board meeling, A Health, Safety and
Erwironment report is also submitted to sach Board
meeting. Further, shareholder feedback is regularly
considerad as reports from the Head of investor Relatons
and the Company's brokers are discussed at most Board
mestings. Through the work of the Audit Committes,
Hunting's communication with customers and suppliers
an the Group's ethical poficies are monitored. Further, new
slakeholder engagement proposals are being considered
by the Board.

Shareholders

Communication with investors is a core activity of the
Board, wilh a structured investor relations programme in
place. The execulive Directors meet existing or potential
Investors to explain our strategy and plans for future
growth, The Ghairman and Senior Independent Director
alsa meet investors annuatly to discuss strategy and
governance, wlth feedback being provided to the Board.
Further, the Head of Investor Relations attends a number
of invastor conferences and individual investor meetings
throughout the year, as part of the annual programme
of work. The Company uses Stock Exchange
anncuncemeants, the annual and hall-year reports,
webcasts and the Annual General Meeting 1o
communicate and meat with shareholdars.

CGustomers and Suppliers

Hunting's approach io its customers and suppliers is
hased on honesly and transparency, to provide best-in-
clasa products and services delivered through a rigorous
quality assurance programme. The Group's policies
support a strang culture of bullding close client
ralationships, which are based on our reputation of
industry-leading service and delivery and our drive to
understand the needs of each custorner and supplier to
ensure absoiule chent satisfaction is achieved.

A numbsr of our research and development programmes
are implernented in coliaboration with our customers to
ensure industry-leading technology is developed by the
Group. These programmss folfow the stringert quality and
safaty certifications implemented by governmanis but also
maet our customers’ exacting demands. As new
customers cor suppliers are considered by the Group,
“know-your-customer” forms, credit and sanction checks
and “end-user” due diligence Is undertaken to ensure
Hunting complies with international frading laws and
ambargoes. Further, most new customers and suppliers
are sent key ethics documents that outline Hunting's
abory etanen an athlanl bpeingre deafings Fror meare
informaton on our customers and channels to market see
page 40. Our entertainment and hospitalily policies ensure
our business decisions are completed on an arms-length
basis, with client entertaining closely monitored and
proparticnate.

Governments

Hunting is committed to developing good relatienships
with appropriate bodies within the governments of the
countries in which we operate. Certain customers and
suppliers of the Group are state-owned, therefore
menitoring precedures for interaction with Public Officials
are in place. Where appropriate, Hunting's business units
participate in government-supported groups and
“think-tanks®, Hunting Titan regularly supperts or has
membership of groups that develop regulalions on
products used for hydraulic fraciuring, particularly with
regard to the handling of explosives In ine with Group
policy, Hunting prohloits any form of political donations
o bs made. In 2018, the Greup 1ssued its "Payments to
Governments” stalament in compliance with legislation
enacted in the UK. Further, Hunting is a signatory to the
UK’s Prompt Payment Cade. In compliance with UK
legislation, the Group's Tax Strategy is available on the
Company’s wabsite at www.huntingplc.com, and commits
the Group and its subsidiaries to acting wilh integrity and
transparency in all tax matlers relating to the countries in
which we operats,

Communities

Hunting operates in 11 countries and is committed to
being a responsible corporate citizen. Each business
unit across the Group is encouraged o promote good
community relations and, where appropriate, to support
causes including kcal sponserships and communal
evenls Many of these initiatives are highlighted in the
Hunting Review, the Company’s corporate magazine
published twice a year,
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Our business model continued

Resources
we use

Stakeholder Relationships continued

Code of Conduct
The Group’s Code of Conduct is the basis of its
commitment to stakeholders. Hunting's policies an
anti-bribery and corruption, ethicat employmand,
responsibla business partnerships and proportionate
client entertalning are key commercial principles. The
Code of Conduct is sant to the Group’s major customers
and suppliers to promote our values within our krnown
supply chain. Hunting's policies on human rights and its

L approach to the Issues of modern Slavery and trafficking

"continue to be enhanced, to ensure our stance on
rasponsible corporate behaviour is shared with our
business partners. Every two years, each business unit
within the Group sends o key customers and suppliers a
surnmary of our medern slavery and hurnan trafficking
poficies, along with our Code of Conduct, to ensura
Hunting's clear stance on this subject Is communicated.

Antl-Bribery and Corruption (“ABC")

In line with the Group's ABG Policy, each business unit
within the Group completes a twice-yearly ABG risk
assessment, which is consclidated and reviewed by the
Audt Cunen Vae VWhaes apmnep osts e b s ot
function reviews this assessment and provides feedback
to the Committee cn this risk profile, Mitigating controls
are in place 1o ensure sach business seeks appraval for

a new commerciat relationship, which may increase the
Group's ABG risk. in addition to these assessments, all
high value entertainment is monitored, botly [ocally and
centrally, to ensure the Company is not seen to be unduly
influencing a partner, with senlor management and Board
approvals required for all significant expenditures, All
employess are made aware of the Group’s ABGC policies
through its Code of Conduct tzaining course, which is
completed on induction to the Group, logether with

periodic vpdates.

Supply Chain

As a participant in the global oil and gas industry, Hunting
is part of a complex supply chain of customers and
suppliers, whereby certain partners can also be
competitors if there is overlap in the product and service
offering. This necessitates appropriate dus diligence to
anstire we understand the nature of each commercial
relationship. it also requires appropriate smployee training
and third-party communication of our ethical policies, to
ansure ali cur partners understand the high standards
expected by the Group. A number of our customers are
state-awned enterprises and additional monilaring
proceduros are in place to ensure compliance with the
UK’s Bribery Act.

S W —

1 Perforating Sand ;
gun filters ;
production heing
at Pampa. checked
prior to
shipping.
H-1 Perforating Systems in Pampa, Texas, are Thea same rigorous assurance regime applies to the
subject to qualily assurance checks, throughout the fabrication of Cyclone Wellherd Desanders at the
manufacturing eycle. Velsen Noord facility in the Netherlands.
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Our operating
segments

Hunting reports its parformance based an its key
geographic operating regions. Hunting Titan, as a large,
separale business group s reportad as a stand-alone
segment. A description of each segment is noted below.

Hunting Titan

Hunting Titan manufactures and distributes perforating
products and accessories. The segment's products
include the H-1 Perforating Systern™ and the EQUAfrac™
shaped charge technology. The business has four
manufacturing facilities In the US and a facility in Mexico,
supported by 18 distribution centres, primarily located in
Canada and the US.

us

The US businesses supply OCTG and Premium
Connections, Dnling Tools, Subsea equipment,
Intervantion Toaols, Electronics and complex deep hole
drilling and precision machining services for the US and
cverseas markets. The UGS segment has 15 operating
facilities mainly Jocated in Texas and Louisiana,

Canada
Hunting's Canadian business manufactures Premium

Coaetion oL dodent s s Ll gl g ot
Canada, often focused on heavy cil plays, which require
specialist iubing technologies. Canada also manufactures

perorating guns for Hunting Titan.

Europe

The segment derives its revenue primarily from the supply
of OCTG and Intervention Tools to operaters in the North
Sea. The Group has operations in the UK, Netherlands
and Norway,

Asia Pacific

Revenue from the Asia Paclific segment is primarily from
the manufaciure of Premiurn Gonnections and OCTG
supply. Manufacturing is located in China, Indonesia and
Singapare. The facility in China also manutactures
perforating guns for Huriling Titan,

Middle East, Africa and Other

Revenue from the Middle East and Africa is generated
from the sale and rental of intervention tools across the
region, with the operations also acting as sales hubs for
other products manufacturad globally by the Group,
including OCTG and Perforating Systems,

In 2019, the segment will be integrated into the Europe
segment, fallowing an internal restructuring.

Exploration and Production

Tho Txplers Py ] Dy wrtucti p boclpase mominedees [Fo
Group's exploration and production activities in the
Southern US and offshore Gulf of Mexico, The segment is

being wound down, with ne further investment planned

OCTG
manufacturing
in the US.

A new range of TEC-LOCK™ connections led to strong
growth in sales to the US onshore market.
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Our business model continued

Our operating
segments

Health and Safety

Incident rate (OSHA method)

1.49

(2017 —C.89)

Incident rate

2018 149
017 049
2018 1185

Quality and Operational Excellence

Internal manufacturing reject rate

0.2%

(2017 — 0.3%)

Quality assurance - internal manufacturing reject
rate (%)

2058 02
2007 03
018 0.6

Facilities with IS0 9001 accreditation (%)

2018 "
2m7 8
2816 &0
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Health and Safety

Across all of its glabal operations, the Group is cornmitted
to achieving and maintaining the highest standards of safety
for its employees, customers, suppliers and the public.

Bunting has a proven culture of airming for best practice
and employs rigorous health and safety practices. Health
and safety policles Include:

- Ragutar audit and maintenance reviews of facilities;

— Appropriate training and educaticn of all staft;

~  Regutar reporting tc Board level;

— Sesking accreditation and aligning long-standing
internal programmes with internationally recognised
standards; and

— Pubiication of the Group poficy on health, safety and
envlronmental matters on the Company’s websita at
www.huntingplc.com,

Hunting's Director of Health, Safaty and Environment
("HSE" reports directly to the Chiaf Executive and a repaort
ls considered by the Board at each mesting.

The Group's target is to achleve zero recordable incidents.
Cark Yecal bialngcs ic rauirad to deualop fallorad nolicies
to suit their environment, These incorporate the Group's
approach to putting safaty first and, al a minimum, to
comply with local regulatory requirements. Training is
given to employees throughout the Group.

During the year, there were no fatalities across the Group's
operatlons, with 46 recordatle incidents (2017 — 24). The
incident rate, as calculated from guidance issued by the
Qceupational Safety and Health Administration {"OSHA") 1n
the US, was 1.49 compared to 0.89 in 2017, This Incident
rate reflects a B7% year-on-year increase, as new
employeas were hired and trained in addition to the
number of hours worked increasing by 17% 1o 6.3m hours
{2017 - 5.4m hours}. The industry average incldent rata in
2018 was 4.0 (2017 - 3.5).

Qluality

The Group is committed to enhancing its production
and operational quality, with a number of facilities being
certified 130 9001 {quality), 1SO 14001 (environment) and
1SQ 18001 [health and safety) compliant, indicating that
globally recognised standards and syslems are in place.

More facilities acrass the Group are working towards
these 1SC accreditalions, continuing the Group's
commitment to monitor and reduce the environmenial
impact of its operalions and Improving HSE standards.

Operational and production excellence is a key driver of
our relationship with customers, Quality assurance for
each component manufactured is a key differentiator in
our drive to be an industry-leading provider of critical
components and measurement tools. In 2018, the Graup
continued Its programme to introduce lean manulacturing
processss into global operations, This resulted in
efficiency gains in a number of key business units.

The internal manufaciuring reject rate in 2018 was 0.7%
2017 - 0 3%).




Environment

Hunting is committed to protecting the anvironment, by
developing menufacturing precedures that mintmise the
Group's impact on the environment and communities in
which we operate.

Hunting's envirenment policy is located at
www.huntingple.com,

New faciities take into account environmental
considerations, including storm and Hooding protection,
while ulilising energy efficient materials, logether with
waste recycling and management initiatives,

The Group has active recycling programmies at the
majority of its facifities for waste materlals, including metal,
plastics and wood, Nearly aill manufacturing facilities
maintain at least one recycling programme, with the
accompanying chart noting the adherencs of the Group's
facilities fo these three core malerial recycling
Programmes.

To monitor the impact of Hunting's operaticns on the
environment, and in compliance with UK Company Law,

div Stuc wollutsd groe Joctzs g [P2HOM .
accordance with the principles of the Kyote Protocol.
Hunting's 2018 Scope 1 and 2 emissions, as defined by
reporting guidelines published by DEFRA in the UK and
the inlernational Ensrgy Agency, have been collected and
are reported in the accompanying chart.

Scope 1 and 2 emissions in 2018 totalled 35,171 tonnes
(2017 - 31,603 tonnes} of carbon dioxide equlvalent. The
increasa in the Group's emissions betwsen 2017 and 2018
is due to higher activily levels, particularly within the
Group's US businesses, with Scopa 2 alectricity usage
increasing as additional shifts were added by our busier
operating units [n the year, the Group consumed

54,7 GWh of gleclricity {2017 — 45,2 GWh),

The Group's intensity factor, based on fctal carbon dioxide
amissions divided by Group revenue in 2018, was 38.6 ka/$k
of revenue, compared to 43.6 kg/$k of revenue in 2017,

Water usage in tho year was 221k cubic meties compared
o 218k cubic metres in 2017,

Environmental and Waste Management Data

Carbon dioxide emigsions

35 ,1 71 tonnes equivalent

{2017 — 31,603 tonnas equivalent)

Facilities with reeycling programmes in place (%)

Matal o8
Wood __
Plastics 28

GHG emissions (tonnes CO2 equivalent) / Intensity
factor (kq GO2/$k revenus)

3 &
& £l
L8 U
® e
10 20
3 o
o 8
2016 2077 2018

& Scope 1 ® Scope 2

Global electricity consumption [GWh)

2018 .y
2017 4532
2018 4271

UK electricity consumption (GWh)

- |ntensity factor

2018 1%

2007

-
13

2016 1.8
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Our business model contnued

Our products
and services

Hunting’s six major product groups

Operating Basis -

Overview

Differentiators

Oll Country Tubular
Goods ("OCTG")

Perforating
Systems

Manufacturing, trading

Manufacturing

OCTG are steel allay produsts and
comprise casing and tubing used
in the construstion and completion
of the wellhare. Hunting machines
threads to connact OCTG using
flush or semi-flush jolnts and can
manufacture premium and
semi-premium connections and
gccessories using our own
tachnologies such as SEAL-
LOGK™, WERQE-LOGK™ and
TEC-LOCK™, We are llcensed ta
apply a vanety of thwd-parky
thread forms and generic AP|
threads. We source CCTG products
from a significant number of major
global steel producers and have
sirong, long-term relatlonships in
the US, Europe and Asia, Hunting
trades ppe, which is a lowar margin
activity, 1o help support customer
ralationships.

Hunting Titan manufactures
periorating systems, energetics,
firing systems and logging tools.
Products are mainly used in the
completion phase of a well. The
production, starage and
distribution of energetics iz highly
regulated and there are signlficant
barriers for new entrants 1o the
market. The business mainly
"manufaciures to stock” and hence
uses a wide distribution netwark.
HSome manufaciuring is done to
urder, sourced from internatlonal
taiasales.

Hunting is ane of the largest
independent providars of OCTG
connectlon technology, including
premium cannactions.

Market-leading positlon in the US.
Strong portfolio of patented and
unpatented technology.

Global Operating Presence

Our business activities
Pages 35 ta 40.

Hunting has extensive machining
capacity in the US, Canada, Europe
and Asia Pacific,

Manufacturing centres in the US,
Canada, Mexico and China,
Distribulion centres i tha US,
Canada and Asia Pacific.

Related Strategic Focus Areas

Our business strategy
Pages 42 and 443,

New products ~ Broadened
the WEDGE-LOCK™ and
SEAL-LOGK XD™ premium
connection range and
introduced the semf-pramium
TEC-LOCK™ range.

Cost control - Disposal of Cape
Town tacility and closure of
Mombasa facllity.

New capaclty - Expansion of
production faclilties at Pampa anpd
Milford in the US has commenced,
with completion targeted tor

Q2 2018.

Cast control — Three distribution
centres closed In North America.

New products — H-2 Perforating
Systam launched in February 2019,

Related Principa! Risks
Marg information on risk management
Pages 44 to 52.
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Commuodity prices, Shale drifling,
Compaetition, Product quality.

Commedity prices, Shale drilling.
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Advanced
Manufacturing

P

Drilling Tools

Intervention Tools

*

Subsea

Manufacturing

Equipment rental,
trading

Manufacturing, equipment
rental and trading

Manufacturing

Advanced Manufacturing includes
the Hunting Dearborn business,
which carries o deep hole drilling
and precision machining of
complex MWD/LWD and farmation
evaluation tocl componants, and
the Hunting Electronlos businass,
which manufactures printed circuit
boards capable of operating in
extreme canditions. These
buelnesses work collaboratively
with customers implementing their
desIgns 10 their speciications.

Rental of a larga portfolio of
downhole taols, including mud
motors, non-magnetic drlll collars,
vlbration dampeners, reamers and
hole openers. Taols are canfigurad
to the custemers’ specifications,
This business is caplital Intensive
and resulls are dependent on fleet
utilisation and rental rates. in
limited instances, rental equipment
Is sald outright.

A range of downhole intervention
toals including slickline 1ools, e-line
toals, mechanical plant, coiled
tubing and pressure contral
equipment. This busliness s capital
intensive and rasulls are dependent
on asset utilisation and rental rates.

Produces high quality products
and solutions for the globat
subsea Industry covering
hydraulic couplings, chemical
injection systems, speclalty
valves and weldment services.,

Hunting Dearbom is a world feader
0 the deep drifling of high grade,
nen-magnetic compenents, As a
Group, Hunting has the ahility to
produce fully imtegrated advanced
dawnhole tools and equipment,
manufactured, assembled and
tested to the custamer's
speclifications vsing its proprietary
know-how.

Leaders in progressive éavity,

pasifive displacement mud motors.

Hunting offers a comprehensive
range of teols, including Innovative
and propriatary tachnologles.

For more than 30 years, a
provider of high quality metal-to-
metal sealing hydraulic coupling
solutions fo operate in the
harshest environments with a
strang, long-term patent base.

us.

us.

US, Europe, Asia and
Middle East.

us.

Growth — Non-oil and gas buslness
opportunities increased within
naval, aerospace and space
sactors. Insourcing of production
of Hunting Titan tinng switches.
MWD/LWD tool replacement
programmes with key oil and gas
customers also increased in the
year, with new Interest In Hunting's
Integrated tooi manufacturing
capability.

Growth - Furiher implementation
of mud-lube metors across fleet,
{eading to lbower refurbishment
costs and improved levels of
profitabllity.

New products - Increased sales

of Ezl-Shear valve.

New products - Continued
development of soft metal seal
praduct fina for onshore drilling
markets.

Commodity prices,
Product quality.

Commodity prices, Shale drilling,
Competition.

Commodity prices, Coempatition.

Commaodity prices,
Product guality,
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Our business model continued

Our customers and
channels to market

Hunting’s customer groupings and channels to market

Operators

Service Companies

M

Steel Mills and Other

Operators are the end
consumers of our products

and related services. These
include National Oif Companies,
International Oil Cormpanies and
Independents. Approximately
159% of our sales are made
directly to operators.

Our primary route to market

is via other service providers,
which generate c¢.80% of our
revenue. Thess include “ist tier’
service companies who can
provide project management
services 1o the operators. Key
customers include Halliburton,
Baker Hughes, Schlumberger
and Weatherford.

n

Steel mills are key suppliers

to our husiness, however, in
some circumstances we can
perform threading services for
them or supply OCTG products.
Other sales include oil and gas
refated sales through agents
or intermediaries, together
with non-oil and gas sector
sales made by our Trenchless,
Dearbaorn and Electronics
operations.

Split of Group revenue

c15%

Split of Group revenue

c.80

Split of Group revenue

C.3%

Our top ten customers represent

¢ 41% of revenua

Our largest customer represents

¢.13% of revenue
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Quality assurance proceduras are
cemlral to our manufacturing processes
and supports Hunting’s reputation
across the oil and gas industry.
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Our business strategy

Hunting’s strategic priorities are based on a business model
designed to deliver sustainable long-term shareholder value
while recognising our corporate responsibilities.

Strategic priority

Growth

Our alm is ta continue to develop

our global pressnce and supply &
comprehensive range of products for
use in the wellbore. We wilf grow through
capital investment in existing businesses
and through acquisitions.

Operational Excellence

We operate in 4 highly competitive and
eyclical sector, which Is high profile and
strongly regulated. To be successful we
must deliver high quality and reliable
products and services cost effectively.

Strong Returns

In normal phases of the cil and gas
cycle our business has the capability
to praduce high levels of prefitability,
strong cash generation, growing
dividends for shareholders and good
relurns on capital,

Corporate Responsibility

We are commitied to act with high
standards cf integrity and to create
positive, long-lasting relationships with
our customers, suppliers, employses
and the wider communities in which
we operate.

Strategic focus areas

— Extend global presence

- Acquirs complementary businesses
—~ Enhance existing capacity

— Develop new products

- Laverage strong brand
- Enhance quality control
~ Maintain operational flexibility
- Leverage isan manufacturing

— Strengthen ralationships with customers
and suppliers

- Introduce new and proprietary products
- Develop sales synergies

- Enter new geographic markets

Maintain close cost control

¥

~ Retain experienced senior management
team

- Skilled workforce

~ Safe operatians

- Protact the environment

- Compllance
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2018 progress

— Expansion programmes cornmenced
within Hunting Titan to increase and
automate prodoction capacity of
energetics charges and perforating gun
manufacturing.

— Rationalisation of North Amerlcan

distribution centres to align with market
activity.

~ Lean manufacturing prejects continued

throughout the Group.

- Patants granted over naw generation

Hunting Titan perforating gun ay=tem

- Gross margin improved te 30% in 2018
compared 1o 24% in prior year.

— US revenues for Hualing Titan products
Increased, as the market environment
improved and demand for efficient and
reliable “plug and perf” technologies
increased.

- Closure of manufacturing facilities in

Cape Town and Mombasa to save costs.

- As activity increased in North America,
average employee numbers increased
by 23% in the year to maet demand.

- Group-wilds Code of Conduct training
course rolled out, covering all ethics
policies.
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Related KPIs Related risks

: : - Geopoliti
Revenue Profit before tax Operational footprint | SOPOTHES
ot ~ |nvestmant
(million sq i) c .
— Competition

$911 A

(2017 — §724 9m)

$1 04.0m

{2017 - $11.5m)

« Product quality
- Commodity prices
Shale driiing

29

2017 -3.0

ISO 9001 (quality)
accredited operating sites

7 1o

12017 - 64%)

Internal manufacturing
reject rate

0.2

@017 - 0.3%)

- Product guality
Key executives
Competition

Countries in which
we operate

11

(2017 -1

Underlying gross margin

30

(2017 - 249

Free cash flow

$80.7m

{2017 - $48.3m)

— Commedity prices

Return on average — Competition

capital employed

v 20

(2017 — 1%)

Incident rate

1.49

{2017~ 0.89)

CO, emissions intensity
factor (kg/$k of revenue)

38.6

2017 - 43.6)

- Key executives

— Health, safsty and
environment

€O, tonnes equivalent
emitted

35,171

(2017 - 41,603
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Risk management

Risk management

roles and responsibilities

The Board has defined risk management roles and responsibilities as illustrated below

Board

~ Datermines the Group's risk appetite and culture
- Sets the risk management framework

- Engures the risk management processes and internal
coptrois are effective

Audit Committee

~ Controls the Group's risk management processes

~ Reviews business risks

- Gains assurance at the nsk managemanl processss
and controls are affective

Central and Regional Management

— Establishes detaited Group policies and procedures
~ Manages centrally-controlled risks
- Reviews local businass risks

Local Management

—- Ensures Group pohcies and procedures are applied
- Manages locaily-controlled risks

44  Hunting PLC [ 2018 Annual Repart and Accounts

Assurance — Internal Audit
Hunting’s internal audit department
reviews internal controls and risk
management processes for their

existence, relevance and effectiveness.

Actions are recormmended and graded
in tarms of importance and timeliness
for change.
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Introduction

The oil and gas indusiry is highly regulated and demands
high spacification products that mest slringent quality
crlieria, given the challenging environments in which these
products are used. Hunting's risk managerment and
Internal control processes are therefore designed to
appropriately mitigate the operating risks inharent in this
sector, while allowing the Group to achieve its strategic
objectives and deliver value to shareholders.

The Board

The Board of Huriting has responsibiity for developing and
maintaining & robusat risk management framework and for
manitoring the Group's system of internal cantrol to ensure
it remains effective and fit for purpose. The Board is also
responsible for developing the Group's strategic
objectives. The balance between the Board’s desire fo
maet these strategic objectives and its appetite for nsk
creates the risk cuiture within the Group.

The Board's appetite for risk is kay 10 establishing
effective systems of internal control and risk management
pracesses. By reviewing and debaling the relevant
avidence, the Board develops an appreciation for the
COTBUWY 1aCltas tal Johslale a pai buuldn nsh,
Subsequently, through delegation, the Board establishes
the extent to which the risk should be mitigated and at
what cost to the Group. The Beard, for exarnple, has litle
appetite for high levels of exposure to geopolitical risk
and, consequently, the Group’s expansion strategy nas
avoided countries that are considered to be significantly
unstahble or toa high risk to maintain & physical presence,
notwithstanding the potential benefits that may be
generated.

Advice on risk management is sought by the Board from
both internal and externat sources, The risk management
processes are fusther supported by:

- understanchng the current and evolving market
environment;

— challenging executive management on new growth
opportunities; and

- reviewing proposed new product developments and
capilal invastment projects.

Audit Committee

Local management establishes and undertakes risk
management processeas that are relsvant to the risk profile
of each business unit, The key risks are reported to central
management three times a year from which a Group Risk
Regilater is malntained covering the key risks to the Group,
including all financial, operational and compliance matters.
On behalf of the Board, the Audit Commitiee seeks o
ensure that risk management processes are established
within the framework set out by the Board and, as part of
this assessment, it conducts a formal review of the
Group's Risk Regster three times a year. The Group's
Principal Risks are disclosed on pages 48 to 52, In
addition, once a year, the Audit Committes seeks
assurance with regard o the effectiveness of the internaj
financial controls based on a self-assessment exercise
carmied out by local management, The appropriateness of
the self assessments I1s checked by Internal Audit, on a
sample basis, following its programme of work.

The Internal Audit department reperts directly to the
Audrt Committee, The relaticnship witn external audit is
controfied by the Audt Committae, wha are responsible
for completing the review of the effectiveness of the

erisinal o

Central and Regional Management

Hunting requires that all Group business units aperate in
accordance with the Hunting Group Manual, which sets
oul Group policies and procedures, tagether with reialed
authority levels, and identifies matiers reguiring approval
or natification to ceniral management or to the Board.,
Included within the Group Manual are policies covering

a range of areas, including general finance requirements,
taxation responsibilities, Information on Hunting's internat
coniral and risk managemen! framework and governance.
Compliance I1s also monitored and subjec! to scrutiny by
the Internal Audit department,

Central ard regional management are responsible for
ensuring the risk management processes established by
the Audit Committee are implemented across the Group.
Cenitral management is also responsible for managing
Group-wide treasury-related risks such as currency and
interest rate exposures and managing the global
insurance programme.

Hunting PLC | 2018 Annual Report and Accounts
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Risk management continued

Lacal Management

Management of each business unit has the responsibility
of establighing an effective systern of controls and
processes for their business which, at a minimurm, meet the
requiraments set out in the Group Manua! and complies
with any additional local requirements, Local management
is empowered under Hunting's de-centralised philosophy
to manage the risks In thelr market.

Assurance

The Board uses a number of functions and reporting
pracedures to provide assurance that the risks identifled
by management are appropriate and proportionate for
the Group as a whole. Hunting's Internal Audit function
covers the Group's businesses addrassing the following
operational areas, raising controf improvement
recommendaticns, where necassary:

— inventory management,

- purchasing supply chain;

- large project risk,

- IT contiols;

~ customer credit risk; and

- ethics compliance, including bribery and corruption.

The Group's risk management processes are further
suUpported by an internal Quality Assurance department
that is headed by a HSE and Quality Assurance Director,
who reports directly to the Chief Executive. This
department also undertakes perlodic audits that monitor
quality contral within the Group's product nes.

46 Hunting PLC | 2018 Annual Report and Accounts

Hunting also recetves guidance from a number of
external advisers. In particular, guidance from the Group's
principal insurance broker, which arranges worldwide
credit insurancs for the Group, has been implemented
throughout the business units with respect lo, for
example, vetting new customers and maintaining
appropriate creditworthiness data that further strengthens
the Group's credit managemen? processas. Hunting's
external auditors provide assurance 1o the Board of the
accuracy and probity of Hunting's financial staterments.
The auditors also read ali of Hunting’s non-financial
statements, including governance disclosures included

in the Annual Report, and provides recommendations

on the financial controls in cperation across the Group,
based on the exiernal audit.

Hurting's legal advissrs assist in ensuring that Huriting

is compiiant with the UKLA's Listing Rules, Disclosure
Guidance and Transparency Rules scureebook and UK
Company Law, and that there is an understanding across
the Giroup of its obligations under current sanctions
legislation. Additionally, Hunting reles on market and
investor advice from its corporate brokers and financial
advisers.

The Board is satisfied that the above sources of assurance
have suflicient aulhority, independence and expertise to
enable them fo provide objective advice and information
1o the Board and also takes this inio account when
assassing the robustness of the risk management and
control process

R
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Risk management
procedures

The Board has reviewed its risk management and
internal control proceduras and confirms that the
procedures In place are robust and proportionate
to Hunting's global operations and position in its
chesen market.

Hunting's internal control system, which has been in place
throughout 2018 and up to the date of approval of these
accounts, is an ongoing evolutionary process designed to
dentify, evaluate and manage the significant risks to which
the Group is exposed,

This system of internal control ta designed to manage
rather lhan efiminate risks. therefore it can only provide
reasonable, bui net absolute, assurance egalnst material
misstatement or loss in the financial statements and of
megting internal control objectives.

The Directars have reviewed the effectiveness of the
Group's systern of imternal contral and have taken into
account feadback from the Audit Commitlee for the period
coverad by the financial statements. No significant failings
or weaknesses weres identified in the review process.

The kay glements to understanding, establishing and
assessing Hunting’s internal control sysiem are as foflows:

Busglness Risk Reporting

Three times a year, local management formally reviews the
specific risks faced by thelr businesses, based on current
trading, future prospects and the local market environment.
1he review 15 a qualitative assessment of the likelihood of
a risk materialising and the probable financial impact i
such an event were to arise. A assessmenis are performed
on apre- and pest-contrals basis, which allows management
o continually assess the effectiveness of its intarnal
controls with separate regard o mitigating the likelihood
of oceurrence ard the probable financial impact, Tha risks
are reported to central management. The local risks that
have the greatest patential Impact on the Group are
identilied from these assessments and incorporated into
the Group Risk Register, which is also reviewed by the
Audit Gommittee three times a year. An appropriate
Directar, together with jocal management, is allocated
responsibility for managing each separate risk identified

in the Group Risk Register.

Financial Controls Self-assessment

Local managemenlt complste an annual self-assessmant
of the financial controls in place at their business unil. The
assessment s gualitative and is undertaken n context with
the recommended controls identified within the Group
Manuai, Gaps botwean the recommanded controls and
those in place are assessed and Improvements are actioned
within a targeted time frame when these arc identified as
a necessary requirement. Hesults of the assessments are
summarised and presented to the Audit Committee.

Reporting and Consolidation

All subsidiaries submit detailed financiat information in
accordanca with a pra-set reparting timestable. This
includes weekly, bi-monthly and quarterly treasury reports,
annual hudgets, monthly management accounts, periodic
extended forecasts giving a medivm-term view, together
with half-year and annual statuiory roporting.

The Group's financial accounting consolidation process is
maintained and regularly updated, Including distribution of
a Group Manual to &ll reporting units, All data is subject to
review and assessment by management through the
monitaring of key performance ratios and comparison to
targets and budgets. The Group monitors and reviews
new UK Listing Rutes, the Disclosure Guidance and
Transparency Rules sourcebiook, accounting standards,
interpretations and amendments, legislation and other
statutery requirements,

Strategic Planning and Budgeting

Strategic plans, annuat budgsts and [ong-term viahility
tinancial projsctions are formally presented to the Board
for adoption and approval and form the basis for
monitaring performance. These are supported by regularly
updated forecasts.

Quality Assurance

Most of the business sectors in which the Group operates
are highly regulated and subsidiaries invariably require to be
accredited, by the customner or an industry regulator, to
national or intematlonal quality organisations. These
organisalicns undertake regular audits and checks on
SUISIAIET Y pad Lo OUits Gl pal s, Chsle g v i sl oo
with reguiatory requiremersts. The Board monitors
compliance by receiving Quality Assurance reporis at
each meeting from the Director of Quality Assurance who
reports directly to the Chisf Executive, The Group has
received accreditations from many organisations including
the American Petroleusm Institute (for example AP Spec
5CT and APt Spec Q1 certifications}, the international
Organization for Standardization {for example 180 9001
and 1SO 14001 certifications) and the Occupational Health
and Safety Assessment Series (for example OHSAS
18001 certification).

Health, Safety and Environment (“HSE")

All facifittes have designated HSE personnel appainted to
ensure the Group's policies and pracedures are adopted
and adhered to. All local HSE personnel report to the
Group's HSE and Quality Assurance Director, who in turh
raports to the Chief Executive. All facilities arrange reqguiar
training and review sessions o ensure day-to-day risks are
rmanaged and shared with the wider workioice.

Expenditure Assessment and Approval Limits

All significant capitai investrnent {business acquisitions
and asset purchases) and capital divestments require
approval of the Chief Execulive. Major capital investrments
or dvestmenls require approval by the Board. Detalled
compliance and assurance procedures are completed
during a capital investment programme and project revlews
and appraiszls are completed to ensure each capitat
investment has delivered the forecast value for the Group,

Updates to the Group's pelicies and proceduras are
communicated to the relevant personne! by way of
periodic revisions to the Group Manual, which is issued
to all business units.
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Risk management continued

Current status of the

Group’s principal risks

The status of Hunting’s exposure to each of its principai
risks, the movernent in these risks {post-centrols) during
the year and the effectiveness of the Group's internal
controls in mitigating nsks are summarised in the
accompanying two graphs.

The extent of Hunting’s expoaure fo any one risk may
increase or decrease over a period of time. This
movement is due either to e ghift in the profile of the risk
arising from external influences, or is dus to a change in
e effectiveness of the Group's internal control processes
In mitigating the risk.

A detatled description of each principal risk, the controls
and actions in place and the mavement in the year are
given in the following section.

UK Leaving the European Union {(“Brexit”}

The Board has continued to consider the potentlal
consequences to the Group of the United Kingdorn's
decision to withdraw from the European Union and remains
of the opinlon that, given iis limited expaosure to this market,
Brexit will not have a material impact on the business.
Consequently, this is not a principal risk to the Group.

48 Hunting PLC | 2018 Annual Report and Accounts

Movement in risks [post-controls) during the year
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Principal risks

The Group’s principal risks ars Identified below. While we have
presented these as separately identified risks, discrete avents
will often affect multiple risks and this is considered by the
Board when assessing the impact on the Group.

1. Compaetitian <

Nature of the risk

The provision of goods and services to oil and gas drilling
companies is highly competitive. In current market conditions,
pricing pressures remaln a featare of the current trading
environment. Competitors may also be customers and/or
suppliers, which can increase the risk of any petential impact.

Technological advancements in the oil and gas industry continue
at pace and failure to keep ahead will resuit in lost revenues and
market share.

Looking further ahead, advancements in alternative enorgy
sources are considered a possible fsk to the oil and gas market
in the long term.

Movement in the year

During the year, the competitive environment within the markets
that Hunting serves remained strong and therefore Hunting's
exposurs to this risk is unchanged since last year. The improved
trading environment has reduced the likelihood of price reductions
by extant competitars, however, new competitors are entering the
market with lower pricing within certain product lines.

Controls and actions

Hunting has a number of high specification proprietary products
that offer operational advantages to its customers. The Group
continually invests in research and development that enables it to
provide technologleal advancement and a strong, ever widening,
product offering, Hunting continues to maintain its standards of
delivering htgh quality products, which has gone some way in
sheltering the pricing pressure impaci on margling.

Hunting’s operations are established close to their markets,
which enables the Group to offer reduced Jead times and

a focused product range appropriate to each region. Locat
managsment maintains an awareness of competitor pricing

and product offering. In addition, senior management maintains
close relationships with key custormers and seaks to maintain
the highest level of service to preserve Hunting’s reputation for
quality. The Group has a wide customer basc that includes many
of the major oil and gas service providers and no one customer
represants an overly significant portion of Group revenue,

Alternativa energy sources have been cohsidaered but are not
believed to be a threat within the short term.

> TI"hreqC.‘raup’s operating activities are described i detail
on pages 35 to 39,

No maevement 0 risk [+
Increzse in risk @
Dacreass in risk 1]
2. Commodity prices &

Nature of the risk

Huntlng Is exposed to the influence of oil and gas prices as the
supply and demand for energy is a key driver of demand for
Hunting's products.

Ol and gas exploration companies may reduce or curtail operations
If prices become, or are expected to become, uneconomical and
therefore continuation of prices above these levels is critical to the
industry and the financial viability of the Hunting Group.

Adverse movements in commodity prices may also heighten the
Group's exposure to the risks associated with shale drilling (see the
nsks associated with shale drilling).

Movement in the year

Hunting's exposure to this risk has remained high during the year
due to the relative instability in spot cil prices. Although they do
rernaln volatile, prices are expected 1o Incraase over the next 12
months due to sustained growth in global demand.

CGontrols and actions

Working capital, and in particular inventory levels, are closely
managed to ensure the Group remains sufficiently adaptable to
meet changes In demand.

The Group's products are used throughoul the life cycle of the
wellbore and each phase within the [ife cycle generates demand

for a different range of products and services. The Board and
managsmant closely monitor market reports on current and
forecast activity levels associated with the varicus phasas of the life
cycle of the wellbore in order 1o plan for and predict improvements
or declines In aciivity levels,

In addition, management has reduced production costs and
developed new technotogies that would help mitigate the Impact
of any further daowniurn in commodity pricas in the future,

» Further information an the movement in commodity prices
during the year is detailed on page 8.
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Risk management continued

Principal risks

The Group’s principal risks are identified balow. While we have  Nomovement in risk ®
presented these as separately identified risks, discrete events Increase in risk [1]
will often affect multiple risks and this is considered by the Dacreass In fsk O
Board when assessing the impact on the Group,

3. Shale drilling J 4. Geopolitics &

Nature of the risk

The Group provides products to the ol and gas shale drilling
industry. Although shale driliing (s now an established activily

In the US, significant sections of the public continue to view

it as high risk. Any consequent moratorium or new laws may
unfavourably impact shale drifling activity fevels and subsequently
recuce demand for the Group's praducts that service the
operatars in this industry, In addition, oll and gas produced from
shale remaing a relatively expensive source of hydrocarbaons,
deaspite recent advances in technology that have reduced these
costs, Conssguenily, shale drilllng ls more sensitive to a decline
In commodity prices compared with conventional sources so itis
mare likely to be curtalled and therefore negatively impact what
has become a staadily increasing revenue stream for the Group
{see the risks associated with commodity prices).

Movement in the year

Hunting’s exposure to this risk has reduced from last year due
tc the continued drive in completion activity within the US shale
basins and the more stable oil price.

Gontrols and actions

The Board monitors public and political opinion and maintains an
awareness of the potentiat for changes to legislation, especially
with regard 1o the US where the Group s mainly exposed.,

The Group maintains a diverse portfalio of products that extends
beyond supplying the shale drifling industry, including products
for conventional drilling and the manufacture of high-preclsion
and advanced technology cemponents for hoth the onshore and
offshore markets.

Many of the Group's facilitiss have the flexibility to reconfigure
their manufacturing procasses to meet a changs in the pattern of
demand.

» The Group’s opcraling;étivities are described in detatl
on pages 35 to 39.
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Nature of the risk

The lccatlon of the Group’s markets are determined by the location
af Hunting's customers’ drill sites — Hunting's products must go
where the drilling companies choose to operate. To compete
affectivaly, Hunting often establishes a local operation In those
regions, however, significantly volatfle environments are avoided.

The Board has a strategy to develop its global presence and
diverslfy geographlcally.

Operations have been established in key geographic regicns around
the world, recognising the high growth potential these territories
offer. The Group carefuily selects which countries to operate from,
taking into account the differing economic and gsopolitical risks
associated with each geographic terntory.

Movement in the year

Geopolitical Issues remain a feature of the madern werld in which
the Hunting Group operates. The Beard monitors geopalitical
events around the warld through media channels and assesses
these relative fo Hunting’s operations.

The Group has relatively little exposure ko the European market and
consaqueantly the Board believes that the econemic unceriainties
associated with Brexit will not have a material adverse impact

on the Group's trading activities. Consequently, the Board has
concluded that there has been no reportable movement in the
Group's geopolitical risk.

Controls and actions

Areas exposed to high political risk are noted by the Board and are
strategically avoided. Management and the Board closely menitor
projected aconomic trends In order to match capacity to regional
demand.

¥ The Group’s EXpu'sure 1o different geog:;-ﬁhic regions is described
on page 2.

e




8. Health, safety and the environment (“HSE") (33

Mature of the risk

Due to the wide nature of the Group’s activities, it is subjectto a
refatively high number of HSE risks and the laws and regulations
Issued by each of the jurisdictions in witich the Group operates.

The Group's exposure to risk therefare includes the potential for
the occurrence of a reportable incident, the financial risk of 2
breach of H3E regulations, and the risk of unexpected compliance
expenditure whenever a law or regulation is renewed or enhanced.

Movement in the year

The Group's manufacturing and other operating processes
have not materially changed during tha year. Consequently, the
Group's potential exposure to HSE incidents remains materially
unchanged. The Group experienced a number of minar HSE
incidents in the year, which is significantly below the industry
average and 1s similar to the Group’s record in prior years.

Controls and actions

The Board targets to achieve a record of il incidents and fuft
compliance with the laws and regulations in each jurisdiction in
which the Group operates.

Every Group facllity Is overseen by a health and safety officer with
the rasponsibiity for ensoring compliance with current and newly
issued HSE standards.

The Board receives a Group HSE compllance report at every
Board meeting.

6. Key executives

Nature of the risk

The Group is highly reliant on the continued service of its key
executives and senior management, who possess commercial,
engineering, technical and financial skills that are critical to the
success of the Group,

Movement in the vear

This rlsk has decreased from last year due to the improving results
of tha Group, which has enabled the Company tc end the Group-
wide pay freeze programme and 1o procure new incentives for key
employees to remain with the Group.

Controls and actions

Remuneratlon packages are regularly reviewed to ensure that key
executives are remunerated in line with market rates. External
copsultants arg angaged {c provids guidance on best praciice.

Senior management regularly reviews the availabllity of the
necessary skills within the Group and seeks to engage suitable staff
where they feel there is vulnerabulity,

» The Group's HSF performance is detalled on page 36,

P Details of executive Director remuneration are provided
in the Remuneration Committee veport an pages 68 to BS.
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Risk management contnued

Principal risks

The Group's principal risks are identified below. While we have

presented these as separately identified risks, disorete events
will often affect multiple risks and this is considered by the
Board when assessing the impact on the Group.

7. Product qualty

I

Nature of the risk

The Group has an established reputation for producing high
quality products capable of withstanding the hostile and comrosive
environiments encountered in the wellbore,

A failure of any ons of thase products could adversely impact the
Group's raputation and demand for the Group’s antire range of
products and services.

Maovement in the year

The risk of poor product quality or reliabllity has remamed
unchanged during the year with no significant 1ssues raised by
the Group’s customars or during the Board's internal monitoring
procass.

Contrels and actions

Quality assurance standards are monitored, measured and
regulated within the Group under the autherity of a Quality
Assurance Direcior, who reports directly to the Chief Executive.

» The Group's cemmitment 1o product quality is detailed on page 36,
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Viability Assessment

and Going Concern Basis

Viabllity Assessmeant

Hunting has a wide, global customer base underpinned
by strong, long-term relationships. The Group provides

a [arge range of products and services through its
manufacturing and distribution facilities, which are located
in a number of countries across the glcbe.

In considering the Group’s long-term viabllity, the Board
ragularly assesses the risks o its business model,
sirategy, future performance, solvency and liquidity. These
assessmenls afe supported by the risk management
processes described on pages 44 and 47 and include a
review of the Group's exposura to the olt end gas industry,
competitor action, customer plans and the robustness of
the supply cnain.

Assessment Period

The Group's customers are principally involved in the
exploration for and production of oil and gas. Given the
nature of the industry and the planming cycles involved,
these activities can cover periods of no mere than several
weeks up to several years from start to end. Hunting's
management works ciosely with its customers over this
perlod discussing thelr operatlonal plans and reviewing
haten :u[n_.,u t=tin wapitcd SXjtiy itsde [P oIS TN Pt Thz
outlook for the Group beyond this period Is ganerated
from management's assassment of industrial data and
projections pubshed by industry commentators and
analysts, Including statistics on exploration and preduction
expenditure, footage drilled and rig activity, The Board
believes thal a three-year forward-locking period,
commengcing on the date the annual accounts are
approved by the Board, is the appropriate iength of time
to reasonably assess the Group's viability. The Group’s
annual budget process and mid-term projections cover
this period and help 1o support the Board's assessment.

Consideration of Principal Risks

The nature of the Group's operalions expose the business
to a variety of risks, which are noled on pages 48 to 52.
The Board regularly reviews the principal risks and
assesses the appropriate controls and further actions as
described on pages 44 and 45, given the Board's appetiie
for risk as disclosed on page 45, The Board has further
censidered their potential impact within the contexl of the
Group's viability.

Assumptions
In assessing the long-terrm viability of the Group, the
Board made the following assumptions

- Demand for energy sarvics preducts coniinues 1o
improve In the magium to long term, given the global
outtook for il and gas demand, which is driven
by growth within emerging markets and sustained
demand from developed markets. These are the
fundamental drivers of Hunting's care business of
manufacturing, supplying and distriouting products and
services that enabls the exiraction of ail and gas.

— Tha Group’s reduged cost base enables the business
1o remain competitive within the waaker sectors of the
giobal energy markets, particularly within the offshore
and international markets.

- North Amerlcan onshore well completion achvity
levels, particularly those requinng Hunting perforating
systems, continue to improve.

— The Group wil continue to have a medium to low
exposure to higher risk countries given the proportion
af fts current tevenues and profits derived from stable
regions such as North America, Furope and South
East Asia

In addition, the three-year financial projections were stress
tested 1o simulate a further deterioration in market conditions.

Congclusion

The Board believes that the Group's strategy for growth,
its diverse customer and product base, and the improving
ovtlook for the oil and gas industry in the medium term
provide Hunting with a strong platform on which 1o
continue in business, The Directors tharefore have a
reasonable expeciation that Hunting will be able to
continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fali
due over the three-year pericd of {heir assessment.

Gioing Concern Basis

The Group's principat cash outflows include capital
investment, labour costs and inventory purchases. The
tming and extent of these cash {lows are controlled by
local management and the Board. The Group's principal
wilh adAoes cio poraaind Pom it pale (f e prodrte
and services, the level of which Is dependent on the
averall market conditions, the variety of its preducts and
abilily to relain strong customer relationships. Cash
inflows are further supparted by the (Group's credit
insurance covar against customer default that, at

31 Dacember 2018, covered the majority of ils trade
receivables, subject to certain limits. Current ang forecast
cash/debt balances are reperted on a weekly basis by
each of the business units to a centralised treasury function
that uses the Information to manage the Group's day-to-
day liquidity and longer-term funding needs.

The Group continues to have access to sufficient financial
rescurces including the $160m secured committed bank
borrowing facility which was undrawn at 31 December
2018. The Group's internal financial projections indicate
that the Group will retain sufficient liquidity to meet its
funding requiremeants over the next 12 months.

Review

In conducting its review of the Group’s ability to remain as
a going concern, the Board assessed the Group's recent
trading performance and its latest forecasts and tock
account of reasonabiy predictable changes In future
trading performance. The Board also considered the
potential financial impact of the estimates, judgements
and assumptions that ware used ta prepare these financial
statements. The Board is satisfied that no material
uncertainties have been identified.

Conclusion

The Board Is satisfied that it has conducted a robust
review of the Group's going concern and has a high level
of confidence that the Group has the necessary fiquid
resources to meet its Habfities as they fall due.
Cansequently, the Board considered it appropriate to
acdopt the going concern basls of accounting in proparing
these congolidated financial statements.
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Corporate governance overview

Hunting’s governance procedures
have remained robust, with the
Company becoming fully compliant
to the 2016 UK Corporate Governance
Code in the year. Further, a number

of improvements were implementad
during 2018, including the formation
of an Executive Committee,
comprising senior operational
managers of the Group.

After a relationship extending nearly
30 years, PricewaterhouseCoopers
will retire as external auditors at the
Company's AGM in April 2019, with
Deloitte being proposed as new
auditors, following completion of a
tender process in 2017. The Board
wish to recoerd their thanks to PwC
for their many years of service.

The Board has evaluated the new
2018 version of the UK Corporate
Governance Code and is currently
reviewing proposals for compliance.
New stakeholder engagement
initiatives are planned, with reporting
to commence in 2019,

John (Jay} F. Glick
Chairman
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Introduction

Hunting’s governance framework has remalned strong
durng 2018, with key initiatives to enhance the Group’s
structure being put in place in the second half of the year,
including the formation of an Executive Committes. This
Committee was formed on 30 August 2018 as part of
Hunting's strategic planning. The Commillee reports
directly to the Board and its members align with the
reporting segments introduced in 2017, Members of the
Executive Commitiee are noted on page 58.

Governance Framework — Gompany Board
and Committees

Board of Directors
Nomination Rom n Audt
Commitiee Col z Cemmitiee
Execulive
Commiitee

The Executive Committee meets four times a year

and members of the Committee penodically prasent to
the Beard, providing a detailed cverview to the Directors
on the business strategy for each region of the Group.

Board Composition and Diversity

During the year, two non-executive Directors retired from
tha Board after nine years of service to the Company.
John Nichelas retired in Aprll, also stepping down as Chair
of the Audit Commitlea. John Hofmeister retired as Senior
Independent Director and Chair of the Bernunaration
Committee in August.

Recruitrent of new Ditectors commencad in H2 2017.
The Board was keen to maintain the very strong industry
knowledge and representation within the skills prafile of
the Directors, which led to the appointrnent of Keith
l.ough, who sits on the boards of a number of UK listed
exploration and praduction companies. Following John
Holmeister's retirement, Keith has been appointed Senior

29,

Percentage of female Directors
on the Board




independent Director. Carol Chesney was appointad
alongside Keith in April 2018 and was appointed Chair of
the Audit Cammittes, following John Nicholas's refirement.
Carol is a qualified Chartered Accountant and Chairs the
Audit Committees of twa other FTSE 350 companies and
brings strong financial and UK governance expertise to
the Board. Additlonally, Annell Bay has been appointed
Chair of the Remuneration Committee, following John
Hofmelster's retirement. Annell has been a member of the
Committes since 2015.

The Company's Directors now include two fermale
members, representing 29% of the Board.

Board Evaluation

During the year, the Board undertook its third externally
facilitated performance and effectivenass evaluation,
Recommendations raised from the process have been
discussed by the Beard for implementation.

External Auditors Rotation

After nearly 30 years, PricewaterhoussCoopers LLP will
retire as auditors to the Group at Hunting's AGM on

17 Aoril 20119, following an audit tender completed in 2017
which led to the selection of Delaitte LLP. Delktte's
appointment will be tabled for shareholders’ approval at
the AGM. Deloilte has attended a number of meetings
of the Audit Committee during 2018 as transition
arrangements were implemented. On behalf of the
Birectors of the Company and its shareholders we thank
PwC for their excellent work over this long pericd of time.

99..

Shareholder approval for 2018
Directors’ Remuneration Policy

Remuneratlon Policy

On 18 April 2018, sharehoiders approved, with 4 85%
vote in favour, a new Directors’ Remuneration Policy,
incorporating changes which better align Hunling's
rernuneration framework with best practice UK
governance principles, The annual bonus for the executive
Directors now Incorporates a bonus deferral mechanism
by shara retention, whils the Hunting Perfermance Share
Plan has a two-year mandatory holding psried for all
vested shares for awards granted from 2018, giving a total
of a five-yaar cycle from grant to final award.

100-.

Compliance with the
2016 Code

New Governance Developments

With the publication of the naw UK Corporate Governance
Code in July 2018, the Board of Hunting Is considering
naw governance procedures to enhance stakeholder
engagement and comply with the new requirements. As
part of these new arrangements, Annell Bay has baen
appointed the designated non-executive Director for
employes engagement, as recommended by section 1,
provision 5, of the new 2018 Code. Annell will be working
with the Group’s Chief Executive and Chief Human
Resources Officer 1o develop Initlatives and appropriate
Board reporting to address this important area, Further,
o Aicelpsneas in the 21109 Annyal Ropnort are planned
to enable the Company to report its compliance with the
new Cade.

On behalf of the Board, | would iike to thank all shareholders
and stakeholders for their support over the past year.

John {Jay) F. Glick
Chalrman

28 February 2019
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Board of Directors and Company Secretary

John (Jay) F. Glick Arthur James (Jim) Johnson
Non-execufive Chairman Chief Executive

Natlonality Nationality

American, American,

Length of service

4 years; appointed to the Board as a non-exesutive
Director In 2015. in 2017, Jay was appointed non-
executive Chairman.

Skills and experienca

Jay was formerly the president and chief executive officer
of Lufkin Industries Inc and, priorfo that, held aevaral
senior management roles within Cameron Internatonat
Carporation.

External appoinimentis

Jay Is currently a non-executive director of TETRA

Langth of sarvice

27 years; appointed to the Board as a Director and Chief
Executive in 2017

Skills and experience

Jim held sanior management positions within Hunting
from 1992 up to his appointment as Ghief Operating
Officer of the Group in 2011, In this role he was
responsibla for all day-to-day operational activities of the
Company Jim is a member af, and Chairs, the Executive
Comprittes.

External appeointments

Technologies Inc. None.

Committee mambarship Gommittee membership
Nomination Committee (Chair) and by invitation. By invitation.

Pefer Raose Annell Bay

Finance Birector Non-executive Director
Nationality Nattonality

British. American.

Length of service

22 years, appointed to the Board as Finance Director

in 2008,

Skills and experience

Pater is 8 member of the Institule of Chartered
Accountants of Scotland, Befote joining Hunting he held
senior financtal positions with Babcock International and,
prior to that, spent several years with PwC working in the
UK and Hong Kong. Peter is a member of the Executive
Commitiee.

External appointments

None.

Committee mambership

By invitatien.

Lenagth of service

4 years; appointed to the Board as a non-executive
Director in 2015 and was re-appointed for a second
three-year term in February 2018, On 30 August 2018,
Annell was appointed Chair of the Remuneration
Committes.

Skills and experience

Annell was formerly a vice-president of global exploration
at Marathon Qil Corporation and, prior to that, vice-
prasident of Americas Exploration at Shall Exploration
and Production Company.

External appointments

Annell is currently a non-executive director of Apache
Corporation and Verisk Analytics Inc.

Committee membership

Nomination Committee.

Remuneration Committee (Chair).

Audlt Committee,
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Garol Chesney
Non-executjve Director

Richard Hunting C.B.E.
Non-executive Directar

Mationality

Joint American and British citizenship.

Langth of service

1 year; appolnted ta the Board as a non-executive Director
and Chair of the Audit Comitlee on 23 April 2018,
Skills and experience

Carol is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, Mrs Chesney was
formerly the Group Financial Controfler and, latterty, the
Company Secretary, of Halma PLC,

External appeintments

Nationality

British.

Length of service

45 years; efected an executive Director in 1989 and was
Chairman from 1991 tc 2017. In 2017, Richard rotired
as Chairman, and remains on the Board as a non-
independent, non-executive Ditector.

Skills and experience

Richard has previously held a variety of management
positions arcund the Hunting Group.

External appointments

Catciis curently a noti-exscalve directon of Hamshan ple None

and Biffa plc. Committee membership
Committee membership By invitation.

Nomination Gommittee.

Remuneration Committee.

Audit Comrnittee {Chair).

Kgith Lough Ben Willey

Senior Independent Non-executive Director Company Secretary
Nationality Nationality

British. British

Length of service

1 year, appointed to the Board as anon-executive Diractor
on 23 Apil 2018 and appoinled Senior Independent
Director on 30 August 2018,

Skills and experience

Keith was formerly the non-executive Chairman of Gulf
Keystone Petroleum ple and previously held a number

of executive positions within other energy-related
companies ineluding British Energy plc and LASMO ple.
External appointments

Keith is currently a non-executive director of Cairn Energy
ple, Rockhopper Exploration ple and the UK Gas and
Etactiicity Markeots Authority.

Gommilitae membearship

Nomination Committee.

Remuneration Committee.

Audit Commitiee.

Length of service

9 years, joined Hunfing in 2010 and was appaointed
Company Secretary in 2013.

8kills and experience

Ben is a Fellow of the [nstitute of Charterad Secretaries
and Administrators. He was formerly a partper at
Buchanan, a WPP company and, prior to that, worked
in investment banking with Evolution Securities plc.
External appointments

None.

Cammittee membership

Audlt Committee (Secretary),

Nominafion Committee (Secretary).

Remuneration Committee (Secretary).
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Executive commitiee

Rick Bradiey
Chief Cperating Officer

Randy Walliser
Managing Director -
Canada Operations

Danief Tan
Managing Director -~
Asia Pacific Operations

Nationality

American.

Length of service

8 years, jomed Hunting in
2011 and was appointed Chief
Operating Officer in 2017.

Nationality

Canadian.

Lenath of service

Joined Hunting and appointed
Managing Director in February
2018,

Nationality

Singaporean.

Length of service

11 years; joined Hunting in 2008
and was appointed Managing
Director in 2011.

Jason Mal Bruce Ferquson
Managing Director— Managing Director —
Hunting Titan Europa Operations
Nationality Nationality
Armerican. Britich,

Length of service

4 years; joined Hunting in 2018
and was appolnted Managing
Director in 2017,

Length of service

25 years; joined Hunting in 1994

and was appointed Managing
Director in 2013,

Scott George Sean 0'Shea

Managing Direcior — Managing Direcior —

US Operations Middle East & Africa Operations
MNationality Nationality

American. Irish.

Length of service

9 years; joined Hunting in 2010
and was appointad Managing
Director in 2011,

Length of service

22 years; Joined Hunting in 1997

and was appointed Managing
Director 1n 2013,
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Corporate governance report

Compliance

The Board of Hunting PLC has adopled governance
principies aligned with the 20116 UK Gorporate
Governance Code {the "Code™), which can be found at
www.fre.arguk. The Company is reporting its corporate
governance compliance againat this Code.

Hunting becams fully compliant with all the pravisicns
of the Gode in the year, following changes ta the
compositicn of the Audit Commuittee In Aprit 2018,

Fellowing the publication of the revised UK Corporate
Governance Code in July 2018, the CGompany is
establishing Initiativas to address the additional
requirements of the Code. Hunting will be reporting its
campliance with the new Code in its 2019 Annual Report.

Governance Framework

Subject to the Company's Aicles of Association, UK
legistation and any directicns prescribed by resofution
at a general meeting, the business of tha Company is
managed by the Hunting PLC Board. The Board is
responsible for the management and strategle direction
of the Company and to ensure Its long-term success,
as prescrined by UK law,

The Board has threa man committees 1o which it
delegates govarnance and compliancs procedures: the
Nomination Committes, whose report can be found on
pages 66 and 67, the Remuneration Committee, whose
ranart ~an he favnd An nanes AR tn R5 and the Audit
Committes, whose report can be found on pages 86

fo 80,

An Executive Committes compnising of the executive
Directors and Managing Dircctors of each segment of the
Group was formed on 30 August 2018 and detalls of its
operation are noted on page 62.

Responsibilities of the Board

The Beard of Hunling PLGC has clearly defined areas of
responsibility, which are separate to those of the
Chairrnan, executive management and of the Committees
of the Board, The Direclors approve the straleglc aims
and objectives of the Company, as sel by executive
management, and approves all major acquisitions,
divestments, dividends, capital investments and annual
budgets.

The Board has overall leadership of the Cempany, setting
the values of the Runting Group and providing a strong
tone from the top, fo which all businesses within the
Group and its employees are encouraged to adopt.

The Directors moniter Hunting's trading performancs,
including progress against the Annual Budget, reviewing
monthly management accounts and forecasts, comparing
forecasts to currenl market consensus and reviewing
other financial matters. They review and approve all public
anncuncements, including financial results, trading
stalements and set the dividend policy of the Group,

The internal control and rilsk management framework
and assoclated procedures are reviewed by the Board,
however, key monitoring procedures are delegated to the
Audit Gommittee,

There Is a clear division of respoenaibilities belween the
Chairman and Chief Executive, as noted i the fallowing
tables:

Responsibilities of the Chairman

— lead and build an effactive and balanced Board;

— chair meetings of the Board, ensuring agendas
and materials are {1t for purpose;

- ensure the Directors are pravided with accurate,
timely and relevant information;

— encourage good dialogue between all Directors,
with strong contributions encouraged from all
Board members;

~ mest the nen-executive Directors withou! the
exacutive Directors present;

— discuss training and development with the non-
executive Directors,

— arrange Birector induction programmes; and

- arrange an annual board evaluation and to act on
its firdinga.

Responsibilities of the Chief Executive

- rmanage the day-ta-day activities of the Group;

- recommend and implement the strategic direction
of the Group to the Board,
whality and wadeadg s Ludl wns T st
acquisitions and disposals;

-~ ensure appropriaieiniemal controls are in place;

-~ report o the Board regularly on the Group's
performance and poskion; and

- present to the Board an annual budget and
operating plan.

The Board approves all key recommendations from the
Nomination, Remuneration and Audit Cornmittees and
approves all appointments te these Committeas.

Govemnance principles of the Company are set by the
Board and key Group-level policies are reviewed and
approved by the Directors,

Board Composition

The Board comprisas the non-executive Chairman,
Chiel Executive, Finance Director, thres indepandant
non-executive Directors, one of whom s the Senior
Independent Director, and cne non-independent,
non-execive Director. Protiles of each Director are
found on pages 56 fo 57,

The independent non-oxecutive Direclors are a key
gaurce of expertise and contribute to the delivery of the
Gompany's slrategic goals.
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Corporate governance report coninued

Nan-executive Directors are chosen from the oil and gas

industry and regulatory sectors in which Hunting operates.

The expertise and competencies of ihe non-executive
Directors are noted in the table below, and underpin the
balance of skills and knowledas of the Board:

Directar Expertise

Annell Bay Upstream oil and gas, US energy
market development and US quoted
companies.

Carcl Chesney  Accounling, UK Corporate
Governance, Eihics Compliance and
UK guoted companies.

Jay Glick Cifield services and manufacturing,
U3 energy market development and
US quoted companies.

Richard Hunting UK Corporate Governance, investor
Relations.

Kaith Lough Accounting, upstream ol ard gas,
UK energy regulation and markst
development and UK quoted
companes,

The tenure of the Board, ncluding both executive and
non-exacutive Brectors, is shown In the chart below.

The average tenure of the Directors as &t 28 February
2019 is 7.4 years,

Board tenure (%)

29

<3 years 3-8 yaars > 8 yaars

Board Independence and Conflicts of Interest
As at 31 Decsmber 2018, exciuding the Chairman,

the Board compnsed 50% independent non-executive
Directors. Including the Chairman, 57% of the Board
comprises Independent Direciors.

All the non-executive Directors, including the Chairman,

have access 0 professional advisers, at the Company's
expense, to ‘Ulfil their various Board and Committee duties.

60 Hunting P1LC [ 2018 Annual Repart and Aceounts

The Group has procedures in place o manage conflicts of
interest. Each Director is required to declare any potential
cenfiicts that exist, or rmay anise, which are formally
recorded by the Company Secretary. Appropriate decislon
raking, in light of this declaration, 15 undertaken, which
could include a Director not participating in a Board
decision or vote. Each Director is required to complete a
declaration of known conflicts of interest annually.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is appointed by the Board and
supparts the Chalrman in providing all materials and
information flaws between the exccutlve and non-
execttive Directors, specifically on matlers of governance
and regulatory compliance. The Company Secretary is
also available to the Board and all its Committees for
arvice and ensures that all procedtires are fellowed.

Work Undertaken by the Board During 2018

The Board met six times In 2018, as regularly timetabled,
The attendance of the Directors at Board mestings during
2018 is detailed In the table below:

Number of meetings held 6
Number of meetings attended (actual/possible):

Annell Bay ) B/6
Carcl Chesney (from 23 April 2018) 474
Jay Glick B/6
John Hafmeister {to 30 August 2018) 4/4
Richard Hunting 6/8
e Jobesen R
Kefth Lough ffrom 23 April 2018} 4/4
John Nicholas {to 18 April 2018} 272
Peter Bose 6/6

Each Board meeting lollows a prescribed agenda and
agreed schedule of matters,

At aach maesting, the Chief Executive updates the Board
on Key operational developments, provides an cverview
of the market, reports on health and safety, and highlights
important milestones reached towards the delivery of
Hunting's straleglc objectives.

The Finance Director provides an update on the
Group's financial performance and position, banking
arrangements, legal issues, analyst discussions and
statutory reporting developments relevant to Hunting.
These topics lead 1o discussion, debate and challenge
among the Directors,
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During 2018, the standing tems and other items for
regular Board meetinga included the following business:

Feb Apr Jun Aug Dol

Standing iterns

Chief Executive Updste
Financa Director Report
Operational Reports
Quality Agsurance and HSE
Reports

Sharahclder Heﬁor-t

Other items

Annual and Half-Year Report
and Accounts

Board Evaluation

Risk Review

AGM Preparation

Trading Staternent

Strategy

Qrganisasion and Personnel

Raview, Development and

Succassion v
Annuaj_ Budget

Non-executva Director

Remuneration

Chairman/Senior Indspendent
Director investor Feadback

v Y
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v

SV RNV

ASRSAYERNEN
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N
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Directors' and Officers’ Liability Insurance

Hunting maintains insurance against certan fiabilities,
which could arise from a nealigent act or a breach of duty
by the Directors and Officers in the discharge of their
duties. This 1s a qualifying third-party indemnity provision
thal was in force throughout the year.

Boaryg Appointments

All appointments 1o the Beard are in accordancs with the
Company's Arlickes of Associalion and the Code and are
made on recammendation of the Nomination Committee,

In February 2018, Annell Bay was re-appointed for 2
second three-year term, following a rigorous evaluation
in Decembar 2017.

In April 2018, the Nomination Committes concluded a
pracess to recruit two new independent non-executive
Directors to succeed John Nicholas and John Hofmelster,
both of whom were scheduled to refire from the Hunting
Board in 2018 followng completion of nine years' service.
On 17 April 2018, the Nemination Commitles
racommended to the Board the appointments of Garol
Chesnay and Keith Lough, with the Board considering

the recommendation at its meeting on 18 April 2018.

Mrs Chesney and Mr Lough Joined the Board as Directors
on 23 April 2018, with Mrs Chasnsy being appointed Chair
of tha Audit Commiitee on the same datg, following the
retirernent of Mr Nicholas on 18 April 2018. Mr Hofmeister
retireq] from the Board on 30 August 2018, with Annell Bay
belng appointed Chair of the Remuneration Committee
and Kaith Lough being appointed the Gompany's Senior
Indspandent Director on the same date.

Mare infaormation on this process can ba fourd In the
Namination Committee Report on pages 86 and 67.

For the appointment of executive Directors, the Comipany
enters into a Service Contract with the Director, which
reflects the terms of employment, remuneraticn and
termination, taking into account country of residence and
applcable local employment laws. For maore information
on the Service Contracts of the current executive
Directors, please see the 2017 Remuneration Commitiee
Report located at www.huntingplc.com.

On appointment, each non-executive Director 1s provided
with a letter of appointrent, outlining the time commitments,
responsibifities and fiduciary duties required under
Company Law and, following Gornpany policy, are
normally appointed for a three-year term. All appointment
letters are available for inspection at the Gompany's AGM
or at Hunting’s registered office. Due to the small size of
the Hunting Board, non-executive Directors ars paid fees
that are above the UK market median, reflecting a high
fevel of time commitment required for Cempany matters.

As prescribed by tne Code, all the Directors submit
themselves for annual re-election at the Company’s AGM
and at the 2018 AGM all Directors were re-elected by
sharoholders. John Nicholas retired from the Board at the
AGM and did net offer himself for re-election. As prescribed
by the Company's Articles of Association, Carol Chesney
and Keith Lough will automatically retire and offer
themselves for re-appoiniment by shareholders at the
2019 AGM. Ail other Uirectors will aiso retire and otler
themsehes for re-election, as recommended by the UK
Corporate Governance Code.

Board Induction and Training

As part of the fermal induction process for Mrs Chesney
and Mr Lough, internal briefings were organised to
introduce key finance personnel, following their
appointments, In addition, faciity tours to the Group's
operations in the UK and US were organised in the vear,
whers key members of the Group's leadership team gave
presentations on each operating segment.

As part of the Group’s regular programme of investor
relations, Mr Lough's induction to the role of Senior
Independent Director included meeting with institutionat
shareholders in January 2019.

The Chairman also met with the non-executive Directors
throughout the year to discuss and agres, among other
matlers, training and development.

Board Evaluation

Annually, the Duectors undertake an internal annual
svaluation of the Board and #s Committees, which inciudes
completion of a detailed questionnaire on the oparation
and governance responsibilitias in raiation 1o the
Company's governance framework. Both the executive
and non-executive Directors are appraised collectively and
Individually, with the results of the process reperted 1o the
Board through the Chairman,
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Corporate governance report continued

In 2018, the Board organised its third externally facifitated
Board efisctiveness evaluation which was undertaken by
Clare Chalmers Limitedt. The process involved the review
of Board and Cemmittee papers and individuat Director
interviews, Ms Chalmers submitted the findings frem the
process 1o the Chakrman, which were reviewed by the
Board at its December meating. The Board noted these
findings, Including areas for furthar improvament, which
had been notad during the extsrnal evaluation process.
Further, this process will be repeated in 2021, Clare
Chalmers has no other connection to the Company.

Overall, the Ghairman and the Board as a whale
concluded that each Director, the Cemimitiees of the
Board and the Board niseif remained effective,

Furthermore, in December 2018 the Chairman's
performance was evaluated in a separate exercise by
the non-executive Direclors led by Keith Lough, the
Company's Senior Independent Director, The non-
executive Directors concluded that Mr Glick had been
an effechive and able Chairman of the Company,

Board Accountability

The Board has procedures in place to review all
shareholder communications, including the financial
stafements and Stock Exchange announcements i1ssued
by the Gompany. Hunting's business model and strategy
is detailed on pages 28 to 43. The Board has delegated
the responsibility of assessing whether the financial
atatements are fair hatanred and inderstandable 19 the
Audit Committee. Further datails of the responsibilities ol
the Audit Committee can be found within its report on
pages 86 to 00,

Executive Committee

The Hunting Executive Committee was formed in August
2018 comprising the executive Directors and regional
Managing Direciors of the Group. Profiles of each member
of the Executive Commiltee are found on pages 56 and
58. Under its terms of reference, which have been
published on the Hunting website, www.huntingplc.com,
the Committee meets four times a year. Key matters for
consideration by the Committee include:

- operalional reports from each Managing Director,
covering the performance of each operating segment
during the previous guarter and capital investments
currently baing undertaken,

- segmental financial performance in the year to date;

- Health and Safety performance, including
consideration of issues thal have arisen and any
reportable HSE incidents which may have accurred:

- Quality Assurance performance;

— Internal Gontrol and Risk Register review;

— Human Rascurces reports, including key data from the
previous quarter;

- {Tinfrastructure performance, cyber security, data
protection and planned Investment;

- comphance initiatives, including bribery and corruption;
and

- other legal matters.
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The Chief Executive and Finance Director subsequently
report these activities to the Board of the Gompany and
on any issues which arlse from the Executive Committee.

As noted In the Company’s Half-Year Results, afl members
of the Executive Committes are determined to be POMRs
of the Group.

Going Concern Basis and Viability Statement

The Audit Committes and Board review the Going Concern
Basis twice a year and the Group’s Viability Statement
annually, in parallel with supporting reports from the
executive Directors and Hunting's central finance function.

On 26 February 2019, the Board approved the Going
Concern Basis and Viahility Statement fer the 2018
year-end, which is detalled on page 53.

Risk Management Procedures

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for monitaring
the Group's principal risks and system of internal control
and for reviewing lts effectiveness as required by the
Code, with key authorities being delegated to the Audit
Committea. At the Board's February 2018 meeting, the
Directars completed a robust assessrant and review of
the Croup's risk management framework and the principal
risks tacing the Gompany.

Hunting's principal risks, risk management framework and
systems of internal control are reviewed by the Board
annuathy and are retailed in the Strateaic Raport on pages
44 to 52.

Annual Generaf Meeting (*fAGM”}

The AGM of the Carmpany will take place on Wednesday,
17 Aprit 2019 at The Roval Automebite Glub, 89 Pall Malt,
lLondon SW1Y 5HS, commencing at 10.3C a.m. to which
all shareholders are invited. Shareholder voting procedures
follow the provisiona of the Articles of Association and the
UK Corporate Governance Code, Including a separate
resolution on each material item of business, the avallablity
of voting via proxy and the ofler of a "vole withheld”. At the
2019 AGM, all resolutions will be voted on by way of a poll.
Further details of the resalutions and voting pracedures
are set out in the Notice of AGM.

Shareholders can vote by completing the form of proxy
sant with the Nofice of AGM, or by submitting votes
electronically via the Reglstrars’ website
www.sharevote.co.uk or via their online portfolio service,
Shareview, if they are registered as a member.
Alternatively, shares held in CREST may be voted through
the CREST Proxy Voting Service. To be valkd, all votes
must be received no later than 48 hours before the ime
sel tor the meeting.

The Directors have been authorised to allot and issue
Ordinary shares and to disapply statutory pra-emption
rights. These powers are exercised under authority of
resolutions of the Company passed at its AGM. During
the financial yvear ended 31 December 2018, 900,000
Ordinary shares were Issued pursuant to the Cempany's
various share plans.
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The Company hag authority, renewed annually, to purchase
up to 14.99% of the issued share capital, equating to
24,609,623 shares. Any shares purchased will either be
cancelled, and the nurmbaer of Ordinary shares in issue
reduced accordingly, or held In Treasury. As noted below,
through the Group's Employea Shara Trust, 750,000
Ordinary shares were purchased In the year, under this
authority.

These powers are effective for 15 months from the date of
shareholder approval, or up to the next general meeting
whera new authcrities are sought. The Directors will be
seeking a renewal for these powers at the 2018 AGM,

Employee Share Trust

The Group operates an Employee Share Trust {the “Trust)
as a vehicle to salisly share opiions and awards granted
1o employees who participate in the Company's share-
based incentive schermes, At 31 December 2018, the
Trust held 1,247,672 Ordinary shares in the Company
{P017 — 656,808). The Trust has a poficy to purchase
shares in the market or subscnbe for new shares to
parlially meet the future requirements of these ncentive
schemes.

In April 2018, tha Trust subscribed for 800,000 Ordinary
shares at the nominal value of 25 pence per shae, to
partially satisfy vested awards under the HPSP,

Further, In November 2018 the Trust purchased 750,000
Nrdirany sharee in the Camnany tn acticfu fit e HPSP
share vestings,

in accordance with Listing Rule 9.8.4C, the Trust has
walved all dividends payable by the Company and voting
rights in respect of the Ordinary shares held by it. Total
dividends waived by the Trust in the financial year o

31 Decamber 2018 were $21,255 (2017 ~ $nil), based on
531,482 Ordinary shares being subject to this waiver.

Non-Financial Information Directive

In compltance with the European Union®s Non-Financlal
Information reporting directive, the Group has provided
relevant information throughout the Strategic Report, The
Directors’ Report on page 65 provides detalls on the
locaticn of this information,

Shareholders

Tha Company uses & number of processes for
communicating with shareholders, including Stock
Exchange announcemanis, tha annual and half-year
reports, webcasts, rading statements and the AGM 1o
which all sharsholders are invited. In addition, the Chief
Executive and Finance Director meet on a one-to-one
basis with principal sharcholders at least twice a vear,
followtng the Group's annual and half-year results, or
when requested to update them on Group performance
and strategy. The Board is in turn briefed by the Chief
Executive, when appropriate. on matters raised by
sharehalders.

In January 2018, the Chairman and Senior Independent
Director met with a number of sharehalders to discuss
sirategy, governarice and other matters. Ther comments
were passed on to the Board by the Cnalrman The
nan-executive Directors are also avalabls to meet
sharehoiders.,

The Company’s major shareholders, as at 31 Decernber
2018, are lisled below:

Farcantage
humbar of ot issued
{Qrdinary COrdinary

Noles shares shares
Franklin Resources group
of companies 12,291,521 7.4
Hunting Investrments
Limitec {1/4/5) 11,003,487 6.7
BlackRack € 5350,385 57
JP Morgan Chase & Co 8,543,374 5.2
Slaley Investments
Limited b) 6411,679 3.9
Lazard Asset
Managasment 6,144,957 37
J Tralford — as frustee (e/5) 5,970,864 3.6
Dimensanal Fund
Advisors 6,967,545 3.8
Barclays group of
comparies 5,725,272 _ 35
David AL Hunting (5 194,120 o1
- as frustes (2/b) 2,549,117 1.5
-- other beneficial 3/5) 2,481,583 15
Notes:

1. Includad in this holding are 9,437,743 Ordinary shares held
by Huntridge Limited, & wholly cwned subsidiary af Huriting
Inveéstments Limited. Neither of these carmpanies 1s owned by
Hunting PLC either directly or indiractfy.

2. Aftar ehmunation of duplicate holdings, the otal Hunting family
Pomie, b zesa et st aan e af Be B ATA P Nadinase
shares.

3. Anse because David RL Hunting and hig ehildren are or could
became benaficiaries under the relevant family frusts of whch
Dawvid RL Hunting is a rustee.

4. Rishard F Hunlng (non-executive Director of Hunting PLC) and
Dawigd RL. Hunting are both directors of Hunting investrents
Limitad

5. In 2014, Huntng Investments Limited, Slalsy Irvastmants
Limiteo, certaln Hunting [armily members, ncluding Richard B
Hunting and David RL Huniing and the Hunting farnily trusts,
to which James Trafford 18 a trustes (together known as “the
Hunting Farmuly Interests”) entered Into a votlng agresment. The
valing agreament has the legal effect of tranaferring alf voting
nights of Hunling PLC Ordinary shares held by tha Hunling
Farily Interests 1o a voling committee. The beneficial ownership
of Hunting PLC Ordinary shares remalns as per the table shown
above At 28 February 2018, the Hunting Family Interas!s party
to the agreament folalied 25,388,715 Ordinary shares in the
Company, reprasenting 15.4% of the 1otal voting nghts

6. On 7 January 2019, BlackPock notified the Company that its
holding has decreased to 5.7% of the Issued share capital,
Further, on 10 January 2019, BlzckRock notified the Company
that fts holding was less than 5% of the issued share capital

Furiher information on share capilal can be found in note
30 and on page 168.

Divarsity

Hunting's approach o diversily 1s based on policies that
promote prejudice-free decision making and are focused
on ensuring the right person is attached to the fight role,
to further all stakeholder interests. The Group’s dwersity
policy is located at www.huntingple.comsenvironment-
and-sociely/our-people.aspx, The policy comymits Hunting
to buiiding a working environment in which all individuals
are able to make best use of their skilis, free from unfair
discrimination, victimisation, harassment and/or bullying,
and inwhich all appointments are based nn merit. Further,
the objectives of the policy focus on recruitment, training
and development, conditions of wark and disciplinary
procedures.
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Corporate governance report contrued

While there are no senior managemant diversity targets in
place, all recruttment policies require fair and prejudice-free
appointments, regardiess of gender.

Gender
Gender diversity data of Hunting's Board, seniar
managzment and workforce is notad helow,

Board

hale (712%4) Female (20%)
(2017 — Vale 86% - Female 1435}

Senior Management

43

Male (91%) Female (9%}
{2077 - Mala §1% Female 9%)

Workforce

2,182

Male {79%) Female (21%)
{2017 —Male 78% - Fomala 21%)

Senior management, in the contexi of the chart above, is
detined as an employee holding a senior position within
the Group, and has management oversight of a key
cperationat functlon. For further information on the
Group's workforce please refer io psge 32.
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Further, the Board has noted the recommendations of the
Hampton-Alexander and Parker Commlttees regarding
gender diversity and sthnicity. Considaration to these
recommendations will continue to be made as the Board
is refreshed over the coming years. At 31 Decamber 2018,
the Exacutive Committee and direci reports to members
of the Executive Commitiee (excluding the executive
Directors) totalled 67 employoas with a gender balance of
10% female and 80% mala,

Further, the Beard has noted the legislation to report on
the Gender Pay Gap and CEO pay ratios for companies
incorporated i the UK, Hunting confirma that none of the
Group's UK-based companias meet the reporting
thrashaids,

Ethnicity

Hunting's glcbal operating foctprint extends to 11 countries
and, at 31 December 2018, employed 2,772 pecple. The
Group remains North American focused with over 70% of
amployees from that reglon at 31 December 2018,

Qroup ethnicity (%)

|8

1]
2016 2017 20%8

North America Europe Asia Pacific Rest of World

John (Jay) F. Glick
Chairman

28 Fabruary 2018
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Directors’ report

For the purpose of section 415 of the Companlas Act
20086, the Directors prasent thelr report and the audited
{financiat statements of Hunting PLG for the year ended
31 December 2018.

The Strategic Report, incorporating the Chairman’s
Statement, Chief Exacutive’s Statement and Outlook,
Market Review, Key Performance Indicators, Group
Review, Segmental Review, Business Model and Strategy
and Risk Management is [ocated on pages 4 to 53. As
permitted by legislation, the Board has chasen to set out
within the Strategic Report some of the matters required
10 be disclosad in the Directors' Report, which it considars
to be complementary to communicating Hunting's
performance and position, as follows:

~ changes in the Group and its interests (pages 14 to 18);

- future developments (page 7);

- risk management, objectives and policies
(pages 44 to 47);

- bribery and cormuption {page 34);

~ employess {page 32);

- ethnicity and diversity (pages 63 and 64); and

- greenhouse gas emigsions and environmental matters
(page 37).

Up to the date af this report, thera have been no post-
balance sheet events that require disclosure,

In addition, information relating to the Directors’ indemnity
nrrvininre ot fhetantial ahareholder intereste znd Adividand
waivers, as requirad by legislation, are disclosed within
the Corporate Governance Report on pages 59 to 64,
Investor-related information and further disclosures
ncorporated into the Directors' Report, such as
infermation relating to the AGM, dividends, Directors'
powers and interests, share capital, political donalions,
research and development and significant agreements,
can be found within the Sharehoiders' Information section
located on pages 167 to 169,

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annuat
Report and the financial staterments in accordance with
applicable taw and regulation. Company Law requires the
Directors to prepare financial statements Tor each financial
year. Linder that law the Directors have prepared the Group
financial statements in accordance with [nternational
Financial Reporting Standards ("iFRSs") as adopted by the
European Unicn and parent Company financial statermenits
in accordance with IFRSs as adepted by tha Furepean
Union. Under Company Law the Directors must not approve
1he financiai statemants unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and parent Company and of the profit or loss of the Graup
and parent Company for that period. In preparing the
financial statements, the Directors are required to

— sclect suitable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently,

— state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union have been followed for the Group
financial statements and IFRSs as adopted by the
Eurepean Linion have been followed for the Company
financial statements, subject to any matenal departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

— make judgements and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and

— prepare the financial statoments on the going concern
basis unless it is inappropriate to presumne that the
Group and parent Company will continue in business.

The Directors are also responsibie for safeguarding the
assets of the Group and parent Company and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and other irrequiarities.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adeguate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Group and parent Company's transactions and
disciose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Group and parent Company and enable
thern to ensure that the financial statements and the
Directors’ Remuneration Report comply with the
Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group financial
statements, Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and
mtegrity of the parent Company's website. Legislation
n the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissermination of financial statements may differ from
legislation in other junisdictions.

Directors' Confirmations

The Divectors consider that the Annual Report and
Accounts, taken as a whole, s fair, balanced and
understandable and provides the information necessary
for shareholders to assess the Group and parent
Company’s position and performance, businass model
and strategy, Each of the Directors, whose names and
functions are listed in Board of Directors confirm that,
0 the best of their knowledge:

— the parent Company financial statements, which have
been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted
by the European Union, give a true and fair view of the
assels, liabilities, financial position and profit of the
Company,

- the Group financial statements, which have been
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union, give a true and fair view of the assets,
liabilities, financial position and profit of the Group; and

- the Strategic Report includes a fair review of the
developmeant and performance of the business and
the position of the Group and parent Gompany,
together with & descriptian of the principal risks and
unceriainties that it faces.

In the case of each Direclor in office at the date the
Directors’ Report is approved:

— so far as the Director is aware, there is na relevant audit
information of which the Group and parent Company's
auditors are unaware; and

- they have taken all ine steps that they ought to have
taken as a Director in order 1o make themselvas awarg
of any rodevant audit informalion and to establish that
the Group and parent Company’s auditors are aware
of that information,

By arder of the Board

Jen Wby

Ben Willey
Gompany Secretary

28 February 2019
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Nomination committee report
For the year ended 31 December 2018

in 2018 the Committee’s work focused
onh the recruitment of new non-
executive Directors, following the
planned retirement of John Nicholas
and John Hofmeister, both of whom
were appointed in 2009.

After a thorough search process, we
were pleased to recommend to the
Board the appointment of Carol
Chesnay and Keith Lough, which
maintains the Board's strong
governance and industry expertise
required for the Company as it
continues a new growth phase.

John {Jay) F. Glick
Chair of the Nomination Committee
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Composition and Frequency of Mestings

The Committesa currently comprises the Company
Chairman and all the independent non-executive Diregtors
of the Company and (s chaired by John {Jay} Glick.

On 18 April 2018, John Nicholas retired from the Board
and the Cammittee following cornpletion of nine years'
service as a Director,

On 23 April 2018, Carol Chesney and Keith Lough joined
the Committae following their appointments as Directors.

On 30 August 23018, John Hofmeister also retired from the
Boerd and the Committee following coempietion of nine
years' service as a Director,

The Committes maets as required to discuss succession
matters and to ensure that an orderly process of Board
rafreshing occurs,

in 2018, the Cominittee met three times, in February and
April to consider and recommend new independent
non-executive Directors, and in December to review its
effectiveness.

Tha Committee operates under written tarms of refsrence
approved by the Beard, which are pubfished on the
Caompany's website at www.huntingplc.com.

Attendance at the Nomination Committee meetings during
the vear is detailed in the table below:

Mambsr Irnsitation
Number of meetings held 3
Number of mestings attended
(actual/possibie):
Annell Bay 33 -
Carol Chesney {from 23 April 2018) 1 -
Jay Glick (Committee Chair) 373 -
John Hofmeislter {to 30 August 2018} 2/2 ~
Richard Hunting - 3/3
Jim Johnson Co- 3/3
Keith Laugh {frem 23 April 2018) 11 -
John Nicholas {to 18 April 2018) 212 -
Peter Rosa - 3/3

Re-appointment of Non-executive Director

In February 2018, Annell Bay was re-appointed for a
secand three-year term, following an evaluation process
completed in Dacember 2017,

Appointment of New Men-executive Directors

in 2018, John Nichalas and John Hofmelster were bath
due to retire as Directors, iollowing completion of nine
years' service.

In anticipation of this, in H2 2017 the Commiltee
commenced a process to recruit new independent
non-executive Directors to succeed Messrs Nichclas
and Hofmeister.
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As part of the process, the Committee reviewed the skills
profile required for the Company as the Group commenced
a new phase of growth, following the industry downturn
within the oil and gas sector, and alsc as the Group
contemplated new govemnance recommendations
published by the UK's Financlat Reporting Council,

The Committes concluded that the Board nesded to
maintain its strorg Industry experlence, given that the
Group had successfully navigated the market depression
between 2014 and 2017 and was now poised for new
growth in ita core markets. Additionally, the Committes
reviewed the regulatory enwironment in which Hunting
opefated In, and also concluded that maintaining strang
UK governance expertise was also imperative, as new
initiatives were published in the year, to which Hunting is
looking to comply fully over time., The Committes also
recognised the need to maintain strong and relevant
financial experlise, as recommended by the UK Corporate
Governance Code.

The Gommittee engaged Boyden Associates to assist
with tha selection process, which culminated in candidate
nterviews with members of tha Nomination Commuittes
and with the wider Board. Boyden Assaciates does not
hava a connection with the Company aside from this brief.

Following a thorough process, the Nomination Gommittea
recommended {o the Board the appontment of Carol
Chesney who brings strong financial and governance
synenenca  riven her Direptoarehine gt dwn nther FTSE R0
companies, namely chairing the Audit Committess of
Ramshaw plc and Biffa ple. Keith Lough was also
recommended to the Board for appointment, given his
strong sector and financial experience, in particular with UK
listed oif and gas exploration and proguction companies.

wrs Chesney and Mr Lough were recommended for
appointment by The Committee to the Board at its meeting
on 17 Aprl 2018, with both Direciers joning the Board on
23 April 2018. Mrs Ghesney assumed the role of Chair of
the Audit Commitiee from this date. Mr Lough was
appolnted Senior Independent Director on 30 August 2018.

As noled elsewhere, Annell Bay was appointed Chair of
the Remuneration Committee on 30 August 2018,

Senior Management Davelopmeant and Succession
The Group appointed a glebal Chief Human Resources
Officer guring 2018, The new appointment will assist tha
executive Directors in furthering sentor management
development and succession, ensuring an appropriate
pipelre of talent exists within the Group.

The Chief HR Cfficer will also develop reparting
praceduras to comply with the new principles contained
within the revised UK Corporate Governance Code.

Board Evaluation

As noted in the Corporate Governance Report on pages
81 to 62, the Board undartook an externally facilitated
Board evaluation in 2018. The procass concluded that the
skilis and experience of the Directors was strong and
appropriate for the size and profile of the Group,

Committee Effectiveness

At its December meeting the Committee reviewed ks
terms of reference and considered its effectiveness,
concluding that its perfaormance had been satisfactory
during the vear.

Gender Diversity

I 2012, the Company issued its gender diversity policy
for new Director appointrments. Hunting's diversity poticy
commits the Group to:

— an embedded culture of equal opportunities for all
employees, regardless of gender;

- require external recruitment consuliants fo submit their
diversity policies to the Group prior to appoinkment,

— ensure that external consultants appointed by
Hunting provide candidate shortlis{s comprising of an
appropriate gender balance for consideration by the
Nominaticn Committoe;

- atarget of at least one female Director of the Company
when practicable; and

~ a periodic review by the Nomination Commitiea
of its progress In complying with best praciice
recommendatians,

Following ths appointment of Annell Bay in 2015 and Carod
Chesney in 2018, Hunting’s Board comprises 28% of
fermnale Directors, which is closa to the recommended UK
gender target of 33%.

John (Jay) F. Glick
Chair of the Nomination Committee

28 Feoruary 2018
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Remuneration committee report
Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

In 2018 the Group received strong
backing from shareholders for its
revised Directors’ Remuneration
Policy, which has been applied
throughout the year.

The levels of remuneration paid for
the vear reflect a strong return to
growth for the Company, given the
matket momentum in the onshore
US shale basins, leading to a
financial performance well ahead
of the Board’s expectations, and
exceeding the annual targets set
at the start of the year.

The Committee will continue to listen
to, and take into account, comments
from shareholders and market
regulators regarding management
remuneration and seek to match
reward with performance.

Annell Bay
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
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Letter from the Chair of the Remuneration
Committee

Introduction

On behalf of ihe Board | am pieased to present my flrst
Remuneration Committee Report to shareholders for the
year ended 31 Decamber 2018. This letter provides a
summary of the work completed by the Remuneration
Committes (“the Committee” in the year, including the
major decisions taken ag it monitors executive
remuneration and provides details on how the approved
Directors' Remuneration Folicy was implemented during
tha year. Jobn Hofmeister retired as a Director in August
2018 and on behalf of the Board, | would like to thank
John for his strong contnbution as a Director, particularly
over the past four years as Chalr of the Remuneraticn
Commities, where significant progress has been made in
aligning Hunting's compensation practices te the evalving
UK governance environmernt

Major Decisions Made by the Committee
Implementation of new Policy: At the Company's
Annual General Meeting ("AGM"} in Aprii 2018, the Directors
tabled a revised Directors’ Remuneration Policy, which
reflected a full review of the remuneration framework
opsrated by the Company. New aspects of the revised
Peilcy include the introduction of an annual bonus deferral
mechanism, wheteby a proportion of the annual bonus
awarded to the executive Directars is converted into
Ordinary shares in the Company, to be held for two years.
The operation of the Hunting Performance Share Plan
("HPSP™ was also amended 1o Incorporate a two-year
holging period on post-tax vested shares, which now
means that Huntlng's long-term incentive arrangements
operate on a five-year time frame, as recommended by
the new UK Carposate Governance Code The Committee
has also amended the performance conditions of both
the annual bonus and HPSP, with a personal performance
component being added to the annual benus and a
sirategic scorecard being added to the HPSP. Shareholders
gave strong support to these proposals, with the resalution
to approve the new Palicy receiving 88% votes in favour
at the AGM.

Basa salary and fee review: In April 2018 the
Committee reviewed benchmarked base salary data,
preparad by Mercar/Kepier {“Kepler”), Foliowing
discussion, the base salary of the Chief Executive
remained unchanged and the base salary of the Finance
Director was increased by 3%, with effect from 1 Aprit
2018. This change in base salary was in line with the
changes 1o Hunting's workforce pay for 2018, All future
salary reviews will now take place in April each year.

In December 2017, the Board reviewed the fees paid to
tha non-execitive Diractors and the Chairman and
{ollowing discussion, feas remamned unchanged for 2018,
In Cecember 2018 the Committee reviewed benchmarked
fee data for the Company Chairrnan and agreed a 5%
Increase to his annual fee to £183,750, effective from

1 January 2018, This was in line with the proposed
average increase in workforce salanes,

it v c——




Annual banus: The Group’s resuits continuad to improve
during 2018, driven by high completion activly levels
within the US onshore shale basins, These acilvity favels
led ta strong increases in profitabllity within the Hunting
Titan and US opsrafing segments of tha Group, with the
annual targels set In December 2017 being materially
excesded. For the year ended 31 Decamber 2018,
undertying profit before tax ("PBT"} was $104.0m and
underlying refurn on capital employsd {*ROCE") was 8%.
The annual targeis agreed by the Board contained within
the Group's Annual Budget were PBT of $49.0m and
ROGE of 4%. As both these key performance indicators
exceeded the maximum targets set for 2018, a full vesting
of these performance conditions was recorded.

Following the introduction of the revised annual bonus
pian arrangsments in April 2018, 20% of the bonus is
basext on the delivery of personal performance objectives
set by the Gemmittee. In February 2018 the Committee
met {o discuss the delivery of these targets and as noted
on pages 80 and &1 of this report, the Committee agresd
that each executive Director had delivered on their
respective personal objectives in full and agreed to award
a full vesting of this portion of the annual bonus.

Mr Johnson was therefore awarded an annual bonus of
$1.4m and Mr Rose was awarded $651k, As required by
the amended Diraclors’ Remuneration Poficy, 256% af the
post-tax value of these awards will be corwverted to
Ordinary shares in the Company to be held by the

mvaettive Dirertare 4or 2 mininom of bwo weare

Vesting of HPSP Awards: On 25 February 2018, the
Committee reviewed the linal vesting report for the 2016
share awards granted under the HPSP. Given the
improved profitatility of the Group through the three-year
parformance peried, a full vesting of the £EPS performance
condtion was recerded. Further, a nll vesting of the RCCE
performance condition was recorded. The TSR
performance condition was independently measured
resulting in & top quartile ranking against Hunting's peer
group comprising of 14 companies leading to a ful vesting
of this portion of the 2016 grant.

Peter Rose, as an executive Director on the date of grant,
will bs entitled to receive 111,328 Ordinary shares on

11 March 2019, being the vesting date of the 2016 award,
which refiects a 66.7% vesting of the performanca
conditions noted above.

Jim Johnson, serving as Chief Operating Officer below
Board on lhe date of grant, was subject to a fourth
performance condition, based on the Group's internal
manufacturing reject rate performance over the three-year
period. This recorded a {ull vesting. Based on this
outcome, Mr Johnson’s 2016 award will record a 75.0%
vesting, and he wil! be entilled 1o receive 179,745 Ordinary
shares on the vesting date

Dividends paid by the Company during the performance
period, totalling 8.0 cents per share, will be added to the
final award, In Iine with the rules of the HPSP.

2018 AGM Result

As noted above, at the Company's AGM held on 18 April
2018, the Comparny received 93% votes in favour of the
resolulion Lo approve a new Directors’ Remuneration Policy.

Fhe Company also received 78% votes in favour of the
resolution to approve the 2017 Annual Report on
Remuneration. The Committee and the Hunting Board has
considered the votes received in respect of the Annual
Raport on Remuneration, and given that the lower level
of ghareholdar support was atiributed 1o legacy
remunaration arrangements in relation to the Group's
farmer Chief Executive, the Committee considers the
matier has been fully addressed with no further actions
planned by the Board,

Context of Remuneration Awarded in 2018

The Group's strong performance in the year, as noted
above, has fed to an "Above Target” vesting of the annual
bornus and HFSE. The single figure remuneration paid to
Jim Johnson was theretore $3.7m in 2018 {2017 — $819k)
and the remuneration paid to Peter Hose was $2,1m
(P07 — &1.4m).

Activities Undertaken by the Remuneration
Committee During 2018

The Committee's principal activities and matters
addressed during 2018 are as follows:

Feb  Apr Ay Dec

Overall remuneration

Annual base salary review v

Revlew senior management

emoliments ~ -
Review total remuneration against

benchmarked data ) ~/

liems specific to annual banus
Approve annual bonus Including delivery

of personal performance largets v
Review Annual Bonus Plan Rules

Agree personal parformance targeis

for year ahead

Items specific to lohg-term
incentives

Approve HPSP vesting and new
annual grant

Review HPSP perfarmance conditions v
Review HPSP grant parformance targels v

Goavernance and other matters

Approve Annual Repart
on Remuneration

Review and approve
Remuneration Pollcy

Review govermnance voling reports v

Review AGM proxy votes

received for Annual Statement

of Remuneration and Policy v

Review Committee Effechveness

and Terms of Reference 4

ot K

Annell Bay
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

28 February 2019
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Remuneration at a glance

Remuneration Policy

A summary of the Directors’ Remuneration Policy (s
found on pages 72 to 76. The Policy was approved by
shareholders on 18 Aprll 2018, following a comprehensive
review of Hunting PLC's remuneration framework in 2017.
As part of the deliberations of the Committee, feedback
and recommendations from major institutional
shareholders were incorporated into the revised Policy,
particularty in respect to the weightings of KPls within
the short- and long-term incentive structures.

The results of the remuneration-related resolutions at the
Company’s 2018 Annual General Meeting are noted on
page 77 of the Annual Report on Remuneration, wih a
89% approval gained for tha new Policy.

Link to Strategy and KPIs

The Group’s Key Perfcrmance Indicators are noted on
pages 12 to 13 and Include financial measures Including
profit befere tax, return oty capital employed and net
eamings growth, Non-financlal measuras were
incorporated into HPSP awards in 2018 and include the
Group's Quality Assurance and Safety parformance.
Bath these metrics underpin Hunting's standing and
reputation in the global energy industry and supports
the Group's long-term strategy.

The Company’s chosen financial and non-financial KPls
are therefore central o measuring Hunting’s long-term
supcess and are fully integrated into the remuneraton

H il lewol d appi Oved Dy Snarelioluisia, g wolidinticu
also believes that these KPls fully align execulive
remuneration to the broader sharehclder experience,

Fixed Pay

Jim Johnson was appointed Chief Executive on

1 September 2017, thersfare his single figure
remuneration for 2018 reflects his first, fult year in the
role. Benefits and pension arrangements for both the
Chief Executlve and Finance Dlractor were materiaily
unchanged during the year, however, the base salary of
the Finance Director was increased 3% from 1 April
2018, in line with changes across 1he wider workforce.
Given this increase was Imolemented part way through
the year, the actual period-on-periad increase was 2,2%,

Chief Executive Finange Director
700K £323k
J_L‘Jnchanged +2% 5
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Company Perfermance Summary

The performance of the Group In the year, as nated in
the Letter from the Chalr of the Remuneration Commities,
reported a strong return to growth compared to 2017
with results significantly sxceeding the Annual Budget
agreed in December 2017.

This performance, coupled with a top quartie TSR
petformance when banchmarked to its industry pecss
pravides the basis of the remuneration paid in the year,

Annual Bonus Policy

The annual bonus combines profit before tax, return
on caplial employed and parsonal performatice targets
as the basis of the short-term awards to the executive
Directors,

Profit hefore tax ROCE
[1-year) {1-year)

4;1 049 Om 9 %

212% of target | 207% of largat

Annuai Bonus

The underlying larget PBT and ROCE performance, as
agreed by the Board in December 2017, was $49.0m and
4% respectively. Achieved PBT and RCCE was $104.0m
and 8% or 212% and 207% of budget, leading to a
maximum vesting for the financial targats. The
Committee sat personal performance iargels for both the
Chief Exagutive and Finance Director and, as noted on
pages 80 and B1 ol the Annual Repott on Remuneration,
both executives achwaved a ful vesting. Based on these
oculcomes, the honusea paid te the Chief Executlve and
Finance Directar are $1,4m and £488k ($651K) respectively,

Chief Executive Finanece Director
1,400k 488
-B% +3%

e
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Long-term Incentive Policy

The Group's 2016 long-term incentive arrangements
incorparated EPS, ROCE and TSR perfcrmance targets
over a thras-year period, dividad equally into a one-third
portion for each performance metric.

Relative 'i'SR DOiluted EPS Average ROCE
{3-year) growth (3-year] {3-year)

33% |33« 33

Hunting Parformance Share Plan

As noted above, the 2016 awards to the executive
Directors were based on the three performance
conditions The outcomes are presented halow:

TSR (3-year) EPS (3-year)

1 520/0 growth

Puued wSanday

Top quartile

b vesingg

ROGE (3-year} Internal manufacturing
reject rate {3-year)*

0.9, 0.4

0% vesling 100% vesting

¢ Jim Johnson's 2016 HPSP was granted when he was Chief
Operating Officer, with his award belng subject 10 four equally
weightad parlormance conditions,

On tnis basis, 86.7% of the share awards 1o Petor Rose
will vest and he will receive 111,328 Ordinary shares.

Jim Johnson’s 2016 award (which was granted before
his promotion 1o the Board) incorporated a fourth
performance condltion, based on the internal
rmanufacturing reject rate, which has vested in fuil,

Mr Johnson's award will therefore vest at 75.0% and
he will receive 179,745 Ordinary shares.

Dividends paid by the Company during the vesting
period, tolaling 8.0 cents per share, will be added 1o
ihe award.

Finance Director

111,328

Sharas will vest

Chief Executive

179,745

Shares will vest

Sharehaoider Experienca

Total shareholder return Is measured and ranked against
a peer group of 14 companles, all focused on upstream
oil and gas services, For ihe three years ended

33 December 2018, Hunting had a top quartile ranking
with a TSR of +79%, compared to the peer group median
performance of 16%.

Pay Scenarios

Chief Executive

16% 26% 58% 55,427
Targat % 2% 4% $3,.152K
Fixed 108% STk

Finance Director

Madmum  27% 1% A29 52,136k

Target % 24% 3% $1,354k
Faxed Fiv 1Yy STt
Flxed Annuai Bonus HPSP

Pay In the Year Summary
The remuneration outcomes for the executive Directors
are therefore as follows:

Finance Director

Ghief Exacutive

$1,438K 5877k ssatk S5T0K
$3,715k £2,112k
31,400k $651k
Fixed Annual Bonus HPSP

T his executive Director remuneration outcome is “Above Target”
in respect to the scenarfos 1able noted above,
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Directors’ remuneration policy summary

Policy Overview

The Hunting PLC Directors' Remuneration Policy (the “Policy), was approved by sharsholders on 18 April 2018, following a comprehsnsive
review of the Directors’ Remuneration framewoik in 2017, The full Policy can be found at www.huntingple.com/investors/corperate-governance.
The Policy reflects evolutionary changes consufied on with shareholders inciuding simpfification of the Annual Bonus Pizn through the removal of
the parsonal performance adjustor, and the iniroduction of best practice features such as annual bonus share deferral &nd a hokding period on
vested HPSP shares. The Palicy is designed to comply with the principles of the UK Corporate Governance Code and the Companies Act 2006
ragarding remuneration and to ensure that the Company can atiract, retain and motvate talented executive Directors to promete and deliver
long-term success for the Group. The package comprises fixed and variable incentives and is structured to link total reward to hoth corporate
and individual performance.

The remuneration structures of the Ghief Executive and Finance Director are basex on externally banchmarked data aimed at providing them
with competitive levels of remuneration. The Chief Executive’s remuneration is benchmarked to global peers who are mostly headguartered in the
US, while the Finance Director is banchmarked o UK listed companisa of similar size.

Non-exscutive Direcior fees are set at levels that take into account the time commitment and responsibilities of each rols, Given the small size of
the Hunling Board, each non-executive Direstor Is reguired to give an above avarage fime commitment to Group matters. The non-executive
Directors do not receive cash bonuses or ather variable amoluments. The fees are benchmarked to other companies of & similar size, profile and
prefitability and are reviewed annually by the executive Directors. The Chairman'’s fee is set by the Remuneration Committee. The Policy tables
which follow below provide an ovarview of each element of tha D'rectors’ Remuneration Policy.

Remuneration Gommittee Discretion

The Committee has defined areas of discretion within the Directors’ Policy framewcrk. Where discretion Is applied, the Committes wi disclose
the rationale for the application of discretion. The Committee will opera‘e the Annual Bonus Plan and HPSP n agcordance wilh the relevant plan
rules and this Policy. The Commitiee retains ciscretion as to the opera‘ion and administration of these plans as follows:

Annual Bonus

— Discretion ta adjust the amount of any bonus to reflect any fact or circumstance that the Committee considers to ba relevant, and to ensure
that the outcome 1s a farr reflection of performance,

- The assessmertt of part-year performance in the event of the exit of a Director, Including but not hmited to, reviewing forecast financial
performance of the Group and the cullook of the business in the context of wider markst conditions. Bonus awards for good leavers will
nenaralhe he e raterd fnr the nranartion of the perfarmanee perind completed

- The Committce may apply discretion to vary the percentage of an award seattied in cash or shares.

HPSP

- Selaction of the 1SR comparator group for the HPSP The Commilties reviews the comparator group annually ahead of each grant made
‘o the exaculive Directors under the PSP, The Committee also retains the discretion to make adjustments to the comparator group for
subsisting awards if it believes that a consttuent of the comparator group has distorted the vesting outcome if, for example, a constituent
company has been subject to a material corporate action.

— Tha Committee may amend the performance conditions applying to an award in exceptional circumstances if the new periarmance
condilions are considered fair and reasonable, and are nalther materially mere nor materially less challenging than the criginal performance
conditions when set. The oif and gas industry i a highly cyclical industry, where senitment is driven by oil and gas commadity prices and
activity levels across the industry. Given thal these market condilions are outside management's conlrol, the Committes retains the discretion
to partially adiust the performance targets of the performance conditions adopted for the HPSI, to align with the general market outlook,
while continuing to be a demanding and siretching incentive, Any upward discretion woulo be subject ta prior shareholder consuitation.

Other
The Committes reserves the right to make any remuneration payments and paymenits for loss of office (including exercising any discretions available
to it In connection with such payments) that are not in line with the Policy outlined above where the terms of the payment were agreed either:

- before the Policy came intc effect; or
- at atime when the relevant indidual was not a Director of the Company and, in the opinion of the Committes, the payment was not
in consideration for the individual becoming a Director of the Company.,

Relevance to Employee Pay

The Policy tablas summarise the remuneraton structure that operatas within Hunting and which alsc applies ta senior executives of the Group.
While bonus and penslon arrangements ara in place for most of 1he Group's employees, lower aggregate remuneration operaias at helow the
executive Director and senior manager level, with total remuneration driven by market compatatives and the individual responsibilitios of each role,

Consideration of Employment Conditions Elsewhere in the Group
The Committee considers the general basic salary increases for the broader employee population when determining the annual salary increases
for the executive Directors, Employees have not been consulted in respect of the design of the Company’s senior executive remuneration polley.

QOther Information

Details of the terms of employment of the Directors, including Service Contracts, Letters of Appointment, New Director Recruitment and Leaver
Palicies are focated in the 2017 Annual Report and Accounts and on the Company's website at www.huntingplc.com, Jim Jehnson and Peter
Rose have a ocne-year notice period contained within their respective Service Condracts. Further, while Mr Johnson and Mr Rose do not hold any
externai directorships, the sharehclder approved Directors' Remuneration Policy makes provision for them fo retain any fees for such directorships.
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Executive Director Remuneration Policy Table
Fixed Emoluments

Base Salary

Purpase and link to strategy Qosration

Maximum opportunity

Perfomance metrics Change to pohey for 2018

Base salaries are

set at competiiive
rates, which lake Into
account the individual’s

- Toeatiract, retain and -
reward executives with
the necessary skilis to
effectively deliver the

— There is no presaribed
maxinum annual
ncrease, Increases will
normally be gulded by

- Individuat and Group
performance are taken
into account when
determining appropriate

- None,

Geompany strategy. country of residence the general increase for salaries.

and primary operating the broader employee
Incatlon as well as pay population, but on
for comparable roles in occaslons may need to
comparable companies, recognise, for example,

— Aimed at the markat developrment in role,
mid-point, change in responsibility,

- Annual increases take and/or specific retention
inte aceount company issues.
performance, inflation
in the UK, US and
increases across the
wider warkforce,

- Relocation and
tax equalisation
agreements are also
in place for employees
working across
multiple geagraphic
jurisdictions.,

Pension
Purpose and fink to strategy Operation Maximum oppartunity Perfarmance meics Changa to polcy for 2019
-~ Penslon contributions - None. - Nene,

The Group contrioutes
on behalf of the Chief
Executive (currently
resident in the US), 1o
a US 401K deferred
savings plan and an
additionat deferred
compensaticn scheme.
— The Finance Dircclor
{currenily resident in
the UK) receives an
annual cash sum in
lisu of contributions to
a company pension
scheme.
— Additionzl banefita may
be provided to ensure
the Group remains
campetitive wittun the
relevant local market.

- To provide normal -
pension schemas
appropriate to the
country of residencs,

vary based on individual

circumstances.
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Directors’ remuneration policy summary contnued

Benefits

Purposs and ink to strateqy
~ To provide nonmal

benefits appropriate
to the country of
rasidence.

Operation

Maximum opportunty

Parformance marics.

Changs to policy for 2019

Each execudive Director
is provided with
heallhcare Insurance
and the option of a
company car with fuel
benefits,

Additions] bensfits may
be provided to ensure
the Group remains
competitive within the
relevant [ocal market.

« Thers Is no maximum
value set on benefits,
They are set at a lavel
that is comparable to
market practice.

None. - Maone.

Variable Emoluments

Annual Bonus
Purpose and fink to sirategy

Operation

~ Toincentivise annual
dellvery of financial and
oparational targets,

~ To provide a high
reward polenhal for
exceeding demanding
targets.

Awards are subject

to the Annual Bonus
Plan rules adopted by
the Board i 2610 and
amended in 2018.
Bonus begins o accrue
when 80% of the
Annual Budget targats
are achieved and
ncreases on a straught-
line basis to a maximurn
when 120% of Budget
is achieved,

For an on-target
pericrmance, defined
as actuzl resulis equal
to the Dudget, the Chief
Execulive is paid 100%
of base salary and the
Finance Diector is paid
75% of base salary.
25% of the post-tax
value of the annual
bonus is payable in
Hunting shares. These
shares are required to
be held for two years
from the vesting date.
Malus and clawback
provisions are
incorporated and

allow the Commitice

to reduce the bonus,
potentially down to zerg,
in cases of materlal
financlal rnisstatement,
calculation error or
gross misconduct.

Maximum opporturdy Perdarmarce matncs Change to policy icr 2018
~ The Chief Executive and - The annual bonus - Nonha,

Inance Director have a Is based 50% on

rmaxirnurn annual bonus underlying PBT, 20%

appartunity of 200% an undariying RGCE

and 150% of salary, and 20% on the delivery

respectively. of Personal/Strategr;

objectives.

The vesting of the
Personal/Sirategic
component 15 subject
ta a financial underpin.
Should the financial
targets not be met, a
50% vesting cap of
the Parsonal/Strategic
component will be
implemented.
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Hunting Performance Share Plan {(*"HPSP")

Purpese and link to Strategy Operation Maximurn opporfunity Performance metrics Change to policy for 2018
~ To aligr the infergsts — Tha HPSP provides ~ Chief Executive: 550% - Awards vest on - None.

of exacutives with for annual awards of of base salary. achievernent of

sharsholders in performance shares ~ Finance Director: 450% financial and strategic

growing the value of or nit cost options to of base salary. performance measures,

the business over the eligible pariicipants. — The policy limit provides measured over a

fong term. — Vesting is basedon a the Committee with three-year performance

three-year performance
period.

— On vesting, awards are
subjsct to an additional
two-year hekiing psriod
(subject 1o sattlernent
of any tax charges on
vesling}

— Awards are stbject o
clawback and malus
provisions.

~ The Committee has
the abllity to exercice
digeretion ia overrice
the HPSP outcome in

flexibility in cases such
as recruitment,

~ The Committea has set
the current award levels
for the Chief Executive
and Finance Director
of 450% and 210%
of salary, respectively
and does not currently
intend to increase
thase.

~ Achlevement of a
threshold performanca
target results in g 25%
vesting for any portion

pericd.

Financial measures
include EPS, ROCE
and TSH and recelve
an aggregate weighting
of 85% of each award.
A fourth measure, in
the form of a Strategic
Scorecard, comprising
a number of sub-
measures, having an
aggregate weighting of
15% of each award,
HPSP awards are
based 35% on ROCE,

circunrstances where of the award. 25% on EPS, 25%

siriot application of the on relative TSR and

performance conditions 15% on a Strategic

would produce a Scorecard. The

result inconsistent Scorecard measures

with the Company’s jor 2018 include

vy eration prineinles tho Qrern'e Onalityy

Any upward discretion Assurance and Safaty

would be subject outcome across the

to pnor shareholder performance period.

consuitation.
Minimum Stock Ownership Requirement
Purposa and hak to strateqy Operalion Maxynum opportunity Performanes metrics Change 1o palicy for 2019
- To encourage the ~ Directors have five ~ The target holding of None. - None

retention of shares
under award to the
exgcutive Directors.
- To align the long-
term interests of
the executive with
sharehelders,

years {0 achieve the
required holding
level from the date of
their appointrent fo
the Board.

— The Board has
discrefion to extend
thia time period if
warranted by indivictuat
circumstancas,

the Chief Executive Is
equal to the market
value of 500% of base
salary and for the
Finance Director 200%
of bage salary
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Directors’ remuneration policy summary ceninued

Non-executive Director Remuneration Policy Table

The remuneration of the non-executive Directers is designed to reflect the time and commitmen! of each to thelr respective roles.

Chairman and Non-executive Director Fees

Purpose and ink to stratagy Oparaton Maxirnurn apporiunity Ferfarmancs meircs Change to paiicy for 2018
— Toattract and retain — Fesesforthe Chairman - Fees paid to the non- - None, - None.
high-calibre non- and noen-executive exacutive Directors are
sxecutive Direclors Direclors are determined benchmarked lo other

by offering a market
compelitive fee.

by the Board as a
whole, following

receipt of external fes
Information and an
assessmerd of the

time commitrment and
respensibilities involved.

— The Chairman Is paid &
single consolidated fas
of £183,750 {$245,000)
for his responsibilities
including chairing the
Nomination Commitiee

~ Thse non-exacutive
Lerectors are paid a
baslc fee of £60,000
(£80.000).

— The Cirectors who
chair the Board's Audit
and Remuneration
Committees and the
Senior Indenerdent
Director are pald an
additional fee of £10,000
(%13,333) to reflect their
extra responsibilities.

- The non-executive
Directors and Chairman
do not participate in the
Group's share plans
and do net receive
a cash benus or any
other benefia.

UK companies of a
similar size and profia
1o the Group.

Qiven the small size

of the Board, each
non-executive Director
is expected to give an
above average time
comgmitment to Group
matters and fees are
based on this Increased
commitment.

The Company's
Articles of Association
prescribe aggregate
maximum fees for

all non-executive
Directars which 1s sat
at £750,000 (¢.31.0m).

Minimum Stack Ownership Requirement

Purpose and link o strategy Cparation

Maximum opportanity

Performancs metrics Change to policy for 2019

- Ta afign the non-
execulive Directors’
nterests with the
long-term Interests of
sharsholders,

are required to build up
a helding of shares in
the Company and have
five years to achieve
the required helding
level rom the dale of
their appointment to
the Board,

— Non-executive Directors - The target holding - None, - None,

for the Chairman and
non-executive Directors
is equal to 100% of the
annual fee,

s ll

Annell Bay
Chalr of the Remuneration Committee

28 February 2019
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Annual report on remuneration

Introduction
The pringiples set out in the Directors’ Remuneration Policy (the “Policy"), approved by shareholders in April 2018, have been applied throughout
the year, The new Policy incorporates the following changes:

~ the addition of a Perscnal Performance measura to the annual bonus, whereby up to 20% of the bonus is awarded, subject to the satisfactory
delivery of objectives sst by the Remuneration Committes (the “Committee”) during the year,

— the performance measures of the annual bonus have baen 1o weighted, following consultation with major institutional investors, with the
2018 award based up to 80% on underlylng Profit Before Tax ("PBT*); up to 20% cn Return on Capital Employed {("ROCE™), and up to 20%
on Parsanal Performance;

— the introduction of a share deferral mechanism to the annual bonus, whereby 25% of the post-tax value of the bonus is delivered to the
executive Directors in Hunting shares, to be held for two years;

~ the addition of a Strategic Scorecard to the Hunting Performance Share Plan {"HPSP™), whereby key non-financial performance indicators are
maasured, with the scarecard being up 1o 15% of the value granted annually to the executive Direclors; and

- the performance measures of the HPSP have been re-weighted, following consultation with major Institutional investors, with the 2018 grant
based on 25% -- Total Shareholder Return, 35% — Raturn on Capital Employed; 25% — Earnings Per Share; and 15% ~ Strategic Scorecard;
and the additfon: of a two-year holding period for post-fax vested shares awarded under the HPSP.

Variable emaluments granted 1o the executive Directors from 2018 have therefore been based on this revised framework, with the outcomes
recorded throughout this report. "

Hole, Membership and Attendance

The Cormmitiee is responsible for satting the remuneration of the executive Diractors and the Sompany Chairman. The Chalrman and Chief
Exaculive are consulted on proposals relating to the remuneration of the Finance Directer and designased senior management Where appropriate,
the Chairman and other Directors are invited by the Commitiee to attend meetings, but are not present wher their own rermuneration is considered.
The remunaration of the non-exacutive Directors is agreed by the Board as a whols. The fuli scope of the role of the Commitiee is set cut in its
terms of reference, which are reviewed annuafly, and can be found on the Graup's website at www.huntingple.com. The Gommittee consisls entively
of iIndependent non-executive Directors. The Committee met four times during the year and attendance details are shown in the table below.

Mamber By invitation

Numher of meetings held 4

Number of meetings attended (actual/possible):

Arnell Bay (Committee Chair — from 30 August 2018) 4/4 -
Carol Chesney (from 23 April 2018) 2/2 -
Jay Glick - 444
John Hofreister (Committee Chair — to 30 August 2018) 373 -
Richard Hunting - 4/
Jim Johnson - 4/4
Jokn Nicholas (o 18 April 2018) 272 -
Keith Lough (from 23 April 2018} 2/2 -
Peter Rose - 474

John Nicholas relired as a Direstor and member of the Committee on 18 April 2018, Carol Chesney and Keith Lough joined the Committee
following their appointment as Dirsctors af the Company on 23 April 2018, John Hofmeister retired as a Director and Chair of the Remuneration
Committee on 30 August 2018, following completion of nine years' servica, Annell Bay succeedsd Mr Hofmeister as Chair of the Committee on
the same dala. At 31 Decermber 2018 and up ta the date of signature of the accounts, the members of the Committee and thelr unexpired term
of office were:

Director Latest appolniment dale Unexpired term as at 28 February 2019
Annell Bay 2 February 2018 23 mentns
Carol Chesney 23 April 2018 26 manths
Keith Lough 23 Aphi 2018 28 menths

Shargholder Voting at the 2018 AGM
At the AGM of the Company held in April 2018, the resolutions o approve the Directors’ Remuneration Policy and Annual Report on
Remuneration received the following votes irom shareholders:

___Durectors’ Remuneration Policy Annual Repar L on Remuneration

Number of voles % of votes cast Number of voles % of voles cas'
For 134,833,218 8892 102,138,351 7511
Against 1,466,058 1.c8 32,768,195 24.29
Votes withheld 517,307 - 1,809,035 -
Total votes cast 136,816,581 100.00 136,816,681 100.00

A vole withheid is nol a vole in taw and is not Inckided in the calcutation of the % of voles cast.

The Committee and Board noted the number ol vetss against recelved for the resclution 1o approve tha Annual Report on Remuneration. Given
the feedback from sharehclders, the Board believe that the reduced leval of support related to the remuneration paid to the Group's former Ghief
Executive in 201/, which were in ine with the Directors' Remuneration Policy and the legacy clauses contained in his Service Gontract, The
Board helieves that these matters have been fully resolved, with no further actions planned.
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Annual report on remuneration continued

Director Remuneration {audited)

Fixed remuneration Varlabla remunsration
Basa Annual Total
sulary/ cash HPSP Other remuneration
fees' Benefits' Pansion® Sub total bonush awards” Subtotal remuneration™ 2018
2018 3000 5000 $000 3000 $000 5000 000 5000 3000
Executives
Jim Johnsen 700 51 126 B77 1,400 1,438 2,838 - 3,715
Peter Acse 431 a1 108 570 651 891 1,542 - 2,112
Non-executives
Annelf Bay* a4 - - 84 - - - - 84
Garol Chesney (from 23 April¥ 64 - - 64 - - - - 64
Jay Glick® 233 - - 233 - - - - 233
John Hofmelster (to 30 Augusty 71 - - 71 - - - - b2
Richard Hunting™ a0 - - 80 - - - ~ 80
Keith Lough (from 23 Aprifys 60 - - 60 - - - - 60
John Nicholas (to 18 Apriy~ 28 - - 28 - - - ) 28
Total 1,751 82 234 2,067 2,051 2,329 4,380 - 6,447
Fixed remunaration Variable remuneration
Base Annual Total
salary’ cash HPSP Other remumnaeration
fees Banefits’ Pansion®  Sub intal baonus?! awards"  Subtotal reruneration 4 217
2017 {restated) 3000 $000 $000 $060 5000 $000 $000 $000 S000
Executives
Jim Johnson {from 1 September) 233 16 42 291 467 61 528 ~ 819
Dennis Proctor (o 1 September) 524 B5 120 709 1,047 530 1,677 1,688 3,974
Patar Rose 407 32 148 587 610 191 801 -~ 1,388
Non-executives
Annell Bay 77 - — 77 - - - - 77
oy it ine - 25 - - - 128
John Hofmeister 103 - - 143 - - - ~ 103
Richard Hunting 112 - - 112 - - - ~ 112
John Micholas a0 - - a0 - - — ~ a0
Total 1,672 113 310 2,095 2124 782 2,906 1,688 6,689
Natas:

i Jim Johnson was appoinied Chisf Executive on 1 Sepiamber 2017, with an annual base salary of $700,000. During 2018, Mr Johnsan's base salary remained
unchanged. On 1 Apnl 2048, Mr Rose's basa salary was increased by 3% to £325,532 $434,037) in ine with salary increases implemsnted across tha Group. The
avaraga L:§ exchange rats in the year was 13333 [2017 ~ 1.2877).

ii. Benefits include ihe provision of healihcare Insurance, a cormpany car and luel benalits,

it. Jim Johnson's and Dennis Proctor's single figure pension remuneralion represerts Company contributions payable 1o therr US penslon arrangements. Peter Rose's
pension figure represents a cash sum In liew of Company pension contribulion, which Is set at 25% of his annual bass salary.

w. As noted in the Letter from the Chair of the Remuneration Cammiltee, the opetation of the annual ponus was revised durning 2018, foliowing approval of the new Directors”

Remunemtion Poliey in Aprii 2018, The financial targets for the banus were sel in Decermber 2017 as parl of the Annue) Budget process, and the perscnal performance

targets wera confirmed with the executive Oirectors In January 2018, Given the strong performance of the Company during 2018, and as noted below, all targels sel

with the executive Directors were met, leading to & maximum vasting of the annual borws. Jim Johnson was therefore awarded a honus of $1.4m, and Peter Rose was
awarded $851k. Under the revised rules of the Annuel Bonus Plan, 25% of the post-lax value of the bonus is to be delivered to the executive Directors in Hunting shares

In the year, Jim Johnson receved a banus totaling $468,690, reflacling his penod of service as Chief Executive from 1 Saptembar 2017 and Peter Rose receved a

bonus totafiing $6106,466. Dennis Proctor's bonus reflecled & maximum payoul, pro-rated for his pariod of service to 1 September 2017, totaling $1,047,467.

vi. The share awards grarted In 2018 under the HPSP had a three-year performance period 10 31 December 2018, The awards were measured on this date against the
performance conditions, with a 100% vesting recarded ler the EPS performance condition and a nil vesting tar the ROCE pearformance condion, The TSR
performance condHion was measured by Kepler in ina with he HPSP rules, which resulted in a 100% vesting of ihis portion of the award. As an executive Director on
the date of grant, Peler Rose will recelve 111,328 Crdinary shares based ona 68.7% vesting Jim Johnson's award was made when he was Chief Qperating Officar
and ncorporated a fourth parformance condilion based on the Group's ntarmal manufacturing relect rate, This performance condion has also vasted in full, tharefore
Mr Johnson's 2018 award will vast at 75.0% and he will receve 179,745 shares. For the purposas aof the singla ligure caleulation, the average mucd-market closing price
of £B.16 during (4 2018 has been applied 1o the number of vesled shares and converted to § using the avarage £.5 exchange during Q4 2018, being $1.2865,
Further, a cash payment equalling the dividends paid during the vesting penod has been added to the single figure calculation, totaling 8.0 cents per vested share,
The vesting date of the 2016 award Is 11 March 2018, when the final valuas of the awards will be delermined.

vii. The 2015 awards under ha HPSP had a three-year parformance peried to 31 December 2017, The awardd were measured on this date againsl the performanco
conditions, with a nil vesting recorded for the ERS and ROCE performance metrios. The TSR performance condition was measured by Kepler in ling with the HPSP
rules, which resulted in a 49% vesting of this portion of the award granted. On this basls, Jim Johnson received 24,733 shares; Peler Reso received 17,234 shares
and Dennis Proctor received 47,579 shares. The vesting date of the 2015 award was 30 Aprl 2018 The market price of a Hunting PLG Ordinary share on 30 Aprit
2018 was £8.00 and convartsd to $ using the spol rate of $1.9527. Further, & cash payment equaling the dividends paid during the vesting period was added to the
single figure caleulation, totaling 30.9 cents per vested share. The value of Jim Johnson's 2015 HPSP award Includad in the single figure table has been pro-rated for
his thme as an executive Director being 1 Septembar 2047 to the date of vesting. The 2017 single figure tabls has been restated lo reflect the actual values of the
awards mads ko the exacutive Diractors,

vili, Foliowing Dannis Proctor's retiremant from the Groug on 1 September 2017, a payment of $1,688,350 was made feflecting a payment In lleu of notice and other lega
entiffemants due under US amploymant law,

. Annell Bay was sppointed Chalr of tha Remunaration Committes frem 30 August 2018, with har 2018 {ees Increasing 1o reflact this additional responaiility.

X. Garol Chesney was appointed as a Direclor and Chalr of the Audil Commities on 23 Aprif 2018 with an annual fee of £70,000C ($23,331).

« Jay Glick was appolnted Company Chalrrman on 3 Seplember 2017 with W annust fae Increasing to £375,000 ($233,328), Mr Glick does not recelva any addiional
fea for chainng the Nomination Committae,

®li. John Holmaistar retirad as a Dreclor, Senior Independant Direclor and Ghalr of the Remuneration Commiltee on 30 August 2018,

=it Richardt Hunling retired as Company Chairman on } Saptember 2047, with his annual Jee reducing to £80,000 (80,0004,

xhv. Keith Lough was appolintad as a Director on 23 April 2018 and subsequently Senior Independent Director on 30 August 2018, with an annual fee of £70,000 (893,331,

wv. John Nichelas reatired as a Direclor and Char of the Audit Commitiee an 18 April 2018,

=
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The remuneration of Peter Rose and the non-exscutive Directors is originally denominated In Sterling and s as follows:

Fixed remuneration

Variable ramimeration

Base Annual Total

salary/ cash HPSP Other remuneration

fees Benefits Fension  Subtotal bonus awards Subtotal raruneration 2018

2018 £000 £000 £000 £000 2000 £000 R0GO 2000 £000

Executives

Peter Rose! 323 23 81 427 488 692 1,180 - 1,807
Non-executives

Annell Bay" 63 - - 63 - - - 63

Carol Chesney ffrom 23 Aprilf 48 - - 48 - - - 48

Jay Glick¥ 175 - - 175 - - - 175

John Hofmeister (to 30 August)r 53 - - 53 - - - 53

Richard Hunting™ 60 - - 60 - ~ - 60

Keith Lough {from 23 April» 45 - - 45 - - - 45

Jahn Nicholas {to 18 April)® 21 - - 24 - - - P4l

Fixad remuneralion variabla rermuneration

Base Annual Toial

salary’ cash HFP5F Other remuresation

feas Benefils Pension Sub total bomus awards  Subtotal cemuneraiion' 2017

2017 {restated) £OCO £000 7000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £O00

Executives

Peter Rose 316 25 158 455 474 141 6815 - 1,071
Non-executives

Annell Bay 60 - - 60 - - - 60

Jay Glick a8 - - £13] - - - 98

John Hofmeister a0 - - 80 - — - 80

Richard Hunting* 87 - - 87 - - - 87

John Nicholas 70 - -~ 70 — - - 70

Notes:

L InAprd 2078, Peter Rase’s base salary was ncreased (o £325,552 wilh effect from 1 Apiil 2018,

u. Annell Bay was appointed Chair of the Remunerabon Cammittee on 30 August 2018, with her annual fee increasing to £70.000,
i. Garol Chesney was appamtec a Direclor and Char of the Audit Commuttee on 23 Apnl 2018, with her annual fee sat at £70,000,
v, Jay Glick was appointed Company Charman on 1 Seplember 2017, with his annual lee set at £175,000 for this role.

v. John Hofmeistar retired as & Director, Seruor Independent Director and Chair of tne Remuneration Commutiee on 3¢ August 2018,

vi. Richard Hunting retred as Chairman on 1 Seplember 2017, with his annual fee reducing to £60,000, in ine with other NEDs,
vil. Kelth Lough was appointed as a Director an 23 Apri 2018 and subsequently Senior indapendent Biractor on 30 August 2018, with his annual fee set al £70,000.
witt. John Nicholag rebred as a Director and Chair of the Audit Gomimittee on 18 April 2018,

Salary and Fees

On 1 April 2018, Mr Rose's basea salary was increased by 3% to £325,532 ($434.032), i fine with the base sajary increases implamented across
the wider workforce of the Group. Mr Johnson’s basa salary remained unchanged during the year,

In Decernber 2018, the Board reviewed tha fee levels for non-executive Directors, which resulted in no changes being made for 2019, The
Gommittee also reviewed benchrnarked fee data for the Company Chairman and in line with the proposed base satary increases across the

waorkforce, agreed to increase his annual fee to £183,750, effective 1 January 2019,

Pensions (audited)

Jim Johnson is a member of a deferred compensaton scheme in the US, which is anticipated to provide a lump sum on retrement and
contribules to a US 401K malch deferred savings plan. Company contributions to the former arrangement were $109,500 (2017 - $42,001} in

the year, There are no additional benehls provided on early retiremnant from this arrangement. In the year, the Group contrbuted to My Johnson's
401K saving plan, tolalling $16,500 {2017 — $16,200, as Chief Oparating Officer). Mr Proctor’s pension contributions for 2017 are detailed in the 2017

Annual Report on Remuneration.

In 2018, the Company paid a cash sum In leu of a pension centributicn to Peter Rose totalling $107,717 (£80,790) (2017 - $101,485/278,811)
representing 25% of his annual base salary, In 2018, Peter Rose's pansion arrangemernls were amended following the decision by the Group to
cease contributions 1o the defined bensil section of the Hunting Pension Scheme {the “Scheme”) aperated in the UK. As a member of the
Scheme, Mr Rose contributed to the Scheme up to 30 June 2018, the date on which all Group contributions ceased. No further benelits were
built up during 2018 and dunng the vear Mr Rose transferred the valua of his benefits 1n tha Scheme to hls own pension arrangement meaning

that there are $nit benefits due from ths Scheme as at 31 December 2018 (2017 — $170,000 per annum), The Group has no further responsibility

in relation fo Mr Rose’s previous pension benetits
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Annual report on remuneration continued

Annual Performance-Linked Bonus Plan (audited)
Following the Company's Annual General Meating In Aprli 2018, the executive Director annual perforrmance-linked bonus plan was amended,
as noted in the introduction of this report. The revised operation: of the bonus plan is therefore:

Propostion of awara Performanca metic

680% Undertying Profit before Tax

20% Underlying Raturn on Capital Employed
20% Personal Performance Objectives

Delivery of Financial Objectives
The financial perforrnance targets for the 2018 annual bonus were as follows:

Jhreshold vestng Targel vesting  Maximum vesting Actual result
Underlying Profit before Tax $39.2m $49.0m $68.6m $104.0m
Underlying Return on Capital Employed 3% 4% 5% 9%

Tha financial elements of the annual bonus start to accrus when 80% of the Annual Budget targets are met, increasing on a straight-fine basis up
to t20% of the budget target. The Target Vesting vaiues are the basis of the 2018 Annual Budget agreed by the Board in Decamber 2017, [n
2018, the Group delvered an underlying profit before tax of $104.0m and an underlying return on capital employed of 9%. Based on this
culceme, the financlal targets exceeded 120% of the Annual Budget target, resulting in a maximum vesting of these components of the annual
bonus award.

Delivery of Personal Objectives
The Personal Performance ohiectives agreed by the Committee with the executive Directors with effect from January 2018 were as follows:

Jim Jehngon (Chiet Executive} Patar Rose {Finance Diveclor}

* Stategic Planning + Strategic Planning

* Portfolic optimisation including an M&A frarmnework s [mplementation of investor Relations Plans

* Development and implemeniation of the succession planning + Implementation of aystems and progess standardisation plans
oronpre wrih paraed devolaprent plane for loay indivigh jale across hiikiness 1nits with fimetables and milestones

During the year, the Gommitiee was updated on Lhe progress of the objectives noted above — and for he year ending 31 December 2018 noted
the following outcomes:

Strategic Planning and Portfolio Optimisation

In December 2017, the Board was presented a Sirategic Plan by the Group's leadership team, which focused the diraction of Hunling on targeted
sfficiencies and growth objectives, The main pillars of the Strategic Plan included focusing the Group on key product areas, which defivared
proprietary and high value iechnologies, higher facility utilisation and the removal of historic business silas, to drive higher margins to increase
profitabitity.

A restructuning of the Group's organisation was also undertaken to improve the alignrment of management with these Strategic priorities. As
nioted in the Corparate Governance Repart, an Executive Committes of the Board was formed, comprising the regional managing directors of the
Group, which enabled further alignment and efficiencies to deliver the business strataqy.

In addiion, elements of the Strategic Plan presented to the Board in December 2017 were delivered ahead of schedule, creating a greater focus
on key product lines and geagraphies, which included rationalisation of tha Group's Africa operations, including the closure of facilities in Cape
Town and Mombasa, and a performance review of ihe Group's business and products portfofio, fo enhance capital allecation,

Thess initiatives contribuled to the following cutcomas:
a. Revenue increases of 26%;
b. Gross margin Improvermnent of six percentage points tc 30%,;
¢. Strong levels of net cash - increasing $30.8m in the year,
d, Disciplined capital invesimants; and
e. Restoration of dividends - 9.0 cents per share declared.

Succession Planning
Mr Johnsan delivered a plan to the Board, which identitied key personnel for leadership development and succession, A Chief HR Off.cer was
recruted to enhance the managament development process, including alignment to the Strategic Plan.

Investor Relations
The executive Directors delivered an Investor Relations programme, which broadened the Group's investor marketing initiatives. An international
investor plan was implemented, with greater focuss on the US and key Europsan isvestor communities.

Process Standardisation

Mr Rose restructurad the Group's financial management and reporting information, delivering efficiencies with better information flows
and transparency to the Board and the investar conmuriity.
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Further, the Committee noted the strong performance cof the executive Directors through the year, foliowing the leadership changes in 2017,
providing stability to the senlor management group and the re-inforcing of the strategic direction of the Group and the corporate values, which
led i a successful performance in 2018, The Committee concluded that all Personal Performance objectives had been met durng the year,

Based on this outcome the following bonus awards were made to the executve Directors:

Praportion of énnual bonus avallabie Perlormance metrc Propartion of anrual bonus awarded
60% Underiying Profit before Tax 80%
20% . Underlying Return on Capital Employed 20%
20% Personal Performance Objectives 20%

Mr Johnson was therefore awarded a bonus of $1.4m (200% of base salary) and Mr Rose was awarded a bonus of $651k {150% of base salary).
in fine with the revised operation of the Annual Bonus Plan nules 25% of the post-tax value of the bonus Is delivered in Hunting shares, to be held
for two years, The value of Mr Johnson's shares Is ¢.$212,275 and Mr Rose's shares is ¢.$86,258, with the balance being delivered in cash.

in 2017 the annual bonus awards to the executive Directors were as follows: Mr Johnson — $466,690 and Mr Rose — $510,466.

2016 HPSP Vesting (audited)

On 31 Decamber 2018, the 2016 awards under the HPSP were measured against the performance cendilions foliowing completion of the
threa-year parformance pericd. The executive Diractor performance metrics were based on underdying dilsted EPS; underlying ROCE; and
relative TSR against a comparator group of 14 companies. A summary of the three-year FPS and ROCE performance is detailed below:

2015 Reported ihree-ysar Required threshold Raguired maximum % Vastng

{Basa year) 2016 2087 2018 periormance vasling targst vesting targal ouicome

Underlying dikited EPS 3.1¢c -45.3c 8.0c 49.6c 152% 4.0% 15.0% 100%
Underlying RCCE n/a -T.7% 1.1% 93% Average =0.9% 10.0% 17.0% Ni

The EPS performance condition records a 100% vesting, based on the growth In underlying diluted EPS during the performance period. The
average ROCE across the performance pericd was below the threshold vesting target, resulting in a nil vesting. The Total Shareholder Retum
performance condition was measured by Kepler in January 2018, follewing completicn of the three-year performance period. Hunting’s TSR
narfarmance aqainat the 14 camnarafar rompanies was then ranked resulting in an ton quartile position corresnonding fo F00% veating of the
TSR pertion of the 2016 HIPSP award. Given the full vesting of the EPS and TSR portions of the 2016 grant, the total vasting of the 2016 award 13
66.7% based on these three performance conditions, Peter Rose, as an executive Director across the whole performance period, will receive
111,328 sharaes. As noled in ihe Latter from the Remuneration Committee Chalr, Mr Johnson's 2016 award was made when he was Chlef
Operating Cfficer and not an executive Director, with his award subject to a fourth performance condition based on the Group's recorded
averags internal manufacturing reject rate across the performancs penod. The three-year outcome for this performance condition was 0.4%, with
a threshold vesting targat of 1.2% and a maximum vesting target of <0.6%, Based on this recorded performance, a 100% vesting has been
recorded, equating to a 75.0% vesting for Mr Johnson's 2016 award. On the vesting date, Mr Johinson will therefore receve 178,745 shares. A
cash equivalent of dividends paid by the Company during the vesting peried, fotalling 8.0 cents per vested share, will be added to the award on
the vesting date. The 2016 HPSF vesting has been calculated as follows:

Value of vested
shares st Value of dividends

31 December alB.0cents
No. of shares Vasting Na. of 208" pershare  Tolal award velue
granted in 2016 % shares vested § [ $
Jim Johnson 238,660 75.0 179,745 1,423,595 14,380 1,437,978
Peter Rose 166,94 66.7 111,328 881,727 8,906 890,633

As per the methodolegy fer reperting the values of urwested awards, the average price of a Hunting PLG share during Q4 2018 has been applied snd canverted to $

at the average $:f exchange rate for the penod, .
™ Jim Johnsar's 2016 award, as Chiet Operating Officar on the dale of grant, was subject to a fourth parformance conditaon which has vested in full, equating to 2 75%

vestng of his award,

Final award values wifl be determined on 11 March 2018, being the vesting date of the 2016 award, and will be reported in the 2019 Annual
Repoert on Remuneration,

2015 HPSPF Vesting (audited)

On 31 Decamber 2017, the 2015 awards under 1he HPSP were measured against the perfarmance conditions following completion of the
three-year performance period. The performance metrics were based on underlying diluted EPS; underly.ng ROCE; and relative TSR against
a comparator group of 32 companies. A summary of the three-year EPS and ROCE performance Is detailed below:

2014 Feported {lree-year Required threshold Requled maximum % Vasting

{Basa ysar) 2015 2016 2017 performance vesting targst vasling target outcore,

Underlying diluted EPS 100.0c 31¢c -45.3¢ 8.0c Negative 86.0% 15 0% Nil
Underlying RCCE 13.1% 11% -77% 1.1% Average=-1.8% 12.0% 17.0% Nil

The Total Shareholder Return periormance condilion, as set out in the award, was measured by Kepler in January 2018 following completion of
the three-year performance period. Hunting’s TSR performance against the 32 comparator companles was then ranked, resulting in an sbove
median posgition,
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Annual report on remuneration continucd

On this basis, 49% of the TSR portion of the 2015 HPSP award vested on 30 Aprit 2018, with Mr Johnson recelving 24,733 shares and Pster
Rase receiving 17,234 shares. The share price on the day of vasting was 800 pence. A cash equivalent of dividends pald by the Company during
the vesting period, iotalling 30,9 cents per vested share, was added to the award in ine with the plan rules, The 2015 HPSP vested awards are
as follows:

Valug of vested Vilue of divicends

shares at at 30.9 cents Restated

Mo, of ghares Vesting No, of 30 April 2018 per share award value

granted In 2015 % shares vested 3 & ]

Jim Johnson* 151,429 16.3 24,733 53,4756 1,698 681,173
Peter Rose 105,613 16.3 17,284 186,490 4,722 181,212

Jim Johnson's smyle figure 2017 HPSF award has besn pro-rated from his appointment as Ghief Executive on 1 September 2017, The gross value of the award was
$275,079,

The final award values were determined on 30 April 2018, baing the vesting date of the 2015 award, with the 2017 single igure table restated o
reflect the share prics on the day of vesting.

2018 HPSP Grant (audited]

On 18 Aprif 2018, the Committee approved the grant of nil-cost share awards to Jim Johnson and nlli-cast options to Peter Rose under the rules
of the HPSP. Awards will vest on 19 Aoril 2021, subject o the achievement of the performance metncs detailed on page 75 of the Policy. Details
of the grant are as follows:

Face valuy of awara Face value of

al threshold vesting haxymen award

Awardas % of  MNumber of shares of 26% vesting at 100%

Director basa salary unter grant $ $
Jim Johnson 450% 286,624 787,500 3,160,600
Peter Rose 210% 87,085 240,753 883,012

The Remuneration Committee has adopted absolute EP'S, ROCE and TSR targets for the grants to the exscutive Direciors in 2018, Following the
approval by shareholders of the revised operation of the HPSP, the Committes has also added a Strategic Scorecard as a fourth performance
4 y Loryanlt Aoz cregr angd?

Tl T Hie aWalds 10 070 GAuLubize DLEGILIE vt © suboided wgbally, el nZon e o il JUVPn oy Ol

Salety perfermance metrics published by the Croup during the performance pericd.

The targets for each performance condition are as follows:

Performanca condion’ Proportion of award Threshold vesing targat Maxri.m vesting targel
TSR 25% Median Upper quartie
EPs 25% 30 cents 50 cents
ROCE 35% 6% 15%
Strategic Scorecard

- Quality Assurance 75% 0.8 0.5
— Safety 7.5% 2.00 <1.00

i. Tobe achieved in the three years ending 31 December 2020,

The following quoted businesses comprise the TSR camparator group for the 2018 award:

Aker Solutions National Oilwell Varco Tenaris

Dril-Quip Qi States International Vallourec

Flotek Industnes Schoeller-Bleckmann Weatherforo International
Farum Energy Technologles Superior Energy Servicas Weir Group

Frank's International TechniptMC

The face value of the 2018 award s based on the closing mid-market share price on 18 April 2018, which was 785 0 pence,

Other Payments to Past Directors and for Loss of Office (audited)

Dennis Proctor, the Group's tormer Chief Executive, retired from the Company on 1 September 2017 and was lreated as a good lzavar.
With the excaption of outstanding HPSP awards, no emaluments were paid ta Mr Proctor in 2018, Mr Proctor’s 2015 HPSP grant vasted on
30 April 2018, whera he received 47,579 Ordinary shares and a cash equivalent dividend of $14,702, The value of Mr Procter’s award on

30 April 2018 was $529,557. In the year there were no payments in relgtton to loss of office.

Exeocutive Director Remuneration and the Widar Workforce
The changes to the remuneration of the Chlgf Fxeculive in 2018 compared to 2017 and those of the total workforce are as follows:

Average

Chisf Executive employes

Base salary -8% 0%
Bonus -8% +33%
Benefits -25% 8%
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Directors’ Shareholdings, Ownership Policy and Share Interests (audited)
The beneficial interests of the Directora In the lssued Ordinary shares of the Company are as follows:

At At
31 December 31 December
Diractor! 20187 2017
Executives
Jim Johnson 66,966 52,000
Peter Rose 97,028 87,923
Non-executives
Anngll Bay 11,840 11,840
Carol Chesney 2,000 -
Jay Glick 23,000 13,500
John Hafrmeister 25,000 25,000
Richard Hunting 466,583 466,583
—as trustee 924,048 924,040
~ as Director of Hunting investments Limited 11,003,487 11,073,487
Kelth Lough 2,000 -
John Nichoias V11,600 11,000

i Benoficial share intarasts are hose Ordinary shares owned by tha Direclor or spouse, which the Director is free to dispose of
n, Qr cessation date.

There have been no further changes to the Directors' snare interests in the period 31 December 2018 to 28 February 2019,

In 2014, the Group implemented a share awnarship policy that requires Directors and cettain senior executives within the Group to build up 2
holding i shares equal in value to a certain multipls of their base safary or annual fee. Tha multiple takes inte account the post-tax value of
vested but unexercised share awards or options, The requirec shareholding of each Director and the current shareholding as a multiple of base
salary as at 31 December 2018 is presented below:

Value of holding in shares Including tha
post-tax value of vested but unexercised
share awards and oplions expressed as a
W e L PR

' (3

Director = Easa .;ala}y :'Jr fee o a1 _Déz;emb;ar éma Requrrement met?
Jim Johnson 5 0.5 N
Peter Rose 2 1.4 N
Annall Bay 1 08 N
Carol Chesney 1 0N N
Jay Glick 1 0.6 N
Richard Hunting 1 37.3 Y
Kelth Lough 1 01 N

The interests of the executive Directors over Ordinary shares of the Group under the ESOP and HPSP are set out below The vesling of options
and awards are subject to performance conditions set out within the Policy on page 75

Optlons/ Ophons/ Options/
intarests at awards awards awards Interests at Exercise
1 January grantad exercisad iapsed 31 December price Date

Drrecior 2018 In year in yaar n year 2018 p__ Grantdsle  oxercisaile  Expiry date Schems
Jim Johnson 15,169 - - (15,169) - 7845 04.03.08 040311 03.03.18 ESCP
Sub total 15,169 - — (15,169 -

151,429 - (24733 (126,696) = ml 28,0415 28.04.18 - HFSP

238,660 - - - 238,660" nl 11.03.18 11.0319 - HPSP

223,533 - - - 223,633° nil 03.03.17 03.03.20 - HPSP
- - 286,624 - - 286,624" nil 18.04.18 19.04.21 - HPSP
Sub total 614,622 286,624 (24,733) (126,698) 748,817
Igtai 620,791 286,624 (24,733) [141,865) 748,817
Peter Rose 21,670 - - (21,6705 - 784.5 04.03.08 04.0311 03.03.18 ESGP
Sup total 37,670 - (21,870 -

105,513 — {723  (88,279) - ni 280415 280418 27.0425  HPSP

168,891 - - - 166,991~ nil 11,0316 11.0319 10.03.28 HPSP

115,888 - - - 115,889 nl 03,0317 03.03.20 02.03.27 HPSP
. - 87,085 — - 87,085~ nil 18.04.18 19,04.21 18.04.28 HPSP
Sub iotal 388,308 67,080 (17,284 _ (68,274) 369965
Total 410,063 87,085 (17,234) [103,049) 389,965

A Ni-cost share awards that are not yet vesled or exercisable and stilt subject to the perormance conditions being measured i1 aceordance with the HPSP rules,
- Ni-cost share options that are not yet vested or exerclsanle and still subject to the oerformance conditions being measurad ih accordance with the HPSP rules.

On 3 March 2018, the final awards under the Hunting ESOP expired. The average exercise price for the 2015 HPSP awards was 800.0 pence
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Annual report on remuneratiof continued

Relative Importance of Spend on Pay

The table below shows the relative importance of spend on employee remuneration in relation to corporate taxation, dividends and capital
investment. The choice of performance metrics represents cerlain operating costs of the Group and the use of operating cash flows in delivering
long-terrn shareholder value,

2018 2017
$m $m Changa
Employee remuneration 2545 21563 +18%
Net tax (paid) raceived" (2.8) 6.5 na
Dividends paid® 6.6 - na
Capital investmentt 30.1 11.4 1684%

L Includes staif cosis for the year (note 8) plus banafils in kind of $32.7m (2017 — $25,9m), which primarily comprises US medical nsurance cosis.
i Pleasa reler to the Congolidated Statement of Cash Flows on nage 102

Executive Director Remuneration and Shareholder Returns

The fellowing chart compares the TSR of Hunting PLC between 2008 and 2018 o the DJ Stoxx TM Oll Equipment, Senvices and Distribution
and DJ US Oil Equipment and Services indicas. In the opinion of the Directors, thesa indices are the most apprepriate indices against which the
shareholder return of the Company’s shares should be compared because they comprise other companies in the ol and gas services sector,

Total Shareholder Return
(Rebased to 100 at 31 December 2008)
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Summary Table of Chiet Executive’s Remuneration
The accompanying table details remuneration of the Chief Executive:
Single figure Annual ESOPPSPY
rermuneration' cash bonus HPSP TP
$000 %t %5 vesbng® % award”
2018 - JIm Johnson 3715 100 75 va
2017 — Jim Johnsen (from 1 September}” 818 33 4 na
2017 - Dennis Proctor (o 1 September) 3,974 67 13 na
2016 ~ Dennis Proctor a41 Nil Nit na
2015 - Dennls Proctor 1,081 Nil Ni Nil
2014 - Dannis Proctor 4,808 b7 Nil 100
2013 — Dennis Proctor 4,442 42 Nil 100
2012 - Dennis Proctor 5,497 75 66 100
2011 —Dennls Proctor 3,261 100 Nil 31
2010 - Dennls Proctor 1,876 100 100 5
2009 - Dennis Proctor 2,363 17 100 62

I, Singte figure remunaraticn reflacts the aggregate remuneration paid to the Chied Executive as defined within the Dirgctors’ Remumeration Pollcy.

ii. AnnLal cash banus percentages reflect the bonus received by the Chief Executive each year sxpressed as a percentage of maximurm bonus cpportunity.

iil. Percentage vesting reflects the % of the ESOP that vested in the financial year and the % of the PSP and HPSP where a substantial portion of the parformance pariod
was completed at the financial year-end, Messrs Johnson's and Proctar's awards have been pro-rated for thelr period of service as Chief Executive.

w. LTIP award percentage reflacts the award value expressed as a percentage of maximum awatd oppartunily received each year measured at 37 December. The LTIP
expired In 2015, with ne ‘urthar awards sutstanding.

v. 2017 single hgura data has boen restated to reflact tha final vesting values of the 2015 HPSP award.
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Implementation of Policles in 2019
The remunaration policies for 2019 will be applied in line with those detailed on pages 73 to 82 of the 2017 Annual Report and Accounts,

Salary and Fass
in December 2018, the Board concluded that theras wauld be no changes made o fees payable to the non-exscutive Directors for 2019. As noted
in the lstter from the Committee Chair, the Compary Chairman's fee was increased by 5% with effect from 1 January 2018 to £183,750.

As noted above, the Remuneration Committee will meet in April 2018 to consider base salary changes for the execulive Directors. Any changes
are likely 1o align with Group-wide base salary increases,

Annual Bonus

The annual performance-iinked bonus for 2019 will operate in line with the revised Remuneration Palicy. The Committee wilk disclose details of
the retrospective performance against the pre-set financial and personat performance targets, as the Board believes that forward disclosure of
these targets is commercially sensitive. The annual bonus weightings will remain unchanged from 2018, being §0% PBT, 20% ROCE and 20%
personal performance.

HPSP

The grants to the executive Directors for 2019 will be made in March 2018, The performance conditions, weightings and targeis for the HPSP
award will generally align with the 2018 HPSP grant, The performance targets will be included In the Stock Exehange announcement to be issued
on award of the 2019 HPSP grant. Financial targets wil be based on accounting policies befora the adoption of IFRS 16, with the targets to be
re-stated after the accounting Impact of IFRS 16 Leases has been finalised.

External Advisars

During tha year, Kepler and Peas]l Meyer and Partners were engaged by the Committee to provide remuneration consuifancy services. Both firms
were subject to a formal tendsr process prior to appointment and are regarded as independent, having been appolnted by and acting under
direction of the Committes. The total cost of advice to the Committee during the year to 31 December 2018, which was wholly related to services
provided by Kepler, was $104,727 {2017 - $131,617) end includes fees pald in respect of the review of he Direstors’ Remuneration Policy, share
plans and remuneration reporting disclosure requirements,

Compliance Statement
The Niretars’ Remioaearation Pofiov and 21R Annual Renort on Remuneration reflact the Remunearation Committtee’s reporling requirernents

under the amended Companies Act 2006 and the Large and Medium-sized Cornparnias and Groups (Accounts and Reporis) (Amendmen)
Regulations 2013.

The 2(:8 Annual Report on Remuneration, which includas the Letter from the Chairman of the Remuneration Gomimittee, detalls how the
appraved Directors' Remuneration Policy was appled durng 2018,

ok K,

Annell Bay
GChair of the Remuneration Committee
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Audit committee report
For the vear ended 31 Decemnber 2018

2018 was a year in which the Company
returned to underlying and reported
profitability and restored dividend
distributions to shareholders. While
the Group’s US-based businesses
reported good results, other regions
remained subdued and loss making.
Therefore, detailed work to monitor
possible impairments to the carrying
values of these assets continued
throughout the reporting period.

2018 was the fina! year for PwG as the
Group’s external auditors and the
Committee would like to thank them
for their professionalism and expertise
provided to the Group over many
years. Our relationship with Deloitte
has started well, with oversight work
coimpleted in the year to ensure an
orderly transition.

Carol Chesney
Chair of the Audit Commiitee
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Composition and Frequency of Meetings
The Committes currently comprises three Independent
non-executive Directors and is chaired by Carol Chesnay.

John Nicholas stepped down as a Director and Chair of
the Committea on §8 April 2018 John was succeeded by
Mrs Chesney on 23 April 2018, On the same date Keith
Lotgh joined the Gommittee on his appeintment to the
Board, and Richard Hunting stepped down from the
Commiltee, at which point the Audit Committee became
fully compliant with provision 3.1 of the 2016 UK Corparate
Governance Code. John Hofmeister also stepped down
from the Gommittee on his retiremant from tha Board an
30 August 2018. At the year-and, the Commiitee
comprised only Independent non-executive Directors,

Mrs Chesney is a qualfied Ghartered Accountant and is
considered to have recent and relovant financial
experience. Mr Lough and Ms Bay {Chalr of the
Remuneration Commitiee) have expearience of the global
enargy industry, with particular experlise within the UK
and US off and gas markets. Further detalls of the
Commitiee's experience can be found in the biographical
summaries set out on pages 56 and 57.

The Committee usually mests four times a year and
aperates under written terms of reference approved by the
Board, which are published on the Company’s website at
www.huntingplc.com,

In 2018, the Gommittee met four tvnes, 1w February, April,
August and December, and the atiendance record ot
Committea members during the year is noted below,

Membar Inwitation

Number of meetings held 4

Number of meetings
attended (actual/possible):

Annell Bay FY7) -
Carol Chasney (Commltiee Chair

from 23 Apr 2018) 2/2 —
Jay Glick — 4/4
John Holmelster (to 30 August 2018) 33 -
Richard 1Hunting 2/2 272
Jim Johnson - 4/4
Kelth Lough (from 23 April 2018) 212 -
John Nicholas (Commitiee Chalr 10

18 April 2018) 242 -
Peter Rose — A4/4

The CGhairman, Ghisf Executive, Finance Diractor, interial
and exiernal auditors are normally invited to aftend
meetings.

Responsibilities
The principal responsibilities of the Audit Gommittee are to:

- monitor and review reports from the executive
Directors, including the Group's financial statements
and Stock Exchangs announcements;

~ provide the Board with a recemmendation regarding
the Malt-Year and Annual Report and Accounts,
including whether they are fair, balancsed and
understandable;

~ review the Company's and Group’s Going Concemn
and Viability Staternonts,
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- maniltor, review and assass the Group's systems of
risk management and internal controk,

- review reports from the Group's extemnaf and internal
auditors, including details of the audit programmes
and scope;

- consider and recommend to the Board the
appoirtrment or reappointment of the external audiors
as applicable;

- agres the scope and fees of the exiernal audit;

- menitor and approve engagement of the external
auditors for the provision of non-audit services to the
Group,

— review the external auditors' independence,
effectivaness of the audit process, and assess the
level and quality of service in relation to fees paid;

— monitor corporate governance and accounting
developments;

- monitor the Group's Bribery Act compliance
procedures; and

- review the procedures to comply with the UK Modermn
Slavery Act.

Work Undertaken by the Committee During 2018
The Cammittee discussed, reviewed and made a number
of decisions on key areas throughout 2018, which are set
ot below:

Feb Apr fug Dec

Financial reporting

Annual Report and Full-Year Resuits
announcement o

Gaing Concem Basis

Viability Statement

[nterim Report and Interim Results
announcernent o
Review Accounting Policies ~

Internal control and
risk management

Hisk management and internal
contre! report

Key risks and mitigating controls
Effectivenass of internal controls
and internal audit function
Internal Audit Repart

Procedures for preventing bribery
and corruption

Procedures for complying with the
Maodern Slavery Act

internal audit programme and
reSoUreiNg

ARSI RN

External Auditors’ Transition Arrangements

In 2017, the Audit Committee undertock a tender process
to appoint new external auditors o the Group, following
the introduciion of new legisiation in the UK and EU, which
raglirad publicly listed companies to rotate its auditors,

if they had exceeded a tenure of 20 years,

Following the tender process, the Committee
recommended 1o the Board the appaintment of Deloitte
LLP, who will be proposed for appointment at the
Company's AGM on 17 Aprii 2018,

2018 is the final year for PricewaterhouseCoopers {"PwG")
as the Group's auditors and, subject io Deloitte’s
appointment being approved by shareholders at the AGM,
PwC will retire as auditors on the same date, As part of
the transition arrangements between the incumbent and
new audit firms, Delditte has shadowed the year-end audit
pracess and has cbserved several mestings of the
Committee.

Review of the 2018 Financial Statements

The Committee reviews final drafts of the Group's Report
and Accounts for both the half and full year. As part of this
process, the performance of the Group's major segments
1s considered, with key judgements, estimates and
accounting policies being approved by the Commilies
ahead of a recommesndation to the Board. In addition to
briefings and supporting reports from the central finance
team on significant issuses, the Committee engages in
disruasing with the Gronip's axternal anditnes,

Significant issues reviewed by the Cormmittee in
connection with the 2018 Annual Report and Accounts
were as follows.

Adoption of New Accounting Standards

During the year the Group adopted two new accounting
standards, IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and IFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with Custemers. The Committee
noted the work of the Group's central finance functionin
addition 1o the work of the external auditors who
confirmed that the current and prior year financial
staternents have been prepared in accordance with the
new accounfing standards. Following discussion, the
Committee was satisfied with the work completed and
the financial statements as presented.

Impairment Reviews
In the year, the Group reported improved results driven
by Increased actwity levels in the US onshore market,

External auditors

Auditcrs' objectivity, Independence
and appointment

Full-year ang Hali-year report
{0 the Audit Committee vd N4

Final Managament Letter
on internal conirals

Auditors' performance and effectiveness
Proposed year-end audit plan including
scope, fees and engagement letter v

Risk of auditor ieaving the markel v
Other business

Whistleblowing and Bribery policy
review v

AN

Committee effectivenass and ferms
of Heference

including strong completion achivity within the established
shale regions. The Committee noled that whilke the
Hunting Titan and US operating segments reported
profitability, the Group's other segmsnts continued to
report losses due 1o the subdued offshare and
international drilling markets. Given this trading
environment, management conducted a review for
indicators of Impalrment on the carrying values of asssts
held on tha Graup's balance sheet for the half-year and
year-end. This process concluded that no Impalrments
were necessary in the yaar.
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Audit committee report continued

Property, Plant and Equipment {"PPE")

The year-end balanca shest includes PPE of $360.2m
(2017 — $383,3m). This represents approximately 30%
of the Group's net agsets (2017 — 34%). No impairments
were charged to the incoma statement in the year. The
Committee reviewed the PPE Impairment tests and,
following discussion, was satisfled that the assumptions
and the disclosures in the year-end accounts were
appropsiate.

Goodwill

The year-and balance sheet includes goodwill of $228.8m
(2017 - $230.3m). This represents approximately 19% of
the Group’s net assets (2017 — 21%). Reviews for indicators
of impairment to the carrying values of gocdwill held by
Hunting's relevant businesses were undertaken at the half
and full year, which confirmed that Hunting's projections
supported no need for impainment, The Comimittes
considered the appropriateness of the assumptions and
challenged the discount rates and ihe factors used in the
review process, After discussion, it was satisfied that the
assumptlons and the disclosures in the year-end accounts
were appropriale.

Other Intangible Assets

The carrying value of the Group’s other ntangible assets
was also reviewed resulting in no impairmants 2017 — $nil)
being recorded In the year, |he amortisation charge
recorded in the income statement was $31.9m

(2017 ~ $31.2m). As with the goodwill impairment review,
the Commillee considered and confirmed the
appropriateness of the assumptions, discount rates and
factors used In the review process.

Inventary

At the year-ond, the Group held $348.2m of inventory
(P07 - $281.0m) The year-on-year increase is athibutable
to improved trading within Hunting’s onshaore-focused
husinesses in the US, which have seen substantial
increases in activity during the year. Due to the improving
autlook for the industry, the carrying values have heen
assessed to be adequate. Further, the Committee
reviewad year-end inventory carrying values and the work
undertaken by management In assassng and supporting
the carrying values. Given this, and together with the
mproved market conditions, the Committes concluded
that inventory carrying values were fairly stated,

Taxation

In view of the international spread cf operations, the
Committes momtors tax risk, tax audits and provisions
held for taxation The Finance Director briefed the
Commitiee on developments throughaoul the vear.

As a consequence of the improved market and cutlook,
particularly in tne US, the Group recognised deferred tax
assets, which predominantly related tc trading losses
within the Group's US business units Incurred during the
market downturn betweaen 2014 and 2017 These deferred
{ax assets have been reported in the amortisation and
exceptional items coliumn of the income statement, as
the origin of the tax losses relates primarily to impairment
logses and the amortisation of intangible assets incurred
i prior years, The underlying tax charge for the year

was $22.0m and the reporled 1ax credit for the year

was $11.0m.
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Exceptional tems Charged to the Consalidated
income Statement

The Committee considered the accounting policy
definition of exceptional items and the items included
within the financial staterments to ensure consistency
of treatment and adherence to policy,

Exceptional iterns recorded in respect of the Group's
operations for the full yaar were $nil (2017 — $10.0m), At
the Group's Hall-Year Resuits in August 2018, a $2.0m
provision was reversed, relating to the closure costs of the
Group's facility in Cape Town, South Africa. In addition, a
$2.0m provision was charged In respect of closure costs
of the Group's Mombasa, Kenya, facility. As noted above,
an exceptional tax credit was recorded in the year,
predominately relating ta the recognition of deferred

tax assels.

Going Concern Basis and Viability Statement

The Committee monitored assumptions around Going
Concern at the half and full year, as well as those around
the Group's Viability Statement for the full year. Driven
by the improved profitability of the Group. led by the
performance of the Hunting Titan and the US operating
segments, the Committee concluded that goad support
o Hunting's langer-term viability exists Further, the
assessment is supported by the year-and net cash
position of $61.3m (2017 — $30.4m).

Thess factors supported the Commitiee's assessment of
the Going Concern Statement and the Viability Staternent,
as contained n the Risk Management section on page &3,
The statements considered by the Committae were
supported by reviews of the regular forecast updates
provided by management and reviewing bank covenant
compliance reports.

In the year, Hunting remained fully compliant with its
bank covenants, with the Group reverting to its normal
profit-Dased covenants in January 2018. Discussions with
the Group's lenders commenced in September 2018 1o
“amend and extend” the Group's core revolving credit
facility 1o 2022, which concluded in December 2018.
Hunting agread to the reduction in the facility from $200m
to $180m, withh an option lo increase the facillty by a
further §75m to $235m and extend the faciity's maturity
date to 2023. In addition, the particlpating members of
the lending greup have reduced from five to four.

On 25 February 2013, the Audit Committee approved the
Viabllity Statement, detalled on page 53 of the Strategic
Report, noting that ¢ presented a reasonable outlook for
the Group for the next three years,
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Fair, Balancad and Underatancdable Assessment

The Commitlee has reviewed the financial statements,
together with the narrative contalned within the Strategle
Report set out on pages 1 to 53, and bafiaves that the
2018 Annual Repart and Accounts, taken as a whole, is
fair, balanced and urderatandable.

Iy arriving at this conclusion the Committee undertook
the following:

- review of early drafta of the Annual Report and
Accounts, providing relavant feedback to ihe executive
Directors;

- regular review and discussion of the financial resulis
duing the year, including briefings by Group finance
and operational management; and

— recaipt and review of reports from the external and
internal auditors.

The Committee advised the Board of its conclusion that
the 2018 Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whole,
was fair, balanced and understandable at a Meeting of the
Directors on 26 February 2013,

Internal Audit

The Commitiee receives reporis from the Internal Audit
department and raviews the internal audit process and
effectiveness as part of the Group's internal control and
risk assessment programme. An annual programme of
internal audit assignments is reviewed and appraved by
the Cammiftas The Cammittes mat with *he Mead of
Internal Audit, without the presence of the executive
Directors, on three occaslans during the year. The
etfactiveness of the Internal Audit function was also
considered by the Committee at its February meeting,
which concluded that the funciion remained effective.

External Audit

The external auditors presented reports at the February,
Apiil, August and December meetings for conslderation by
the Audit Gommittee. In February 2613, a full-year report
was considered ahead of publication of the Group's
Annual Repor and Accounts; in April 2018 an internal
control report was presented, following the year-end audit,
and in August 2018 an interim report was presented,
which included the praposed full-year audit scope and
feas, An updale to \he full-year plan was presented at the
December 2018 meeting. The Committee mests with the
external auditors, without executive Directors present, at
the end of each formal meeting.

During the year, the Carmpany comphed with the
provisions of the Statutory Audit Services for Large
Companies Market Investigation (Mandatory Lise of
Competitive Tender Process and Audit Committee
Responsibilities) Order 2014,

External Auditers’ Transition

As noted above, as part of transition arrangements agreed
between the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers and
Deioitte, both firms atterded Audit Commitlee mestings in
August and December, ahead of inalising the 2018 Annual
Heport and Accounts at the Audil Committee meeting
held on 25 February 2018, Dslottte also provided transition
reports to the Audit Commiittee at the December 2018 and
February 2019 mestings.

Audit Scope

The Audit Committee considered the audit scope and
materialily threshold. The audit scope addressed
Group-wide risks and local statutory reporting, enhanced
by deslciop reviews for smaller, low rigk entities,
Approximately 83% of the Group's reported revanue and
over 82% of the result before tax from operations,
adjusted for the iImpairmant of goodwill and other
non-current assets, was audited, covering 22 reporting
units across six countries.

Materiality

The Committes discussed materiality with the auditors
regarding both accounting errors that will be brought to
the Audit Gommittee’s attention and amounts that would
need to be adjusted so that the financlal statements give
a true and fair view. Overall audit materiahty was set at
$4.4m (2017 —~ $5.0m). This equates to approximately 5%
of the Group's average absolute reported result before tax
from operations, adjusted for the impaiment of geodwifl
and other non-current assets, for the past five years. This
Is within the range for which audit opinions are considered
to ba relable. Furthermore, the auditors agreed to draw to
the Audit Committee’s atteniion all identified, uncorrected
misstaternents greater than $0.3rm.

Audit Effectiveness and Independence

The external auditors’ full-year repart includes a statement
on therr independence, their abllity to remain objactive and
their abllity to undertake an effective audit. The Commitiee
nnnsidars and assesses this independencs staterment on
bshalf of the Board, taking into account the level of fees
pald, particularly for non-audit services,

The effectivenass of the augdii process is considered
throughaout the year, with a formal review undertaken at
the April meeting of the Committee, The assessment
considers the various matters including:

~ the auditors' understanding of the Group's business
and industry sector;

- tha planning and execution of the audit plan approved
by the Commitlee;

— the communication betwsen the Group and audit
engagement tear

— the auditors’ response 1o questions from the
GCommittee, inciuding during private meetings without
management present;

— 1ihe independence, objectivity and scepticism of the
auditors;

~ areport from tha Finance Director and the Group
Financial Centraller, and

— finalisation of the audit work ahead of compietion of the
Anpual Report and Accounts

In addition, the Gommittee reviewed and took account
of the reports from the Financiat Reparting Council on
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Afler considering these
matters, the Committee was satisfied with the
effectiveness of the year-end audit process.
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Audit committee report continuea

Non-Audit Services

The Committes closely monitors fees paid to the auditors
1n fespect of non-audit services. With the exception of
audit-refated assurance services which totaled $0.1m
(2017 - $0.1m), there were no non-audit services fees
paid during the year (2017 - $nil). The scopse and extent
of non-audit work undertaken by the external auditors is
monitored by, and requires prior approval from, the
Cammittee to ensure that the provision of such services
does not impair their independence or objectivity.

The Board recsived copies of all reports submitted to the
Committee.

internal Controls

The Group has an established risk managemert
framework and internal controf erwironment, which was in
operation throughout the year. The Gommittee monitors
these arrangements on behalf of the Board and these are
defaifed in the Risk Management section of the Strategic
Report on pages 44 to 53,

Bribery Act

in compliance with the UK Bribery Act, Hunting has
procedures in place, including the publication of
Anti-britiery and Gorruption policies and detailed
guidelines on interacting with customers, suppliers and
agents, including specific policies for gifts, entertainment
and hospitality, Senior managers across ihe Group are
required to repart their compliance activities, including
an munlnyatinn of riele araae The Groop bas rompleted

a screoning exercise to idenbfy relevant employees

wha face a heightened risk of bribery, with all relevant
personnel complating a formal training and compliance
course, in ine with the Group’s procedures. The
Committee reviews the compliance procedures relaling
to the Bribery Act at its April and December meetings,
which incorporates risk assessments completed by each
business unit and gifts and entertainment disclosures
made during the reporting penod The Group's internal
audit function reviews lecal compliance with the Bribery
Act and reporis centrol impravements and
recormmendations to the Committes, where appropriate.

Modern Slavery Act

The Modern Slavery Act 2016 was enacted during 2016
and requiras companies o evaluate internal and external
risks related to human trafficking and modern slavery.
Procedures were intraduced during 2016 and continued
in 2018, whereby each business unit across the Group
completed due dilgence on its workforce to highlight
employment risks in relation to trailicking and slavery.
Al businesses within the Group also completed a
fisk-mapping exercise of thelr known supply chaln 1o
evatuate those customers and suppliers ic the Group
wha operate in those jurisdictions where trafficking and
slavery is mare prevalent, Hunting published its second
Modern Slavery Act report in March 2018, located at
www.huntingplc.com. During 2018, a new "Code of
Coenduct” training course was rolled sut by the Group to
all employees that incorporates information on modern
slavery and trafficking.
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Code of Conduct

The Group's Cede of Conduct contains policies and
procedures covering how the Group conducts business
and maintaing its relationships with business partners
The Gode of Canduct is available on the Group's website,

Whistleblowing

The Company's Senior independent Director, Keith Lough,
is the primary point of contact for staff of the Group to
ralse, in confidence, concerns they may have over
possible improprieties, financial or otherwise, In addltion,
the Group engages the services of Safecall Limited to
provide an independent and anonymous whistleblowing
service available to staff across all of Hunting's operations.
All employees have been notified of these arrangements
through the corporate magazine, Group notice boards and
the Group's webslte.

Reaview of Cammittee Effectiveness

Dwring the year, the Gommittee reviewed its effectivenass
and the Committee Chairman reported these findings to
the Board, No issJes were identified in this review process.

Financial Reporting Gouncit ["FRC") - Review of
Annual Report

As part of its ramit, the FRG is authorised to review and
investigate the Annual Accounts, Strategic Reporis and
Drectors' Reports of public and large private companies
for compfiance with relevant reperting requirements.
Although these reviews are carried out by personnsl
skilled in the relevant leaal and accounting frameworks.
they are based solely on pubhshed report and accounts
and do not banefit from a detailed knawledge of the
company or the underlying transactions entered into, The
FRC therefore requests companies referiing 1o these
reviews to make clear the fimitations of the review process
and that the review provides no assurance that the report
and accounts are correct in all material respects.

As part of its normal operating procedues, Hunting's
report and accounts for 2017 were selected for raview by
the FRC, Based on 1his review, the FRC had no questions
or qusries that it wished to raise and informed the
Company of this by letter. The letter did note a number of
arnas where the FRC felt disclosures could be improved
The Audit Committee welcomes the constructive feedback
from the FRC and, as a rasult, has enhanced disclosures
in a number of areas of the 2018 Report and Accounts.

M \/] u\»d—b\g_,a/

Carol Chesney
Chair of the Audit Committee

28 February 2019
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Hunting PLC

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

QOpinlon

In aur apinion, Hunting PLC's Group financial statements ang Company financial statements (the “financial statements™):

* give a true and fair view of the stale of the Group's and of the Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2018 and of the Group's profit and lhe
Group’s and the Company’s cash flows for the year then ended;

* have been properly prepared In accardance with International Financial Reporting Standards #FRSs") as adopted by the European Union
and, as regards the Company's financial statements, as applied in accordancs with the provisions of the Companiss Act 20086; and

¢+ have been prepared in accordance with the requirerents of the Cornpanles Act 2006 and, as regards the Group firancial statements, Article
4 of the 1AS Regulation.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Repart and Accounis (the "Annual Report™), which comprise: the
Coensoilidated and Company Balanca Sheet as at 31 December 2018; the Consolidated Income Staterment and the Consclidated Statement of
Comprahensive Income, the Consalidated and Company Staternents of Cash Flows, and the Cansclidated and Company Statements of Changes
in Equity for the year then ended; and the notes to the financlal statements, which include a description of the significant accounting policies,

Cur opinion is consistent with our reporting to the Audit Commitiee.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit In accordance with Internationat Standards on Auditing (UK) {15As (UK)") and appilcable law. Cur responsibilities under
1SAs (UK) are further described in the auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial staterments section of our report. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial staternents
In the UK, which includes the FRC’s Elhical Standard, as applicable to listed public interast entities, and we have fulfifled our other ethical
responsiblities In accordance with these requirements

To the best of our knowledge and helief, we declare that non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided to the
Group or the Company,

Other than those disciosed in note 7 to the financial slatements, we have prowvided no non-audit services to the Group or the Company in the
perod from 1 January 2018 to 41 December 2018.

Cur Audit Approach
Cverview
Matartality + Overall Group materialily: $4.4m (2017 - $5 Om), based on 5% of five-year average absolute profit or loss
before tax from continuing operations adjusted for the impairment of goodwill and other non-current assets,
We have used the absolute values for losses when calculating the five-year average as the Group has incurred
both profits and losses lor the financial year ended during the five years' benchmark peried.
* Overall Company materiality: $7.1m (2017 — $7.1m), based on 1% of net assets,
Audit scope + We conducied audit work in six countries covering 22 reporting units and visited a number of audit locations,
including one financially significant component, Hunting Titan, Inc.
* Components where we parformed audit work accounted for approximately 93% of Group revenues and over
82% of Group absolule adjusted profit or loss before tax from operations.
Key audit matters *  Goodwill and non-current asset impairment assessment (Group),

s Jpventory valuation (Group),
+ Direct tax exposures and recognition of deferred tax asse!s (Group).
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Hunting PLC contirued

The Scope of our Audit

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material missiatement in the financial statements. In particular,
we looked at where the Directors made sublective judgements, for example in respect of significant accouniing estimates that involved making
assumptions and considering future events that are inherently uncertain.

Capabiliity of the Audit in Detecting frreguifarities, Including Fravud

Basad on our understanding of the Group/industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws and regulations related to

breaches of health, safety and environment risks and the laws and regutations issued by each jusisdiction in which the Group operates (sea

pages 49 to b2 of the Annual Report and Accounts), and we cansidered the extent to which non-compliance might have 2 material sffact on

the financial statements. We also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct Impact on the financial statements such as the

Companias Act 2006, We evaluated managament's incentives and apportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements {including

the rlsk of override of contrais), and determined that the principal risks were related to posting inappropriate Journal entries to increase revenue

and profitability or reduce expenditure, and management hias in accounting estimates. The Group engagement team shared this risk assessment

with the component auditors referred to in the scoping section of our repart below, so that they could include appropriate audit precadures In

respanse to such risks in their work. Audit procedures performead by the Group engagement team and/or component auditors included:

+ Discussions with management, intarnal audit and the Group’s legal advisers, including consideration of known or suspected instances of
ron-compliance with laws and regulation and fraud;

* Evaluation and testing of the operating effectiveness of management’s controls designed to prevent and detect irregularities, in particular their
anti-bribery controls;

¢ Agsessment of matters reported on the Group's whistieblowing helpliine and the results of management's investigation of such matters;

* Readirg key correspondence with regulatory authornties in relation to compliance with emissions lesting regulations;

* Challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in their significant accounting estimates, in particular in relation to
impairment of intangible fixed assets and inventory provisioning (see related key audit matter befows,

* ldaentifying and testing journal entries, in particutar any joumal entries posted with unusuat accaunt combinations or pasted by senior
managemert; and

* Rewviaw of significant component auditors' work,

There are inherent limitations 1n the audit procedures deseribed above and the further removed ron-compliance with laws and regulations is from
the avents and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we would become aware of it. Also, the risk of not detecting a
maerial misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from aror, as fraud may involve dsliberate concealment
bar frre cxyamnte faraeny of intanfinnal Mmisrenresantations, or thronnh rollision

Key Audit Matters

Key audit malters are those matters that, in the auditors’ professiona judgemant, were of most sfgnificance in the audit of the financial
statements of the current penod and include the most significant assessed rigks of material misstalement fwhether or not due to fraud) identified
by the auditors, inciuding thoss which had the greatest effect an: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of rasources in the audit: and directing
the efforts of the engagement team. These matters, and any comments we make on the results of cur procedures therean, were addressed in
the context of our audit of the financial statemenis as a whole, and in forming our opirvon thereon, and we da not provide a separate opinfon on
these matlers. This is not a compiste list of all risks identified by aur audit.
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Key sudit matter

How our audit addressad the key audit matter

Goodwill and Non-current Asset lmpairment Assessment
Refer to page 87 and 88 (Audit Committes report), note 37 {principat
accounting policies) and notes 12, 13 and 14

The Group holds $229.9m of goodwill on the balance sheet which is
tested at least annually for impairment. Intangible assets held by the
Group include custorrer relationships, unpatented tachnelogy, and
patents & trademnarks, total $39.8m and the Group has property, plant
and equipment of $360.2rm. Other non-current assets are tested for
impairment i impairment triggers are identified.

Detarmining the recoverable ameount of non-current assets for
impasmnent purposss is a jJudgemental and complex area as it
depends on the future financlal performanco of the cash-generating
unit (*CGU" and future market performance, While there have been
signs of mprovement in the ofl and gas market in 2018, there remains
uncertainty around the market stability, prima-ity due to fluctuations
in il and gas price driven by shifis in supply and demand and aise
ongoing geopolitical and intermaticnal trading headwinds. As such,
the key risk is around auditing management's Impalrment model and
impairment trigger assessment, in particular judgemental areas such
as the forecast revenue and margin growth rate, terminal growth rates
and ciscount rates,

Management's calculated recoverable amounts exceed the carrying
value of all CGls, As a result, there have heen no impairment charges
recegnlsed in the current year. Three CGU are sensitive to reasonably
possible changes n key assumptions and, as such, sensitivity analysis
has been included in notes 12, 13 and 14.

We tested management's identification of the CGUSs, considering
business changes that would prompt a change to the dlassification
of the CGUs In order to tast the impairmert models, we challenged
whether the future cash flow forgcasts and the timing of the forecast
recovery in performance of these forecasts for the Identified CGUs
were appropriate. More specifically, we challenged the key
assurnptions as follows:

= Forecast revenue and margin growth rate assumptions and how
management has incorperated the impact of the decline in oil
prices subsaquent to year end, by camparing them to historical
resuits, comparing the short- and medium-term growth rates
to Independent specizlist third party published reperts and
considering the irmpact already observed within the market;

+ Terminal growth rates by comparing them to economic and indusiry
forecast; and

» Discount rates by comparing the cost of capital assumotion
for each CGU against comparable orgarysations and cur
independently calculated discount rates.

We found the above assumptions 1o be in line with our expectations
and that management has followed a ciear process for drawing up
the future cash flow lorecasts, which was subject to oversight and
challenge by the Directors and which was consistent with Board
approved budgets and mid-term forecasls.

In regpect of all CGUS, we sensitised each key driver of the cash flow
forecasts, including the underlying assumptions listed abovs, by
determining what we considered 1o be a reasaonably possible changs
' the acepmptinns, haged an current market data and historical and
current business periormance. In addition we calculated the degree to
which the key assumptions would need to change before z2n impairment
was triggered. Where CGLUIs are sensitive to reasonably possible
changes in key assumptions, we tested the sensitivity disclosures
presented i the notas to the financial statements against underlying
inpuls used in the impairment models and discussed with the Audit
Committee and cencluded that the disclosires were appropriate.

Having satisfled ourselves on the key assumptions and sensitivities, we
assessed the likellhood of movemnents in key assumptions required to
trigger an impairment and by companson to sensitised forecasts and
possile change in discount rates and concluded thal it was unliikely,

Inventory Valuation
Refer to page 88 (Audit Committee Report), note 37 (principal
accounting policies) and rote 18.

The Groug hokls inventory of $348.2m. While there have been signs
of improvement in the ol and gas market in 2018, there remaine
uneertainty around tha miarket stability, primarily due to fluctuations
in ol and gas price driven by shilts in supply and demand and also
ongoing geopoliical and international trading headwinds. Pncing
pressuwe continues to poss the risk of mventory being carried at an
amount greater than its net realisable value.

Key to these judgements 15 management's expectations for fulure
sales and inventory utilsation plans and the implications on the lavel
of provisioning.

For ail categories of inventary, we have critically reviewed the basis for
the provision recorded to reduce the carrying vaiue of Inveniory below
cos!, the consistency of provisioning in line with Group's accounting
policy and the rationals for the recording of provisions.

We assessed the nature of the Group's inventory and the durability
thereof through discussion with management, physical inspection of
inventory and review of the utilisation of aged invenlory products, We
agreed with management that the evidsncea obtained demonsirated
ihat the naiure of the Group's invenlory 18 not penshable and the risk
of technical obsolescenca by age is low. Specifically, wa have;

»  Considered the available support, including current sales
transactions, used to determune an apprapriate net realisable value;

+ Unrderstood the ageing profile of the Group's inventory and
management's assessment for obsolescence; and

* Confirmed that where cost of invantory is higher than its net
realisahle value, an appropriate provision has been made,

From the procedures performed, we obtained evidence that the
inventory was not carried at amounts higher than net realisable value
and conciuded that it was unifikely that adaitional inverdory provision
were required,
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Hunting PLC continuec

Key audit mattar

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Diract Tax Exposures and Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
Refer to page 88 {Audit Committee Report), note 37 {principal
accounting palicies) and notes 10 and 17,

The Group operates in a number of diferont countries and 15 theretore
subject to many tax regimes around the world. Provisions are
sstimated for uncertain tax positions and dispules with tax authorities,
including transactions belween Group companies.

In addition, fallowing taxable losses incurred in the prior years,
Judgement and estmates are required in refatlon to timing and extent
of recognition and subsequent recoverability of the deferred tax assets
arising from such fosses.

Faliowing continued strang performance from the Group's US
segment in 2018 and the 2019 budget process showing significant
taxable profits expected to be generatad from 2018 and beyond,
managament’s view is that tha recognition criteria for the deferred tax
asset have now been met.

The Group has recognised deferred tax assets of $24.9m In respect of
the full amount of the unwiillsed tax losses arising from the US segment.
Ws cansidered this an area of focus because of the judgement required
by management ta assess matters across multiple jurisdictions and

to determine the extent and timing of recognition, valuation and
recoverability of assets in the future

We discussed potentlal direct tax exposures with senlor Group
managsment, and the basis for their positions with the Group’s
In-house tax spaclalists,

We evaluated the calculations of the provisions, and considered:

¢ The accuracy of the calcJlations and ensured that appropriate tax
rates have been used; and

» Key judgements made by management In determining the
probability of potential outcomes.

Our evaluation of these judgaments included using our tax specialists,
In the UK and overseas with experience in the oilfield services industry
expertise, as well as our experience of similar challenges elsewhers.

We evaluated the recognition of defarred tax assets in relation 1o tax
lossas and considered:

+ Theaccuracy of tha calculations of total defarred tax assets
avallable and ensured that appropriate tax rates have been used;

» Key judgements made by management in determining the
prabability of future forecast taxable profits to utiliss brought
forward tax losses, consistent with the cash flow forecasts used
for impaiment assassments; and

+ Agsessed the basis on which daferred tax assets have been
recognised by comparnson to forecast taxable profits.

On the basis of the substantial utilisation of the previously
unrecognised tax losses during 2018 as supported by management's
annrowver extended forecast we aares that the rernonition rritena
under IAS 12 has now been met. As the ongin of the tax iosses relalas
primarily to impairment losses and the amartisation of Intangible assets
incurred in prior years, which were presented within amartisation and
exceptional items, we do consider the presentation of the tax credit
wthin amortisation and exceptional items to be appropriate.

Through these procedures we evaluatad the level of the provisions
recognised, the recognillon of deferred tax assets and the disclosures
included in the financial statameants, which we consider 1o be in line
with the Group’s policies and relevant accounting standards.

We determined that there were no key audit matters applicable to the Company to communicate in our report,

Haw we Tailored the Audit Scope

Wa tallored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work 1o be able to give an opinion on the financial statements as a whole,
taking into account the structure of the Group and the Campany, the accounting processes and controts, and the industry in which they operate.

The Group financial statements are a consolidation of entities covering non-trading legal entitles, centralised functions and operating units,

1otalling 57 reaarting units.

In establishing the averall aporoach to the Group audit, we considered the type of work thal necded ta be performed at the operating units by us,
as the Group engagement team, or component auditers within PwC UK and from PwG network firms operating under our instruction. Where the
work was pefformed by component auditors, we deter mined the extent of audit work needed al those reporting units to ba able to conclude
whether sufficient appropriate audit emdence had baen oblained as a basis for our opinion on the Group financial statements as a whole.

The Group's reporting units vary significantly in size and we 1dentified 13 operating units that were subject ta a full scope reporting on their
compiete financial informaticn, due 1o thelr size or risk characlarisiics. Specific audit precedures over certath balances and transactions were
performed at a further nine operating units, to give appropriate coverage of all material balances at the Group lavel. In deing so we conducted
work in six countries and the Group audit team visited certaln reporting locations in Aberdeen, Dubai, Singapore and the US, including visiting
Hunting Titan, the one financially significant component, Togather, the reporting units subject to audn procedures accounted for approximalely
93% of Group revenues and B2% of Group adjusted absolute proflt or loss hefore tax from operations. Further, specific audit procedures over
central functons and areas of significant judgement, including taxaticn, treasury, pensions and impairment, waere performed by the Group audit

team cenirally.
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We dasigned our audit by determining materiality and assessing the risk of material misstatement In the financial statements, In particular, we
looked at where the Directors made subjective Judgements, for example In respect of significant accounting estimates that involved making
assumnptions and considering futura events that are inherently uncartain. As in all of our audits we alsc addressed the risk of management
ovetiide of controls, including evaluating whether there was evidence of bias by the Directors that represented a rigk of material misstatement
due to fraud. The risks of material misatatement that has the greatest effact on our audit, including the allocation of our resources and effort,

ars Identifled as "key audit matters” in ihe table above. Wae have also set out how we tailored our audit to address these specific areas to provide
an apinion on the financial statemenis as a whole, and any comments we make on 1he resulls of our procedures shouid be read in this conlext.

This is not a complete list of all riaks identifled by our audit.

Materiafity

The scepe of our audit was influenced by our applicahon of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds for materiality. These, togather
with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of cur audit and the naturs, timing and extent of our audit procedures on the
individual financlal statement line itermns and disclosures and in evaluating the effect of misstatements, both individually and in aggregats on the

financial statements as a whole,

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materality for the financial stalerents as a whole as follows:

Group financial staterments

Compary financial slalemants

Overalf materiality $4.4m (2017 — $5.0m).

$7.1m (2017 — $7.1m),

5% of five-year average absolute profit or loss before
tax from continuing operations, agjusted for the
Impairment of goodwill and other non-current assets,

How we determined it

1% of net assets.

We applied this benchmark because, in our view,

this is an appropriate metric against which the
performance of the Group 1s measured and of the
recuiting Group parformance. Consistent with

the prior year audii, we contnue to use a five-

year average which la considered appropriate to
normalise recent profit volatility across the underlying
3ot upUTl Lho e s el o sl

has baen calculated at $4.4m.

Raticnale for benchmark
applled

oyt

The Company 1s a helding company, not a frading
endity and therefore we have not used a profit

based benchmark for determining matenaliy.
Conaistent with the prior year audit, we concluded
that net assets is most appropriate given that the
Company's balance sheet is predominantly made up
of intercornpany balances. We also noted that most
K et alnalat-Tots AEPONRe Heme mslnta o intoreamnamy

transactions and recharges.

For each component 1n the scope of our Group audit, we allocated a materiality 1hat is fess than our overall Group materiality. The range of
materiality allocated across components was between $0.6m and $4 Om. Certaln components were audited to a local statutory audit materiality

that was alsa less than our overall Group materiality.

We agreed with the Audit Commitiee that we would report to them misstatements identified dunng our audit above $0.3m (2017 — $0.3m) for
both Group and Company as well as misstatements below those amounts that, i our view, warranted reporting for qualitative reasons.

Going Concern
In accordance with 1ISAs (UK) we report as follows:

Repwnng obligation

Ouicome

We are required to report if we have anything material to add ar draw attention o

in respact of the Directors' statement in the Annual Report about whether the
Direglors considered it appropriate to adopl the going concern basis of accounting
in preparing the financial statements and the Directors’ identification of any material
urcertainties to the Group's and the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern over a penad of at least 12 moenths from the date of approval of the
financial statements.

We hava nothing to reporl in respect of 1hs above
matters.

However, bacause not all future events or conditions
can be predicted, this statemenit Is not a guarantce
as to the Group's and Company's ability o continue
as a going concern, For example, the terms on which
tha United Kingdom may withdraw from the
European Union, which is currently due 1o occur on
29 March 2019, are not clear, and it is difficult to
evaluate all of the potential implications on the
Company's trade, custemers, suppliers and the
wider econamy,

We are required to report if the Dirsctors’ statement relating to geing concern in
accordance Wih Listing Rule 8.8.6R(3) is materially inconsistent with our knowledge
obtained in the audit.

We have nothing to report.
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Hunting PLC continued

Reporting on Gther Information

The cther information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our auditors' report thereon.
The Directors are respeonsible for the ather informetion. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and,
accordingly, we do not express an audit oplnion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated In this report, any form of assurance therson.

In connectkon with our audit of the Tinancial statements, our responsibfiity is to read the other Information and, in deing o, consider whether the
other information is matariafly inconsistent with the financial stataments or cur knowledge obtainad in the audit, or otherwise appsars to be
materfally misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistancy ar material misstaterment, we are required to periorm proceduras to conclude
whether there is a material misstaternant of the financial staternents or a materiai misstatement of the ather informatior. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of thig other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect 1o the Strafegic Report and Directors' Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK Companiss Act 2008
have been included.

Based on the responsibilites described above and our work underiaken in the course of the audh, the Companies Act 20086 (CADE), ISAs (UK)
and the Listing Rules of the Financial Canduct Authority (FGA) requlre us alse to report certain opinions and matters as described below
{required by 1SAs {UK) urless otherw'ss slated).

Strategic Report and Directors' Report

It our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the ‘nformation given in the Strategic Beport and Directors' Report for
the year ended 31 December 2018 is consistent with the financial staterments and has bean prepared in accerdance with applicable legal
raquirements., (CAOG}

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Campany and their enviranment obtained in the course of the audit, we did not
identify ary matertal misstaternents in the Strategic Report and Directars' Beporl. (CAQS)

The Directors” Assessment of the Prospects of the Group and of the Principal Risks that Would Threaten the Solvency or Liquidity of the Group

We have nothing material to add or draw attention to regarding:

+ The Drreciors’ confirmation on page 47 of the Annual Repart that they have carried out a robust assessment of the principal risks facing the
Group, INCluCing INOSE Tnal woulo threaten s DuSINESE NUUE]L 1L S DETCHNGN0E, SOIVGIICY b Uiy,

+  The disclosuras in the Annual Report that describa those risks and explain how they are being managed or miligated.

*+ The Directors’ explanation on page 53 of the Annual Report as o how they have assessed the: prospects of the Group, over what period
they have done so and why they consider that period to be appropriate, and their statement as to whether they have a reasonable
expectation that the Group wilt be able ta continue In aperation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the period of their assessment,
including any related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary qualifications or assumptions.

We have nothing 1o report having performed a review of the Directors’ statement that they have carried out & robust agsessment of the principal
risks facing the Group and statement in relation 10 the longer-term viability of the Group, Our review was substantiafly less in scope Lhan an audit
and only consisted of making inquines and considering the Directors' process supporling thelr statements; checking that the statements are In
alignment with the relevant provisions of lha UK Corporate Governance Code {the “Code'), and considering whather the statemenis are consistent
with the knowledge and understandirg of the Group and Company and their environment obtaned in the course of the audit. {Listing Rules)

Other Code Provislons

We have nothing to report in respect of our respongibility to report when:

+ The staternent glven by the Direclors, on page 65, that they consider the Annual Report taken as a whole to be fair, balanced and
understandable, and provides the information necessary far the members to assass the Graup’s and Company's position and performance,
business model and strategy Iz materially Inconsistant with our knowledge of the Group and Gompany obtained in the course of perferming
our audit.

* The section of the Annual Report on pages 86 o 80 describlng the work of the Audit Committee does not appropriately address matters
sommunicated by us to the Audit Commillee,

* The Direclors’ statement relating to the Company's compliance with the Code does not properly disclose a deparlure lrom a relevant
provision of the Code specified, under the Listing Rules, for review by the auditora.

Directors’ Remunaration
in our oplnicn, the part of the Girectors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2008, {CA0E)
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Responsibllities for the Financial Statements and the Audit

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set out en pags 65, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial staternents in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satistied that they give & tr.e and fair view. The Directors are alsc
responsible for such internal conirol as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial staternents, the Diractors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the Company's ability to confinue as a golng
concarn, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concem basls of accounting unless the Directars sither
interd o liquidate the Group or the Company or to ceasa operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial stalements as a whole are free from material misstaternent,
whether due to fraud or errer, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
18 not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accardance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstaterment when it exists. Misstatements
can arlse from fraud or error and are considered material if, ndividually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to [nfluence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statemants,

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at: www.fro.org.uk/auditors
responsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors' report.

Use of {his Report

This report, including the oplnions, has been prepared for and only for the Campany's members as a bedy in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Cormpanies Act 20086 and for no other purpose, We do not, in giving these opinions, accept of assurne responsibility for any other
purpose of ko any other person ta whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where exoressly agreed by our preor
consent in writing,

Dther Required Reporting

Companies Act 2006 Exception Reporting

Under tha Companies Act 2006 we are required to roport to you if, in our apinfon

= e have nat recaned all the infarmation and explanations we renire for our audit; or

+ adeguate accounting records have not bean kept by the Company, or returns adaquate for our audt have not been received trom brancnes
not visited by us; or

+ certain disclosures of Directors' remuneralion specified by law are not made; or

+ the Company financial staternents and ihe part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not In agreement with the accounting
records and returns.

We have no exceplions to report arising from this responsibility.

Appointment
Following the recommendation of the Audit Committee, we were appointed by the Directors on 7 August 1989 to audit the tinancial statements

for the year ended 31 Decamber 19892 and subssquent financial perieds. The perlod of tolal uninterrupled engagement is 30 years, covering the
years ended 31 Becember 1989 to 31 Dacarnber 2018.

Kevin Reynard

{Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhousaCoopers LLP
Charterad Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Lendon

28 February 2019
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Consolidated income statement

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Restrled
2018 2017
Befare Amortisation’ Balore  Amortisation'
amortisation' and amortisation' and
and  exceptional and exgeptional
exceptional items axceptonal tems
items (note 8} Tetal items {note 6) Totat
Netes $m $m $m $m $m §m
Revenue 3 911.4 - 9114 724.9 - 7249
Cost of sales {636.3} - (636.3) (549.5) (10.0) {559.5)
Gross profit 275.1 - 275.1 175.4 (10.0) 165.4
Other operating income 4 7.8 - 7.8 7.6 - 7.6
Cperating expenses 4] {178.2) {20.3) {207.5) {168.7) (29.1) (197.8)
Profit {loss) from operations 7 104.7 (29.3) 754 14.3 (33.1) (24.8)
Finance income g 2.6 - 26 3.3 - 33
Finance expense 9 (3.3) - (3.3) 4.8 - (£.8)
Share of associates’ post-tax fosses - - - (1.3) - {(1.3)
Profit {loss) before tax from operations 104.0 (28.3) 74.7 1.5 {39.1) (27.6)
Taxation 10 (22.0) 33.0 11.0 {1.0 - 0.9
Profit {loss} for the year 820 3.7 85.7 10.5 39.1) (?8.6)
Profit {loss) attributable to:
Owners of the parent 84.8 4.5 80.3 13.0 @9.1) {26.1)
Non-conzrolling interasts (2.8) {0.8) {3.6) (2.5) — 2.5)
82.0 3.7 85.7 10.5 (39.1) {28.6)
Earnings {loss} per share cents cents cants cents
Basic 11 51.6 54.4 8.0 (16.0)
M atedd 1 49.6 52.3 8.0 (18.0)

i.  Relates to amornsation of ntangible assels that anse on the acqulsition o° businesses [referced 1o harealler as amorisation of intangible assets from busness

combBinations),

The income statement for the year ended 31 December 2017 has heen restated to reflect the adoplion of IFRS 16 Contracts with Customers

{see note 38).
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Restated
2018 2017
Notas $m $m
Comprehensive income (expense)
Profit (ioss) for the year 85.7 {28.6)
Components of other comprehensive income (expense) after tax
ftams that have been recfassifed to profit or foss.
Fair value gains and losses:
- losses transferred to income statement on disposal of cash flow hedges 3 - 0.1
tams that may be reclassifiod subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange adjustments (8.4) 12.7
Fair value gaing and losses:
- gains {losses) originating on fair vaiue hedges arising during the year 31 - 0.2)
- gains (losges) originating on cash flow hedges arlsing during the year 31 0.2 0.2)
8.2) 12.3
ftems that will not be racfassified to profit or foss:
Remeasurement of defined beneflt pension schemes 32 1.5 (1.6}
Other comprehensive lexpense) income after tax - &.7} 108
Total comprehensive income (expense) for the year 79.0 (7.8
Total comprehensive income {expense) attributahble to:
Owners of the parent Ba.8 {17.3)
Non-controliing interests (4.8) {0.5)
79.0 {17.8)

The statement of comprehensive Income {or the year ended 31 December 2017 has been restated 1o reflect the adoption of IFRS 15 Contracts

P Rleenars o mate 29)
' :
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Consolidated balance sheet
At 31 December 2018

Reslaled
Restated 1 January
2018 2017 2017
Nates §m 3m m
ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equiprment 12 a60.2 3833 419.0
Gioodwill 13 2209 230.3 220.8
Other Intangible assets 14 90.8 1254 150.7
Irvestments In associates 0.7 0.7 az
Investments 15 1.7 1.8 10.2
Retirement benefit assets 29 - - 18.5
Trade and other receivables 16 3.5 3.3 2.9
Defarred tax assets 17 26.0 4.2 7.0

721.8 749.0 841.3

Current assets

lnventories 18 3482 281.0 85,7
Trade and other receivables 16 231.0 185.7 116.7
Cash ar cash equivalents 21 &67.8 36.4 63.5
Current tax assets 0.1 1.1 9.3
Irvestments 15 - 104 08
Retirement benefit assets 29 - 18.6 14.8
B ) 647.2 533.2 480.8
LIABILITIES
Current liahifities
Trade and other payables 18 140.9 130.9 70.0
Current 1ax liabiitles 11.2 5.1 71
Borrowings 22 2.7 21 54.3
Flo s ™ A7 fa 18
_ - ) 158.5 1445 1365
Net current assets ) B 487.7 38g.7 3246
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 22 39 3.8 i19
Deferred tax labibties 17 1.2 6.2 2.6
Provisions 24 9.5 11.6 i0.9
Trade and other payables 18 3.8 39 121
- 18.4 25.6 47 .5
Net assets 1,191.1 1,112 1 1,118.4
Equity atiributable to owners of the parent
Shars capital 30 66.7 66.4 6683
Share premium 30 153.0 153.0 1530
Other components of equity 31 75.8 91.7 788
Retained earnings 32 8816 7822 8010
1,177.1 1,098.3 1,089.1
Non-controlling interests 14.0 8.8 19.3
Total equity 11814 1424 1.1184

The balance sheets at 1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017 have been restated to reflact the adoption of IFRS 15 Contracts with Customers
{see note 38).

The notes on pages 103 to 151 ara an integral parl of these consolidated financial statements. The financial statements on pages 88 to 151 were
appraved by the Board of Directors on 28 February 2019 and were signed on its behalf by,

ez

Jim Johnson Petar Rose
Director Director Registered number: 974568
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Year ended 31 December 2018

Other Non-
Share Shara components Aatained cantroliing Totat
capital premium of aquity earnings Total interests equity
Notes $m m $m $m $m m
At 31 December 2017 as previously
reported 66.4 153.0 91.7 780.6 1,001.7 18.8 1,1105
Adjustment on adoption of IFRS 16 38 - - - 1.6 1.6 - 1.6
At 31 December 2017 restated 66.4 153.0 g1,7 7822 1,093.3 16.8 1,112.1
Adjustment on adoption of IFRS 9 38 - - - {0.2) 0.2) - 0.2}
At1 January 656.4 153.0 91.7 782.0 1,083.1 188  1,1118
Profit {oss) for the vear - - - 89.3 89.3 (3.6) B85.7
Cther comprehensive {expenss) income -~ - {7.0} 1.5 {5.5} {1.2) 8.7}
Total comprehensive income - - {7.0) 90.8 838 4.8) 79.0
Hedging losses transferred to the carrying
valuie of inventory purchased in the year 31 - - {0.1) - (0.1} - 0.1)
Dividends to equity shareholders 33 - - - (6.6} {6.6) - (6.6)
Shares issued
— share opticn achemses and awards 3c 0.3 - - - 0.3 - 0.3
Treaswry shares
- purchase of {reasury shares 32 - - - 5.7 {5.7) - {5.7)
Share options and awards
~value of employee services a1 - - 131 - 13.1 - 13.1
- dlscharge 31,32 - - {9.7) 92 {0.5) - {0.5)
- taxation - - -~ {0.3) {0.3) - {0.3)
Transier betwean reserves - - {12.2) 12.2 - - -
Total transactions with owners 0.3 - {8.8) 8.8 0.3 - 0.3
At 31 December 66.7 163.0 758 881.6 4774 14,0 1,181.1
Rostated
Yaar ended 31 Decermnber 2017
Cther Non-
Share Share  components Retained controling Total
capitat premum ol equaty garnings Totat interests equily
$m §m $m $m $m Sm $m
At 1 January as previcusly reported 66.3 153.0 78.8 800.0 1,098.1 19.3 1,177.4
Adjustment on adoption of IFRS 15 38 - - — 1.0 1.0 - 1.0
At1 January restated 86.3 153.0 788 8.0 1,099.1 18.3 1,118.4
Restated loss for the year - - - (26.1) 26.1) (2.5} (£8.6)
Other comprehensive income [expense) - — 10.4 (1.6} 8.8 2.0 08
Tolal comprehensive expense - - 10.4 (27.7) {17.3) (0.5 (17.8)
Shares Issuad
— share option schemeas and awards 30 01 - - — 0 - a1
Share options and awards
- value of employee services 31 - - 1.8 — 11.8 - 118
- discharge 31,32 - - ©.1) 8.9 (0.2} - 0.2
Total transactions with owners ) 04 - 2.5 8.9 11.5 - 1.5
At 31 December 66.4 153.0 91.7 7822 1,083.3 18.8 1,121

The statement of changss In equity for the year endad 31 Dacember 2017 has been restated to reflect the adeption of IFRS 15 Conlracts with

Custormners (see note 38),
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the yvear ended 31 December 2018

Restatad
2048 2017
Notes $m $m
Operating activities
Reported profit (loss) from operations 75.4 {24.8)
Acquisition amortisation and exceptional iterns & 29.3 39.1
Dapreciation and non-accuisition amortisation 7 37.8 417
Underlying EBITDA 142.3 560
Share-based payments expense 13.2 1.9
Net gain, on dispasat of property, plant and equipment {1.0) {0.5)
Gain on disposal of held for sale assets - 1.9
Increase in inventornes 72,7) (19.7)
Increass in receivables {47.3) (66.5)
Increase in payablas 234 46.3
Decrease in provisions (3.8) (1.0}
Net taxation {paid) received (2.6} 6.5
Proceeds from disposal of proverty, plant and equipment heid for rental 3.9 4.4
Purchase of preperty, plant and equipment held for renta (5.8) (2.3
Beceipt of surplus pension assets 10.6 a.7
Payment of US pension scheme liabilities (10.4) -
Othar non-cash flow items 29 22
Net cash Inflow from operating activities 52.7 415.8
Investing activities
Interes! received 0.4 0.3
Proceeds from disposal of heid for sale assets - 1.2
Proceeds from disposal of associates 1.3 -
Proceeds from dispesal of investments ic.4 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 125 18
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (24.3) 2.1)
Purchase of intangible assets (6.8) (5.5)
Decrease p1 bank GEPOSIT INvEsSIments - 0.3
Net proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries — 0.8
Net cash outflow from investing activities 6.3) {(S.9)
Financing activities
nterest and bank fees paid (2.4} (2.7)
Dividends paid to eguity sharehalders 33 {6.6) -
Share capital Issued 0.3 0.1
Purchase of treasury shares {5.7) -
Proceeds from new borrowings 0.9 -
Repayment of borrowings - {20.6)
Net cash outflow from financing activities {13.5) 23.2)
Net cash Infiow in cash and cash equivalents 329 127
Cash and cash equivalents at ihe beginning of the year 34.3 20.3
Effect of foreign exchange rates (1.1} 1.3
Cash and cash equivalenis at the end of the year 66.1 34.3
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year comprise:
Cash at bank and i hand 21 324 36.4
Maoney Market Funds 21 26.1 -
Short-term deposits 21 9.4 -
Bank overdrafts included in borrowings 22 (1.8} 2.1
- 66.1 34.3

The statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 Decemnber 2017 has been restated 1o reflect the adaption of IFRS 15 Conlracts with

Gustomers (see note 38),
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1. Basis of Preparation

Hunting PLG ks a premium-isted public compary limited by shares, with fts Ordinary shares quoted on the Londan Stock Exchange, Hunting PLG
was Incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act and is registered in England and Wales. The address of the Compary's
registered office is shown on page 167, The principal activities of the Group and the nature of the Group's operations are set out in note 2 and In
the Strategic Report on pages 1 to 53. The financial statements consolidate those of Hunting PLGC (the "Company”) and ts subsidiaries {together
referred to as the "Group”), include the Group's interests in associgtes and are presented in LS dollars, the currency of the primary economnic
anvironment In which the Group aperates.

The consolidated financial stalements have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 as applicable to companies using IFRS
and those Internationat Financial Reporting Standards ["IFRS") and interpretations issued by the IFRS Interpretations Committee (“IFRS IC") as
adapted by the European Union. The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention as
madified by the revaluation of the defined banefit pension assst and those financial assets and financlal liabilites held at fair value. The Board’s
consideration of the applicability of the going concern basis is detailed further in the Strategic Report on page 63,

The principal accounting policles applied in the preparation of these financial staternents are set out in note 37, These policies have been
consistently appfied to all the years presented.

Other than certain sensilivity assumptions for the purposes of impairment testing {see notes 12, 13 and 14) and judgements made regarding the
recognition of deferred tax assets in the US (see nate 17), management balieve that there are no other critical judgements or estimates appled in
the preparation of the financial statements.

Adoption of New Standards, Amendments and Interpretations

The foillowng standards have been adopted 2nd are effective for the financial year beginning as of 1 January 2018. The Group has changed #s
accounting policies and made retrospective adjusiments as a result of adopting IFRS 15, The impact of adopting these accounting standards has
been shown in note 38.

= |FRS g Financlal Instruments
» |FRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
* Clarifications 1o IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Custarners

A numbar of amendments 10 other IFRS became efiectiva for the financial year beginning on 1 January 2018, however the Group did not have to
change its accounting policies or make retrospective adjustments as a result of adopting these amendments.

= Amendments to IFRS 2: Classification and Measurement of Share-hased Payment Transactions
« Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle
+ IFRIC 22 Forsign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

The followlirg slandards, amendments and interpretations are effective subsequent to the year-and, which have not been early adopted, and are
being assessed to determina whether there is a significant impact on the Group's fesults or financlal position:

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts'

Amendments to |AS 28: Long-term Interests in Associates and Jaint Ventures
Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Gycle'

Amendment to I1AS 19' Plan Amandment, Curtailment or Settlement'
Amendment 10 IAS 1 and JAS 8, Definition of Material

Amendment 1o IFRS 3 Business Combinations'

L Notyet endorsad by the Furopean Union.

In addition to the above, IFRS 16 Leases and IFRIG 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments are effective for the Group on 1 January 2019,
An assessment of lhe impact of adopting IFRS 16 18 shown on the following page. A prelimnary assessrment of the potential impact of adopling
IFRIG 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments on 1 January 2018 has been carrled oul and there is no malerial impac! on the Group's results
or tinancial position.

Hunting PLC | 2018 Annuat Report and Accounts 103

souewsenod ajelodioy  wodas oi8seng

SJUaWI|e]S [RlIURUL

UCHEW: 10U 8430

]




Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

1. Basis of Preparation continued

IFRS 16 Leases
IFRS 16 Leases replaces IAS 17 Leases and its related interpretations. IFRS 16 establishes new principles for the racegnition, measturement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and is effective for the Group on 1 January 2018,

Throughout the years ended 31 Decamber 2017 and 31 Decembar 2018, all of the Group's leases, as a lessee, were operating leases.
Consequently, the Group recognised a ease charge in the Income statement In 2018 of $13.8m (2017 — $11.9m) based on stralght-line
recognition of the lsase payments payable on each lease after adjustment for lease incentivas received.

IFAS 16 raquires lesseas to recagnise a lease liability in respect of the obligation to make lease payments and a right-of-use asset in respect of
the lessee’s righl fo the exclusive use and conirof of the asset. In the incorme statement, the oparating fease charge as recognised under the
current rutes will be replaced with a straight-linc depreciation charge on the right-of-use asset and an interest cost on the fease liability. Under
IFRS 16, the lease payments will be charged directly against the lease liability.

The Directors have elected to apply both of the IFRS 16 exemptions that permit lessees, under pre-definad canditions, to not recognise a lease
liability and a right-of-use asset in respect of certain leases. The exemptions, which are valunitary, wil! be applied to all leases:

¢ that have a lease term of 12 months or less; or

* that are In respect of assets that have a low value purchase price when new, typically US$5,000 or less.

The recognition of thase “exemptad” leases will therefore continue unchanged — an operating lease charge will be recognised in the incorme
statenent based on straight-line recogniticn of the lease payments payabla on each lease after adjustment for lease incentives received.

The Dirsctors have selacted the modified retrospective approach for the adoption of IFRS 16, Using this approach, together with management's

selected practical expedients that accompany it, 1ne Group will:

* not restate the 2018 or earlier financial information.

* apply IFRS 16 to leases previously identilied In accordance with |AS 17 Leases and IFRIC 4 Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains
a Lease.

« calculate a lease liabiity as at 1 January 2019 based on the remaining lease payments payable after that date.

« calculate the lease term according to management's appetite for exercising any available extension/break/purchase options.

s diacoumt the remaining ornss lease nayments usina the anplicahle interest rate, which will generally be the incremental borrowing rale, as at
1 January 2018 applicable to each relevant business unit, asset type, currency of the arrangement and weighted average length of the lease
fermn dtarting on the commencemeant dats.

* recognise right-of-use assets as at 1 January 2019 as if IFRS 16 had always been applied.

* sxclude any Initial direct costa from the measurement of the right-of-use assets that are recognised on adoption of IFRS 16 as at 1 January 2019,

+ recognise the net difference between the carrying values of the right-of-use assets and the lease liabilities as an adjusiment to equity as at
1 January 2019.

« raecognise an impairment charge against right-of-use assets that are impaired in value by virtue of being unused by the Group in Its usual
business operations and that generate rental income lower than the rental payments.

The expected impact on the year ended 31 December 2018 of adopting IFRS 16 as at 1 January 2018, applying the sams modified retrospective
approach as described above, would have been, approximately to:

* recognise a right-of-use asset as at 31 December 2018 of between $37m and $43m;

« recognise a leass liabdity of between $46m and $52m, with a consequent increase in net debt;

+ reduce total squity as at 31 Decernber 2018 by betwesn $3m and $9m;

* increase underlying EBITDA, as delined by the Group In NGM A, for the year ended 31 Decernber 2018 by betwean $7m and $11m;

* increase operating profit for the year ended 31 December 2018 by between $1m and $3m; and

* increase finance costs for the year ended 31 December 2018 by between $1m and $3m.

The tax eftacts of the adeption of IFRS 186 are still being assessed pending the finahsation of the tax treatment in certain jurisdictions.
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2. Segmental Reporting

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group reports on seven operating segments in its internal management reports, which are used fo
make strategic decisions by the Hunting PLC Board, the Group's Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM". The Group's operating segments
are strategic business units that offer different products and services to Intemational off and gas companies and undertake exploration and
production activities,

The Board assesses the performance of the operating segments based on revenus and operating results. Operating resulis is a profit-based
measure and excludes the effects of amartisaticn of intangible assets recognised as part of a business combinaton and any exceptional itams
{see note ). The Ditectors befieva that using the underlying operating result provides a more consistent and comparable measure of the
cperating segment’s performance.

Interest income and expenditurs are not allocated to segments, as this type of activity Is overseen by the central treasury function, which
manages the funding position of the Group

Inter-segment sales are priced in line with the Group's transfer pricing policy on an arms-fength basis, Costs and overheads are apportioned 0
the operating segments on the basis of time attributed to those operations by senior executives,

Further, the Board Is alsa provided revenue information by product group, in order to help with an understanding of the drivers of Group
performance frands.

Huriting Titan: This sagment manufactures and distributas perforating products and accessories. The segment’s products include the
H-1 Perforating Systern and 1the EQUAfrac™ shaped charge technology. The business has manufacturing facilities in the US and Mexico, and is
supported by strategically located distribution centres across North America,

JS. The US businesses supgly premium connections, oil country tubular goods (*OCTG"), drilling tools, subsea equipment, intervention tools,
electronics and complex deep hole driling and precision machining services for the US and overseas markets. The segment atso produces
perlorating system products for Hunting Titan,

Canada: Hunting's Canadian business manufactures premium connechons and accessories for oil and gas operators in Ganada, often focused
an heawy oil nlavs which reouire spacialist tubing technologies, Canada also manufactures perforating quns,

Europe: This segment derives its revenue primarily from the supply of OCTG and weff intervention equipment to operators iny the North Sea.

Asia Pacific: Revenue Irom the Asia Paclific segment is primarily fram the manufacture of premium connections and CCTG supply. Asia Pacdic
also manufactures parforating guns.

Middle East, Africa and Other: Revenue from this scgment is generated from the sale and rental of in-fleld well intervention products across the
reglon, and the operations also act as sales hubs for ather products manufactured globally by the Group, Including OCTG and Perforating Systems.

Exploration and Production The Exploration and Production busincss comprises the Group's exploration and production activities in the
Southern US and offshore Gulf of Mexico.

Due to its size and nature of operatlons, Hunting Titan's activitias are reported separately. Hunking's non-core Exploration and Production
pusiness unt is also reported separately as its activities are different in nature to the Group's other reporting segments. Although the Canada and
Exploration and Praduction segments do not meet the quantitative thresholds required by IFRS 8 for reporiable segments, these segments are
separately reported and monitored by the Board.

Accounting policies used for segmental raporting reflect those used for the Group.

The LK is the domicile of Hunting PLC
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements contirued

2. Segmental Reparting continued
The following tables present the results of the operating segments on the same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes to the CODM.

{a} Segment Revenue and Profit

2018

Amortisation

Inter- Total and
Segment segment external Underlying  excoptianal Reported
revenue revenua revenue result tems result
m $m $m $m §m $m
Hunting Titan 418.2 (6.9] £11.3 106.8 (26.1) 80.8
Us 427.1 {43.0) 284.1 15.6 (3.2) 12,4
Canada 44.8 [9.6} 35.2 (1.8 - {1.8)
Europe! 86.2 {11.7) 74.5 {10.9) - (10.9)
Asia Pacific 107.0 {26.2) 80.8 (0.8} - {0.8}
Middle East, Africa and Other . 24,2 {1.3) 22,9 {2.9) - i2.9)
Exploration and Preduction 26 - 2.6 (1.4) - 1.4}
Total 1,010.14 (98.7) 911.4 104.7 (29.3} 75.4
Net finance expense 0.7} - 0.7}
Profit before tax from operations 104.0 {29.3) 74.7

Rastafedf
o017

Amarhisation

inter- Total and
Segmeant segment axternal Underhying axreaptional Reported
revenus ravenus revenue result items result
S $m $m 3m 3m $m
Hunting Titan 3128 “4.1) 308.7 66.4 (25.9) 40.5
1S 2189 {14 1) 204.8 P2 9 3.2 {26.1)
Canada 36.5 8.9 276 (3.3) - {3.3)
Europg' 89.2 (5.9) 83.3 (13.7) - (13.7)
Asia Pacffic 88.1 8.3 79.8 44 - 4.4
Middle East, Africa and Other 186 (1.2 17.4 6.7 (10.0} (i8.7)
Exploration and Production 3.3 - 3.3 {i.1) - (1.1
Total 767.4 42.5) 724.8 14.3 (39.1) {24.8)
Net finance expense (1.5) - (1.5
Share of associates' post-tax losses {1.9) - (1.3)
Profit (loss) before tax from operations 1.5 (38.1) (27.8)

I Revenue from axternal customers attnbulable to the UK, the Group's country of domicile, is $55.9m {2017 ~ S85.0m restated)

The information for the year ended 31 Decemnber 2017 has been restated to take into account the change in accounting policy feliewing the
adoption of IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (sea nole 38} and for a changs In the caloulation of central costs Previously, certain
segmental costs had been Identified as central costs.

A breakdown of exlarnal revenue by products and services is presenied below:

Restaley

2018 2017

Sm $m

Perforating Systems 404,14 305.6
QCiG 2774 254.8
Advanced Marnufacturing 98.5 61.1
Intervention Tools 464 34.3
Subsea 30.5 20.8
Drilling Tools 27.6 25.8
Other 24.3 18.2
Exploration and Production 2.6 3.3
Total 911.4 7249
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2. Segmental Reparting continued

[b) Other Segment ltams
2018 charge (credit) 2017 charge {credit}

Depreciation Amortisation  Impairment! Depreciaton  Amortisation Irmpairment!
$m $m $m $m sm m
Hunting Titan 5.3 26.7 1.3 52 26.4 2.1
us 20.0 41 2.6 21.8 36 13
Canada 1.3 - - 1.4 - 0.2
Europe 25 0.9 0.9 37 0.8 2.4
Asia Pacific a7 0.2 0.5 4.8 0.4 -
Middle East, Africa and Cther 1.3 - {t.0) 1.9 - 7.8
Exploration and Production 0.9 - - 0.8 - -
Total 35,0 3.2 4.3 39.8 31.2 3.4

. impairment comprises impament of property, plant and equipment $1.0m (2017 - $7.6m), reversal of impairment of property, plant and equipment $2.0m

(2017 — Bnill, trade and other receivables $1.1m (2017 ~ $0.6m) and nventories $4.2m (2017 - $5.2m),

(v} Geagraphical Non-current Assets

Information on the physical location of non-cuirent assets is presented below, Tha allocated non-current assets below exclude deferred tax

agsets,
2618 2017
. $m $m
Hunting Titan - US 3116 3378
t%unting Titan — Canada 1.5 1.7
Hunting Titan - Other 0.7 1.0
Hunting Titan 313.8 3403
ug 307.8 308.4
Canada 4.6 53
turope' 49,6 .|
Asia Pacific 12,7 18.2
Middle East, Africa and Other 3.2 12.8
Exploration and Production - US 4,3 4.7
695.8 744 8

Unaliocated assets

Deferred tax assets 26.0 4.2
Total non-current assets 721.8 749.0

i. Thevalue of non-current assets localed in the UK, the Group's country of dorrlcite, 1s $42.5m (2017 — $48 1m).

{d) Major Customer

The Group received revenue of $117.1m (2017 — $67.8m) from the Halllburton Company Group, which is 13% (2017 — 9%) of the GroLp’s revenue
from external customers Al of Hunting’s core operating segments have benefifed from trading with Halhburton,

3. Revenue

The Group has recognised the following amounts refating to revenue in the Incame statement, with revenue disaggregated by geographical
markels. The table alse includes a recanciliation of the disaggregated revenue wilh the revenue for the Group’s seven operaling segments

2018

Revenue

from
contracts Tatal
with Rental Other extarnal
customaers ravenug ravanuea reventa
$m Sm $m m
Hunting Tian 411.3 - - 411.3
us 254.5 29.8 — 284.1
Canada 351 0.1 - 35.2
Europe 69.9 4.6 - 74.5
Asia Pacitic 80.8 - - 80.8
Middle East, Africa and Other 17.9 5.0 - 229
Exploration and Produstion o ~ - 26 2.6
869.5 39.3 2.6 911.4

Total

Hunting PLC | 2018 Annual Report and Accounts 107

wodalr 081208

aoUeuan0E eiodion

UOHBW QU] JBUYD  SIUDWIaR]S [RDURUL]

My e o e it

s s e




Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

3. Revenue continued

2017

Ravenue

trom
sontracts Tolal
with Rontal Other external
custemars revenue revanue Tevanua
3m $m $m
Hunting Titan 308.7 - - 308.7
us 176.8 27.9 - 204.8
Canada 27.4 0.2 - 278
Europe 781 5.2 - 83.3
Asia Pacific 70.8 - - 79.8
Middle East, Africa and Othar 13.6 3.8 - 17.4
Exploration and Production - - 3.3 33
Totsl 684.5 371 3.3 724.9

There is no material difference in the timing of revenue recognition batwsen contracts with customers at a point in time and contracts with customers
over tima, as the majorily of Hunting's pafformance obligations are relatively short. Invoices for products are issued when the product is delivered
and invoices for services are issued either on completion of the service or, at 2 minimum, monthly for services covering more than one month.

4, Qther Operating Income

2018 2017
$m $m
Operating leass rental income 1.5 0.7
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 3.0 30
Gain on disposal of held for sale asset - 1.2
Foreign exchangs gains 241 1.8
Other income 1.2 08
7.8 76
1. Includas fair value gains on derwvatves not designated in a hedge of §nil (2017 — $0.1m).
5. Qperating Expenses
2018 2017
$m $m
Administration expenses' before amortisation' and exceptional items 17.4 112.8
Distribution and sefing costs 58.8 53.4
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 2.0 25
Operating expenses before amortisation' and exceptional tems 178.2 168.7
Amortisation and exceptional items {nota €) 29,3 29.1
207.5 197.8
1 Includes foreion exchange losses of $1.1m (2017 ~ $1.8m) and a far value loss on denvatives not designatad In a hedqge of 0.5m (2017 - $nil).
i, Relales fo amartisation of Intangible assets acquired as parl of a business combinalion.
6. Amortisation and Exceptional Items
2018 2017
S$m £m
Closure of South African facility (2.0) 10.0
Closure of Kenya joint venture i 20 -
Charged 1o cast of sales - 100
Amortlsation of intanghle assets charged to aperating expenses 29.3 29.1
Total amortisation and exceptionat items charged to profit (loss) from operations 29.3 39.1
Taxation on amortisation and exceptional items {note 10) {33.0) -
{3.7) 39.1

In December 2017, the Board completed a review of the Group's operating presence in South Alfrica and decided to close its manufaciuring
facitity in Cape Tawn, given the poor market outlock for the medium term and the centinuing drive to reduce losses around the Group. An
impairment of property, plant and equipment totalling $7.6m was recorded In the 2017 financial statements, together with other costs of $2.4m
relating to the closure of the facility.

in 2018, tha Group has revarsed $2,0m of the impairment provision for property, plant and equipment in relation to the closure of the South

Afncan facility in Cape Town. The Group recelved $8 Om In relation to the disposal of property, plant and eguipment from the South African
facility. Hunting will retain a smali sales office for the foresesable future.
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8. Amortisation and Exceptlional ltems continued

Given the modest drilling activity forecast for East Africa in the medium term, the Board has made the decision to close its Kenyan joint venture in
Mombasa. An impairment of property, plant and equipment totailing $1.0m, a loss on dispoza!l of Kenya's rental fleet of $0.5m and a provision for

costs of $0.5m relating to the closure of the facility have boen recognised in the year, totaling $2.0m.,
7. Profit (Loss) from Operations

The fellowing items have been charged (credited) in arriving at profit (loss) from operations:

2048

$m $m
8iaff costs {note 8) 221.3 189.0
Depraciation of property, plant and equipment {note 12) a5.0 39.6
Amoriisation of Intangible assets from business combinations 29,3 20.1
Amorlisation of other intangible assets 2.6 2.1
Amortisation of intangile assets (included in cperating expenses) (note 14) 31.9 31.2
Impairmant of property, plant and equipmenit — exceptional items (included in cost of sales) fote 6) 1.0 7.6
Gain on disposal of held for sale asset - {1.2)
MNet gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment — underiying (1.0) 0.5
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment — exceptional iterns {note 6) X -
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment - reported (0.5 (0.5
Operating lease payments note 35) 13.8 1.8
Research and devealopment expenditure 34 3.7
Fees payable to the Group's independent auditors PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP and its associates for:
2018 2017
$m $m
The audit of these financial statements 1.7 18
T oudi ol s Thand g slalernents L9 Torrpanyte orheidizdas 0.4 nd
Total audit 2.1 22
Audi-related assurance services 0.1 0.1
Totat audit and audit-related services 2.2 2.3
8. Employees
2018 2017
$m $m
Wages and salanes (including annuat cash bonuses) 183.7 156.0
Social security costs 15.1 181
Share-based payments (note 34) 13.2 118
QOther pension costs
- defined contribution schemeas fote 28) 7.6 71
- defined benefit schemes [hote 29) 2.5 i8
Pension income — net interest included in net finance expense (note 29) {0-3) 0.3}
Staff costs for the year 221.8 189.4
Staff costs for the year are included in the financial statements as follows
2018 2017
$m Sm
Staff costs included in profit {loss) from cperations {note 73 2213 189.0
Staff costs included in net finance expense 0.3) {0.3)
Stalf costs capitalised as R&D . _ 0.8 0.7
i 221.8 189.4
The average monthly number of employees by geodaraphical area (including executive Directors) during the year was:
2048 2017
Number Mumber
us 1,798 1,451
Canada 149 133
Eurape 274 288
Asla Pacific 430 425
Middle East, Africa and Msxico 76 87
i ] B 2,727 2,384
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

8. Employees continued

The average monthly number of employeas by operaling segmenit (including exacutive Directors) during the year was:

2018 2017
Number Number
Hunting Titan 646 491
us 1,145 857
Canada 133 118
Europe 254 276
Asia Paclfic 415 399
Middle East, Africa and Other 72 83
Exploration and Production 4 4
Central 58 56
2,727 2,384

The actuai number of employees at the year-end was:
2018 2017
Number Number
Male 2,182 2,071
Female o 580 539
2,772 2,610

Key management comprises the Board and the Executiva Committee that was formed on 30 August 2018, Their aggregate compensation in the
year was:

Rastated

2018 2017

im $m

Salaries, annual cash bonuses and short-term employee benefits 54 3.9
Paymeant In hew or nouce ana otner legal enutiements - il
Soclal securlty costs 0.3 01
Post-employment benefits 0.3 0.3
Share-based payments 2.7 0.8
8.7 8.9

Tha 2018 nurbars for the Executive Committes are pro-rata from formalion on 30 August 2018 to 31 December 2018 The 2017 numbers have been reslated for the Key
Management honuses that ware cmitted in ervor,

Remuneration of the Board, included as part of Key Management compensation, can be found in the Annual Report on Remuneration on
page 78, The Annual Report on Remuneration disclesures do not include Executive Commitlee members who are not part of the Beard and
discloses share scheme remuneration on a vested rather than accruals basis.

Short-term employes benefits comprise healthcare insurance, company cars and fuel benefits. Post-employment benefils comprise emplayer
pension contributions, Share-based payments comprise the charge to the inceme statement.

9. Net Finance Expense

2018 2017
m $m
Finance income:

Bank balances and deposits 0.2 0.3
Pensicn interest incoma 0.4 05
Foreign exchange gains 0.9 0.6
Fair value gans on derivative financial instruments 0.9 -
Fair value gains on Money Market Funds 0.1 -
Other finance incama 0.1 1.9
2.6 3.3

Finance expense:
Bank ovardrafts - 0.1}
Bank borrowings {0.1) {0.9)
Bank fees and commissions (1.2 (2.3)
Foreigh exchange losses 1.4} {1.1}
Other finance expense' (0.8) 0.4)
o } (3.3) 4.8
Net finance expense (0.7) (1.5)

I Inclides fair value losses on darivatives nat dasignated in a hedge of $0.1m {2017 — $nil).
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10, Taxation

2018 2017
Befora Before
amortisation’ Amartigation! amartisattion'  Amorbsation!
and and and and
exceptional  exceptional exaentional exceptional
Items items Total Hems itemns Total
sm §m $m $m $m 8m
Current tax
—current year charge 13.4 - 13.4 34 - 34
— adjustments in respect of prior years @n - 3.7 3.8 - {3.8)
a.7 - a.7 {04 — 0.4}
Deferred tax
~ origination and reversal of temporary differences 17.1 (7.7) 8.4 23 - 2.3
—recognition of US daefarred tax {3.6) {25.3) {28.9) — - -
—change in tax rate {0.4) - {0.4) {0.4) - 0.4
— adjustments in respect of prior years (0.8) — {0.8} (0.5 — 05
123 (33.0} {20.7) 1.4 - 1.4
Taxation charge {credit) 22.0 (33.0} {11.0} 1.0 - 1.0

| Aelatas to amortisation of intangibla assets acquired as part of a business combination,
The weighted average applicable tex rate to operations before amortisation and exceptional items is 21% {2017 — 9%).

Atax credit of $7.7m (2017 - $nil) has been included in the income statement in respect of current year amortisation of intangible assets recognised
as part of amortisation and exceptional items. A further credit of $25,3m relates to the recognition of US deferred tax and shown as a credit
against amartisation and exceptional items consistent with our treatment of tax on amortisation in priar years. This has been recagnised for the
US due to strong performance in the year and cumant projections for the next two years.

The adjustment In respect of prior years of $3.7m {2017 — $3.8m) for current tax includes the relsase of provisions for uncertain tax positions thal
alC Lo HOyge! teyuiied.

The fotal tax credit (2017 — charge) for the year is higher (2017 — higher) than the standard rate of UK corporation tax of 13% {2017 - 18.25%) for
the following reascns;

Restated
2018 2007
$m &mn
Reported profit {loss) before tax 74.7 (27.6)
Tax at 19% (2017 — 19.25%) 14.2 5.9
Permanent differences Inciuding tax credits 2.6 2.4
Higher rate of tax on overseas results 5.7 0.7
Current year losses not recognised 0.5 8.3
Tax losses recagnised (20,1} -
Change in tax rates 0.4 oF:]
Adjustments in respect of prior years {4.5) (4.3)
Taxation {11.0) 1.0
Tax effects relating 1o each component of ather comprehensive income were as follows:
2018 . 2057
Tax (chargad) - Tax (charged)
Before tax credited After tax Beloratax credited After tax
£m Ll $rim $m $m $m
Exchange adiustments 8.4) - 8.4) 12.8 ©.1) 127
Fair value gains {losses) originating on fair value hedge
arising during the year - - - 0.3 0.1 0.2
Fair value gains {losses) originating on cash flow hadge
arising during the vear 0.3 {0.9) 0.2 {0.2) - .2}
Fair value losses transferred to the income
statement on disposal of cash flow hedges - - - 0.1 - 01
Remeasurement of defined benefit pension schemes 1.1 0.4 1.5 (1.8) - {1.6)
(7.0} 0.3 {6.7) 10.8 — 10.8

A number of changes to the UK corporation tax system were announced in the Chancelicr's Auturmn Budget on 29 Cctoher 2018, The Finance
Act 2018 was enacted on 12 February 2018. Tha Finance Bill 2018, which received Royal Assent on 15 September 20186, Included reductions to
the main rate of corporation tax to reduce the rate to 17% from 1 April 2020. The changes are not expected to have a material impact on the

Group's deferred tax balances.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

11. Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) is cafculated by dividing the earnings attributable to Ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number of
Ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

For diluted carnings per share, the weighted average number of ouistanding Ordinary shares is adjusted to assume conversion of all dilulive
patential Ordinary shares. The dilution in respect of share options applies whare the exercise price Is less than the average market price of the
Comparw's Ordinary sharas during the yaar and the possibie issue of shares under the Group's leng-term incentive plans.

Recongillations of the earnings and welghted average number of Ordinary shares used in the calculations are set out below:

Restated
2018 2017
_$m $m
Reported earnings {loss) attributable to Ordinary shareholders 89.3 (28.1)
Add: amortisaiion' and exceplional Hems after taxation fhote 6) 4.5) 3841
Underlying earnings attributable to Ordinary shareholders 84.8 13.0
miiilons mong
Basic weighted average number of Ordinary shares ' 164.1 163.3
Long-term incentive plans 3 6.6 6.8
Adjusted welghted average number of Qrdinary shares 170.7 170.1
cents CEME
Reported earnings {loss) per share
Basic EPS 544 (16.0)
Diluted EPS# 523 (16.0)
Underlying earnings per share
Basic EPS 516 8.0
Riluted EPSF 49.6 8.0

1. Relates to amortisation of nfangiole assels acquired as part of a busmess cembination.
v For the year ended 31 December 2017, the sffect of difutive shara options and fong-term Ncentive plans was anti-diiutive and, tnerefora, they have not been used 0

calculate dituted earnings per share,
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12. Property, Plant and Equipment

Year ended 31 Dacember 2018

Plant, Qil and gas
machinery exploration
Land and and motor and
buitdings vehicles Rentalloala development Total
$mn $m $m $m
Cost:
At 1 January 262.3 336.2 87.3 1818 887.6
Exchange adjustments (2.7) 4.7} 1.2 - (8.6)
Additions 3.6 20.1 53 0.5 30.0
Disposals (13.2) (10.3) @.n - (33.2)
Recfassification to inventores - {0.1) 1.2 - {1.9)
Reclassification - 0.1 0.1) - -
Al 31 December T 250.0 341.3 80.9 182.3 854.5
Accumulated depreciation and impairment:
At 1 January 46.2 218.0 414 178.7 484.3
Exchange adjustments (0.8} (3.8 (1.1) - {5.7)
Charge for the yaar 6.4 23.6 4.1 0.9 35.0
Impairment of assets {ote 6) - 1.0 - - 1.0
Reversal of Impairrnent of assets {1.9) {0.1) - - (2.0)
Disposals {4.4) 6.8 (5.8) - (17.0)
Reclassification to inventories - (0.4) {0.8) - (1.3)
Reclassification - 0.1 {0.1) - -
At 31 December 45.5 231.6 3756 179.6 494.3
Net hook amount 204.5 109.7 43.3 2,7 360.2
11 2018, the Givuge biew ot SRS Bet RONTI BLIN KT Dt inian fe T e Teoen prepprty and N Ty Far alant and rmachinary shich weme

sold i 7018 following the Board's decision to close the Souih Afncan faclllty The reversal of the impalrment has been recorded in the 2018
financial statemaents as an exceptional item (see note 6) and it 18 shown in the Middle East, Africa and Other operating segment (note 2).

Given the modesl driling ectivity forecast for East Africa in the medium term, the Board has made the decision tc close its Kenyan jont venture
in Mombasa. Plant, machinery and motor vehicles were impaired by $1.0m in the year. The impairment has been recorded in the 2018 financial
slatements as an sxceptional item {ses nate B} and it 1s shown 1n the Middle East, Afnca and Other operating segment (note 2},

Included in the net book amount is expenditure relating te assets In the course of construction of $2.5m (2617 — $0.2m) for buildings and $71m
(2017 — $3.6m) for plant and machinery.

Group capital expenditure committed for the purchase of property, plant and equipment, but not provided for in these financial stalements,
amounted to $15.0m {2017 - $0.9m).

The net book amount of land and buildings of $204.6m {2017 ~ $216.1m) comprises freehold [and and buildings of $202.4m (2017 - $213.1m) and
capitaiised leasehold improvements of $2.1m (2017 - $3.0m).

In accordance with the amendmenis made to the Group's core committed bank facllity in July 2018, security has been granted over spaciic
proparties, plant and equipmeant in the UK and US, which have a carrying value of $229.6m (2017 ~ $230.8m).

Gil and gas productive and development assets are fested for impairment al lzast annually. Following a valuation of cil and gas reserves at

31 December 2018, perlormed for imparment purposes, no impairment chargss were required (2017 — $ri). The recoverable amount of oil and
gas development expenditure is based on value-in-use, These calculations use discounted cash flow projections based on estimated o and gaa
reserves, future production and the income and costs in generating this production. Gash flows are based on productive lives between one and
156 years and are discounted using a nomnal pre-tax rate of 10% (2017 ~ 10%).

The carrying valuc of PPE assets in certain CGUs remains sensitive to reasonably foreseeable declines in future revenue arowth as measured by
changes in compound annual growth rates ("CAGHs™). These sensitivities are based on the impairment test process described in note 13,

* For Canada, if the CAGR for 2018 to 2023 is below 4% this will result in impairment (2017 - 11% CAGR for 2017 {0 2022), An increase in
discount rates of 60 basis points would also trigger impairment. The net bock value of PPE in Canada is $2.7m (2017 - $3.4m).

* For Aberdeen/Netherlands CCTG If the CAGR for 2018 to 2023 Is below 6% this will result in impairment (2017 — 2% CAGR for 2017 to 2022},
The net book value of PPE in Aberdeen/Netherlands OCTG Is $5.7m (2017 - $7.6m).

Thera are no other reasonably foreseeable changes in revenues growth rates that would give rise to impawrment charges in other CGUs.
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Notes to the consclidated financial statements continuec

12. Property, Plant and Equipment continued

Year ended 31 Decamber 2017

Plant Qi and gas
mackinery exploration
Land and and motor and
buldngs vehicles Rentalicols  developrment Total
$m gm jm $m $m
Cost:
At 1 January 2559 3291 g92.9 181.6 859.5
Exchange adjustments 4.3 8.8 10 - 124
Additiens 1.7 7.5 2.1 0.2 116
Disposals 0.2 8.8 (7.9) - {14.9)
Reclassification from {to} inventories - 0.2 {0.8) - {0.6}
Reclassification 0.6 0.6) - - -
At 31 Dacember 262.3 336.2 87.3 181.8 867.6
Accumulated depreciation and impairment:
At 1 January 342 188.7 3s8.7 177.9 440.5
Exchange adjustments 11 5.1 07 - 6.9
Charge for the year 8.8 26.8 52 0.8 396
Impairment of assets {hote 6) 4.3 2.8 0.4 - 7.6
Disposals 0.1 [5.6) (3.5) - 9.2)
Reclassification to inventories - - (tH - 1.1
Reclassification 0.1 0.1 - - -
At 31 December 48.2 2180 41.4 178.7 484.3
Net book amount 216.1 118.2 4590 3.4 383.3
The net bock amount of property, plant and equipment at 1 January 2017 was $419.0m.
13. Goodwill
2018 27
$m sm
Cost:
Al 1 January 516.1 5151
Exchange adjustments {3.0) 3.0
At 31 December 5186.1 5181
Accumulated Impairment:
Al 1 January 287.8 285.3
Exchange adjusiments [2.6) 25
At 31 December 2B85.2 287.8
Net book ameunt 2299 230.3
The net book amount of goodwill at 1 January 2017 was $2289,8m.
(a) Impairment Tests for Goodwil!
Goodwil 15 allocated to the Group's cash-generating units ("CGUs™ as follows:

2018 2017
cGuU $m $m
Hunting Titan 180.4 180.5
Hunting Stafford "Subsea” {formally National Coupling Company} 16.0 15.0
Dearborn 12.5 12.5
US Manutaciuring 128 12.6
Hunting Specialty 5.0 5.0
European Well Intervention (Weltonic acquisition) 4.5 4.8
At 31 December i 220.9 230.3
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13. Goodwill continued

(&) Impairment Tests for Goodwlil continued

The recovarable amount for gach CGU has been defermined using a fair value less costs of disposal ("FVLCD") method, which represents the
value of the CGU in a sales transaction on an arm’s-length basis. As there is no aclive market for the Group's CGUs, the FVYLCD is determined
using discounted cash flow techniques based on the estimated fulure gross cash flows that are expected ic be generated by the CGU and are
discounted al a rate that is determined for each CGL in isolalion by conslderation of their business risk profilas. This mathod allows approved
capital projects thet are in progress to be mcluded. The recoverable amount calculations use discounted pre-tax nominal cash flow profections.
The FWLCD is a Level 3 measurement as per the fair value hierarchy es defined within IFRS 13 dus to unobservable inputs used in tha valuation.

The key assumptions for the recoverable amount calculations are revenue growth rates, taking into account the impact these have on margins,
terminal growth rates and the discount rates applied.

For 2019, cash flows are based on the approved Board budget. For 2020 to 2023, management has made revenue projections using Spears and
Aszcciates “Driling and Production Outlook” Independent reports as a default basis, selecting the most appropriate geographic markets and
dnvers (r'g count, foctage driled or E&P spend} for each CGU. Management has then applled judgemental changes to revenue growth
expactations, if appropriate, to reflect circumstances specific ta the CGLI. Having determined the prajected revenues, management has then
modelled the expected Impact on margins and cash flow from the resulting revenue projections.

2078 has seen a continuation of the resavery for the Graup, in particular as a result of the growth of the US onshore market and has seen
modest improvernents in US offshore and some international markets. This mixed ploture impacts CGUs differently depending on their exposure
to these markets and compound annual growth rates {"CGAGR") for revenue for the CGUs from 2018 to 2023 vary between 3% and 13%

(2017 — GAGR from 2017 to 2022 belwean 8% and 19%). These growth rates should be seen in the context of the year-on-year declines in
revenue in 2018 and 2016, which were 42% and 44% respectively, and the growth in revenue during 2017 and 2018 of 5% and 26%
respectively. After 2023, a terminal value has been calculated assurning growth of 50 basis points above assumed inflation, giving nominat
growth rates hetween 2% and 3% (2017 — between 2% and 3%).

Cash flows have been discounted using nominal pre-tax rates beiween 10% and 11% (2017 — 9% and 11%). The discount rates reflect current
markel assessments of the equity rmarket risk premiums, the volatility of returns, the risks associated with the cash flows, the lkely external
borowing rate of the CGL! and expected lavels of leverage. Consideration has also been given to other factors such as currency risk, operational
Al apd frmtry delk

No impaitment charges have been recorded as a result of the impairment review carried cut in the year (2017 — $nif}.

{b) Material CGU

Hunting Titan - Hunling Titan represents 78% of the goodwill balance at the year-end {2017 — 78%} and has a carrying value, including amounts
recognised on consolidation such as goodwill, of $500.8m (2017 — $450.5m). Projected annual growth rates from 2018 to 2023 vary between 2%
and 5% {2017 — growth rates fram 2017 to 2022 between 2% and 12%). Growth rates are lower following the record performance during 2018,
Cash flows have been discounted at a nominal pre-tax rate of 11% (2017 - 10%). There is no reasonably foreseeable change in revenue grawth
rates, or terminal growth ratas, or discount rates, which will give rise to imparment charges.

{c) Sangitivities
Management has reviewed various downside sensitivities versus the base case assumplions used in our projections. These covered revenug
growth rates, terminal revenue growth rates and discount rates.

For our European Well Intervention CCU, if our CAGR from 2018 tc 2023 is below 6% this will result In an impairment to the $4.5m goodwill
carnying value.

For the other CGUs, management has concluded thait there are no reasonably possible changes in key assumptions that wilf gwe rise to an
impairment.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

14. Other [ntangible Assets

2018
Customer Unpatented Patentsand
relationships technolegy  trademarks QOther Tatal
$m $m $m $m $m
Cost:
At 1 January 2471 728 57.3 22,0 399.2
Exchange adjustments {0.2) {0.3) (0.1} {0.3) (0.9)
Additions - 54 0.9 0.3 6.6
At 31 December 246.9 779 58,1 22.0 404.9
Accumulated amortisation and impairment:
At 1 January 1721 35.8 45.1 21,0 273.8
Exchange adjustments (0.2} 0.4} - {0.3) 0.6)
Charge for the year 1.7 6.8 28 0.3 312
At 81 December 193.6 42,3 7.7 215 3805.1
Net book amount 53.3 356 10.4 0.5 99,8
2017
Custornar Unpatented Patants and
relatfonships tachralegy trademarks Other Tata!
$m &m $m sm $m
Cost:
At 1 January 246.8 69,2 55.0 218 302.8
Exchange adjustments 03 0.3 01 0.4 11
Additions - 5.0 0.5 - 5.5
Disposals ~ (1.7} 1.7 - -
Al 31 December 2471 72.8 573 22.0 389.2
Accumutated amartisation and impairment:
At 1 danuary 16500 285 425 18.9 241.9
Exchange adjustments 03 0.1 - 0.3 Qa7
Charge for tho year 218 6.2 24 0.8 a1z
Reclassification - {0.2) 0.2 - -
At 31 Dacember 1724 35.5 45.1 21.0 273.8
Net book amount 75,0 37.2 12,2 1.0 1254

Tha net book amount of other intangible assets at 1 January 2017 was $150.7m.

Other intangibile assets of $0.5m (2017 — $1.0m) inciude software of $0.4m {2017 - $0.7m).

Internally generated intangible assets have been included within unpatented technology. The carrying value at the beginning of the year was
$17.1m {restaled) (2017 — $12.8m restated). Additions during the year were $5.4n1 (2017 — $4.7m restated) and the amortisation charge for the
yaar was $1.4m (2017 - $0.7m restated). After foreign exchange losses of $0 3m (2017 — $0.3m gains), the carrying value at the end of the year

was $20.8m (2017 — $17.1m restated).

Internally generated intangble assets have also been included within patents. The carrying value at the beginning of the year was $4.5m

{2017 - $3.5m). Additions during the year were $0,9m (2047 - $1.6m) and the amortisation charge for the year was $0.9m (2017 - $0.7m).

foreign exchange losses of $0.1m {2017 — $0.1m gains), the carrying value al the end of the year was $4,4m (2017 - $4.5m).

After

Ali intangible assets are regarded as having a finte e and are amortised accordingly. All amortisation charges relating to intangible assets have

been charged to operaling expenses.

Included In other intangible assets are balances for CGUs which may be subject to impairment sensitivities as fallows: European Wall Intervention

$2.8m (2017 - $2.8m), Canada $1,9r0 (2017 ~ $1.0m) and Aberdeany/Netherlands OGTG $0.1m (2017 - $0.4m). Detalls of the sensitivity for the
European Wel Intervention CGU can be found in note 13 and for Canada and Aberdeen/Netherlands OCTG details can be found in note 12,

Individual Material Intangible Assets
tncluded in the table abave are custamer relationships, purchased as part of the Titan ecquisition with a net book value of $51.5m

{2017 — $70.5m). The cost brought forward and at the year-end was $190.2m (2017 — $190.2m). Following the amortisation charge of $19 Om for

the year (2017 — $18.0m), accumulated amortisation at the year-end was $138.7m (2017 — $119.7m), The intangible asset has a remaining
amortiaation period at the year-end of 2.8 years (2017 - 3.8 years).
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15. Investments

2018 2017
$m i
Listed equity Investments and mutual funds 1.7 12,2

The listed equity investments and mutual funds are presented on the balance shest as non-current irvestments of $1.7m (2017 — $1.8m) and
current investmants of $nil (2017 — $10.4m). The listed equity invesiments and mutual funds are equity Instruments measured at fair valua though
profit or logs, Returns on the listed equity investments and mutual funds of $nil (2017 — $1.8m} have been included in other finance income in note 9.

16. Trade and Other Receivables

2048 2017
$m $m
Non-current:
Loan note 0.6 1.3
Prepayments 2.5 1.7
Other raceivables 04 0.3
T 3.5 3.3
2098
Contracts
with Rental Gther
customers  recaivables  receivables Total
$m $m $m §m
Current:
Contract assets 11.8 - - 11.8
Trade raceivables 1721 126 0.3 185.0
Acorued revenue 5.3 2.6 - 7.9
Gross receivables 189.2 15.2 0.3 204.7
Less: provision for impairment (2.7} (0.3) - (3.0}
Net receivables 186.5 14,9 0.3 201.7
Prepayments - - 22,5 22,5
Loan nNGis - - 0.6 0.6
Other receivables’ - - 6.2 6.2
Net book amount 186.5 14.9 20.6 231.0
I, Gther reselvables Include a prowisian far imparment of S0.1m
Reslatad
2017
Contracts
with Rantal Other
cuslomers fecaivables raceivables Tatal
§m m
Current:
Contract assets 6.8 - - 6.8
Trade racevables 139.8 12.9 - 152.8
Accrued revenue 4.5 17 - 8.2
Gross receivables 151.2 14.8 - 185.8
Less: provision for impairment (4.4} (©.4) - (4.8
Net receivables 146.8 14.2 - 1610
Prepayments - - 17.6 17.6
Cther receivables - - Al 7.1
Net book amount 146.8 14.2 24.7 185.7

Trade recaivables of $185,0m [2017 — $152.8m1), accrued revanue of $7.9m (2017 - $6.2m) and the loan note of $1.2m (2017 - $1.3m) are finarcial
assels measured at amortised cosl, Interest income on the loan note is included within other finance income In note 9. The amount is immaterial

N 2018 and 2017. Interest charged on the loan is based on three-moenth LIBOR plus 2.75%.

Other recevables generally aise fram Iransactions outside the usual operating activities of the Group and comprisé recevablas from associates
of $0.4m (2017 - $0.5m), receivable on liquidation of asscclate of $nil (2017 - $1.3m), tax receivables (VAT, GST, franchise laxes, and sales and
use taxeg) of $4.1m (2017 — $3.8m), derivative financial assets $0.7rm (2017 — $nif) and other recsivables of §1.4m (2017 - $1.8m). Recevables
from associates, the receivable on liquidation of an associate and other receivables are financial assets measured at amortised cost. Derivative
financial assets of $0.5m 2017 — $nil} are held for irading measured at fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial assets of $0.2m

{2017 — $nil) are designated in a hedge measured at falr value

The Group doss not hold any collateral as security and no assets have been acquired through the exerclse of any collateral previously held. In
accordance with the amendments made to the Group's core committed bark facility in July 2016, security has been granted over certain trade
recaivablas and other racsivables In tha UK, US and Canada, which have a gross value of $153.6m (2017 - $125.4m). For the receivables

pledged as security, thelr carrying valiue approximates thelr fair value,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

16. Trade and Other Receivables continued

[mpairment of Trade and Other Receivables

The Group has chosen to apply lifetime expected credit losses ("ECLs") to trade receivables, accrued revenue, contract assets and lease
receivables, bath short term and long term, upon their initial recognition. Each entity within the Group uses provision matrices for recognising
ECLs on its recaivables, which are based an actual credit loss experience over the past two years, at a minimum. Receivables are appropriately
grouped by geographical region, product type or type of customer, and separate calculations produced, i historical or farecast credit loss
experience shows significantly different loss patterns for different customer segments. Actual credit loss experience Is then adjusted to reflect
differances in economic conditions ovar the period the histoncal data was ccollected, current economic conditions, forward-lcoking information
and the Group's view of economic conditions over the expected livas of the receivables.

The Group assesses, on a forward-looking basis, the ECLs at each balance sheet date associated with its [oan note that is carried at amortisad
cosl, The impairment methodalogy applied, follkowing the adoption of tha general model under IFRS 8, will depend on whether there has been a
significant increase in credi risk. To assess whsther there has been a significant increase in cradit risk, the risk of default occurring on the loan
as at 31 Decembear 2018 is compared with the risk of default occurring as at the date of inihal recognrtion, being 31 March 2015, Indications of
a significant Increase in credit gk include events that have a negative impact on the estimated future cash flows and if any payments under the
tarms of the debt are more than 30 days overdue. Macroeconomic information is also considered, including the current state of the tanker shipping
markat. The terms of the loan note were ravised during 2017. There have been no breaches of the revised terms during 2018. Therefore, the
Group does not consider thers to have been a significant increase in credit risk.

During the year, the movements on the provision for impairment were as follows'

2018
Contracts
with Hental Cther
customers  receivables receivables Total
Sm &m $m 3m
At 1 danuary (calculated under IAS 39) 4.4 04 - 4.8
Amounts restated through opening retained eamings (note 38{bY) 0.2 - - 0.2
Al 1 January restated {calculated under IFRS 9) 4.6 04 - 5.0
Exchange adjustments {0.1} - - (0.1)
Charge o e oo atement - febmic evpected ~rodit loceac 0o 0.5 N1 1.6
Unused provisions released 1o the income statement {0.3) {0.2) - (C.5)
Utilisad against receivables written off {2.4) {0.5) - {2.9)
2.7 0.3 C.1 3.1
2017
Contracts
wath Rental Qther
customers recewables recevables Total
m $m #m
At 1 January 4.1 0.3 -~ 4.4
Charge to the income statement 1.7 04 - 1.8
Unused provisions reteased o the income statemerit 1.2 - - {1.2)
Utiisad against receivables written off 0.2) — — {0.2)
44 0.4 — 4.8

Default on a financial assel 1s usually considered to have accurred when any contractual payments under ihe terms of the debt are more than 80
days overdue and no further deliveries are made or services provided to that custormer Lnless thare is a valid reason to do so.

Receivables are written off when there Is no reasonable expeclation of recovery. Indicators that receivables are generally not recoverable include
the failue of the debtor to cngage m a repayment plan, ailure to make contractual payments for a pariod greater than 180 days past due and the
debtor being placed 1n administration. Where receivables have been writien off, the entity will conlinue 10 iry and recover the outstanding recelvable,
Impairment losses on receivables are presented not of unusad provisions relsased 1o the income statement within cperaling expenses,

Concentrations of credt risk with respect to trade receivables are imited due lo lhe Group's wids and unrelated customer base. The Group's

maximum exposure tc any single trade deblor does not exceed $9.8m. The maximum expesure to credit risk is the carrying amount of each
class of financial assets mentioned above. The carrying value of each class of receivable approximates their fair value as described in note 28,

118 Hunting PLC | 2018 Annual Report and Accounts




17. Deferrad Tax
Deferred income tax assets and llabllities are onfy offset when there Is a legally enforceable right to offset, when the deferred income taxes relate
1o the same fiscal authority and there Js an intention to settle the balancs net. The offset amounts are as Toilows:

2018 2017
$m $m
Deferred tax assets 26.0 4.2
Deferred tax llabllities (1.2} .2)
24.8 2.0)

The movement in the net deferred tax asset {liability) s as follows:
2018 2017
$m im
At 1 January (2.0} (5.6
Exchange adjustments 0.4 {0.3)
Cradit {charge) to the income statement 20.3 (1.8
Change in tax rates 0.4 0.4
Taken direct 1o equity 0.2 -
Other movements 5.5 5.3
At 31 December 24.8 (2.0)

. Tns credit (2017 - charge) to the income statemant compnsas a chaige of $8.4m (2017 - $2.3m charge) %or the orgiration and reversal of temporary dilferences,
acredht for the recognition of US deferred tax of $28.9m 2017 — $nif) and a eredit of $0.8m (2017 - $0.5m cradit) for adjustrments in respact of prior years {note 10).

The change In tax rates relates to the rate at which UK deferred tax balances are recorded. Other moverments of $6.5m {2017 — $56.3m) include
$5.8m for the release of the deferred tax Habllity 1o offset tax withheid at source by the UK pension scheme foliowing the repayment of a net
$10.6m surplus to the Company.

Deferred tax assets of $35 4m gross and $8.1m tax (2017 — $174.0m gross and $39.8m tax) have not been recognised as realisation of the tax
benefit is not probable, This includes $34.4m gross and $7.9m tax {2017 — $164.5m gross and $37.1m tax) in respect of trading losses, which
have no expiry date Ueterrad 1ax assets of $26.0m (2017 ~ $4.210) ara uxpacisa 10 be recoveled gilel 11016 Widn 12 ihollie, Leichisl lax
labilities of $1.2m (2017 — $6.2m} are expeactad to be released within 12 months.

A deforred tax asset of $19 1m (2017 — $2.8m) has been recogrised in raspect of tax losses in various locations on the basis of foracast future
taxable profits against which those tax losses could be utilised. Post-retirement benetits include $nil (2017 — $8.5m) In respact of the tax that will
be withheld at source on the future refunds of the surplus from the pension scheme.

The mavements in deferred tax assets and liabifities, prior to taking into consideration the offsatting of balances within the same tax jurisdictions.
are shown below:

{Charge] Net

At creditic Taken At Net  deferred

1 January Exchange income Changein direct to Other 31December deferrad tax

2018 adjustments statsment taxrates equity movements 2018 tax assels liabilities

$m Sm §m $m $m sm Sm $m $m

Tax losses 2.8 0.1 112 0.9) - 4.4 19.1 191 -
nventory 5.2 - 6.0 - - (4.9} 6.3 6.3 -
Goodwill and intangitles 11.7 - 10.2 - - {11.9) 10.0 10.2 (0.2}
Paost-retirement benefits (4.8) 0.3 - 0.4 04 4.0 0.3 0.3 -
Asset decommigsioning provision 1.2 - 1.1 - - {1.2) 1.1 11 -
Accumulated tax depreciation {14.5) 0.1 (16.9) - - 14.1 {17.2) {16.0) {1.2)
Share-based payments 0.8 - 3.3 - {0.2) - 3.9 3.9 -
Other (4.4) {0.1) a7 0.1 - 10 1.3 1.1 0.2
{2.0) 0.4 20,3 0.4 0.2 5.5 24.8 26.0 {1.2)

{Chargs) Net

Al creait to Taken At Mat delatred

t January Exchange ncome  Changain directio Other 31 December deferred tax

2017 adjustments  slatement fax rates equity  movements 2017 1axassels habiiities

$m $m m 3m $m il $m $m &m

Tax losses 5.6 0.3 3.2) 0.1 - - 28 28 -
Inventory 7.3 ~ - - - 2.1} 52 0.3 49
Goodwil and intangibles 9.1 - 0.5) - - 6.8 11.7 - 1.7
iPost-retirement benefils {8.8) ©.7) o3 0.3 - 4.1 {4.8) - {4.8)
Asset decommissioning provision 241 - - - - 0.9) 1.2 - 1.2
Accumulated tax depreciation (23.5) - 05 - - 8.5 {14.5) 0.6 {15.1}
Share-based payments 6.5 - 0.3 - - - 0.8 - 0.8
Other [7.9) 0.1 0.8 - - 2.6 (4.4} 0.5 4.9)
(5.6 0.3) 1.8 04 — 5.3 2.0) 42 6.2)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

17. Deferred Tax continued

Now that deferred tax assets have been recognised in full for the US, the net adjusted tax assets for goodwill and intangibles is shown as a net
defarred tax asset. For 2017, deferred tax assets wars nol recognised In respect of assets above deferred tax Fabilities and conseguently is
shown in net deferred tax habilities.

18. Inventories,

Restated

2018 2017

$m Em

Raw materials 113.8 88.7
Work in progress &71.7 474
Flnlshed goods - 191.2 163.9
Gross Inventories 372.7 309.2

L ass: provisions for losses {24.5) {28.2)
Net inventories 348.2 281.0

The net inventory balance comprises $295.2m of inventory carried at cost (2017 — $226.7m restated) and $53.0m of Inventory carried at net
reafisable value {2017 — $54.3m}. [n determining an estimate of net realisable value, managemeant makes judgements in respect of the durability
and gensral high quality of the Group’s products, which provide a degree of pratection against adverse markst conditions and compatitor
product development and pricing activity.

Gross inventaries have increased $63.6m from $308.2m (restated) at 31 Decemiber 2017 to $372.7m at 31 December 2018, Addttions to
invertories were $670.4m (2017 — $534.2m), which were offset by foreign exchange losses of $6.8m (2017 — $8.0m gains), inventories expensed
to cost of sales of $592.8m (2017 — $514.7m restated), inventeries written off of $7.3m {2017 — $4.2m) against the inventory provision and
inventories transferred to PPE of $nil 2017 — $0.5m).

The inventory provision has decreased by $3.7m from $28.2m (restated) at 31 December 2017 to $24.5m at 31 Decembar 2018, as a result of an
mpairment charge Included in cost of sales of $6.2m {2017 — $6.6m), offsel by foreign exchange gains of $0.6m (2017 — $0.9m losses), $7.3m
(20117 - $4.2m} of the prowision being utlised In the year against inventories written off and the reversal of previous wnte-downs of $2.0m

{2017 - $1.4m) also included in cost of sales. The reversal of previous wiite-downs occurred when inventory was sold for an amaount higher than
its net realisable value and also where older inventories, which had previousty baen written off, were sold as market conditiors improved in the ail
and gas seclor. Dverall, Hunting’s provision for inventory losses has reduced from 9% of gross inventory balances at 31 December 2017 to 7% at
31 December 2018, as improving market condtiens have lead to a lower proportion of inventories having a recoverable value less than ther cost.

In accardance with the amendments made ta the Group's core committad bark fachity in July 2016, securty has been granted over inventories
in certain subsidiaries in the UK, US and Canada, which have a gross value of $234,1m (2017 —$188 8m).

The Group expects that $280.0m (2017 — $211.8m restaled) of the Group’s invenlories of $348.2m (2017 — $281.0m restated) will be realised
within 12 months of the balance sheet date and $568.9m (2017 — $69.1m) will be realised after 12 months.

19. Trade and Dther Payables

2018 2017
Sm $m
Non-current:
US deferred compensation plan obligation (note 29) 1.7 1.8
Accruals 1.4 16
Social security and other taxes 0.7 0.5
Other payables — derivative financtal liabilfies - 01
D ) ) o 3.8 3.9
Restaled
2018 2017
$m $m
Current:
Centract Fabilities 5.5 9.1
Trade payables 62.3 47.3
Socdial security and other taxes a8 9.3
Accruals §9.9 48.9
US deferred compensation plan obligation {note 29} - 10.4
Other payables 44 49
B 140.9 1309

Trade payables of $62.3m (2017 — $47.3m), acciuals of $61.3m (2017 — $51.4m) and other payables of $4.3m (2017 ~ $3.0m) are financial labilties
measured at amortised cost. Cther payebles also nclude dervative financlal labiliies of $0.1m (2017 — $0.4m} he'd for trading measured at fair
value through profit or doss, derivative financial liabilities designated in a far value hedge measured at falr value of $nll {2017 - $0.5m) and
derivative financial liabilties designated in a cash flow hedge measured at fair value of $nil (2017 -- $0.1m).
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20. Contract Assets and Liabilities

The following table provides information about recelvables, contract assets and contract liabilities from contracts with customers.

2018 2017

$m Sm

Contract assets {note 16) 11.8 6.8
Contract Habilities {note 18) (5.5) @)

Trade recelvables — contracts with customers (note 16) 1724 139.9
Loss allowance (2.7) {4.4)

Net trade receivables — contracts with customers 1569.4 135.5

There was an Impalrment write-down of $0.9m recognised In refation to recelvables arising on the Group's contracts with customers, forelgn
exchange gains of $0.1m, $2.4m of the provision was utilised in the year against receivables writlen off and $0.3m reversal of an mpairment
write-down in relation to recelvables arising on contracts with customers,

(a) Significant Changes in Contract Assets and Coniract Liabilities
Contract assets have Increased from $6.8:m in 2017 to $11.8m due to increased levels of bespoke custorner work-in-progress in Hunting Dearborn.

Contract labilities represent deposits received on contracts relating to the purchase of pipe in the Asia Pacific businesses, prior to Hunling
olacing an order with the steel mllls, and have decreased from $9,1m in 2017 to $5.5m due to a change in the mix of orders at the year-end,
whereby customers were not required to pay a deposit when placing an order.

{b) Revenus Recognised in Relation to Contract Liabilities
The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the current reporting period relates to carried-forward contract fiabilities and
how much relates to performance ebligations that were satisfied in a pnor year.

2018 2017

$m $m

Revenue recognlsed that was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of the year 8.8 1.6
Povepon reocgreed frone perltiaance obfgatiors sotiefed {orpartaly, culsfed) nprovicus gfeorn - -
Total 8.8 1.6

(c) Unsatisfled Performance Obligations

The aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated o partially or fully unsatisfied performance obligations as at the year-end on confirmed
purchase orders receivad prior ta the year-end is $250.2m. [t is expected that 87% or $243.0m will be recognised as revenue in the 2019 iinancial
year and the remaining 3% or $7.2m in futore years.

As permitted under the transitional provisicns of IFRS 15, the transaction price allocated 1o unsatisfied performance cbligations as of 31 December
2017 1s not disclosed.

21, Cash and Cash Equivalents

2018 2017

Sm $m

Cash at bank and in hand 324 364
Money Market Funds 26.1 -
Short-term deposits of less than three month's maturity 9.4 -
67.9 36.4

Cash at bank and in hand and shorl-term deposits are carried al amartised cosl, Money Market Funds are financial assets carried al fair value
through profit or loss,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

22, Borrowings

2018 2017
$m 3m

Non-current:

Other unsecured loans 3.9 3.9

Current:

Bank overdrafts secured 1.8 2.1

Unsecured bank loans 0.9 -
2.7 2.1

Total borrowings 6.6 8.0

In accordance with the amendments made to the Group’s committed facility in July 2018, security has bean granted over certain property, plant
and equipment, receivables and Inventory. The carrying amounts of the assets pledged as security are disclosed in notes 12, 16 and 18,

Analysls of Borrowings by Currency
The carrylng amourt of the Group's borrowings is denominated in the following currencies:

Chinase
US doHars CNY Total
$m $m $m
Other unsecured loans 3.8 - 39
Bank overdrafts secured 1.8 - 18
Unsecured bank loans - 0.9 0.9
At 31 December 2018 5.7 0.9 6.6
Chinese
US dollars CNY Total
&m ST 3m
Gther unsecured loans 3.9 - 3.9
Bank overdrafts secured 2.1 - 2.1
A% 31 December 2017 5.0 - co

23. Changes in Net Cash [Debt)

Hunting operates a centralised treasury function that manages all cash and loan positians throughout the Group and ensures funds are used
efficiently through the use of cash concentratich account structures and other such measures. As the Group manages funding on a net cash/
debt basis, internal reporting focuses on changes in net cash/debt and this is presented in the Strateglc Report. The net cash/debt reconciliation
provides an analysis of the movement in the year for each component of net debt spit between cash and non-cash items, Net cash/debt
comprises cash at bank and n hand, short-term depostts and Money Market Funds less bank overdrafts, current and non-current borrowings.

Movement in

At capitalised Raclassified At

1 January Exchange loan facility to 3f December

2018 Cashflow  movements fess’ prepayments 2018

§m m §m $m $m $m

Cash at bark and in hand {note 21) 36,4 (2.9} (1.1 - - 324
Mcney Market Funds (note 21) - 26.1 - - - 26.1
Short-term deposits {note 21) - 9.4 - - - 9.4
Bank overdrafts {note 22) {2.1) 0.3 - - - (1.8}
Cash and cash equivalents — per cash flow statement 34.3 329 {1.1) - - 66.1
Other current borrowings (note 22) - 0.9} - - - (0.9)
Non-current borrowings (note 22) (3.9 - - - - (3.9)
Total net cash (debt) 30.4 32.0 (1.1) - - 61.3

Mavement in

At capitafsed Reclassited At

1 danuary Exchange foan faciity ta 31 December

2017 Gash Nove movermnents fees’  prepayments 2017

Sm Sm $m $m am

Cash at bank and in hand (nota 21) 63.5 {£9.0) 18 - - 364
Bank overdratts {note 22) (43.2) 4.7 (0.6) ~ - (2.1)
Cash and cash equivalents - per cash fiow statement 203 12.7 1.3 - - 34.3
Current investments [note 22) 0.8 {0.8) - - - -
Non-current borrowings (note 22) (12.5 9.0 (0.4 - - (3.9
Current bank loans {note 22) L (11.1} 11.6 (0.5) - - -
Total net borrowings (2.5} 32.5 0.4 - - 304
Capfialised loan facility fees L 0.6 = - 0.2) (.4 -
Total net cash (debt) (1.9} 32.5 0.4 0.2) {0.4) 30.4

1 Dunng the year, $0.5m (2017 - $0,2m} loan facility fees were paid, $0.6m {2G17 — $rl) were accrued and $0.4m (2017 — $0.4m) fans were amorbsed.
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24. Provisions

Onaraus

contracts Othar Total

Bm $m $m

At 1 January 2018 5.4 12.8 18.0
Exchange adjustmenis {0.3) {0.2) 0.5)
Charged to the income sfatement a.8 0.9 1.7
Provisions utilised (0.8) {2.9} 3.7)
Unutlised amounts reversed (1.0} 0.3) (1.3)
Unwinding of discount - 0.1 o1
Reclassification 1o accruals - 0.1) {0.1)
At 31 December 2018 4.1 10.1 14.2

Provisions are due as follows'

2018 2017

Sm $m

Current 4.7 6.4
Non-current 8.5 11.6
14.2 18.0

The Group has commitments In respect of leasehold properties, some of which are not used for Group trading purposes and are vacant or
sub-let to third parties. The provision for onerous contracls reflects the uncertainty of future canditians in the sub-letting market. It is expected
that $1.1m of the provision wil be utlised i 2019 and the remaining balance of $3.0m will be uliised from 2020 to 2023, Provision is made on a
discounted basis, at a risk-lree rate of between 0.72% and 0,86% p.a, (2017 — between 0,22% and 0.72% p.a), for tne net rental deficit on these
properties to the end of the lease term.

Other provisions include asset decommissioning and remediation obligations of $5.6m (2017 — $6.2m) relating to the Group's obligation to
dismantle, remove and restore items of property, plant and equipment and warranties and tax indemnities of $0.8m (2017 — $1 Om). The assat
decornmissicning provision reflects uncertainty in the timing and amounts of the costs expected to arise in mesting this obligation. Provision is
made on a discounted basis, the majority of which is estimated to be utilised over a period of 14 years.

25, Derwatives and Hedging
{a) Currency Derivatives

The Group uses denvatives for econamic hedging purpeses and na speculative positions are entered iInto by the Group The Group has used
spot and forward toreign exchange contracts, together with foreign currency swaps to hedge its exposure o exchange rate movements during

the year.

Fair values of outstanding derivative financial instruments:

2018 _ 2017
Total Total Tetat Total
assets liabilties assets fiabiktles
$m $m $m $m
Forward forgign exchange contracts — in a cash flow hedge - - - 0.1}
Ferward forelgn exchange contracls — in a falr value hedge - - - {0.1)
Ferward forelgn exchange contracts - not in a hedge 0.2 {0.1) - {0.1)
Foreign currency swaps —~ In a falr value hedge 0.2 - - {0.4)
Foreign currency swaps - not in a hedge 0.3 - = (0.3)
Total 0.7 {0.1) — (1.0)

Gains on contracts thal are not designated in a hedge relationship of $0.3m (2017 — $0.1m gain) have been recognised in the income statement
duning the year and gans of $0.6m {2017 — $nil) on cantracts not designaled in a hedge relalienship have been recognised in exceptional iterms,
which has been included in the $2.0m cradit on the closure of the South African facility in note 6.

{b} Fair Value Hedge

During the year, foreign currency swaps have been designated in a fair value hedge to hedge the loreign exchange changes in a pseudo-equity
Canadian dollar inler-company loan by the entity with the loan receivable, where the functional currency of the lending entity is US dollars, The
value of the foreign currency swap and the value of the Canadian dollar-denominated pseudc-equity loan move in Lhe opposite direction as a
result of movements in the CAD/USD exchange rate, being the hedged risk, There was no ineffectiveness in the falt value hedge,

The pseudo-equity loan does not appear in the Group's statement of financial position as it is an inter-company lean and is therefore eliminated
on consolidation.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements contnued

25. Derivatives and Hedging continued

{b) Falr Value Hedge continued
The effects of the outstanding foreign currency swap on the Group's financial position and performance are as follows:

2048
Carrying amount of the forelgn currency swap — asset {note 16) $m 0.2
Notional amount of the foreign currency swep $m 14.2
Maturity date 07.01.18
Hedge ratio/ 1:
Carrying amount of the pseudo-equity loan $m 14.2
Change In valus of hedged item used to determine hedge effectivenass $m {0.2)

1. The faregn currency swap is denaminatad in the same aurrency as the pseudo equity lean to match the exposed currency risk, therefore the hedge eatio 18 111,

Forward foreign exchange contracts have also baen designated in a fair value hedge to hedge the foreign exchange movernemnt in forsign
curransy trade payables. The value of the forward fereign exchange contract matches the valus of the trade payabies and they mave in apposite
directions as a result of movements in the GAD/USD exchange rate, being the hedged risk. Immaterial fair value losses have been recognised In
the income statement during the year. "

(c) Gash Flow Hadge

The Group has entered into contracts 1o purchase materials from suppliers in US dollars, where the entity's funclional currancy s Ganadian
dollars, Certam of these highly probable forecast transactions have been designated in a cash flow hedge refationship and hedged using forward
foreign exchange contracls during the year. The value of the forward farelgn exchange contract matches the value of the forecast inventory
purchase and they move in opposite directiohs as a yesult of movements in the CAD/USD exchange rate, being the hedged risk. [t is anticlpated
that the materials will be sold within 12 moenths after purchase, at which time ths amount deferrad in equity will be reclassified to profit or loss as
part of the cest of inventeries sold,

The Group aiso entercd Into a contract to purchase an iterm of property, plant and equipment from a supplier in US dollars, where the entily's
functional currency 18 Ganadian dollars. Tnis highly probable forecast transaction was hedged using a forward foreign exchange contract. The
value of the forward foreign exchange contract matched the value of the forecast property, plant and equipment purchase and they move in
ORPOSIE UFECEQNL @6 @ (esull OF INOVAMENnts IN e GALY UbU exulidiige tae, DENY tie hedyeu neh, [0e amouni delgied i equity win 58
reclassified to profit or loss as part of the depreciation charge aver the item’s useful life.

The Group also entered into a contract to purchase an item of property, plant an equipment from a supplier in Euros, where the entity’s functional
currency is US dollars. This highty probable forecast transaction has been hedged using a forward foreign exchange contrac!. Tha value of the
forward foreign exchange contract matched the vaiue of the forecast property, plant and equipment purchase and they move in opposite
directions as a result of movements in the EUR/AUSD exchangs rate, bsing the hadged risk. The amount deferred in equity will be reclassified to
profit or loss as part of the depreciation charge over the item's uselul life.

The Group's cash flow hedge reserve, which is disclosed as part of other reserves in note 31, relates to the spot component of ferward fareign
exchange contracls, as follows:

$m
Balance as at 1 January 2017 -
Fair value losses of forward fareign exchange contracts recegnised in OCI 0.2
Reclassified from OCI to profit or loss 041
Balance as at 31 Dacember 2017 {0.1)
Fair value gains of forward forsign exchange contracts recognised in OCi 0.3
Reclassified to the carrying value of inventory - (0.2}

Balance as at 31 December 2018 -
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25. Derivatives and Hedging continue

{c} Cash Flow Hedge continued
The effects of outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts on the Group's financial position and performance are as follows:

2018
Carrying amaount of the forward forelgn exchange contracts — asset $m <0.1
Notional ameunt of the forward fareign exchange confracts $m 22
Maturty date 25.01.19 fo 24.10.19
Hedge ratio® 11
Change in value of hedgad ttem used to determine hedge effectiveness $m =<{0-1}

fii. Tha forward foraign axchangs contracts ara denominated in the same currency as the highly probable forecast transactions 1o malch the exposed currency risk,
therefore the hedge ratlo fs 1:1.

Immaterial changes in the forward points, the dliferential between the forward rate and the market spot rate, hava been recognised in the income
statement during the year and previous year.

(d} Hedge Effectiveness
Hedge effectiveness Is determined at the inception of the hedge relationship, and through periodic prospactive effectiveness assessments 1o
ensure that an economic hedge relationship exists between the hedged item and the hedging instrument.

For hedges of the pseudo-equity loan, the Group enters into Fedge relaticnships where the value of the forelgn currency swap rratches exactly
with the valus of the loan, The Group, therefore, performs a gualitative assessment of effectiveness, Ineffectivenass will arise if the pseudo-equity
ioan is partially or fully repaid prior to the maturity of the foreign currency swap.

For hedges of foreign currency purchases, the Group enters into hedge relationships where the cntical terms of the hedging instrument match
exactly with the terms of the hedged itern, The Group, therefore, performs a qualitative assessment of effectiveness. If changes In circumstances
affect the terms of the hedged item such that the critcal terms no longer rmatch exactly with the critical terms of the forward foreign exchange
contract, then the Group uses the hypothetical derivative method to assess effectiveness. Ineffectiveness may arise If there Is a change In the
timing of the forecast transaction from what wss orlgmal!y astmated or from a change in the US$ amount charged and invoiced. A possible source

a1
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There was no ineffectivaness during 2018 or 2017.
26. Financial Instruments: Fair Values

The carrying value of investments, the loan note, coentract assels, trade receivables, accrued revenue, other racelvables, short-terrn deposits,
cash and cash equivalents, trade payables, accruals, other payables, provisions considered to be linancial labillties, bank overdrafts and other
unsecured loans approximates their fair value. Drawdowns under the revolving credit facility are typically for periods of one month or less and, as
a resull, the carrying value and the falr value are considered to be the same.

The following tables present the Group's other financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value at the year-end and show the level in
the fair value hierarchy in which the fair value measurements are categonsed, There were no transfers between Level 1 and Leval 2 dunng the year.

Falr value at
31 December
2018 Level 1 Level 2
Sm Sm $m
Equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Non-current Listed equity investments and mutual funds 1.7 1.7 -
Debt instrumends at fair value through profit or loss
Money Market Funds 26.14 26.1 -
Current derivatives held for trading
Derivative financial assets 0.5 - 0.5
Derivative financial liabilities {0.1) - {61)
Gurrent derivatives in a hedge
Derivative financial assets 0.2 - 0.2
28.4 278 0.6
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

26. Financial Instruments: Fair Values continued

Restated
Falr value al
31 Dacamber
2017 Level 1 Levet 2
$m $m $m
Non-current investments
Listad equity investments and mutual funds 1.8 1.8 -
Current investments
Listed equity investments and mutual funds 10.4 104 -
Non-current derivatives held for trading
Derivative financial liabilities 0.1) - {0.1)
Current derivatives held for trading
Derivative financial liabilities 0.4 - 0.4
Gurrent derivative in a hedge
Derivative financial llabilities 0.5) - 0.5
11.2 12.2 (1.0)

The above table has been restated o exclude the US delerred compensation plan, as this lability is accountad for under IAS 19 and, therefore, is nat a financial labilty.

The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:
Laval 1 - inputs are quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assats or labilites,
Leval 2 - inputs other than quoted prices Included within Level 1 that are obsarvable for tha assot or liability.

The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined by comparing the cash fiows generated by the contract with the coterminous
cash flows potentially available in the forward exchange market on the balance sheet date. The fair value of Money Market Funds and listed
equities and mutual funds 1s based on their current bid prices In an active market, which is considered to be the most representative of fair value,
at the balance sheet date, The fair values of non-US dollar denominated financial instruments are translated into US dollars using the year-end
exchange rate.

The inputs used to determine the fair value of derivatve financial instruments are inputs other than quoted prices that are obsarvable and so the
a1 el pmdelier aln o weogui st wo Loval 2ol die fon clus Tty Toe fan Lllus O licn sy VA ket Moo ard  Lied g, desobiiceste

and mutual funds is based on queted market prices and so the fair value measurement is categorised in _evet 1 of the fair value hierarchy
27. Financial Risk Managemant

The Group's actwities expose it to certain financial risks, namely market risk including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk and cash flow
interest rate risk), credit risk and Siquidity risk. The Group's risk managament strategy seeks to mitigate potential adverse effects on its financial
performance. As part of its strategy, both primary and derivative financial instruments are used to hedge certain risk exposures.

Thers are clearly defined objectives and principles for managing financial risk established by the Board of Directars, with policies, parameters
and procedures covering the specific areas of funding, banking relationships, foreign currency and interest rate exposures and cash management.

The Group's treasury function is responsible for implamenting the policies and providing a centralised service to the Group for funding, foreign
exchange and interest rate managerment and counterparty risk management, it is also responsible for identifying. evaluating and hedging
financial risks in close cao-operation with the Group's operating companies,

{a} Market Risk: Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group's international base Is exposed to forelgn exchange nsk from its invasting, financing and operating actvities, particularly in respect of
Sterling, Canadian dollara and Chinese Yuan Renminbi, Foreign exchange risks arise from future transactions and cash flows, and from recognised
menetary assets and liablittes that are not denominated in the functional currency of the Group’s local operations.

The Group's material foreign exchange rates are.

Sterling Ganadian doflar
2018 2017 2018 2017
Average exchange rate o US dollars 0.75 0.78 1.30 1.30
Year-end exchange rate to US dollars 0.79 Q.74 1.37 1.25

(i} Transactional Risk

The exposure to exchange rate movements in sigrificant future transactions and cash flows is hedged by using forward loreign exchange
coniracts. Cerlain forward foreign exchange contracts have been designated as hedging instruments of highly probable forecast transactions.
Operating companies prepare quarterly rolling 12-menth cash flow forecasts to enable working capital currency exposures to ba identifled.
Exposures are also identified and hedged, if necessary, on an ad-hoc basls, such as when a purchass order in & forelgn currency is placed.
Currency exposures arise where the cash flows are not in the functional currency of the entity. Exposures arising from committed long-term
projects beyond a 12-month period are also identified, The currency fiows to be hedged are committed forslgn currency transactions greater
than $50,000 equivalent Exposures of less than $50,000 equivalent will also be hedged but only where the underlying foreign cLrrency cash
flow ia expected ta occur 60 daya or more from the point of entering Inte the transaction,
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27. Financial Risk Management continued

{a) Market Risk: Foreign Exchange Risk continued

The table below shows the carrying values of the Group's financial instruments at 31 December, including derivative financial instruments,
on which exchanga differences woulkl potentially ba recognised in the income statement in the following year, The table excludes derivatives
designated in a cash flow hedge as farr value gains and losses arising on thess are recognised in other comprehensive Income,

Gurrency of danomination

Chinese Other

Sterling US dollars AED Euro CNY curreicies Total

AtaiD ber 2018 Fm $m &m $m $m $m $m
Funetional currency of Group's entities:

Sterfing - (3.5} - (0.1} - - (3.6)

US dollars {2.4) - {1.4) (0.1} 1.0 .1 (3.0}

Canadian dollars - 0.3) - - = - (0.3}

Singapore dollars - 2.3 - - - - 23

Euro 0.8} - - - - - (0.8}

Chinese CNY - - — - - (0.2) 0.2}

(3.2 {1.5) (1.4) 0.2) 1.0 (0.3} (5.6}

Tha Sterling, US dollar, United Arab Emirates (*UAE") Dirham ("AED™) and Chinese Yuan Renminbi {*CNY™) denominated financial instruments
consist of cash balances, trade and cther receivables, accrued revenue, irade and other payables, accrued expenses, provisions and intra-
Group loans.

Caurrency of denomiration
Chinese Other

Starling US dollars AED Euro CNY cursencias Total

At 81 Decernber 2047 &m Sm 3m Fmn #m Sm &m
Funeclional surrency of Group’s entities:

Sterling - 1.7 - - - - 1.7

US dollars (1.9} - 0.7 - 2.5 (0.3) 0.4)

Canadian dollars - 1.2} - - - - 12

Singapore dollars - 1.6 - 0.7) - - 1.5

Euro {0.2) - - - - - 02

Chinase CNY — {1.5) — — — (0.5) (2.0}

(2.1) 0.8 {0.7) 0.1) 2.5 0.8} {0.6}

The Sterling, US dollar and Chinese Yuan Renminbi denominated financial instruments consist of cash balances, frade and cther receivables,
accrued ravenus, trade and other payables, accrued expenses, pravisicns and intra-Group loans,

(i} Translational Risk

Fareign exchange risk also arises from financial assets and fiabilities not dencminated in the functional currency of an entity’s operations and
forward foreign exchange condracts are used to manage the exposure to changes in foreign exchange rates. Whers appropriate, hedge
sccounting is applied to the forward foreign exchange contracts and the hedged item to remove any accounting mismatch

Foreign exchangs nisk also anses from the Group's investmenis in foreign operations. During the year, foreign currency swaps heve been
designated in a fair value hedge to hedge the foreign exchangs sate changes in a pseudo-equily Canadian dollar inte:-company loan,

The forelgn exchange expesure arising from the translation of its net investments in foreign operations into the Group's presentaticn currency of
US dollars has also previously been managed by designating any borrowings that are not US dollar denominated as a hedge of the net investment
in forelgn operations The foreign exchange exposure primarily arises from Sterling and Canadian dollar denominated net invesiments.

(b} Market Risk: Interest Rate Risk

Variable intercst rates on cash at bank, short-term deposits, overdrafis and borrowings expose the Group fo cash flow interest rate risk and fixed
interest rates on loans and short-term depaosits expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The treasury function manages the Group's
expasure to inferest rate risk and uses interest rate swaps and caps, when considered appropriate.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

27. Financial Risk Management continued

(c) Credit Risk
The Group's credit risk arises from its cash at bank and in hand, Money Market Funds, short-term deposits, investments, dertvative financial
instruments, the loan note, acerued revenue, oulstanding trede receivables and contract assets.

At the year-end, the Group had credit risk exposures to a wide range of counterparties, Gradit sk exposure is continually maonitored and no
individual exposure is considered to be significant in the contexl of the ordinary course of tha Group's activities, Exposura limits are set for sach
approved counterparty, as well as the types of transactions that may be antered into. Approved institutions that the treasury function can nvest
surplus cash with must all have a minimum A2, P2 or F2 shart-term rating from Standard and Poor’s, Moody's or Fitch rating agencies
respectively and AAAM S&P rating for Money Market Funds. The Net Asset Value of the Mongy Market =unds aims be a minimum of 1 (this
means that for every $1 that Is In the fund there will be an assat to cover ity and the furnds have overnight liquidity. At the year-end, deposits in
Maney Market Funds totalled $26,1m (2017 — $nil),

At the year-end, cash at bank and in hand totalled $32.4m (20717 — $38.4m), with $18.0m (2017 — $25.1m) deposited with banks with Fitch
short-term ratings of F1 to F1+ Of the remaining $14.4m (2017 — $11.3m), $13.5m {2017 — $9.9m) was held with two financial institutions within
matnland China which, given the Group's operations in this jurisdiction, were deemed necessary. Despite not having formal credit ratings, an
internal assessment determined that the banks' credit profilas wera appropriate for the amounts held on deposit. There are no formal restrictions
on this cash as such, however, prior approval would be required from various state authorities in China before ahy cash could be paid offshore.

Surplus cash held in short-term deposits totafled $9.4m (2017 — $nil} and are held with banxs with Fitch shart-term ratings of F1.

The credit risk of forergn exchange centracts is calculated before the contract is acquired and compared to the credit risk limit set for each
counterparty Gredit risk is calculated as a fixed percentage of the nominal valug of the instrument.

Trade and other receivables are continuously monitared, Credit account limits are primarily based an the credit quality of the customer and past
experience through trading relationships. To reduce credit risk exposure from ouistanding receivables, the Group has taken ot credit insurance
with an external insurer, subject to certain conditions.

The Group operatas a defined benefit pensiocn scheme in the US, which is unfunded. Contributions ars paid into a separate investment vehicke
and invested in a wide portfolio of US mutual funds that are recognised as current and non-current investmants. Investments at the year-end
GHIIUTGA To @ 10T e —wideelly ot A6 sapsulad 1 e uby (siove e,

{d) bLiquidity Risk
The Group neeads to ensure that i has sufficient kquid funds available o support its working capital and capital expenditure requiremnants. Al
subsidiaries submit weekly and bi-monthly cash forecasts to the treasury functicn to enable them to monitor the Group®s requirements.

The Group has sufficient credit facilities to mest both its long- and short-term requirements. The Group's credit faciliies are provided by a variety
of funding sources and total $164.9m (2017 - $205,0m) at the year-end. The facilities comprise $153.5m of secured cormmitted facilities
(2017 - $200.0m) and $5.4m secured uncommitted facilities (2017 — $5.0m).

0On 12 December 2018, Hunting PLC completed a refinancing of the Group's $200m Revolving Credit Facility by way of an "amend and extend”
of the existing syndicate facility arrangements. The transaction enablad Hunting to extend the matunty of the RGF from October 2020 oul until
December 2022, with an option to extend for a further one year 10 December 2023. Furthermore, this reflnancing event provided an opportunity
for Hunting to amend, and formally remove any refarance to, many of the lerms and conditions that had been infroduced as part of the 2016
refinancing, However, as previously communicated, most of these terms had ceased to ba effective as of 18 January 2018, The main features
of the RGF are as follows:

Cormmitted facilities reduced ta $180.0m to reflect anticipated funding requirements of the Group going forward.

A slight upfift in the base margin on amounts drawn under the facility from 0.85% ta 1.00%, reflecting a gensral upward shift in bank joan pricing.
Maintaining the market standard financial covenants of the existing facility, as discussed below.

A review of and uplift to other mits within the facliity such as Negative Pledge and Subsidiary Finanaial Indsbledness,

introduction of 2 $75.0m accordion faature, providing Hunling with additional flexibility to increase the size of the bank facility to $235.0m,
subjact to approval of its bank lending group.

* s 4 & @

Secunty continues to be granted over certan properties, plant and equipment, receivables and inventory. The carrying amounts of the assets
pledged as security are disclosed In noles 12, 16 and 18.

The covenants to 31 December 2018 include
« The ratio of net debt to consolidated EBITDA permitted under the revolving credit facility must not exceed a multiple of three times.
¢ Consolidated EBITDA must alsc cover relevant finance charges by a minimum of four times.

For covenant tesling purposes, the Group's definition: of consolidated EBITDA is adjusted to exclude exceptional items, include the share of
associates’ post-tax resulls and exclude the fair value charge for share awards. Similarly, net cash {debt) and finance expenses are adjusted 1o
accord with the definition within the facility agreement. Consolidated EBITDA, for covenant test purposes, is based on the previous 12-month
period, measured twice yearly at 30 June and 31 December. Throughout the year and at 31 December 2018 both thess covenants were met.

As the revised facility size and terms are signilicantly different, the existing $200m RCF 1s deemed fo have been extinguished and replaced by

the new $160m RCF, The deferred bank fees of $0.4m relating o the $200m RCF have been recagnised in the income statement during the year
and $1.1m of defarred bank fees relating to the $180m RCF have been recognised in prepayments at the end of the year
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27. Financial Risk Management continued

{d) Liquidity Risk continued

The Group’s treasury function ensures flexibilily in funding by maintaining availabiiity under committed credit facilities, The Group had undrawn
committed borrowing faciifles available at the year-end totalling $162.5m {2017 — $199.5m), which expire between one and five years from

31 December 2018.

The following tables analyse the Group's non-derivative financial llabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining perlod at the
balance sheet date 1o the contractual maturity date of the financial liabilities. The amounts are the contractual, undiscounted cash flows. The

carrying amounts in the balance sheet are the discounted amounts. Balances due within one year have been Included in the maturity analysis at
their carrying amounts, as the impact of discounting is not significant.

2018
On demand Beaiwesn
arwithin ane and After

one year five years tive years Total
$m $m $m £m

Non-derivative financial liabilities:
Tracle payablas 62.3 - - 62.3
Accruals £9.9 0.9 0.5 61.3
Other payables 4.3 - - 4.3
Onerous leasa comtracts 1.1 3.0 - 4.1
Secured bank loans 0.6 i1 - 1.7
Unsecured bank loans 0.9 - - 0.9
Oiher unsecured loans - - 3.9 3.0
Bank overdrafts secured e 1.8 - - 1.8
Total 1309 5.0 4.4 140.3

Restatad
2017
On demand Betwean
ar within one and After

"~ $m e T m ore

Neon-derivative financial fiabilties:
Trade payables 47.3 - - 47.3
Accruals 49.9 0.7 0.8 514
Other payables 3.0 - - 3.0
Onerous lease contracts 1.0 35 1.1 5.6
Secured bank loans 0.5 1.0 - 1.6
Other unsecured loans - - 39 as
Bank overdrafis secured 2.1 - - 2.3
Total 103.8 52 58 1148

The above table has been restated 1o axclude tha US dsferred compensation plan, as this izbilily is accountad for under IAS 19 and therelore 15 not a financial kability
undsr IFRS 6.

The Group had no net settled financial liabilities at the yoar-and {2017 — none).

The table below analyses the Group's derlvative financial Instruments, which will be settled on a gross basis, into maturity groupings based on
the pericd remaming from the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual,
undiscounted cash flows,

2018 2017
Dn demand HBetwaen cne Ondsmard  Belweenone
or within one and five or wiitun one and five
year years year years
Sm $m $m $m
Currency derivatives
~inflows B86.9 - 455 -
— outflows (86.3) - (16.4) {0.1)

(e) Capital Risk Management
The Graup's objectives, policies and processes for managing capital are cutlined in the Strategic Report within the Financial Capital Management

section on pages 17 and 18. Within this section, the Group provides a definition of capital, provides detaits of the external financial covenants
imposed, key maasures for managing capital and the objectives for managing capital. Quantitative disclosures have been made together with the
parameters for meeting external financial covenants,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

28. Financial Instruments: Sensitivity Analysis

The following sensitivity analysis is intended to ilustrate the sensitivity to changes in market variables on the Group’s financial mstruments and
show the Impact on profit or loss and shareholders' equity. Financiat instruments affected by market risk inciude cash at bank and in hand,
Money Market Funds, short-term deposits, frade and other receivables, trade and other payables, borrowings and derivative financial instruments.
The sensitivity analysis relates to the pesition as at 31 December 2018, Tha analysls excludes the impact of moverments in market variables on
the carrying value of pension and other post-retirement obligations, provisions and non-financial assets and labikties of foreign operations.

The following assumptions have besn mada in calculating the sensitivity analysis.

+ Foreign exchange rate and interast rate sensiivities have an asymmetric impact on the Group's resulis, that is, an increase in rales does not
result in the same amount of movement as a decrease in rates.

* Forfloating rate assets and llabifities, the amount of asset or llabifity outstanding at the balance sheet date is assumed o be outstanding for
the whals year.

« Fixad-rate financial instruments that are carried at amortised cost are not subject to interest rate risk for the purpose of this analysis.

+ The carrving values of financial assets and liabilities carrled at amortised cost do not change as fnterest rates change.

Positive figures represent an increase in profit or equity.

(a) interest Rale Sensitivity
The sensitivity rate of 0.5% (2017 - 0.75%) for US interest rates represents management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change, based
on historical volatifity and a review of analysts’ research and banks' expectations of future interest rates.

The post-tax impact on the income statermnent, with all other variables held constant, at 31 December, for an increase cr decrease of 0.5%
{2017 - 0.75%} in US interest rates, is not material (2017 — not material). There is no impact on other comprehensive income (*OCI) for a change
in interest rates.

{b) Foreign Exchange Rate Sensitivity

The sensitivity rate of 10% (2017 — 10%) for Sterling and 10% (2017 — 5%) for Canadian dollar exchange rates represents management's
assessment of a reasonably possible change, based on historical volatility and a reviews of analysts’ research and banks' expectations of future
foreign exchange rates.

The table below shows the post-tax impact for the year of a reagonably possible change In foreign exchange rates, with all other variables helg
constant, at 31 December.

2048 2017
Income Inceme

statement acl staternent ol

Sm 5m $m §m

Sterling exchange rate +10% (2017: +10%) {0.4) - 0.8) —
Sterling exchange rate -10% (2017: -10%) 0.4 - 0.3 -
Canadlan dollar exchange rates +10% (2017: +5%} - 0.2 0.7 0.2
Canadian dollar exchange rates -10% (2017: -5%) - - (0.7) 0.2}

The movemnents in the income statement mainly arise from cash, inta-Group balances, trade and other receivables, payables, accrued expenses
and provisions, whare the functional currency of the entity is different from the currency that the menetary items are denominated in. The
movernents In OCI mainly arise from foreign exchange contracts designated in a cash flow hedge.

The post-tax impact on the Income statement of reasonably possible changes In the Singapore dollar and UAE Dirharn exchange rates were
considered and were immaterial.

29. Post-Employment Benefits

{a) UK Pensicns

Within the UK, the Group operates a defined cantribution {*DC™ plan, which is open lo current employees. Gontributions to the plan and other
Group defined contnbution arrangements are charged directly to profit and loss.

Histarically, the Group operated a fundod pension schems, which provided benefits on bath a defined bensfil ("DB") and defined conlrbution
{"DC") basis. That scheme was wound up during the year and, as part of that process, the bulk annuity policies held with insurers to cover
members' DB benafits have been transferred inta individual policies for tha members.

Payments totaling $16.4m were made from the Schema on 6 December 2018 as part of the wind-up process, of which $10.6m was pald to the
Group and $5.8m was paid to HMAG in relation to tax due No further payments are due to or from the Scheme.
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29, Post-Employment Beneflts continued

{a} UK Pensions continued

Risk exposures and investment strategy
At the previous year-end, the assets of the DB section of the scheme were invested in a range of deferred annuity and immediate annuity policies

with a range of insurers. These pdlicies matched the benefits to be palkd to members of the Scheme. This strategy remaved the Group's Investment,
inflation and demographic risks relating to the Scheme’s obligations.

As the trusteas’ butk annuity policies held with insurers to cover members’ benefits were transferred into individual policies for the members
during 2018, this has removed the Group's risks relating to an Insurer no [onger being able to meet its obligations. The Group has ne further legal

responsibility to fund these benefits.

The net assets for the UK post-employment benefit scheme are:

2018 2017
im m
Present value of obligations - {447.4)
Total fair value of plan assets - 4650
Net asset - 18.6
The nef assot is recogrised in ihe balance sheel as follows:
2018 2017
$m
Nen-current - -
Current . ) - 18.6
Net asset - 18.6
Changes in the net asset recognised in the balance sheef
agm 2017
Opening balance sheeat net asset 18.6 33.3
Exchange adjustrments (1.0} 1.8
Expense charged to the iIncome statement (1.7} (1.0}
Past service cost charged to the ncome statement {0.4) -
Amount recognisad in other comprehensive income 0.9 0.1
Transfer to defined contribution section - {0.6)
Payment to employer before tax withheld at source {16.4) (156.0)
- 18.6

Closing balance sheet net asset

The Scheme was wound up in Decamber 2018 and the residual assets in the Scheme of $16.4m at the point of termination were transferred to
the Group and HMRC, The decrease in the Group’s pension asset seen over 2018 principally reflects these payments,

Movements in the presant value of the defined benefit obligation for the defined benefit section of the UK scheme

2018 207

$m $m

Opening defined benefit chiligation 447.4 418.3

Exchange adjustments 6.3} 392

Current service cost {employer) 2.1 1.5

Interest on benefit obligations 5.2 10.9
Remeasurements due to:

Changes in financial assumptions (18.9) 7.0
Past service cost 0.4 -
Benefits and expenses paid (47.9) {29 5)
Reduction in habifities due to settlement {382.0) -

— 447.4

Present value of the ohligation at the end of the year
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

29. Post~-Employment Benefits conthued

{a) UK Pensions continued
Movemants In the fair value of the assets for the defined benefit section of the UK scheme

2018 2017
$m $m
Cpening far value of plan assets 466.0 451.5
Exchange adjustments (7.3) 410
Interest on plan assets 5.6 114
Actual returns over interest on plan assels {18.0) 7.4
Transfer to defined coniribution scheme - {0.6)
Payment to employer before tax withheld at source {16.9) {15.0)
Benefits and expenses paid {47.9) {28.5)
Reduction In plan assets due to setilament (3s2.0) -
Closing fair value of plan assets - 466.0
Major asset categories for the defined benefit section of the UK scheme
2018 2017
$m §m
Insurance annuity Dolicies - 448.3
Cash/cther - 17.7
Fair value of plan assats - 466.0
As the Scheme was wound up during 2018, there are no remaining assets at the year-end.
Amounts recognised in the income statsment in respect of the UK schome
2018 2017
$m §m
LB 1L S8 VICE LOSE — NCIUABU WITHIN GUEMGINY Expests 2.1 iw
Past service cost - included within operating expenses 0.4 -
Net interest on the defined benefit asset - finance income {note 8) (0.4) {0.5)
Total expense included within staff costs (hote 8) 2.1 1.0

The current service cost includes $2.1m (2017 — $1.5m) of administration costs.

In addition, employer contributions of $7.6m (2017 — $7.1mm) for vasious Group defined contribution arrangements (including the defined contribution
sechion of the UK scheme and UK plan) are recognised in the income statement.

Special events
The following special svents occurred during the year.

+  The bulk annuity poficies held with insurers to cover members' benefits were transferred to Individual members during the year. As a result,
these poiicies are no longer assels of the schems and the members' benefits in respect of these pclicies are no longer liabilities of the
scheme.

s As part of the scheme’s wind-up process, members’ Additional Voluntary Contributions ("AVCs") funds were transferred to other providers.
To compensate members with AVCs for potential losses on transfer, $0.3m of the scheme's surplus funds were used to augment their AVG
funds on transfer. This has been recognised as part of the past service cost.

¢+ In addition o this, 1he Trustee held vanous histonic insurance annutty pelicies as at 31 December 2017, As part of the process of winding up
the scheme, the Trustee has also assigned lhese policies 1a individual members with a small augmentation of $0.1m made to these members.

» Payments of $10 8m lo the Group and $5.8m to HMRC were made from the scheme on 6 December 2018. This has reduced the surplus of
the scheme by the combined totat of the payments, There are no remaining assets of the scheme at 31 December 2018,
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28. Post-Employment Benefits continued

(a) UK Pensions continued
The principal assumptions used for accounting purposes reflect prevailing market conditions are:

2018 2017

Discount rate n/a 2.4%pa.

Future pension increase nfa 3.4% pa.
Mortality assurmption - fife expactancy

2018 2017

Years Years

Male aged 65 at the accounting date nfa 253

Fernale aged 65 at the accounting date nfa 271

Male aged 65 in 20 years nfa 2.9

Female aged 65 in 20 years n/a 29.4

(b} Other Pensions

“he Group operaites a cash balance arrangermment in the US for certain axecutives, Members build up benefits in this arrangement by way of
notonal coniributions and notional investment returns, Actual contributions are paid into an entirely separate investment vehicle held by the Group,
which Is used to pay benefits due from the arrangement when a member retires. Under IAS 19, the cash balance arrangement is accounted for
as an unfunded definad bensfit scheme.

The amounts recognised in the incoms statement dunng the year were $nil (2017 — $0.1m) for the employer's current service cost (recognised
in aperating expenses) and $6,1m {2017 — $0,2m} interest cost recognised In tinance expense).

Movements in the prasent value of the obligation for the unfunded defined benefit US deferred compensation plan

2018 207

Sm $m
Frestlil vame O e uldgallnal Ui st of iC yoat 12.2 L2
Current service cost (equal to the notional contributions) - 6.1
Interest an benefit obligations 0.1 0.2
Remeasurement — excess of notionat investment refurns over interest cost (0.2 1.7
Benefits paid {10.4} -
Present value of the obligation at the end of the year 1.7 12.2

The obligation is presented In the balance sheet as $nil 2017 — $10.4m) In current payables and $1.7m {2017 - $1.8m) in non-current payables
{note 18},

30, Share Capital and Share Fremium

2018

Ordinary Ordinary
shares of shares of Share
28p each 25p each premium
Number Sm $m
Al 1 .January 164,173,603 66.4 153.0
Shares issued - share optlon schemes and awards 000,000 0.3 -
At 31 December 165,073,603 66.7 1530

There are no restrictions attached 1o any of the Ordinary shares in 1ssue and all Ordinary shares carry equal voting rights The rights atlached to
the Company's Ordinary shares are summarised on page 168, All of the Ordinary shares in issue are fully paid.

Al 31 December 2018, 1,247,672 (2017 — 656,808) Crdmnary shares were hald by an Employee Banelit Trust. Betails of the carrying amount are
se- out in note 32,

2017

Ordinery Ordinary
sharas of shares of Share
26p each 25p each premium
Number $m £m
At 1 January 163,739,686 86.3 1830
Shares issued — share option schemes and awards 433,917 0.1 -
At 31 December 164,173,603 66 4 1530
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

31. Other Components of Equity

2018
Curraney
Merger Qther transtation
reserve rasarvas ragserve Total
$m m 5m Sm
At 1 January 794 19.0 6.7 o1.7
Exchange adjustrnents - - 7.2) (7.2)
Fair value gains and loases
- losses originating on cash flow hedges arising duting the year net of tax - 0.2 - 0.2
- losses transfarred to the carrying value of inventory purchased in the year
net of fax - {0.1) - (0.1}
Shate options and awards
—value of employee services - 134 - 13.1
- discharge - (0.7 - {9.7)
Transfer between reserves (12.2) - - (12.2}
At 31 December 67.2 22.5 (13.9) 75.8
During the year, $12.2m was transferred from the merger reserve to retained earnings. This portion of the reserve is now considered to be
reafised as the equivalent amount of the proceeds from the share placing In 2016 have now met the definition of qualifying consideration,
2017
Currency
Mearger Ctha’ translation
FBSErve resenves raserve Tetal
$m $m Sm
At 1 January 79.4 16.6 {17.2) 78.8
Exchanga adjustments - - 0.7 10.7
Fair value gains and losses
— lesses originaling on fair value hedges arising during the year net of tax - - {0.2) 0.2)
~losses originating on cash flow hedges arising during the year net of tax - 0.2 - 0.2}
— losses transterred to the Income statement on AISposal ot cash flow hedges
net of tax - 041 - 0.1
Share options and awards
~valug of employee services - 11.6 - i1.6
—discharge — Q.1) - @.1)
At 3t becember 79.4 19.0 8.7} 91.7
32, Retained Earnings
Restated
2018 2017
$m $m
Al 31 December as previously reported 780.6 800.0
Adjusiment on adoption of IFRS 15 1.6 1.0
Al 31 December restated 7622 801.0
Adjustment on adoption of FAS 9 {0.2} -
At 1 January restated 7820 801.0
Profit {loss) for the year 833 (26.1)
Remeasurement of defined benefit pension schemeas net of tax 1.5 (1.6)
Dividends paid to equity sharehalders (6.6) -
Purchase of treasury shares 5.7 -
Share options and awards
~ discharge 8.2 88
— taxation {0.3) -
Transfer between rescrves 12.2 -
At 31 December 881.6 7822

The share aptions and awards taxation charge taken directly 1o equity of $0.3m cornprises $0.2m deferred tax and $0.1m current tax.
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32. Retained Earnings continued

Retained sarnings include the following amounts in respect of the carrying amount of Treasury shares:

2018 2017
$m $m
Cast:
At 1 January {7.2) (8.7)
Purchase of Treasury shares 5.9 -
Disposal of Treasury shares 1.7 1.6
At 31 Decembaer {11.2) (7.2)
The loss on disposal of Treasury shares during the year, which is recognised in retained earnings, was $1.7m {2017 — $1.6m).
33. Dividends Paid to Equity Shareholders
2018 2017
Cents Cents
per share $m per share S

Ordinary dividends:
2018 Interim pald 4.0 6.6 -

A final dividend of 5.0 cents per share has been proposed by the Board, amounting to an estimated distribution of $8.2m. The proposed final
dividend is subject 16 approvat by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeling 1o e held on 17 April 2019 and has not been provided for In

these financial staternents. If approved, the dividend will be pakd in Sterling on 10 May 2019, to shareholders on the register on 23 Apri 2013, and

the Sterling value of the dividend payable per share will be fixed, and anncunced approximately two weeks prior 1o the payment date, based on
the average spot exChange rate over the three business days preceding the announcament date Guidance on the Company's posttion on

dectasing and paying future dividends is provided within the Strategic Report on page 18.

34. Share-Based Payments
(a) 2001 Exacutive Share Opticn Plan

The Company operated an execuuve share option plan between 2001 and 2OUS, witen granled opions 1o eiginie employess. Jnder this
scheme, the finat vesting of ootions occurred on 4 March 2011, with outstanding awards expiring on 3 March 2018, There is no longer a charge

to the income statement atinbutable to this scheme. Detaiis of movements in outstanding share options are sst out below.

(iy Share Option Movements During the Year

2018 2017
Weighted Welghted
avarage average
exerclse axercise
Numb=zrof price Number of prica
oplions __p optons B
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 178,417 785 383,700 Al
Lapsed during the year {178,417) 785 {185,283} 640
Quistanding and exercisable at the end of the year - — 178,417 785
There were ne exercises during 2017 of 2018.
{if) Share Opticns Outstanding at the Year-End
2018 2017 Exarcise
Number of MNumber of once range
oplions options p Exercise pertod
Executive Share Options 2008 — vested - 178417 784.5 0403.11-0303.18

{b} 2009 Performance Share Plan (“PSP")
{i) Performance-Based Awards and Opticns

The Company granted nil-cost perfarmance-based share awards and cptions under the PSP betwsen 2006 and 2013, Under the PSP, anrwal
conditional awards of sharas and options were made to executive Directors and senior employees. Awards and oplions are subject lo
performance conditions during tha vesting peried. The PSP was repiaced by the 2014 Hunting Performance Share Plan ("HPSP") following
shareholder approval of the HPSP at the Annual General Meeting ("*AGM") of the Gompany on 16 April 2014, The final grant under ths PSP

oceurred in 2013, with the fmal measurements of the perfermance conditions being complated in 2016, The fair value charge 1o the
slaterment attributable to the performance-based PSP was $nil (2017 — $nill.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

34, Share-Based Payments continued

(k) 2009 Performance Share Plan (*PSP") continued

() Time-Based Awards and Optlons

The Company granted nil-cost, ima-based share awards and options under tha PSP between 2008 and 2613. Annual awards of shares and
optlons wera made to employees, subject to continued employment, during the vesting perod. There were no parformance conditions attached.
Tims-based awards continue to be granted under the HPSP. The final grant under the PSP occurred in 2013 and vested in 2016. Details of the
time-based PSP awards and options movements during the year are as follows:

2018 2017
Number of Number of
shares shares
Quistanding at the beginning of the year 15,606 18,244
Vested and exercised during the year _ {8,602) (638)
Outstanding and exercisable at the end of the year 7,004 15,606
The weighted average share price at the date of exerclse during 2018 was 786.4 pence (2017 — 512.7 pence).
Details of the time-based PSP awards and options outstanding at 31 December 2018 are as follows:
2018 2047
Number of Number af - Nocmel veating
shares shares dale
Date of grant-
25 February 201 875 B75 25.02.14
17 Aprit 2012 2,448 5890 17.04.1%6
20 March 2013 3,683 8,741 20.03.16
Outstanding and exercisable at the end of the year 7,004 15,608

The fair value charge to the income statement attributable to the tims-hased PSP is $nif (2017 - $nil).

{c} 2014 Hunung Performance Shars Plan { HPSP')

) Performance-Based Awards

The Cormpany now grants performance-based share awards annually to executive Diractors and serior employees under the HPSP. Awards are
granted at nil cost under the HPSP Lp to 2017, the performance-based HPSP awards to the executive Diractors were divided equally into thres
tranches, From 2018, the perlormance-based HPSP awards were divided into four tranches of differing proportions. Each tranche is subject io
a three-year vesling pencd, and is also subject to performance conditions. Up to 2017, the three conditlons were Company perfarmance over a
thres-year period agamst {i) the TSR of a bespoke comparator group, (i} underlying diluled eamings per share (“EPS") growth, and (1) average
underlying Return on Capital Employed ("RCCE") achieved. The fourth performance condition added In 2018 is based on a Balanced Scorecard,
comprising of non-financial KPis including Quality and Safety performance. The 2018 award weightings are EPS 25%; TSR 25%; AOCE 35% and
the Balanced Scorecard 15%. The parformance period for the 2018 awards granted under the HPSP is 1 January 2018 lo 31 December 2020,
The vesting date of the 2018 award 15 19 April 2021, Detalls of the performanca-based HPSP awards movements during the year are set cut below:

2048 2017

Mumbar af Nurriber of

shares shares

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 3,446,240 3,413,468
Cranted during tha yaar to execuive Directors® 373,709 639,622
Granted during the year to senior managers? 579,573 855,295
Vested and exercised during the year (157,292} -
Lapsed during the year {869,466) {1,462 145)
Outstanding at the end of the year 3,372,764 3,446,240

. The 2017 HPSP awards granted to senior managers ncorporates a fourth parformarce condiion based on Hunting's reported inlernat manufactuning reject rate.
i, The 2018 HPSF awards granted to the executive Directors and senior managers Inco-porates a Balanced Scarecard, in addition o the 18R, EPS and ROCE
per'ormance condibions,
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34. Share-Based Payments continued

(c} 2014 Hunting Performance Share Plan ("HPSP”) continued

Detalls of the performance-based HPSP awards outstanding a1 31 December 2018 are as fallows:

2018 2017

Number of Number of Normal vesting
shares shares dats

Date of grant:
28 Aprii 2015 - 865,521  28.04.18
11 March 2016 1,402,897 1,422,565 11.03.19
3 March 2017 1,027,386 1,068,154 (03.03.20
18 April 2018 242,511 - 18,0421

Outstanding at the end of the year

3,372,764 3,446,240

In 2018, 157,292 awards vested and were exercised in raspect of the 2015 HPSP grant. The weighted average share price at the date of exercise

during 2018 wag 801.2 pance. There were no exarcises in 2017,

(i) Time-Based Awards

The Company also grants time-based share awards annuaily under the HPSP. Annual awards of shares may be made to employees subject to
continued employment during the vesting period, There are no performance conditions attached. Awards are granled at nil cost under the HPGP.

Details of the time-based | IPSP awards movements during the year are set out below:

2048 2017

Number of Number of

shares ghares

Cutstanding at the beginning of the year 3,462,842 2,815,860

Granted during the year 787,667 1,260,452

Vestad and exercised during the year (868,167) (518,469}

Lapsed during the year {133,016) (94,901}

Cutstanding at the end of the year 3,249,426 3,462,242
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise during 2018 was 797.3 pence (2017 — 542.0 pence).

Details of the time-based HPSP awards oulstanding at 31 December 2018 are as follows:
2048 2017
Number af Number of Normal vesting

shares sharas

date

Date of grant’

1 May 2014 6,121 14,924  01.06.47
28 April 2015 27,250 820,611  28,04.18
1 March 2016 1,290,754 1388487 11.03.19
3 March 2017 1,157,072 1,233,010 03.03.20
19 April 2018 768,229 19.04.21

Outstanding at the end of the year

3,249,426 3,462,942

(i) Fair Value of HPSP Awards
The fair value of awards granted under the HPSP is calculated using two separate models:

{1} The fair value of awards subject to a market-related performance condition, specifically Company performance agamnst the TSR of a bespoke
peer group, has been calculated using the Stechastic pricing model (also known as the “Monte Carlo™ model},

The assurnplians used in this model were as follows:

2018 2017
Date of grantAvaluation date 19.04.18 03.03.17
Woeighied average share price af grant 785.0p 571.5p
Exercise price ni nil
Expected dividend yield nil il
Expected volatility 48.9% 53.5%
Risk-free rate 0.85% 0.11%
Expected life 3 years 3 years
Fair value 616.0p 369.0p
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements cortinued

34. Share-Based Payments continued

(c) 2014 Hunting Performance Shave Plan {*HPSP") continued

{2) The fair value of performance-based awards not subject ta a market-refated performance condition, include the EFS and ROCE performance
targets and the time-based HPSP awards, with the fair value being calculated using the Black-Scholes prcing model.

The assumptions used in this moded wera as follows:

2018 2017
Date of grant/valuation date 18.04.18 03.08.17
Weighted average share price at grant 785.0p 571.5p
Exarcise price nil nil
Expected dvidend vield nit nil
Expected volatility 48.9% 53.5%
Risk-free rate 0.85% 0.11%
Expected life 3 years Jyears
Fair value 785.0p 571.5p

The msthods to calculate the assumptions for both models are:!

= The expected volatility was calculated using hisloric weekly voiatility, equal in length to the remaining portion of the performance period a the
date of grant.

= The expected life of the award has been calculated commensurate with the vesting peried. The riak-free rate [ based on the UK gilt rate
commensurate with the vasting period prevailing at the date of grant.

« Participants are entitled to 2 dividend equivalent over the number of shares that make up their award. 1t is accumulated over the vesting
period and released subject to the achievermnent of the performance conditions This is factored into the fair vaiue calcuiation and as a result
the dividend yield assumption is set to rero.

* The initial accounting charge of the performance-based BPSP awards granted under tha HPSP incorporates an estimate of the number of
shares that are expected 1o lapse for tnose participants who cease employment during tha vesting pericd. The estimate of the expected
forfeiture rate is 5% per annum. The subsequent accounting charge includes an adjustment to the initial accounting chaige to allow for actual

Mpaes raiiC te ol Sod Lo,

The amount charged to the income statement attributable to the performance-based HPSP awards Iz $5.4m (2017 — $3.5m) and the charge to
the income staternent in respect of time-based HPSP awards is 87.7m (2017 — $8.1m}. These are recognised in operating expenses.

(d) Other Share Awards

On 15 May 2018 12,005 sharss were awarded to certain employess and were satisfied by shares held in the | lunting Employee Benefit Trust.
Tha closing mid-market price on 15 May 2018 was 558.6 pence per share The charge to the Incoma statemant attributable to these awards
was $0,1m,

On 8 May 2017 52,364 shares were awarded to cerlain employees and were satisfied by shares held in the Hunting Employes Benefit Trust,
The closing mid-market price on 8 May 2017 was 547.5 pance per share. The charge to the income statement attributable 1o these awards
was §0.3m.

The total charge to the income statement for the year for shase-based payments is $13.2m (2017 — $11.8m)

35. Operating Leases

(a} The Group as Lessee
Operaling lease payments mainly represent rentals payable by the Group for properties:

2018 2017
Property Others Total Proparty Others Total
Sm S$m $m gm $m $m
Operaling lease payments in the Income statement:
Lease and rental payments 124 1.7 13.8 11.0 0.9 11.8

The Group has provisions of $4,1m (2017 — $5.4m) far onerous contracts in respect of some leasehold properties, some of which are not used for
Group trading purposes and are eithier vacant or sub-let to third parties {note 24).
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35. Operating Leases continuad

{a} The Group as Lessee continued
Total future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-canceliable operating leases sxpiring.

Restated

2048 2017
Property Others Total Property Others Total
$m Sm $m $m $m §m
Within one year 9.5 0.6 10.1 1G4 0.8 10.7
Between cne and five years 30.0 0.7 30.7 301 0.8 308
After five yoars 12.1 - 19.1 235 — 23.5
Total lease payments 58.6 1.3 59.9 63.7 1.4 85.1

The 2017 amounts in the above table have been restated following & review of the Iease contracts as part of the impact assessment of IFRS 16 Leases,

b} The Group as Lessor

Property rental earned dunng the year was $1.5m {2017 — $0.7m), A number of the Group's leasehold properties are sub-let under existing lease
agresments.

Total future minimurm subfease income raceivable under non-cancellable cperabng leases expiring:

2016 2017

Property Praperty

&m $m

Within one year 1.8 1.5
Batween one and five years ) ) 3.3 3.9
Total lease income receivabla 51 5.4

36. Related-Party Transactiens

[l Tt oo e hnnn and aceneigtae dirine thn ynar

Vs sl vlated-paly batsatuoie ook plawe Lo azon ™, Lo ol b oo j
2018 2017
Sm $m
Year-end balances.
Heceivables from associates 0.4 0.5
Payabies to assoclates {0.1) 01h

During the year, a $1.3m dividend was received on the winding up of an associale, Tubular Rescurces Pte, Lid,

The outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and have no fixed date for repayment. No expense has been recognised in the year for
bad or doubtful debts in respect of amounts owed by associates.

All ownership interests in associates are in the equity shares of those companies, The ownership interests in associates and subsidiaries are set
outin notes C18 and C18 to the Company financial statements.

The key management of the Group comprises the Hunting PLC Board and members the Executive Commitiea. Details of their compensation are
disclosed in note 8. The Hunting PLC Directors and the membars of the Executive Gommittee had no faterial transactions other than as a result
of thelr service agreements.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

7. Principal Accounting Policies
The Group's principal accounting policies are described below:

{a) Consolidation

= The Group financial statements include the results of the Gompany and its subsidiarigs, together with its share of associates.

» Subsidiares are consolidated from the date on which controd is transferred to the Group and are de-consolidated from the date controd
ceases.

* The Group uses the acquisition method of aceaunting for business combinations. Consequently, the consideration is determined as the far
value of the net assots transferred to the vendor and includes an estimate of any contingent consideration. The nat assels acquired are also
measured at their respective fair values for initial recognition purposes an the acquisition date.

*  Acquisition-related costs are expensed to the income statement as incurred.

(b} Revenue

(i} Revenue from Contracts with Customers

s Revenus from contracts with customers is measured as tha fair valuc of the consideration received or raceivable for the provision of goods
and services In the ordinary course of businass, net of trade discounts, volume rebates, and sales taxes.

* Revenus is recognised when control of the promised goods or services s transferred to the customer. Cansequently revenus for the sale of

a product is recognised either:

1. wholly at a singie point in ime when the entity has completed its performance obiigation, which s mast commenfy indicated by delivery
of the products; or

2. piscemeal aver time during the period that cantrol incrementally transfers to the sustemer while the good is being manufactured or the
service Is being performed,

* Hunting's activities that require revenue recognition over time comprise:

1, Work undertaken to enhance customer-owned producis — most commonly the fething of a thread onto the ends of customer-owned
plain-end pipa,

2. The manufacture of goods that are specdically designed for and restricted to the use of a particular customer, such as the manufacture of
bespoke specialised circuitry and housing, and for which Hunting ls entitled to a measure of recompense that reflects the far value of the
stage of preduction prior to their completicn.

3. The prowision of services in which the customer obtains the benefit while the service is being performed — most commonly the storage and
management services of customerowned pipe

+ Hunting's activities that raquire revenue recognition at a pomit In time comprise,

1, The sale of goods that ars not specifically designed for use by one particular customer, Products include tubulars acquired by Hunting as
plain-end pipe on which lathing waork has been applied and which is resold as threaded pipe.

2, The manufacture of goods that are specifically designed for one particular customer but for which Huniing is not entitled to a measure of
recompense that reflects the fair value of the stage of preduction prior to completion,

{ii) Rental Revenue

« Rental revenue 1s measured as the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the provision of rental equipment in the ordinary
course of business, net of trade discounts and sales taxes.

+ Revenue from the rental of plant and equipment Is recognised as the income s earned.

(c) Amortisation and Exceptional items

Exceptional ilems are items of income or expense that the Directors believe should be separately disclosed by virtue of their significant size or
nature to enabla a better understanding of the Group's financial performance. The Group discloses such ftemns in the “middle column” of the
income statement. In applying this palicy, the following iterns have been treated as exceptional.

« Costs of restructuring the Group’s operations, inciuding the cost of business closures and redundancies, in response te the decline in regionat
opportunities for growth,

+ Defined benefit pension curtailment.

¢ [mpairment of property, plant and equipment

The tax effect of any transaction considered to be exceptional s also treated as excephional,

Amortisation expenses for intangible assets recognised as part of a business combination are also shown in the “middle column® due to the
s:,gnificance of these amounts and to clearly identify the effect on protits, which will arise as current balances become fully written-off, or as new
acquisitions give risa to new expenses. The post-acquisition profits of acguired businesses shown in the undeilying column do not, therefore,
reflact these costs.

{d) Interest
Inlerest income and expense is recagnised in the income statement using the effective interest method,
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37. Principal Accounting Palicies continued

{e) Foreign Currencles
{n) individual Subsidiaries’ and Assoclates’ Financial Statements

-

-

The financial statements for each of the Group's subsidiaries and associates are denominated in their functional currency.

The functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment In which the entity operates,

Transactions denominated in currancies other than the functional currency are franslated into the functional currency at the exchange raie
ruling at the date of the transaction,

Manetary assets and fiabilities, except borrowings designated as a hedging instrument in a nel investment hedge, denominated in non-
functionat currencles are refranslated at the exchange rate ruling at the balance sheet date and exchange differences are taken to the 'ncoms
statermant.

Borrowings designated as a hedging instrument in a net investment hedge are retranslated at the exchange rate ruling at the batance sheset
date and exchange differences are taken direct to equity,

( i) Group Consolidated Financial Statemerts

Tha praesentation currency of the Group is US dollars

The net assetls of non-US dollar denaminated subsiciaries and associates are trapslated into US dellars at the exchange rates rufing at the
talance sheet date.

The income statements of subsidiaries and associates are transtated into US dellars at the average rates of exchange for the year.

Exchange differences are recognised diractly in equity in the currency translation reserve (*CTR"), together with exchange differences arising
on forelgn currency loans used to finance forelge currency net Investments.

Upon adoption of IFRS on 1 January 2004, accurnulated exchange differences arising on consolidation prior to 31 December 2003 were reset
to zaro and the CTR recommenced under IFAS on 1 January 2004,

The balance on the CTR represents the exchange diffarences arising on the retranslation of non-US dollar amounts into US dollars since

1 January 2004,

On tha disposat of a business, the cumulative exchange differences praviously recogrised in the CTR relating to that business are transferred
to the income statement as part of tha gain or logs on dispesal,

(f) Taxation

The taxation recognised in the income stalement comprises current tax and deferred tax arising on the current year's rasull before tax and
adjuistments to tax arsing on pnor vears’ results

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable ansing in the cusrent year on the current year's resuit bafore 12x, using tax 1ales enacten
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, plus adjustments fo tax in respect of prior years' results,

Deferred tax is the tax that is expected to arise when the assets and liabilities recognised in the Group's balance shest are realsed, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacled at the balance sheet date that are expected 1o apply when the asset ia realised or the liabiiity is settied.
Full provision is made for deferred 1axation, using the liabilily method, on all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets and liabifities
are recognised separately on the balance sheet and are reported as non-current assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that they are expected to be recoverable, Deferred laxation on unremitlted overseas
earnings is provided for 1o the extent a tax charge Is foreseeable.

When iterns of income and expense are recognised in other comprehensive income, the curfent and deferred tax relating to those iterns is
also recognised in other comprehensive income

Tax arising on the discharge of share options and awards is recognised direclly in equity.

(g) Ssgmental Reporing

Financial information on operaling segments that corresponds with information regularly reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker
{(*CODM"} is disclosed in the financial staterments. Consequently, the Group'’s principal segmental reporting is established on a geographical
basis.

The geographical information is based on the locaton of where the sale originated and where the non-current assets are located.

Revenue is also disclosed by product group, which is provided 1o assist in investor understanding of the underlying performance trends.
Each product group consists of goods and services that are similar in nature or serve similar markets.

(h} Property, Plant and Equipment
{iy General

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated deprecialion and any impairnient in value. Cest includes expenditure that
13 directty atinbutable 1o the acquisition and instaliation of the asset.

Land, pre-preduction ol and gas exploration costs and assets under construction are not deprecialed.

Wiih the exception of drilling tools and rental tools, which are depreciated using the units of production rmethod, and oil and gas exploration
and production equipment (see () below), assels are depreciated using the straight-line method at the following raies:

Freehold bulldings - 2% to 10%
Leasehald buildings - life of lease
Plant, machinery and motor vehlcles - 8% to 33%%

The assets’ residual values and useful iives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting petiod.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continuce

37. Principal Accounting Policies continued

{h} Property, Plant and Equipment continued

(in Exploration Expenditure

* Oil and gas exploration and appraisal costs are initially capiteksed pending determination of the existence of commercial reserves and are
included in the asset category Ol ang Gas Exploration and Development.

* Upon determination that commercially viable quantities of hydrocarbons are not found, the costs are charged immediately o the Income
statement.

* Depreciation of ofl and gas expsenditure commences when production commences. The costs are depreciated using the unit of production
mathod.

{)) Goodwil}

+ Goodwii arises when the fair value of the consideration paid for a business exceeds the fair value of the Group’s share of the net assets acquired,

* Goodwill is recognised as an asset and Is carried at cost less accumulated impakrment losses,

+ Goodwillis allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made o the cash-generating unils or
groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination in which the goodwl arose.

+ On the disposal of a business, goodwill relating to that business that remains on the balance sheet at the date of disposal is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

(i} Other Intangible Assets

¢ (ther Intangble assets, whether obtained through acquisition ar internal development, ars capitalised when it is probable that the future
sconomic benafits that are attributable to the asset will be generated, provided the cost of the asset can be measured rellably.

¢ Capialisation only occurs from the point techrical and commercid feasibility of the asset has been established. Prior to this costs are
expansed.

+  Forinternally generated assets, only costs direcly attributable to the development of the assat are capitalised. Thig typically includes
employee remuneration and the cost of materials and services, such as testing, consumed in generating the intangible asset,

* Cther intangible assets are slated at cost isss accumulated amortisation and impalrment lossas where applicable.

+ These assets have a finite fife and are amortised in accordance with the patiern of expected fulure economic benefits, or when this cannot
be reliably estimated, by using the: straight-fine rethod.

* Intangible assats are amortised over the following pericds.

Customer ralationships - eight to ten years
Patents ~ elght 10 ten years
Unpaiented fechnology - aight fo ten years
Trademarks and domain names — one to five years

(k) Impaimments

* The Group performs goodwill mpairment reviews at least annually.

* The Group also assesses al least anhualty whether there have been any events or changes in circumstancas that indicate that property,
plant and equipment and inlangible assets other than goodwill may be impaired. An Impairment review is carried out whenever the
assessment indicates that the carrving amount may not be fully recoverable.

= For the purposes of impairment testing, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows.

+ Where impayment exists, the asset I1s writien down to the higher of {a) its fair value minus costs to sell; and (b} its value in use. Impairments
are recognised immedlately in the income statement,

* Animpairment to goodwill is never reversed. When applicable, an impairment of any other asset is reversed, but only o the extent that the
consequent carrying value does not exceed what would have been the carrying value had the impairment not originally been made.

{f) Inventaries

* lnventories are stated at the lower of cost and nel realisable value.

* Costis determined using the firskin-first-out methad and nel realisable value Is the estimated seliing price less costs of dispasal In the
ordinary course of business. The cost of inventories includes direct costs plus production overheads,

{m} Cash and Cash Equvalents

s Cash and cash equivalenis cemprise cash at bank and in hand, short-term depasits with 2 maturnity of less than three months fram the date
of deposil and Money Market Funds.

+ Short-term deposits and Meney Market Funds have teen classified as cash and cash equivalents as they are short-term, highiy fiquid, are
readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value,

* tor cash flow statement purposes, cash and cash equivalents include bank overdrafis. In the balance sheet, bank overdrafts are shown
within barrowings i current kabilities.
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37. Principal Accounting Palicies continued

{n) Financial Agsets

* At Initial recognition, the Group measures a financial assel at its fair valua plus, in the case of a tinanciaf asset not at fair value through profit
orloss {"FVYTPLY), transaction costs. Transaction costs of financial assets at FYTPL are expensed immediately to the incoma staternent,

+ Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on each Group enfity's business mode! for managing the asset in order to generate
cash flows and the cash flow characteristics of the financlal asset. The Group’s debt instrumenis are classified either intc amortised cost or
falr vaiue through profit or loss

» Debi instruments that are held for the collection of contractual cash flows, where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and

intarest, are subsequently measured at amortised cost, Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance Income using the
effective interest method. If collection Is expacted in one year or less they are classified as current assets, otherwise they are presented as
non-current assets. Dabt instruments held for collection of conlractual cash flows include the loan note, contract assets, rade receivables,
acorued revenue and other recelvables.

+ Any cther debt instruments, including Monay Market Funds, tnat are subsequently not measured at amortised cost have been measured at
fair value through profit or foss.

* Tha Group's financial assets that are equity instruments are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in the
{air value of the equity instrumenis are recognised in other operating income, operating expenses, finance income or fnance expense, as
appropriate. Financial assets that are equity instruments comprise: listed equity Investments and mutual funds.

+ The Group assessss on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses (“ECLs") at each balance sheet date assoclated with its loan note
that is carried at amortised cost. The impairment methedology applied, following the adoption of the general madel under IFRS 8, will depend

on whether there has been a significant increass in credit risk. Indications of a significant increass in credit risk include events that have a
negative impact on the estimated future cash flows and if any payments under the terms of the debt are more than 30 days overdue.

* The Group has chosen to apply lifetime ECLs to trade recelvables, acerued revenue, contract assets and lease raceivables, both short-term
and long-term, upon their initial recognition.

Previous Accounting Folicy

* In 2017, the Group classified its financial assets under IAS 39 as financial assets at falr value through profit or loss, as loans and receivables
and as available-for-sale financial assets. ’

* Lozns and receivables are initlally recognised at fair value at the trade date, which is normalfy the consideration paid plus transaction costs.

* Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, If coliection Is expected n ona year or less they are
classified as current assets, otherwise thay are presented as non-current assets,

¢ The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether a loan or recevable 1s ympaired and, it NECESSAry, tNe carmying armount is reduceq
to the appropriate value, The loss is racognised immediately in the income statement.

» Loans and recelvables cease to be recognised when the right to receive cash flows has expired or the Group has transferred subslantially
afl the risks and rewards of ownership.

(0} Financial Liabilities

= Financial liabilities are initlally recognised at fair value at the trade date which is normally the eonsideration received less, in the case of
financial liabiities that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs, The Group subseguently remeasures all of its
non-derivative friancial liabilites, including trade payables, at amortised cost.

+ Payables are classified as current liabilities If payment is due within ona year, otherwise they are presented as non-current kabilities.

{p) Derivatives and Hedging

« Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date the derivative conltract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their
fair value at the end of each reporting period.

+  The full falr value of a derivative is classilied as a non-current assat or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged itemn is more than
12 months from the balance sheet date.

s The accounting for subsequent changes in fair value dspends on whether the derivalive is designaled as a hedging instrument, and if so, the

nature of the item being hedged.
+ ‘Where the derivatives are not designated in 2 hedge and accounted for using hedge accounting, they are classified as "held for trading” and
are accounted for at fair value through profit or loss, with changes in the falr value recogrised immediataly within the income statement.
* The Group designates certain derivatives as gither:
{) hedges of the fair value of recognised assets and habiities; or
{i) hedges of a particular 115k associated with the cash flows of highly probabie forecast fransactions.

{1 Fair Value Hedges
» Fair value gains or losses on derivatives designated in a fair value hedge are recognised immediately in the income statement if the changes

in the fair value of the hedged item are taken to the Ihcome statement.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements contined

37. Principal Accounting Pallcies continued

{p) Deiivatives and Hedging continued

(i} Cash Flow Hedges

» When farward foreign exchange contracts are designated in a cash flow hedge of forecast transaciions, the Group generally designates only
the change in fair value of the forward contract relating to the spot component as the hedging instrument. Gains or losses relating to the
effective portion of the change in the spat component of the forward contracts are recognised in the cash flow hedge reserva within equity.
The Group has chosen to recagnise the change in the Jorward element of the contract that relates to the hedged item, defined as the forward
points, within the income statement immediately rather than in equity. The forward peints ars discounted, where material,

* Where the hedged item subsequently results in the recognition of 2 non-financial asset, such as inventory or PPE, the deferred hedging gains
and losses in equity are included within the Initial cost of the asset. The deferred amounts are subsequently recognised in profit or loss when
the hedged item affecls profit or loss (for example through cost of sales or depraciation),

+ When a hedging instrument expires, or is sold or termmated, or when a hedge no fonger meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumtlative
deferred gain or loss in equity at that time remalns in equity until the forecast transaction occurs. When the forecast transaction is no fonger
expected to ocour, the cumulative gam or loss of hedging that was reported in equity is immedrately reclassified 1o the income statemennt.

{a) Provisions

* Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to setile the obligation.

= The measurement of a provision is based on the most likely amount and timing of the expendilures. Payments that are expected to arise after
more than one year are discounted to their present value using a risk-free interest raie that Is relavant to the reglon in which the past event
occurred. The risk-free interest rate is based on the redemption yields of government securitias.

{r) Post-Employment Benefits
(i} Defined Contribution Retirement Schemes
Payments to defined contribution retirement schemes are charged to the income statement when they fall due,

(i') Defined Benefit Retirement Schemss
* Paymenis to defined benefit ratirement schemes were recognised as increments to the assets of the schemaes,

+ The amount charged to the income statement with respect to these schemes, within profit from operations, 1s the increase in the retirement
beneflt obligation restilling from the additional servnre pmvlded by the pafholpatlng employees durmg the current yeas, which for the funded
Ui i el d u‘m‘) no 15,5 cd Uil sibedand i Ve e ded slisae 1o cqua fu el buticiie P._..n_.

+ Netinterest arlsing on the net assets of the S(‘hpmes was also recognised in the income statement within net finance costs.

* Curtaiiment gains and losses were recognised fully and immediately in the income statement.

¢ Remeaswement gains and losses were recognised {ully and immediately in the statement of comprehensive Income.

* The assets of the funded schema, which were invested In insurance policies, were valued using the same methodelogy and assumptions
used to calculate the defined benefit obligation so that, where the assets matched the labilites, the vaiue of the assets was equal to the value

of the carresponding obligation.

{s) Share-Based Payments

* The Group issues equity-settled, share-based payments (HPSP awards) tc certaln employees as consideration for services received from the
employees, The farr value of the employees' services is recognised as an expense in the Irncome statement cn a straght-ine basis over the
vesting period based on the Group’s estimate of awards that will ultimately vest. The obligation o settle these awards is recognised within

other compenents of eauiy.

(1} Share Capital
* The Company's share capital comprises a single class of Ordinary shares, which are classified as equity.
+ Incremental costs directly attribuiable to the issue of now shares are charged 10 equity as a deduction from the proceeds, net of tax,

(u] Merger Reserve
The marger reserve comprises the proceeds received, net of transaction costs, In excess of the nominal valus of the Crdinary shares issued
by way of the share placing compleled en 31 Ocfober 201G, In accordance with section §12 of the Companries Act 2006, the prernium
was credited 1o the merger reserve, instead of 1o the share premium account, because the share placing was pursuant to the Company
securing aver 80% of another entity. The proceeas wers used to pay down the Group's borrowings at that time. The reserve is currently non-
distributable and wifl be ransferred to distributable retained earmngs when the proceeds meet the definition of a qualifying censideration.

(v} Dividends

* Dividands 1o the Group’s sharsholders are recognised as liabilties In the Group's financlal statements in the period in which the dividends arc
approved by shareholders, Interim dividends are recognised when paid. All dividends are dealt with in the staternent of changes in equity.
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38. Change in Accounting Policies

This note explains the impact of the adoption of IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and IFRS 9 Financial Instrurments on the
Group's financial statements.

{a) Impact on the Financial Statements

As a result of the changes in the Group's accounting policles, the priar year financial statements have been restated for the effects of IFRS 15
Revenue from Gontracts with Customers. IFRS 8 Financial Statements has been adopled without restating cormparative information, The
reclassifications and adjustments arising from the new impairment rules are therafore not reflected in the restated balance sheat as at 1 January
2017 and 31 December 2017, but are recognised in the opening balance sheet on 1 January 2018,

The tables helow show the adjustments that have been mada to each individuat line item. Line itermns that have not been affected by the changes
have not bean inciuded separately, but instead have been grouped together.

Condensed Consolidated Income Statement for the year ended 31 December 2017

As previously
v teporied IFAS 15 FRestated
&m $m Sm
Revenue 7228 20 724.9
Cost of sales (6568.1) (1.4) (569.5)
Gross profit 164.8 0.6 165.4
Cther operating income 7.6 - 7.8
Operaiing expenses (187.8) - (187.8}
Loss from operations (25.4) 0.8 (24.8}
Finance income 3.3 - 3.3
Finance expense 4.8) - (4.8
Share of associates' posttax loases (1.3) - (1.3}
Loss befare tax from operations {28.2) 0.6 (27.6)
laxation (1.9 - (1.0
Loss for the year {29.2) 0.6 (28.6)
Loss attributable to:
Owners of the parent (26.7) 06 (26.1)
Non-contralling interests (2.5) - 2.5
{28.2) 0.6 (28.6)
Loss per share cenis cents cants
Basic {16.4) 0.4 (18.0)
Diluted {i6.4) 0.4 (16.0)

IAS 1 paragraph 82(ha} requires impairment losses for the yeer (including revarsais of impairment losses or impairment gains) determined fn
accordance with Section 5.5 of IFRS @ to be presented on a separate line In tha income statement. As the amounts are not considered 1o be
material, the Impairment losses for the year have been disclosed within note 18,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements coninued

38. Change in Accounting Paolicies continued

{a) Impact on the Financial Statements continued
Condensed Consolidated Statement of Comprehenasiva Income for the year ended 31 Decemnber 2017

Asg pravicusly
reported IFRS 15 Restated
$m $m $m
Comprehensive expense:
Loss for the year {29.2) 0.8 (28.8)
Gomponents of other comprehensive income after tax 10.8 - 10.8
Total comprehensive expense for the year {18.4) 0.8 {17.8)
Total comprehensive expense attributable to:
Owners of the parent (17.9) 0.8 17.3)
Non-cantrolling Interests {0.5) - {0.5)
{i8.4) 0.8 {17.8)
Total comprehensive expense atiributable to owners of the parent arises from the Group’s continuing operations.
Gondensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2017
As previously
reported at Restated st Rastated at
31 December IFRS 15 31 Decarnker IFRS 9 1 January
2007 {note 38(Y 2017 {note 38{ch 2018
&m §m $m $m $m
ASSETS
Non-current assets 749.0 — 749.0 - 749.0
Current assets
Inventories 286.2 5.2) 281.0 - 281.0
Trade and other receivables 178.9 88 185.7 (o3%] 185.5
Qther current assets 86.5 — 66.5 — 66.5
5316 1.6 533.2 {0.2) 533.0
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 130.9 - 130.8 - i30.9
Other current liabilities 13.6 - 13.6 - 13.6
144.5 - 144.5 - 144.5
Net current assels 3871 1.6 388.7 0.2) 388.5
Non-current liabilities 258 - 258 - 25.6
Net assets 13105 1.6 $1124 0.2} 1,111.8
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Retained earnings 780.6 1.6 7822 0.2 7820
Other equity balances 3111 - 311.1 - 3111
1,081.7 1.6 1,093.3 0.2 1,0834
Non-controlling interests 18.8 - 188 - 18.8
Total equity 1,110.5 1.6 11121 0.2) 1.111.9
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38, Change in Accounting Policies continued

{a} Impact on the Financlai Statements continued
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2017

As praviously
reported at Restated al Reslated at
31 December IFRG 15 31 December IFRS & 1 January
2017 {note 38(LY 2017 {note 28{c) 2018
$m Fn §n &m m
Inventories
Raw materials 99.2 0.5) 98.7 - 98.7
Work In progress 52.0 4.8) 47 4 - 47.4
Finished goods 163.6 (0.5} 163.1 - 1631
Gross inventories 314.8 5.8) 309.2 - 309.2
|_eas: provisicn (28.6) 0.4 {28.2} — (28.2)
Net invertories 286.2 (5.2) 281.0 - 281.0
Trade and other receivables ,
Current:
Contract assets - 6.8 6.8 - 6.8
Trade receivables 152.8 - 152.8 - 152.8
Accrued revenue 6.2 - 6.2 - 6.2
Gross raceivables 158.0 6.8 165.8 — 165.8
Less: provision for Impairment {4.8) - {1.8) 0.2) 5.0)
Net receivables 1564.2 6.8 161.0 0.2 160.8
Prepayments 17.6 - 17.6 - 17.8
Othar recevables o 7 - 7.1 = 71
178.8 6.8 185.7 £.2) 185.5
Trada and other payables
Current;
Contract liabllites - *N| 91 - 81
Trade payables 473 - 473 - 473
Accruals 45.9 - 499 - 499
Other current payables 337 9.1 248 — 2486
130.9 — 1309 - 130.9
Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 2017
As pravicusly
reported Reslaled
vear ended year anded
31 December 31 Decamber
207 IFRS 15 2017
Notes $m Sm $m
Operating activiiies
Reported loss from operations (25.4) 0.6 (24.8)
Acquisition amor tisation and exceptional items B8 391 - 39.1
Dapreciation and non-acquisition amortisation M7 - 4.7
Underlying EBITDA 55.4 0.6 56.0
Increase i inventorles (20.9} 1.2 (19.7)
Increase m receivables (64.7} {1.8} (66.5)
Increase in payables 46.3 - 48.3
Operating activities other cash flows 18.3 - 18.3
QOperating activities non-cash flow items 11.4 - 11.4
Net cash Inflow from operating activities 458 - 458
Net cash outflow from investing activities 2.9 - 9.9)
Net cash outflow from financing aclivities ] (23.2) - (23.2
MNet cash Inflow In cash and cash equivalents 127 - 12.7
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 203 - 20.3
Effect of foreign exchange rates 1.3 - 1.3
Cash and cash equivalents at the and of the year 34.3 - 34.3
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

38, Change in Accounting Policies continued

{a) Impact on the Financial Statements continued
Gondensed Consalidated Balance Sheet as at 1 January 2017

As praviously
reparted at Restated at
a1 December IFRS 15 1 January
2016 {note 38{0}) 2017
$m $m $m
ASSETS
Non-current assets 841.3 - 841.3
Current assets
Inventories 259.7 {4.0) 265.7
Trade and other receivables 117 5.0 116.7
Other current assets 88.4 - 88.4
45G.8 1.0 460.8
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payatles 700 - 70.0
Other current labilities 8.2 — 66.2
136.2 - 136.2
Net current assets T 323.6 10 324.8
Non-current liabilities 47.5 - 47.5
Net assets 11174 1.0 1,118.4
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Retained earnings 8000 10 801.0
Other eqguity balances 2081 — 208.1
1,008.1 1.0 1,089 1
Non-controlling interests 18.3 - 19.3
Total aquity 1,117.4 1.0 1,118.4

{b} Impact of Adoption of IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
[FRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Custormers establishes when revenue should be recognised, how # should be measured and what
disclosures about contracts with custormers should be made. FRS 15 replaces 1AS 18 Revenue and |AS 17 Construction Contracts and related
intarpretations, The new accounting policles are sel aut In nete 37. The slandard is effective for the Group frem 1 January 2018, [FRS 16 must
be applied retrospectively. However, an entity can choose whether to apply the standard retrospectively to each peried presented or apply the
maodified retrospective method, whereby the cumulative effect of applying the standard is recognised Iin eguily al the date of initial application.

In accerdanca with the transition provisions in IFRS 15, the Group has adopted the new rules fully retrospectively, rather than the modified
retrospective method as indicated in the 2017 Annual Report and Accounts, and has restaled the comparatives for the 2017 financial year,
as this is considered to enhance the clarity of the financial statements.

The following adjustments were made to the amounts recognised in the balance sheet at the date of initial application, 1 January 2018,

IAS 18
Carrying amount
31 December

IFRS 15
Carrying amount

2017 Reclassrication  Remeasurement 1 January 2018

$m m $m $m

Net trade recelvables 148.0 (148.0) - -
Net frade receivables — rental recelvablas - i2.5 - 12.5
Net frade recewvables — IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers - 136.6 - 13656
Current contract assets - - 6.8 6.8
Accrued revenue 6.2 8.2) - -
Accrued revenue — rental receivables - 1.7 - 1.7
Accrued revenue — IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers - 4.5 - 4.5
inventones 286.2 - 5.2) 281.0
Current contract liabilities — 2.1) - 8.1)
Other payables — deferred revenue {1.0} - - (1.0)
Other payables — payments on account from customers {9.1) 9.1 - -
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38. Change in Accounting Policies continued

{b} Impact of Adoption of IFBS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers continued

IFRS 15 requires an entity to recognise revenue when control of promised goods or services is passed o its customers for an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expacts to be antitled in exchange for thase goods or services, Revanue will either be recognisad
at a point in time, when the entity has completed its performance obligation or over fime as, while and when the promise is performed.
Cansequently, revenue that was previously recognised at a point in time may now have to be recagnised over time.

Hunting's revenue is principally generated from the following sources:

Sales of goocds to customers; preducts include manufactured goods and QGCTG suppflies.

Performance of services, which is principally comprised of threading plain-end pipe.

Licensed use of Hunting's thread designs.

Rental of equipiment such as mud motors and drilling tools, Rental ravenue does not fall within the scope of IFRS 15 and is unaffected by the
requirements of the new accounting standard,

- . s

Management has identified two principal revenue streams that require an amendment to the Group’s revenue accounting policies following the
adeplion of IFRS 15. These activities involve: (1) the manufacture of products that have been designed witn the customer to their bespoke
spacifications and for which Hunting has an enforceable right to payment if the customer wera to prematurely withdraw from the contract without
cause; and {2) work performed by Hunting that snhancas customer-owned praducts, such as lathing customer-owned plain-end pipea.

Under IFRS 15, apportionment of revenue belween different financial reparting periods is required when Hunting's satisfaction of performance
obligations straddles two or more financial reporting periods. The majority of Hunting's performance abligations are relatively short and
consequentiy very few In number straddle two financial reporting pericds. As a result, only & small proportion of the Group’s annual revenue
needs to be apportioned betwesen financial reporting penods such that the impact on the Group's financial statements 1S mmnimal.

The impact on the Group's retained earnings as al 1 January 2017 is as follows:

2017

&m

Opening retained earnings at 1 January 2017 (hefors restatement for IFRS 15} 800.0

Point in time sales reconnised as over fime aales nnder FRE 1S 10

Restated opening retained earnings at 1 January 2017 under IFRS 15 801.0
The impact on the Group's retained earnings as at 1 January 2018 is as follows

2018

$m

Restated opening retained earnings at 1 January 2018 under IFRS 9 (before restaterment for IFRS 15) (note 38(c) 780.4

Point In time sales recognised as over time sales under IFRS 15 1.6

Restated opening retained earnings at 1 January 2018 under IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 782.0

Prior to the adoption of IFAS 15, the majority of the Group's revenue was recognised at the point in time when the goods or services were
completed/delivered. [FAS 15 requires the Group to now recognise revenue when canlrol of the goods or services transfars 1o the customer.

For some of the Group’s activiies as described above, this requires the Group to recognise revenue while the goods are still being manufactured
or the services are still being performed. Consequenily, revenue on these activities is recognised earlier under IFRS 156 than it is recognised under
the previous accounting standards. At 31 December 2017, the fair value of the accelerated revenue amounted to $6.8m and this 1s recagnised
as a contract asset, within current receivables, on the halance sheet and as additlonal revenue within the year ended 31 December 2017.

As a result of conlrol of the geods and services transferring 1o the customer, the Group must also de-recognise the costs incurred 1o date in
producing the goods o performing the services. As at 31 Decembar 2017, the carrying velue of the goods and services that had fransferred to
the customar, and which under the previous accounting standards was recognised as inventory, amounted to $5.2m

The net impacl of recognising an additional asset of $8.8m, carried at fair value, and de-recopgnising lhe associated cost of $5.2m, is to increase
the Group's net assets by $1.6m, which is recognised as a $1.6m increase in retained earnings. As a tesult of the Group’s tax position, the tax
impact of these adjustments is $nil,

The presentation of certain amounts It the balance shee! has been changed to reflect the terminology of IFRS 15, as follows:

* Net trade receivables of $148.0m have now been presented as net trade receivables from revenue from contracts with customars of $135.5m
and net frade receivables from revenus from leasing centracts of $12.6m.

* Accrued revenue of $68.2m has now been presented as accrued revenue arising from coniracts with customers of $4.5m and accrued
revenue arising from leasing contracts of $1 7m,

« Contract liabilities of $9.1m were previously presentad as payrments on account fram customers in other payablas.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

38. Change in Accounting Policles continued

{c) Impact of Adoption of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces IAS 38 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and establishes principles for the recognitlon,
derecognition, classification and meaaurement of financial assets and liabilities, together with new requiremenits relating to the impairment of
financial assets and new simplified hedge accounting rulss. The new accounting poiicies are set out in note 37, IFRS 9 became effective for the
Group on 1 January 2018 and is generally appled retrospactively, except as described balow.

n accordance with the transitional provisions of (FRS @ (7.2.15), comparative figures have not been restated in raspect of IFRS 9’s classification
and measurement {including impairment) requirements. Any differences in the carrying ameunts of financial assets and financial liabilties as a
result of adopting IFRS 9 are recognised in relained earnings as at 1 January 2018, Accordingly, the Information presented for the ysar ended
31 December 2017 doas nat generally reflect the requirements of IFRS 9 but rather those of JAS 39, There was, therefore, no impact on the
Group's retained earmings as at 1 January 2017 as a result of adopting (FRS 8.

The daetermination by each entity of the business mode] within which a financial asset is held has been made an the basis of the facls and
circumstances that existed at the date of intial application, 1 Januvary 2018,

The Impact on the Group's retained earnings as at 1 January 2018 Iz as foflows:

2018

Nole Sm

Closing retained earnings at 31 December 2017 — as previously reported under [AS 39 and IAS 18 780.6
Increase in provision for trade receivables and contract assets 380 {0.2)
Restated opening retained eamirgs at 1 January 2018 under IFRS 9 (before restaterncnt for IFRS 15) 7804

( Derivatives and Hedging

“here is a new hedge accounting model, which has been simplified and is more closely aligned to the business’s risk management activities.
Any changes to hedge accounting under IFRS 8 are to be appiied prospectively by Hunting from 1 January 2018 as Hunting has not taken the
opticn to continus applying 1AS 36 to its hedge accounting.

The Group had forward foreign exchange conlracts and foreign currency swaps in place to hedge its exposure to foreign exchangs rate
OLVENIST T al of LECEITIuE Ui,

Certain forward foreign exchange contracts had been designated in a cash flow hedge as at 31 December 2017 to hedge the foreign currency
risk associaled with forecast inventory purchases. These cash flow hadges have qualified as cash flow hedges under IFFIS 9

At 31 December 2017, forward foreign exchange contracts were designated in fair value hedges to hedge the foreign exchange movement in
foreign currency trade payables. These falr value hedges have qualiiied as fair value hedges under IFRS 8.

A forsign currency swap was also designated in a fair vaiue hedge to hedge the foreign exchange movemenis in a Canadian dollar-denominated
pseudo equity loan a1 31 December 2017, This fair vaiue hedge has qualifiad as a fair value hedge under IFRS 9,

The Group's risk managemenl strategies and hedge documentation are aligned with the reguirements of IFRS 8 and these relationships are
treatad as continuing under 1IFRS 9.

Under IAS 38, the Group designated the spot component of the changa in fair value of the forward foreign exchange contracts in a cash flow
hedge. Changes in the forward points, the differential between the forward rate and the market spot rate, were racognised in the income
staternent in finance costs.

Under IFRS B, changes in the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts atirlbutable to forward points can be recognised as a cost of
hedging in the hedging reserve. The Group has chosen te continue recognising the costs of hedging in the income staternent immediately rather
than deferring these in equity.

Under 1AS 39, the amounts accumulated  the cash flow hedge reserve relating to the spot component were reclassified and included in the
initial cost of the inventory item when it was recognised. The same approach applies under IFRS § to 1he amounts accurnulated in the cash flow
hedge reserve,
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38. Change in Accounting Policies continued

{c} Impact of Adoptian of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments continued

{ii) impairment of Financial Assets

IAS 39's *incurred loss” modei has been replaced with a new mpayment model, the "expected loss' model, An entity will recognise a loss
allowance from the point of initial recognition for all financial assets based on expected credit losses, which will result in the sarlier recognition

of credit losses, i.e. a "day one” loss, will be recagnised. This will result in the eariler recognition of bad debt provisions.

Trade raceivables, contract assets and accrued revenue

The Group appiies the IFRS 8 simplified impaiment model, which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance, to short-term trade receivables,
accrued revenue, contract assets and leass receivables and long-term trade receivables, accrued revenue and contract assets. To measure the
expected credit lossas, rade recaivables, accrued revenue and conlract assets have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristios
and the days past due.

Conlract assets reprasent the Group's right to consideration for goods or services that have been transferred to a cusforner while the right
remans on condition that Hunting completes its promise. Accrued revenue represents unbilled revenue that is recognised after Hunting has
completed its promise to a customer. As conitract assets and acerued revenue have substantially the same credit risk characteristics as trade
receivables for tha same types of contracis, It was concitided that the expected loss rates for trade recelvables are a reasonable approximation
for the loss rates for contract assets and accrued revenue,

As at 31 Decernber 2017, the impact on the Group's financial performance and position has bean ar increase in the bad debt provision of $0,2m.
A recongillation of the bad debt provision as at 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 is shown below.

2018

$m
At 31 December 2017 — calculated under |1AS 39 4.8
Additional Impalrment recognised at 1 January 2018 en trade receivables as at 31 December 2017 0.2
Opening bad debt provision as at 1 January 2018 — calculated under IFRS © 5.0

The bad debt provision decreased to $3.1m by 31 December 2018, The decrease would not have been materially different under the incurred
loss model of 1AS 39.

Trade receivables and contract assels are written off when there is no reasonable expectation that the Group wili be abla to collect all amcunts
due according to the original lerms of sale. indicators that the debt will not be recovered include defaults in payment and the debtor is in financial
difficulty or the debtor has been placed into administration and 1s no longer trading.

Investmants

The Group's listed equily investments and mutual funds are carried at fair value through profit or less and are considarad to have a low credit risk
as they have & low risk of default. Funds are invested In a wide portiolio of US mutual funds and no indvidual exposure is considered to be
significant.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets carvled at amortised cost include the loan note, a receivable from 1he liquidators of an associate far the Group’s share of
net assets and other receivables. Tha loss allowance at 1 January 2018, as a result of applying the expected credit risk model under IFRS 9, was
$nil and by 31 December 2018 the receivabte from the liquidators of $1.3m had been collscted in full,

{lii) Classification and Measurement

The classification and measurement of financial assets 1s now driven by the cash flow characleristics of the asset and the business model of the
individual cormpany. On 1 January 2018, the date of inftial application of IFAS 8, management has assessed which business models apply 1o the
financial assets held by the Group and has classified its financial instruments into the appropriate IFRS 9 categories. All of the Group’s entities
have a hold lo collect business madel and therefore the classification of financial assets has not changed following the adoption of IFRS 9, Asa
result, thaie has been no impaet on the Group's retainod earnings. The effect of adopting IFRS € un the carrying amounts of financial assets at
1 January 2018 relates sclely to the new impairment requirements.

The classification of the Group's non-current and currant investments under IFRS 9 has not changed from the classification under 1AS 39 al fair
value through profit or lass. Mon current and current ofher receivables, the loan note, not trade receivables, accrued revenue and cash at bank
and in hand were previously classilied as loans and recevables under IAS 38 are now classified as at amortised cost under IFRS Q.

The carrying amcunts for inancial assets under IFRS 9 have not changed fram the carrying amounts under IAS 39, except for trade and other
recelvables. An increase of $0,2m in the bad debt provision was recognised in opening retained sarnings at 1 January 2018 an transition 1o
IFRS 9 and the carrying amount of net trade receivables reduced from $148.0m to $147.8m. These trade and other receivables do not Include
the additional contract assets of $6.8rm that were recognised on the adoption of IFRS 15, sea note 38(b) above.
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Company balance sheet
at 31 December 2018

2018 2017
Notes $m 3m
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries C4 436.8 436.8
Other receivablas G5 286.0 2753

722.8 7124

Current assets

Other receivables G5 1.1 1.3
Current tax asset - 2.1
1.1 34
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Other payables cB 1.3 1.8
Provisions 0.6 0.5
Current tax liability 0.4 -
2.3 2.3
Net current {liabllities) assets 1.2} 11
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 0.6 0.3
Provisions 0.8 [0X3]
T 1.4 09
Nef assets 720.2 712.3
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Share capitat Ct2 86.7 66.4
Shire pyremil im mn 153.0 151N
Other components of equity C13 70.5 793
Retained earnings Cl4 430.0 413.6
Total equity 720.2 7123

The Company has clected to take the exemption under Section 408 of the Gompanies Act 2006 from presenting its own income statement and
stalement of comprehensive Incorme. Profit and total comprehensive income for the year of $7.3m (2017 - $13.6m) has been accounted for in the
financial statements of the Company,

The notes on pages 155 to 160 are an integral part of these financial statements, The financial statements on pages 152 to 154 were approved
by the Board of Diractors on 28 February 2019 and were signed on its behalf by:

Yt Johnson Peter Rose
Dirsctor Director Registered number: 974568
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Company statement of changes in equity

Year ended 31 Decamber 28

Share Share nompos::::; Ratalned Total
capital prerium af equity earnings aguity
Noles $m ssm_ $m il‘ﬂ $m
At 1 January 66.4 153.0 79.3 413.6 7123
Profit for the year - — - 7.3 7.3
Total comprehensive income - - - 7.3 7.3
Dividends paid to equity shareholders Cis - - - (6.6} {6.6)
Shares lasued
— share option schemes and awards c12 0.3 - - - 0.3
‘freasury shares
— purchase of Treasury shares - - - (5.7} 5.7}
Share options and awards
—value of employee services C13 - - 1341 - 13.1
- discharge C13,C14 - B .7 8.2 {0.5)
Transfer between reserves - - {12.2) 12.2 -
Total transactions with owners 0.3 - {8.8) 9.1 0.6
At 31 December 66,7 153.0 70.5 430.0 720.2
Vear endad 31 Decernber 2017
Other
Share Share components Relained Total
capital prermium of equity earnngs aquity
Motes m $m $m Sm §m
At 1 January 66.3 153.0 76.8 3911 687.2
Profit for the year — - - 13.6 13.6
Totai comprehensive income — — - 13.0 1840
Shares issued
—share option schemes and awards ci2 0.1 - - - 0.1
Share options and awards
- value of employee services c13 - - 11.8 - 11.8
- discharge C13,C14 - — @.1) 8.9 (0.2}
Total transactions with owners o1 — 2.5 8.8 1.5
At 31 Decemnber E6.4 153.0 79.3 4138 7123
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Company statement of cash flows
For the yaar ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
Notas $m $m
Operating activities
Profil from operations 0.6 71
Share-based payments expense 13.2 11.6
Decreass (increase) in receivables 0.2 {0.4)
Decrease in payables {1.6) {0.6)
Increase in provisions 0.1 03
Net exchange differences 0.7 08
Taxation received (paid) 0.6 20
Net cash inflow from operating activities 13.8 17.1
Investing activities
Interest received 8.7 7.6
Net cash inflow from investing activities 8.7 7.8
Financing activities
Interest and bank fees paid {0.1) N
Dividends paid to equity sharehclders C15 (8.6) -
Share capital 1Issued 0.3 [N
Purchase of treasury shares (5-7) _
Loan issued (22.9) (29.5)
Loan received 0.3 0.3
Loan issued repaid 12.2 -
Net cash outflow from financing activities {22.5) {29.2)
Net cash inflow (outflow) in cash and cash equivalents - {4.5)
- 4.5

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
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Notes to the Company financial statements

C1. Basis of Preparation

Hunting PLC is a premium-listed public company limited by shares, with its Ordinary shares hsted on the London Stock Exchange. Huntng PLC
was incorporated In the United Kingdom under the Companies Act and ls registered in England and Wales. The address of the Company's
registered office is shown on page 167. The Company acits as a holding company for the Hunting PLG Group. Detalls of the Company's
subsidiaries are given in note C18. The financial statements of Hurting PLC have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 as
applicable to companies using IFRS and thosa Internationat Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS®) and IFRS Interpretations Committee (*IFRS
IC") Interpretations as adopted by the European Union. The financial statements have been prepared on a going concem basis under the
historical cost convention. Tha Board's consideration of gelng concern is detailed further in the Strategic Report on page 53.

The Cormpany’s principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are the same as those set out in note 37 of
the Group’s financial staternents, except for investments in subsidiaries that are stated at cost, which is the falr value of the consideration paid,
fess provision for impairment. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

From the perspective of the Company, the principat risks and uncertainties are integrated with the principal risks of the Hunting PLC Group and
ara not managed separately. The principal risks and uncertainties of the Hunting PLC Group, which include those of the Company, are discussed
on pages 49 to 52 and further detail on financtal risks is provided within note C9,

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments !

IFRS @ Financial Instruments replaces JAS 39 Financial Instruments. Recognition and Measurement, became efiective for the Company on

1 January 2018 and has been adopted retrospectively. There ia no impact on the Company’s finaacial position or resulls following the adaption
of iFRS 9 on 1 January 2018.

On 1 January 2018, the date of initial application of IFRS 9, management has assessed which business models apply 1o the firancial assets
held by the Company and has classiied its financial instruments inlo the apprapriate IFRS 9 categories. The classification and measurement of
financial assets is now driven by the cash flow characieristics of the azset and the business madel of the Cornpany The Company has a hotd to
collect business model and thersfore the classHication of financial assets has not changed following the adoption of IFRS 9, As a result, there
has been no impact on the Company's retained earnings.

The non-current loan recevable from a subsidiary and current receivables from subsidiaries wers previously classified as loans and receivables
under IAS 39 and are now classified as at amortised cost under IFRS 8. The carrying amounts for finarclal assets under IFRS 9 have not
changed from the carrying amounls under [AS 38,

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Gustomers establishes when revenue is recognised, how it should be measured and what disclosures
about contracts with customers should be made. IFRS 15 replaces IAS 18 Ravenus and JAS 11 Construction Contracts and refated
interpretations, The standard is effective for the Company from 1 January 20M8. There was no impact on the Company's financial posihon or
results following the adoption of IFRS 15 on 1 January 2018.

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 Leases replaces IAS 17 Leases and ifs related interpretations, IFRS 16 establishes principles for the recegnition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors. The standard will be effective for the Company from 1 January 2018.
Management has performed an assessment of the impact of adopting IFRS 16 and currently no impact an the Company's financial position
or results is expected following the adoption of IFRS 16 an 1 January 2019,

C2. Employees
The Company had no employees during the current or prior year,

C3. Auditors’ Remuneration
Services provided by the Company's independent auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, and its associates comprised:

2018 2017
$m $m
Feas payable to the Company's independent auditors and its associates for:
The audit of these financial statements 0.5 0.5
G4, Investmentis in Subsidiaries
2016 20§7
$m $m
Cost:
At 1 January and 31 December 436.8 4368
Impairment:
At1January and 31 December - -
Net book armount 436.8 436.8

The Company's stbsidiaries arc detailed In note C19. Investments in subsidianes are recorded at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration
paid, less impairment. The Dlrectors believe that the carrying value of the investments Is supported by their underlying net assets.

Hunting PLC | 2018 Annual Report and Accounts 155

Hodas oi8ajens

aouewaA03 sieiodio]y

uoligL JOJUL IBLIO  SIUSLUSIR]S [RIDUBLL]

IR —




Notes to the Company financial statements continued

CB5. Other Receivables

2018 207
$m m

MNon-current:
Lean receivable from a subsidiary — interest-bearing 285.9 275.2
Prepayments 0.1 0.1
286,06 2753

Current:

Recelvables from subsidiaries 0.8 0.8
Prepayments 0.2 0.4
Other recelvables 0.1 0.1
1.1 1.3

The loan receivable from a subsidiary anrt current racenvables from subsidiaries are financial assets measured at amortissd cost, Other receivables
relate lo VAT balances, which are not financlal assets.

Nene of the Company’s recalvables (2017 — none) were overdue at the year-ond and the Gompany does not consider it necessary to provide

for any impairments as there is no recent history of defaall or any Indications that the contractual payments wilt not be made. The Gompany's
raximum exposuire 1o credit risk is the fair value of each class of receivable, as described in note C8. The Company doss not hold any collateral
as security and no assets have been acquired through the exercise of any collateral previously held. The interest-bearing loan receivable froma
subsidiary is unsecured and interest 1s charged based on a margin over bank lending rates. Gurrent receivables due from subsidlanes are current
accounts and are unsecured, Interast free and repayable on demand.

C8. Other Payables

2018 2017
Sm $m

Current:
Payables to subsiciarles 0.2 0.3
Accruals 0.6 0.8
Other payables ) 0.5 a7
1.3 1.8

Payables to subsidiaries, accruals and other payables are financial liabilitics carried at amortised cost. Current payables due to subsidianss are
unsecured, interest free and repayabls on demand.

C7. Derivatives and Hedging
The Company has used forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge its exposure to exchange rate movements during the year. At
31 December 2018, the Gompany had no outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts (2017 - $ni).

Gains and losses on contiacts that are not designated In a hedge relationship are taken directly 1o the income statement. Changes in the fair
value of currency derivatives nat designated in & hedge relationship ameunting to a $0.4m loss (2017 - $nily were recognised in the income
staterment during the vear.

€8, Financial Instruments: Fair Values

Due to their short-term nature, the carrying value of current recelvables from subsidiaries, ather receivables, payables to subskdiaries, accruals,
other payablas, provisions, borrowings and bank overdrafis approximates their fair value, The carrying value of the loan receivable from
stbsidiaries approximates its fair value as interest is chaiged based on a margin over current bank lending rates.

C9, Financial Risk Management

The Company’s activitles expose I to certain financlal risks, namely market risk (including currency rigk, cash flow interest rate risk and fair value
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidily risk. From the perspective of the Cormpany, these financial nisks are integrated with the financial risks of
the Hunting PLG Group and are not managed separately,

(a) Forelgn Exchange Risk

The Company Is mainly exposed to foreign exchange rigk from i1s financing and operating activities in respect of Sterling Foreign exchange risks
arise from future transactions and cash flows and from recognised monetary assets and liabilities that are not denominated in US dollars and,
where appropriate, forward foreign exchange contracts are used to manage the exposure to changes in foreign exchange rates. The Gompany
has Sterling denominated financial assets and financlal liabilities.

The carrying amount of the Company’s financlal asseis included In current receivables from subsidiaries at 31 December on which exchange
differances would be recognised in the income statement in the lollowing year, is $0.7m {2017 — $0.4m} for Sterfing denominated financial assets.

The carrying amount of the Company's financial fiabilitiss included In accruals, other payables and provisions at 31 December, on which

exchange differences would be recognised In the Income statement in the following year, is §3.2m (2017 — $2.6m) for Sterling denommated
financlal liabilities
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C8. Finansial RHisk Management continued

{b) Interest Rata Risk
The Company is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk from its loan receivabls from a subsidiary and borrowings payable to a subsidiary, which
are at vanable interest rates.

{c} Credit Risk

The Company's credit risk arises from its outstanding current receivables and koan recsivable from a subsidiary. The Company s exposed to

credit risk to the extent of non-receipt of its financial assets, however, it has no significant concentrations of credit nisk other than from related
parties. Credit risk is continually monitored and no individual exposure is considered to be significant in the ordinary course of the Company’s
activities.

The Interest-bearing loan receivable due from a subsidiary has not been impaired as no losses are expected from nan-performance of this
counterparty. The credit risk at the lime the loan was taken out was deemad to be low and there has not been an increase in the credit risk since
the time the loan was initlally recognised. Therefore, management does not believe that there is a significant increase in credit risk such that the
loan moves from stage 1 to stage 2 of the IFRS 9 general impairment model. Thera Is no history of default and previously all payments under the
original terms of the loan have been made. The loan is with the Group's central treasury company, which has sufhcient cash, short-term deposits
and credit facitities, in the form of the RCF, to repay the loan. Management does not have any reasen to believe that any future payments will not
be made In accordance with the tarms of the loan, Therefore no provision for 12-month expected credit losses has been made under IFRS 9.

The Company’s cutatanding receivables due fram subsldiarles are curent accounts and no losses are expected from non-performance of these
caunerparties,

{d) Liquidity Risk
The Company has sufficlent facilities available to sausfy its requirements.

During March 2017, the Group's lreasury funclion put in place a sweeping arrangement with the Company, such that at the end of each day any
halances in its bank accounts are swept 1o the treasury function, with a corresponding increase in the loan recevable balance with fellow group
companies. As a resul, at the end of the vear, cash at bank is $nil

The Company is party to a cross-guarantee and set-off arrangement with Lloyds Bznk Plc and Barclays Bank Ple. There is no sel-off in the
PIESENEtoNn O uasl CAIANCES NEIa by (e Sompany 11 the mancial staienienis, Unaer dns airangemes it 1Ne Lumipany is Juilily af iz sevelally
liable for any gross liability position held by any of the companies’ party to the aforementioned arrangements in the event of default. Any gross
liability lirmit cannot exceed a combined facility limit of £2.6m ($3.4m).

The table below analyses the Company’s nan-derivative financial liabilities into relevant matunty groupings based on the remaining pericd at the
balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date of the financial iabilities. The amounts presented in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows, whereas the carrying amounts in the balance sheet are the discounted amounts.

2018 2017
On demand On dermand
ar within or within
one year one year
$m &m

Non-dervative financial fabilibes:
Payables to suibsldlaries 0.2 0.3
Borrowings — payable due to subsidiary 0,8 03
Aceruals 0.6 08
Other payables ) 0.5 0.7
1.9 24

The Company did not have any derivative financial llabilities at the end of 2017 or 2018

(e) Capital Risk Management

The Company's capital consists of equily and net cash. Nel cash comprises the foan recelvable from a subsidiary and borrowings. It Is managed
with the aim of mairtaining an approprate level of inancing avaiable for the Company's activities, having due regard to interest rate risks and the
availability of borrowing facilities.

Changes in equily arise from the retention of earnings and from issues of share capital. Net cash is monitored on a periodic bagis, Al the
year-end, capital comprised:

Restated

2018 2017

$m $m

Total equity 720.2 712.3
Net cash:

Borrowings — payable due to subsidiary 0.6 0.3

Loan receivable from subsidiary (nole C8) o {285.9) (275.2)

Capital employed 434.9 437 .4

The 2017 capital employad amount has been reslaled winclude the Company's borrowngs.
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Notes to the Company financial statements ccntinues

C&, Financial Risk Management continued

(e} Capital Risk Management continued

The increase in total equity during the vear is mainly aitributable to the retained profit for Lhe year of $7.3m. The increase in the share-based
payments resarve of $13.1m is offset by the payment of a dividend of $8.6m and the purchasa of freasury shares of $5.7m. The loan receivable
from a subsidiary increased by $10.7m largely dus to royalty income recsived during the year. There have baen no significant changes in the
Gompany's funding policy during the year,

G10. Financlat Instruments: Sensitivity Analysis

The following sensitivity analysis is intended to Hlustrate the sensitivity to changes in market variables on the Company’s financial instruments and
show tha impact en proftt ar loss and shareholders’ equity. Financial instruments affectad by markat risk include non-current receivables from
subsidiaries and borrowings, The sensitivity analysis relates to the position as at 31 December 2018,

The analysis excludes the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying value of provisions and on non-financial assets and liabilities.
The lollowing assumptions have been made in calculating the sensltivity analysis:

+ Foreign exchange rate and Interest rate sensitivities have an asymmetric Impact on the Company's resuilts, that is, an increase In rates does
not result in the same amaount of movemneant as a decrease in rates,

s For floating rate asssets and liabilities, the amount of asset or liability outstanding at the balance sheet date is assumed to be outstanding for
*he whole year.

* The carrying values of financial assets and liabilities carried at amortised cost do not change as mnterest rates change.

{a) Interast Rate Sensitivity

The post-tax impact on the income statement, with all other variables held constant, at 31 December 2018, for an increase of 0.5%

(2017 - 0.75%) in US interest rates, is to increase profits by $1,2m (2017 — $1.7m). if the US interest rates were 1o decrease by 0.5%

{2017 - 0.75%), then the post-tax Impact would be to reduce profits by $1.2m {2017 — $1.7m). The moverments arise on US dollar derominated
intra-Group loans. There 's no impact an OCI far a change In interest rates.

(b} Foreign Exchange Rate Sensitivity

The post-tax impact on ihe income statement, with all other variables held constant, at 31 December 2018, for an increase or decreasa of 10%
U = 17 L8 Dlal il W6IQH EXCHEIIYS 1ale, b Nul 1aiellal. e ool 1 e G g slEaishieil allses 11011 OGN Guhoomidlco
accruals, other payables and borrowings, offset by Sterfing loans recelvable from subsidiaries. There is no impact on QCI for a change in foreign
exchange rates,

C11. Post-Employment Benefits
The Company has no employees and therefore does not participate In any of the post-employment benefit schemes shown in nole 28 of the
Group's financial statements, although it does guarantee the contributions due by the participating employers,

C12. Share Capital and Share Premium
Please see note 30 of the Group's financial statements.

C13. Other Components of Equity

Year ended 31 December 2018

Capital Share-based Currency
redemption payments translation Merger
raserva raserve rasarve raserve Total
$m Sm $§m $m $m

At 1 January 0.2 189 (19.2) 9.4 78.3
Share options and awards
- value of employee services - 1341 - - 13.1
—dscharge - 8.7} - - ©.7)
Transfer between reserves N - - - (12.2) (12.2)
At 31 December 0.2 22.3 {19.2) 67.2 70.5

During the year, $12.2m was lranslerred from the merger reserve to retained earnings. This portion of the reserve is now considerad to be
realsed as the equivalent amount of the proceeds from the share placing in 2018 have now met the definition of qualfying consideration

Year ended 31 Decemnber 2017

Capital  Shars-hased Currency
redemption payments translaton Merger
reserve reserve rasarve rasarve Total
&m Sm $m $m Sm
At 1 January 0.2 16.4 {19.2) 794 78.8
Share options and awards
—value of employee services — 11.6 - - i1.8
—digcharge o _ ) - 8.1 - - 8.1
At 31 December 0.2 18,8 {19.2) 79,4 79.3
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G14. Retalned Earnings

2018 2017
$m $m
At 1 January 413.6 3811
Profit for the yvear 7.3 13.6
Dividends paid to equity shareholders fnote G15) (6.6) -
Purchase of traasury shares 5.7 -
Share options and awards
—discharge 9.2 8.9
Transfer batween resarves 12.2 -~
At 31 December 430.0 4136
Retainad earnings include the following amounis in respect of the carrying amount of Treasury shares.
2018 2007
m $m
Cost:
At 1 January (7.2) ‘@37
Purchase of treasury ahares (5.7) -
Dlgposal of Ireasury shares o 17 15
At 31 December {11.2) {7.2
The loss on digposal of Treasury sharas during the year, which is recognised n relained earnings, was $1.7m (2017 — §1.5m).
C15. Dividends Paid to Equity Shareholders
Please see note 33 of tha Group's financial statements.
C16, Share-Based Payments
Please see note 34 of the Group’s fnancial statements
C17. Related Party Transactions
The following related party transactions took place between the Company and subsidlarles of the Group during the year:
2018 2017
$m £m
Transactions:
Royalties receivable 14,7 10.8
Managemesnt fees payable (11.7} ©.7)
Recharges of share options and awards and administrative expenses 13.3 124
Loan 1o subsidiary 22.9) (29.5)
Lean from subsidiary 0.3 0.3
Loans to subsidiary repaid 12,2 -
Intarest receivable on inter-company loans 8.7 76
Dividends received from subsidiarias - 9.7
Year-end balances:
Payables to subsidiaries {0.2) (0.3)
Receivablas from subsidiaries 0.8 0.8
Loans awed to subsidiaries (0.6) (0.3)
Leans owed by subsidiaries 285.9 275.2

All balances batween the Company and its subaidiaries are unsecured.

Tha Company alsa sarves as the Group's intermediary for the provision of UK Group tax relief, VAT and certain Group insurances. At the
year-end, the quistanding recelvable for UK Group tax relief was $1.2m (2017 - $2.1m).

The key management of the Company comprises the Hunting PLC Board and members of the Executive Committee. The detaills of their
cotmpensation are disclosed in nete 8 of the Group's financial statements, The Hunting PLC Board and members of the Executive Committee
had no material transactions other than as a result of their service agreemeits,

G18. Associates

Associates' Registered address

Tianjin Huaxin Prernium Connection Pips Co |td {28.5%) Jintang Road, Dongli District, Tianjin, 300301, China

Hunting Airtrust Tubulars Pta. Lid (50%}) 18, Keppel Road, 08-05 JIT Poh Building, 088058, Singapore
Notas;

I Allintarasts In associates are in he equity shares ol those companies,
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Notes to the Company financial statements conunued

C19. Subsidiaries

All Gompaniss listed below are whally owned by the Group, except where otherwise indicated.

Subsidiaries™

Aeglstered address

Operating activities

Hunting Energy Services {Australia} Pty Ltd
Hunting Energy Services {Canada) Ltd
Hunting Energy Services {Wuxi) Co. Ltd (70%)

Hunting Energy Completion Equipment {Wuxi) Co., Ltd

Hunting Energy Services {International) Limited
Hunting Energy Senices Gverseas Holdings Limited
Hunting Energy Services Limited®

Hunting Energy Services (UK Limited {80%)

PT Hunting Energy Asia

Hunting Alpha (EPZ) Limited [(60%}
Hunting Energy Services Kenya Ltd
Hunting Energy de Mexica

Hurtting Erergy Services BV (80%)

Hunting Energy Services {Well Testing) BY

Hunting Energy Services (Norway) AS

Hunting Energy Saudi Arabia 11T (80%)

Hunting Energy Services (Well Intervention) Limited
Hunting Welltonic Limited”

Hunting Energy Services {International) Pte. Ltd.
Hunting Energy Services Pte, [id.

Hunting Energy Services (China) Ple, Lid, {70%)
Hunting Enercay Services (Well Intervantion) Pte. Ltd
Hunting Energy Services {South Atrica) Pty Lid

Hunting Energy Services {Thalland) Limited (43%)

Hunting Energy Services {Uganda) Ltd
Nationat Coupling Company, Inc.
Hunting Energy Services, L|.C
Premium Finishes, Inc.

Hunting Dearbarn, Inc.

Hunting Energy Services (Driling Tools), Inc.
Hunting Innova, Inc.

Hunting Specialty, Inc,

Hunting Titan, Inc.

Hunting Titan ULC

Tenkay Resources, Inc.

Carporate activities

Hunting Energy Holdings Limited?
Hunting Ol Holdings Limited?

Hunting Knightsbndge Holdings Limited
Hunting Krightsbridge (US) Finance Linited
Huntaven Properties Limied

Hunting Pension Trusl Limitag*

HG Management Sarvices Ltd
Huntfiekd Trust Lirnited

Stag Line Limited”

Huntlng Aviation Limited

Field Insurance Limited

Hurnting U.S. Holdings, Inc,

Level 40, Goverrior Macquarie Tower, 1 Farrer Place, Sydney, NSW 2000, Australia
5550 Skyline Way NE, Galgary, Alberta, T2E 777, Canada

No. 17, Xin DongAn Road, Shua Fang Industral, New District Wuxi Gity, Jiangsu
Province, China

No, 17, ¥in DongAn Road, Shua Fang Industrial, New District Wuxi City, Jiangsu
Province, China

5 Hanover Square, London, W18 1HQ, England

5 Hanover Squars, London, W13 1HQ, England

5 Hanover Square, London, W18 1HQ, England

5 Hanaover Square, London, W18 1HQ, Engtand

Gompilex Dragon Industnal Park, Block D, Jalan Pathmura, Kabil Batarm,

20487, Indonesia

Black XLVHIAB0, Off Mbaraki Road, P.O. Box 83344-80100 Mombasa, Kenya
5th Floar, West Wing, ICEA Lion Centre, Riverside Park, Chiromo Read, Nairobi, Kenya
Avenida Los Qimos #105, Farque Indusirial E Sabinal, Apodaca, Nuevo Leon,
Monterrey, Mexico

Oliewag 10, 1951 NH Velsen-Noord, Netherdands

Qliewag 10, 1951 NH Velsen-Noord, Nethertands

Koppholen 18, 4313 Sandnes, Norway

Dhahran, Building Mo: 7612, PO. Box: 3104, Zip Gode' 34521, Saudi Arabia
Badentoy Avenua, Badentoy Park, Portlethen, Aberdeen, AB12 4YB, Scotland
Badentoy Avenus, Badentoy Park, Fortlethen, Aberdeen, AB12 4YB, Scatland
2 Iniernational Business Park, #04-13/14, The Strategy 609930, Singapore

2 Infernational Buslness Park, #04-13/14, The Strategy 609930, Singapore

2 International Business Park, #04-13/14, The Strategy 608930, Singapore

15 Scotts Road, #04-01/03, Thong Teck Buiding, 228218, Singapore

Manor House, vineyaras Ctilce Estale, 89 Jip ce Jager, De Bron, Lape 1own, 1360,
South Africa

436/27, Moo 2, Thanadee-Klongwong Road, Tambol Phawong, Amphur Muong
Songkhla, 90100, Thalland

4th Floor, Rwenzor Towers, Plot 6, Nakasero Road, Kampala, 24665, Uganda
1316 Staffordshire Road, Stafiordshire, Texas, 77477, USA

168825 Narlhchasa Dnve, Suite 600, Houston, lexas, 77060 USA

16825 Norlhchase Drive, Suite 600, Houston, Texas, 77080 USA

6, Dearbern Drive, Fryeburg, Malne, USA

16825 Northchase Drive, Suite 600, Houston, Texas, 77080 USA

8383 North Sam Housteon Parkway Wast, Houston, Texas, 77064, USA

16825 Narthchase Dirive, Surte 800, Houston, Texas, 77060 USA

16825 Northchase Drive, Suite 600, Houston, Texas, 77080 USA

5550 Skyline Way NE, Calgary, Alberta, T2E 727, Ganada

16825 Northehase Drive, Suite 600, Houston, Texas, 77060 USA

5 Hanover Square, Londen, W13 1HQ, England

5 Hanover Square, London, W18 1HQ, England

5 Hanover Square, London, W18 1HQ, England

5 | lanover Square, London, W18 1HQ, Ergland

5 Hanover Square, London, W15 1HQ, England

5 Hanover Square, Lendon W13 1HQ, England

& Hanover Square, Lendeon, W1S 1HQ, England

5 Hanover Square, London, W15 1HQ, England

5 Hanover Squara, London, W15 1HQ, England

5 Hanover Square, London, W18 1HQ, England

The Albany, South Esplanade, St Peter Port, Guernsey, GY1 4NF, Guernsey
168825 Northchase Drive, Suite 600, Houston, Texas, 770680 USA

Notes:

I Except where otherwise stated, cormpanies are wholly owned, being incorporated and operating in the countries indicated.

i Interest in company is held directly by Hunting PLGC.

iii. Al intarests in subsidianes are in tha aquity shares of those companies, The proporiion of voting rights is represented by the interest in the eculty shares of those

companies.

v, Huntfield Trust Lim'tec (registerad number 80372215), Stag | ine Limited (registered number 0G151320), Hunt ng Aviation Limited and Hunting Knightsbridge (US)
Finance Limited {registered number 08319706) are dormant companles that are exernpt from being audited, ars exempt from the requirerments 1o propare individual
accounts under section 3844, of the Companies Act 2006 and are exempt from [iling individual accounts under section 448A of the Companies Act 2006,

v. Company has been placed into voluntary llquidabion.
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Nonh-GAAP measures pnaudied

The Directors believe It Is appropriate to include in the Strategic Repar! and financial statements a number of non-GAAP measures {"NGMs”) that

are commonly used within ihe business. These measuras supplemnent the information provided in the IFRS “reported” financial statements and

accompanying notes, providing additional insight to the users of the Annual Report.

This section provides a definition of the non-GAAP measures, the purpose far which the measure is used, and a reconciliation of the non-GAAP

measure to the reported IFRS numbers. The auditors are required under the Companies Act 2006 to consider whether these non-GAAP

measures are prepared consistently with the financial statements,

Income Statement Non-GAAP Measures
The Directers have applied the pravisions of IAS 1 with regards to excepticnal iterns and have chosen to present these, together wilh

amortisation of intangible assets recognised as part of a business combnation, in a separate column on the face of 1he income statement. All
proflt and loss measures adjusied for amortisation of intangible assets recognised as part of a business combination and exceptlonal items are

refarred to as "underlying”. This is the basis used by the Directors in assessing performance.

A. EBITDA
Purpose: This profit measure is used as a simple proxy for pre-tax cash flows from operating activitles.

Caloulation definition: Underlying results before share of associates' post-tax results, interest, tax, depreciation, impairment and amortisation.

Restated
2018 2017
$m £m
Reported profit {loss) from operations [consolidated iIncome statement) — as praviously reported 75.4 (25.4)
Change In acgounting policy - 0.8
Reported profit (loss) from operations — restated 75.4 (24.8)
Add:
Depraciation charge for the year on property, plant and equipment (note 12) 35.0 39.6
Amortisation of other intangible assets [note 14) 31.8 31.2
Impalrment of property, plant and equipment (note 12) 1.0 7.6
Less:
_Reversal of impairment of property, plant and equipment and other asssts {note 12) (2.0}
Reponeo EBITOA. 7 B T - ] 1413 550
Add' Exceptionat items impacting EBITDA
Restruciuring costs [note 5) 0.5 2.4
Loss on disposal of Kenya rental fleet [note 6) 0.5 -
Underlying EBITDA 142.3 56.0

B. Underlying Tax Rate

Purpese* This weighted average tax rale represents the level of tax, both current and deferrad, being borne by operaticns on an underlying basis,

Calculation definition: Taxation on underlying profit before tax divided by undertying profit before lax, expressad as a percentage.

Restated

2018 2007

$m $m

Underlying taxation charge (note 10) (22.0) (1.0)
Underlying profit before tax for the year (consolidated income staternent) 104,0 1.8
Underlying tax rate 21% 9%
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Non-GAAP measures {unaudited) centinued

Balance Sheet Non-GAAP Measures

C. Working Capital

Purpose: Working Capital is 3 measure of the Group's liquidity identifying whether the Group has sufiicient assets to cover liabililies as they fall due.

Calculation definition: Trade and other receivables exciuding recewvables from assaciates, derivative financial assets and loan notes, plus
inventoriss less trade and other payables excluding payables due to associates, derivative financial liabidities, dividend labilties and retirernent

plan obligations.

Restated

2018 2017

5m m

Trads and other receivabies — non-current {note 16} 35 33
Trade and other recelvabies — current (note 16} 231.0 185.7
Inventories (note 18) 348.2 2810
Trade and other payables — current (note 19) {140.9) (130.9)
Trade and other payables — non-current (note 19) (3.8) 3.9
Less; non-working capital loan note {note 16} (1.2) (1.3)
Add: non-working capital US deferred compensation plan obligation (note 19) 1.7 12.2
Less: non-working capital current other receivables and other payables (2.0) 21
436.5 344.0

D. Inventory Days
Puipose: This is a working capital efficiency ratio that measures inveniory balances relative tc business activity levels,

Caleylation definition: Inventory at the year-end div.ded by underlying cost of sales for the last three months of the year multiplied by 92 days,

adjusted for the impact of acquisitions and disposals

2018 2017

$m $m

Inventary (note 183 348.2 2810
Cendelipiig oot ol salel fr Culihn U Doz ks 173.0 1RE D
Inventory days 185 days 167 days

E. Recejvables Days
Purpose. This is a working capital efficiency ratio that measures receivable batances relative to business activity levels.

Calculation definition: Net trade receivables, contract assets and accrued revenue al the year-end dividied by revenue for the last three months of

the ysar mulliplied by 82 days, adjusted for the impact of acquisitions and disposals

Restated

2018 2017

3m $m

Net frade receivables (note 16) 182.0 148,0
Contract assets 11.8 B.8
Accruad revenue . 7.9 6.2
Net recelvables o 201.7 1610
Revenue for October tc December 236.6 2071
Trade receivable days 78 days 72 days
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F. Other Net Assets

Restatad

2018 2097

$m $m

Relirement benefit asset (note 29) - 186
Investments in associates {consolidated balance sheet) 0.7 0.7
Listed equity investrents and mutual funds (note 15) 1.7 12.2
Non-waorking capital loan note (NGM C} 1.2 13
MNor-working capital US defarred compensatien plan obligation (NGM C) {1.7} (12.2)
Non-working capital current other receivables and other payables (NGM C) 20 241
3.9 227

G. Gapital Employed
Furpose: Used in the calcutation of the return on average capital employed {see NGM Q).

Caile:ulation definitior: Capital employed is the amount of capital that the Group has invested in its business and comprisas the historic value of
total equity plus net {cash) debt at amortised cost.

The Group's capital comprised.

Restated

2018 2017

$m $m

Tolal equity {consolidated balancs shest) 1,191.1 1.11241
Net cash {note 23) (61.3) {30.4}

1,208  1,081.7

H. Gearing
Furpose: This ratle indicates the refative level of debt funding, or financlal leverage that the Group is subject to with higher levels indicating
ncreasing levels of financial risk.

Caizulation definition: Gearing is calculated as net debt as a percentage of total equity, if the Sroup has net debt. If the Group is in & net cash
position, the calculation is not applicable {see NGM G).

2048 2017
Gearing n/a na
Cash Flow Non-GAAP Measures
l. Cash Flow Working Gapital Movements
Puroser Reconciles the working capital movements in the summary of changes in net debt in the Strategic Report,
Resta'ad
2018 2617
$m &m
Working capital — opening balance 344.0 301.2
Foreign exchange (4.6) 4.7
Adjustrments:
Transfer to property, plant and equipment (note 12) - 0.5)
fransfer from provisions (0.1) —
Capital investrmen! debtors/creditors cash flows 0.1 {0.1)
Other non-cash flow movements 0.7 {0.8)
Other cash flow movernent 0.2} {0.4)
Working capital - closing balance (NGM C) (436.5) 344.0)
Cash flow {96.6) (39.9)

Hunting PLC | 2018 Annual Report and Accourds 163

souewRAed gjeindiony  wodas 218sEng

SlUBUISIE]S |BidUeUlS

UOIJRWES O] JIIO)

e e




Non-GAAP measures pnaudted continued

J. Gapital Investment

Furpose: Capital investment Identifies the cash resources heing absorbed organically within the business to maintain or enhance operating

actvity levels,

Calculation definitivn; Capital investrent is the cash paid on tengible non-current assets to maintain existing leveals of operating activity and to

grow the business from current operating Jevels and enhance operating activity.

2018 2017
$m $m

Property, plant and equipment addrtions (note 12) 30.0 11.5
Captal investment debtors/craditors cash flows (NGM |) 0.1 0.1)
Cash flow 301 114
Hunting Titan 12.8 2.6
us 15.2 59
Canada 0.9 0.7
Europe 04 1.0
Asia Pacific 0.2 0.5
Middle Cast, Africa and Other a1 03
Exploraticn and Production 0.5 0.2
Central 0.2 0.2
Cash flow 30.1 A
K. Other Operating Cash and Mon-Cash Movements
Purpose: Reconciles other operating cash and non-cash movements in the Summary Group Gash Flow 1n the Strategic Report.

2018 2017

tm Sm
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (consoldated statemant of cash flows) (1.0) {0.5)
Gain on disposal of held for sale assetls (consolidated statement of cash flows) - 12
Deoicane in prguiciong ionnanhdated statemoent of fonh firaare (3.8) g
Praceeds on disposal of associate 1.3 -
Other non-cash flow items
Pensions 2.5 2.2
Other 0.4 -
{0.6) 0.5

L. Free Cash Flow

Purpose: Frae cash flow is a measure of financial performance and represents the cash thal the Group is able lo generate, Free cash flow

reprasents the amount of cash the Group has avallable to either retain for investment, whether organic or by way of acquisition, of to return to

shareholders,

Calculation definition: All cash flows before transaclions with shareholders and tangible and intangible capital nvestment

Restated

2018 2017

$m $m

Underlying EBITDA (NGM A) 1423 56,0
Add: share-based payment charge 13.2 11.9
T 155.5 67.8

Worling caprial movements INGM [ [96.6) {39.9)
Net interest paid and bank fees {consolicated statement of cash flows) {2.0) (2.4
Nat fax (paid) receved (consolidated siaternent of cash fiows) {2.6) 6.5
Proceeds from digposal of PPE 16.4 6.2
UK penslon scheme refund 10.6 9.7
Disposa! of business - 1.8
Other operabing cash and non-cash rmovernents (NGM K) s 0.5
807 48.3
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Other Non-GAAP Measures

M. Dividend Per Share Declared
Purpose: Identifies the total amount of dividend declared In respect of a period. [his is also used in the caloulation of dividend cover (see NGM N).

Calculation definition: The amaount in cents returned to Ordinary sharehalders,

2018 2017

Cents per Ceris per

ahare shara

Interim dividend 4.0 _
Final dividend . 5.0 -
9.0 -

N. Dividend Cover
Purpose: An Indication of the Company's ability ta maintain the level of its dividend and indicates the proportion of earnings being retained in the
business for future vestment versus that returned to shareholkders.

Calculation definition: Earnings or loss per share atiributable o Ordinary shareholders divided by the cash dividend per share 10 be returned to
Crdinary sharehalders, on an accruals basis.

Restated
2018 oo

Underlymng Reported Underlying Reporied
Earnings {loss]) per share
Basic (note 11) 51.6¢ 54.4c 8.0c {16.0)c
Diluted (note 11) 49.6¢ 52.3c 8.0¢ (16.0)c
Dividend (NGM M) 8.0c 9.0¢ - -
Dividend cover
Basic 8.Tx 6.0x nva na
Diluted 5.5x 5.Bx na n/a

0. Return on Average Capital Employed
Purpose: Measures the levels of return the Group is generating from its capital employed.

Calculation definition; Undarlying profit before interest and tax, adjusted for the share of associates’ post-tax resulis, as a percentage of average
grass capital employed Average gross capitat employed is a monthly average of capital employed basaed on 13 balance sheets from the closing
December balance in the prior year to the closing December balance in the cutrent year.

Restated

2016 2017

$m $m

Average monthly gross capitat employed (13 point average) 1,120.8 1,120.3

Underlying profit from operations {consolidated income statement) 1047 14.3
Share of associates’ posi-tax losses (consolidated income statement} - 1.3)
Underlying profit from operations including associates 104.7 13.0_

Return on average capital employed 9% 1%
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Financial record' unaudisq

Restatadt

2018 2017 2018 2015 2014
§m §m $m &m &m
Revenue 2114 724.9 455.8 8105 1,386.5
EBIMTDA 1423 56.0 (48.9) 81.9 269.8
Depreciation and non-excephional amortisation and Impairment (37.6) (41.7) {43.3) (45.5) (52.0)
Profit (loss) from continuing operations 104.7 14.3 [92.2) 16.4 217.8
Net finance expense {0.7) f1.5) 0.7 &.8) 4.9}
Shars of assoclates’ post-tax losses - (1.3) (C.3) 0.2 0.5}
Prafit loss) before tax from continuing operations 104.0 11.5 (83.9) 94 2124
Taxation (22.0) (t.0) 199 B (57.2)
Profit floss) for the year from continuing operations 82.0 10.5 {73.3) 4.0 185.2
Profit for the year from discontinued operations - —~ - — 0.3
Profit {loss) for the year 82.0 105 (73.3) 4.0 155.5
cents cenis cents vents cents
Basic earnings (joss) per share
Continuing operations 51.6 80 (45.3) 3.1 102.6
Gantinuing and discontinued operations 516 8.0 45.3) 3.1 102.8
Diluted earnings (loss) per share
Continuing operaticns 48.6 8.0 {45.3) 3.1 100.0
Continuing and discontinued oparations 49.6 8.0 {45.3) 3.1 100.2
Dividend per share® 2.0 -~ - 8.0 31.0
$m $n Bm $m $m
Balance sheet
Property, plant and equiprent 360.2 3833 4180 460.8 473.0
Goaodwill and other Intangible asse's 328.7 355.7 380.5 411.0 865.4
Working capital 436.5 344 300, 200.5 4rlo
Taxation (current and deferred) 13.7 6.0 (3.4} 10.7 (55.2)
Provisions (14.2) {(18.0) (15.7) {18.0) (24.7)
Other net assets 3.9 20.7 387 48.3 40.2
Capital employed 1,120.8 1,081.7 1,119.3 1,278.6 1.568.3
Net cash [debt) 61.3 30.4 1.9 {(110.5) {131.0)
Net assats 1,191.1 1,112 1,117.4 71,1681 1,438.3
Non-controliing interests (14.0} (18.8) (18.9) {(28.2) (30.2)
Equity attriputable to owners of the parent 1,177.14 1,083.3 1,088.1 1,141.8 1,408.1
cents cents cents cents cants
Net assets per share 721.4 B77.3 88268 785.0 868.6

I Information is stated before exceptional items and amortisation of intangible assets recognised as part of a business combination.

1. Information for 2017 has been reslated to reflect the adootion of IFRS 156 Aevenue from Gondracts with Customers [ses note 38) Information for the years 2014 le
2016 has not been restated for the adoption of IFRS 15 Revenue frorm Condracts with Customers as the effects are not considered lo be matenal. As IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments has Deen adopted on 1 January 2018, and thers was no impacl on prior years of the adoption, nane of the historical iInformation haa bean restated.

ifl. Dividend per share is stated on a declared bawms, Following the change in funciional currency from Sterling to US dollar In 2013, dividends are decfared in US dollars
and paid w Slerling The Sterling value of dividends pard 15 fixed and announced approximately two weeks prior 1o the payment dats.
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Shareholder and statutory information wnawited

Annual General Meeting 2019
The AGM of Hunting PLG will be held on Wednesday, 17 April 2019 at The Royal Automabile Glub, 89 Pall Mall, London SW1Y 5HS and shall

commence at 10,30 a.m.

Business of Meeting

The AGM is an opportunity for shareholders to meet with the Board of Directors. The usual format of Ihe meeting starts with the Chairman’s
introdustion followed by an inwitation to take any questions from shareholders and, finally, the formal business of the meeting, which involvas
putiing 1o the meeting & number of ordinary and speclal resolutions, Dataifs of the resolutions will be communicated to shareholders ahead of the
meeting in a formal *Notice of AGM*. The Notice also cantains explanatory noies which will provide details to sharsholders on how to lodge their
vote, Those shargholders who have elected to continua to receive hard copy documentation ar have signed up fo receive a netification by e-mall
will also raceive a proxy form, which will contain details of how to fodge a vole by proxy.

Documents on Display

Copies of the executive Directors’ service contracts and jetters of appointment of non-executive Directors will be avallable for inspsction at the
Company’s Ragistered Office from the date the Notice of AGM is issued {baing 21 clear days’ nofice ahead of the meeting) until the time of the
AGM and at the Royal Automobile Club, 89 Pall Mall, London SWAY SHS from 15 minutes before the AGM starts untll it ends.

Registered Office
5 Hanover Squars
London

WIS 1HQ

Campany Number: 974568 (Regislered in England and Wales)

Telephone: +44 {0)20 7321 0125
Email; pr@hunting.plc.uk

Flnancial Calendar
The Company's 2019 financial calandar 15 as follows:

Dale e e S = S U UV
28 February 2019 2018 kuil-Year Hesulis Announcement

28 February 2019 Final Dividend — Announcement Date

13 March 2019 Publication of Annual Report and Not.cs of AGM
17 April 2019 Trading Staternent

17 Aprit 2018 AGM

17 Apr 2019 Proxy Voting Results af AGM

18 April 2019 Final Dividend - Ex-dividend Date

23 April 2018 Final Dividend — Record Date

10 May 2019 Final Dividend — Payment Date

29 August 2019 2019 Hall-Year Results Anncuncaement

Financial Reparts
The Company’s 2018 Annual Report and Accounts is availabls cn the Company's webslte from the date of publication. Sharehclders may elect
1o receive a copy by contacting the Registrar. Coples of previous financial reports are available at www.huntingple.com,

In common with many public companies in the UK, the Company no longer publishes a printed version of its half-year report, The half-year report
is only avallable online from the Company's website at www huntingple.com.

Registrar
The Company's Reglstrar, Equintl, offers & range of shareholder information and dealing serv'ces at www.shareview.co.uk, The address and
contact detalls of Equinit are as follows’

Equiniti Linited

Aspect House

Spencer Hoad, Lancing

West Sussex BNGg 8DA
Telephone:

UK +44 (0)371 384 2173
Cwverseas +44 (Q)121 M5 7047

Equiniti is alsc the Company's single alternative inspection location where, with prior appointment, individuals can inspect the register of members.
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Shareholder and statutory information wnauated) continued

Analysis of Ordinary Shareholders
At 31 December 2018, the Company had 1,516 Crdinary shareholders (2017 — 1,618} who held 1651m {2017 — 164,2im) Ordinary shares analysed
a3 follows:

2018 2017

% of total % of total % of total % of total
shareholders shares shareholders shares

Size of holdings
1-4,000 725 0.6 73.1 G.7
4,001 - 20,000 10.5 0.8 12.0 1.1
20,001 - 40,000 3.2 0.8 25 0.7
40,001 — 200,000 7.0 6.0 6.5 8.0
200,001 - 500,000 3.2 8.9 2.9 8.8
500,001 and ovar 3.8 82.8 3.2 82.7

Share Capital
Hunting PLC is a premiurn-listed public company fimited by shares, with its Ordinary shares queted on the London Steck Exchange.

The Compary’s issued shara capial comprises a single class, which is divided in to 165,073,603 Crdinary shares of 25 pence each, All of the
Campany’s issued Ordinary shares are fully paid up and rank equally in afl respects.

Details of the Issued share capital of the Campany and the number of shares held in Treasury as at 31 Decamber 2018 can be found in note 30
1o the financial staterrents,

Subject to applicable statutes, shares may be issued with such nights and restrictions as the Company may, by ardinzry resolution, decide, or
{if there is no such resolution or s far as it dees not make specific provision) as the Board (as defined in the Articles of Assoclation) may decide.

Voting Rights and Restrictions on Transfer of Shares
Holders of QOrdinary shares are entitied to receiva dividends (when declared), receive the Company’s Annual Reporl and Accounts, attend and
speak at general meetings of the Company, and appoint proxies or exercise voting rights.

On a show of hands at a general mesting of the Gompany, every holder of Ordinary shares present in person or by proxy, and entitled to vots,
has ona vole, and, on a pall, every member present in parson or by proxy and entided to vote has one vote for every Ordinary share held. None
of the Ordinary shares carry any special ighls with regard to controt of the Cormpany. Proxy appointments and voting instructions must be
received by the Company’s Registrars not later than 48 hours before a general meeting

A shareholder can lose their entilement to vole at a general meeting where that shareholder has been served with a disclosure notice and has
failed to provide the Company with information cencerning interests in those shares. Sharsholders” rights to transter shares are subject to the
Company's Articles of Association.

Transfers of uncertificated shares must be carried out using CREST and the Directors can refuse to register a transfer of an uncertificated share
in accordance with the regulations governing the operation of CREST,

The Directors may decide to suspend the tegistration of transfers, for up to 30 days a year, by closing the register of shareholders. The Directors
cannot suspend the regrstration of transfers of any uncertificated shares without obtaining consent from CREST.

There are no restrictions on the transter of Ordinary shares in the Company other than:

s certain restrictions that may from time 1o time be iImposed by laws and regulations, for example insider trading laws,

» pursuant to the Company’s share dealing code whereby the Directors and certain employees of the Company require approval to deal in the
Company's sharas; and

+ where a sharehaolder with at least a 0.25% interes! in the Company's cerliicated shares has been served with a disclosure natice and has
failed to prowde the Gornpany with information concerning interests in those shares.

Interests in Voting Rights
Otner than as stated In the table of Substantial Interests on pags 63, the Company 1s not aware of any further agreements between shareholders
that may result in restrichons on the transter of Ordinary shares or on vating rights,

Market Capitalisation
The market capitalisation of the Company at 31 December 2018 was £0.8bn (2017 — £1.0bn).

Share Price
2018 2017
P E
At 1 January 605.0 627.5
At 31 Deceambar 480.0 €05.0
High during the vear 914.0 640.0
Low during the year 453.6 382.56
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Dividends
The Company normally pays dividends semi-annually, Details of the Company's dividend policy is set out on page 18,

In 2018, tha Campany recommenced dividend distributions to shareholders, with an interim dividend of 4.0 cents per share declared and paid
in Octeber, The Board are recommending a final dividend for 2018 of 5.0 cents per share, 1c be paid to shareholders cn 10 May 2019, subject
10 approval at the AGM,

Directors

Powers of the Diractors

Subject to the Company's Articles of Aasaclation, UK lsgisiation and any directions prescribed by resolution at a general meeting, the business
of the Cempany s managed by the Board. The Ariicles of Association may only be amendead by speclal resoliion at a genoral meeling of
sharenclders. Where class rights are varied, such amendments must be approved by the members of each class of share separately.

Appointment and Replacement of Directors

The rules about the appaintment and replacement of Directors ae contained In the Articles of Association On appeiniment, in accordance with
the Articles, Oirectors may be appoinied by a resciution of the Board but are then required to be reappointed by ordinary resolution by
shareholders at the Company's next AGM.

Diractors' Interests

Details of Direciors' remuneration, service contracts and interests In the Company's shares and share oplions are sst out in the Directors’
Remuneration Policy and Annual Report on Remuneration, located at www.huntingple.com. Further information regarding smployee long-term
incentive schemes is given in note 34 of the financial staterments.

Directors’ Conflict of Interest

All Directors have a duty under the Companies Act 2008 1o avoid a situation in which they have, or could have, a direct or indirect conflict of
interest with the Company. The duty applies, in particular, 10 the exploitation of any property, information or spportunity, whether or not the
Company could take advaniage of it, The Company's Articles of Association provide a general power for the Board to authonse such conflicts.

Diraciors are nat counted in the quorum for the authonsation of therr own actual or potential canflicts. Authorisations granted are recorded by
the Company Secretary in a register and are noted by the Board, On an ongoing basis, the Birectors are responsible for informing the Company
Serretary of any new actoal or potential conflicts that may arse, or if thare are any changes in circumstances that may affect an authorisation
previously given. Even when provided with authorisation, a Diractor is not absolved from his or her statutory duty to promote (he success of Ine
Company. if an actual confilct arises post-authorisation, the Board may chioose to exclude the Director from receipt of the relevant information
and participation in the debate, or susperd the Director from the Board, or, as a last resort, require the Direclor to resign. As at 31 December
2018, no Director of the Company had any beneficial inlerest in the shares of Hunting’s subsidiary companies.

Statement of Disclosure of Information to Auditors

In accardance with the Companies Act 20086, all Directors in office as at the date of this report have confirmed, so far as they are aware, thare
is na relevant audit Information of which the Group's auditors are unaware and each Director has laken all reasonable steps necessary in order
to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and 1o establish that the Group's auditors are aware of that information. This
confirmation should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of Saction 418 of the Companies Act 2008,

Research and Davelopment
Group subsidiaries undertake, where appropriate, research and development to meet particular markel and praduct needs. The amaount
expensed by the Group during the year was $3.4m (2017 - $3.7m).

Palitical Contributions
It 15 the Group's policy nol to make poliical donations, Accordingly, there were no political donations made during the year (2017 — $nil).

Significant Agreements

The Company is party to a revolving credit faciity in which the counterparties can determine whether or nat to cance! the agreement whisre there
has been a change of controf of the Company The service agreaments of the executive Directors includa provisions for compensation for loss of
office or employrment as a resuit of a change of control.

Payments to Governments

In accordance with the UK's Disclosure and Transparency Ruies 4.3A, Hunting PLC is required to report annually on payments made to
governments with respect to iis oil and gas activities. Hunting's report on "Payments 1o Governments™ {or the year ended 31 December 2017
was published on 14 March 2018 and totalled $561,328.

Statement of Listing Rule Complilance

In accordance with Listing Rule 9.8.4G, the Directors confirm that afl walvers of dividends aver the Company’s Ordinary shares are noted on
page 63,
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Glossary

A

AED
United Arab Emirates Dirham,

AGM
Annual General Meeting.

AMG

Advanced Manuilacturing Group — combines
the precision engineering and manufacturing
capabiliies in Hunting’s US segment for the
Electronlcs divsion (Hunting Innova), Hunting
Specialty and Hunting Dearborn product
linss, Hunting is alming 1o become a leading
single source of MWD/LWD tools,

APl
Amarican Petrofeum institute.

Average gross capital employed?®
See NGM O,

B

Basic EPS*

Basic earnings per share — calculated by
dividing the earnings from operations befora
armortisation and exceptional iterns attributable
to Ordinary sharsholdars by the weighted

Aenoge Prmalor AF Drlinam charae n e

during the year.

bbl
Barrei of oil - one barret of oil equals 159 litres
or 42 US gallons.

BOE
Barral of oll equivalent,

bn
Billion

C

c
Cents.

CAGH
Compound annual growth rate.

Capital employed*
See NGM G,

Capital investment - "Capex
See NGM J,

cGu
Cash-generating unit.

CNY
Chinase Yuan Renminbi

CO,
Carbon dicxide.

CQqe
Garbon dioxide equivalent,

GOy intensity factor

Scope 1 and 2 carbon dioxide equivalent
metric, reported as kikngrammes per $:000
of revanue,

CPI
Consumer Price Index.

CTR
Currency translation reserve,

D

DEFRA
UK Departmert for Environment, Food &
Rural Affairs,

Dituted EPS*

Diluted eamings per share - caleulated by
dividing earnings from oparations before
amortisation and excepticnal ttermns attributable
to Ordinary shareholders by the weighted
average number of Ordinary shares in issue
during the year, as adjusted for al polentially
dilutive Qrdinary shares.

Dividend covar*
See NGM N

Downhole
Downhale refers 10 something 1hat is located
wilhin the wellbore.

DPpS*
See NGM M,

E

EBITDA*
See NGM A.

ESOP
Execulive Share Optlen Plan.

F

FRC
Financial Reporting Gouncil.

Free cash flow*
See NGM L.

FVLGCD
Falr value less costs of disposal.

G

GAAP
Generally Accapted Accouniing Principles.

Gearing*
Sea NGM H.

GHG
Greenhouse gas.

Growth capital investment
See NGM J.

GWh
Giga-watt hours.
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H

HPSP
Hunting Performance Shate Plan,

HSE
Health, Safety and Environment.

1AS
International Accounting Standards.,

IFRIC
International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committes.

WTvA

The in-Kingdom total value add pragramme
created by Saudi Aramco to baseling,
measure and support increased levels of
locaiisation in the Kingdom,

IFAS
international Financial Reporting Standards
as adopted by the European Union.

Incident rate

The US Occupational Safety and Health
Administration (“OSHA" Recardable Incident
Rate for Inciderd Ratel is calnolated by
multiplying the number of recordable
Incidents by 200,000 and then dividing that
numbar by the number of labour hours worked.

Intensity factor

The tetal controlied Scope 1 and Scope 2
emissions divided by the total revenue of the
Graugp.

Internal manufacturing reject rate
Percentage of parts rejected during the
manufaciuring process.

Inventory days*
See NGM D.

oc
Interpational Oil Company.

P
Intellectual Property.

150
International Standards Organisation.

K

k
Thousand.

kWh
Kilowatt hours.
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L P T N
Lean p TSR*

A production practice that eliminates wasteful  Pencea, Total Shargholder Return — the net share
processes, thereby reducing production tme price change plus the dividends paid during
and costs, and improving efficiency, PCB that period.

LNG
Liquefied Natural Gas.

LPG
Liquefied Petroleum Gas.

LTIP
Long-Term Incentive Plan,

M

m

Mittior:,

ma

Cubic metre,

mef
1,000 cubic feet,

mmBtu
Milkon British thermal units.

MWD/LWD
Measurement-while-drilling/toggng-white-
driling,

N

Net cash/debt
See nate 23.

NGM
Non-GAAP measure - see pages 161 1o 165,

NOC
National Oil Company.

NYMEX
New York Mercantile Exchange.

0

ocs
Other comprehensive income.

0CTG

Ol Country Tubular Goods — pipe and tubular
goods and products used in the oil and gas
industry, such as driil pipe, pine casing and
production pipes,

OEM
Criginal equipiment manufacturer,

OPEC
Qrganfzation of the FPetroleum Exporting
Countries.

Printed circuit board.

PCE
Pressure control equipment.

PDMR
Person discharging managenat
respongibilities,

PPE
Property, plant and eguipment.

Psi
Pounds per squara inch.

PSP
2009 Performance Share Plan.

R

RCF
Revolving Credit Facility.

Receivable days*
San MON T

Recordable incidents

An incident is recordable if it results in any

of the following' death, days away from work,
restricted work or transfer to ancther job,
medical treatment beayond first aid, or loss

of consciousnass. Also included are any
signlficant injuries or ilinesses diagnosed by
a physiclan or other licensed health care
professional, sven if it doss not result in
death, days away from work, restricted work
or job transfer, medical treatment beyond first
aid, or {oss of consciousness,

Replacement capital investment
See NGM J.

ROCE*
Sea NGM O,

5

Scope 1

Seope 1 emissions are direct GHG emissions
from sources that are owned or controfled by
the entity. Scope 1 omissions include fossil
fuels burned on site, erissions from vehicles
and other direct sources.

Scope 2

Scope 2 emissions are Indirect GHG
emissions resulting from the generation of
elactricity, hoating and cocling or steam

generated off site but purchased by the entity.

SHARP
Safety and Health Achievenent Recognition

Programme.
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u

UAE
United Azab Emirates.

Underlying

Resulls for the year, as reported under
IFRS, adjusted for amortisation of intangible
assets recognised as part o° a business
combination and exceptional items, which is
the basis used by the Directors in assessing
performance.

UKLA
UK Listing Authorily,

w

Wellbore
The wellbore refers to the drilled hole

Well completion

Well completion refers to the processes of
prepating a well for nrodoetion, This involes
the assembily of downhole tubulars and
equipment required ia enable safe and
efficient production from an oil or gas well.

Well construction

Well construction refars to the initial drifling
and procasses of ¢onstructing the wellbore in
an off and gas well, These processes typically
include dnlfing and logging the hole, running,
cementing and logging the casing; hydraulic
fracturing or stimulating the well and
monitoring well performance and integrity.

Well intervention

Well interventicn refers to any cperation
carried out on an il or gas well that malntains
or enhancas the pradustion of the well or
provides well diagnostics,

Working capital*
Sece NGM C.

WTi
West Texas Intermediate — the price per barrel
of Texas light sweet cruce olt,

Non-GAAP measure.
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Professional advisers

Solicitors
CMS Cameron MeKenna Nabarra Olswang LLP

indepandent Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Delaitte LLP take over the role of Independent Auditor in 2019,
subject to shareholder approval

Joint Corporate Brokers
Barclays Bank PLC and RBC Capital Markets

Financial Advisers
DG Advisory Limited

Insurance Brokers
Willis Towers Watson

Pension Advisers & Actuary
Lane Clark & Peacock LLP

Financial Public Relatiens
Buchanan Cormimunications Limited

Registrars & Transfer Office
Equiniti Limited

Aspect House

Spencer Road, Lancing

Wast Sussex BNSA 8DA

Telenhone

UK +44 (0)371 384 2173
Cverseas +44 (0y121 415 7047
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FSC
wakiseory

MiX

Paper from
rerpoatThis sourrs

FSC* GQD1785

Designed and produced by Gather
www.gatherlordon

Printed hy Park Communications
TFhis product is made of materal from wel-managed,
FEG2-certifed forests and other comrolled seurcas

Park Communications is certified to 1ISO 14001
Ervirenmental Management Syatem and the EU
Eca-Menagereent and Audit Scheme (EMAS)




Hunting PLC

5 Hanover Square
London W1S 1HQ

Unlted Kingdom

Tel +44 ()20 7321 0123
Fax. +44 (0)20 7839 2072

wwwi.huntingple.com
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